
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Governance Services on (01432) 
260249 or e-mail councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of 
the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Cabinet 
 

 

Date: Thursday 11 September 2014 

Time: 2.00 pm 

Place: Grand Jury Room, The Shire Hall, St Peters Square, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Governance Services 
Tel: (01432) 260249 
Email: councillorservices@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Cabinet 
Membership  
  

Chairman Councillor AW Johnson 
Vice-Chairman  
   
 Councillor H Bramer  
 Councillor JW Millar  
 Councillor PM Morgan  
 Councillor GJ Powell  
 Councillor PD Price  
 Councillor P Rone  
 

Non Voting    
 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  11 SEPTEMBER 2014 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
  

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 

Notice has been served in accordance with Part 3, Section 9 (Publicity in 
connection with key decisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2012. 
 

Item No Title Portfolio 
Responsibility 

Scrutiny 
Committee 

28 
Day 
Notice 
Given 

4 Local Transport Plan 
4 

Transport and 
Roads 

General 
Overview 
and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Yes 

 
 

 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
Agenda. 
 

 

3.   MINUTES 
 

7 - 10 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 31 July 2014. 
 

 

4.   LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN 4 
 

11 - 74 

 To consider the approach to developing Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4) and a 
proposed recommendation to Council on 26 September 2014 that the current 
Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3) be extended until after the council’s Core 
Strategy is adopted, or to 31 March 2016, whichever is the earlier. 
 

 

5.   OUTCOME OF CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING OFSTED INSPECTION 
AND ACTION PLAN 
 

75 - 142 

 To note the outcome of the Ofsted inspection of services for children in need 
of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers, which was 
conducted between 29 April and 21 May 2014. 
 
To consider the council’s response to the areas for improvement identified. 
 

 





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
The Shire Hall is 10 minutes walking distance from both bus stations located in the town 
centre of Hereford. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

Shire Hall, St Peter’s Square, Hereford. HR1 2HX. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to the Shire Hall car park.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated 
the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 

6



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 

MINUTES of the meeting of Cabinet held at The Council 
Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, Hereford on Thursday 31 
July 2014 at 2.00 pm 
  

Present: Councillor AW Johnson (Chairman) 
 

   
 Councillors: JW Millar, GJ Powell, PD Price, P Rone,  and H Bramer 
 
 
In attendance: Councillors , WLS Bowen, AJW Powers, TM James, F Norman, R Matthews, J 

Stone, M Lloyd-Hayes, J Bartlett, and CNH Attwood 
 

  
Officers: 
 

Richard Ball, Helen Coombes, Jo Davidson, Steve Hodges, Geoff Hughes,  Bill 
Norman and Peter Robinson  
Mr David McCallum (Chair Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board) 
 Mr Phil Kendrick, West Mercia Youth Offending Service 
 

 

 

14. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
Councillors: JA Hyde, J Jarvis, PM Morgan, R Phillips. 
 
Alistair Neill 
 

15. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

16. MINUTES   
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2014 be approved as a 

correct record and signed by the chairman, subject to the addition of Cllr 
R Matthews as being present. 

 
 

17. BUDGET MONITORING REPORT   
 
Cabinet received a report setting out the forecast outturn position based on information as at 
the end of May 2014, and proposals for a number of budget virements to support 
centralisation of corporate budgets. It was noted that delivery of a balanced budget was 
projected.  
 
The Chief Financial Officer, Peter Robinson, drew attention to two significant budget 
pressures which had arisen since the budget period being reported: £400,000 to support 
additional in year grass cuttings to be funded from the revenue contingency; and £2m to 
address the need for temporary accommodation at Colwall Church of England Primary 
School pending the outcome of works to investigate damp issues at the school to be funded 
from within existing repair and maintenance and capital and revenue contingencies. Mr 
Robinson confirmed that he remained confident in the budget forecast for a balanced budget, 
even should there be winter pressures. All sources of funding were being pursued. 
 
Following issues raised by members in attendance: 

AGENDA ITEM 3

7



 

• Assurance was sought that other schools premises were not likely to require 
additional emergency significant expenditure. The Chief Financial Officer 
acknowledged that the damp issues had been known for some time but had 
significantly worsened following the exceptional spring rains resulting in the need 
for some urgent response. The Cabinet Member Young People and Children’s 
Wellbeing advised that existing conditions surveys for schools were in the 
process of being updated in line with the activity planned in the Corporate Plan. 

• The Cabinet Member Health & Wellbeing clarified the mitigations put in place to 
address adult social care savings risks. 

• The Director Economy, Communities and Corporate provided clarification 
regarding the Yazor Brook flood relief scheme costs and confirmed that some of 
the additional planning income (a positive indicator of economic improvement) 
would be reinvested in the service. 

• The Leader provided assurance that the Colwall community was, and would 
continue  to be engaged in discussions about the future of the school. 

• Assurance was provided that provision had been made for legal costs; the 
Assistant Director Governance confirmed that any judicial reviews were managed 
to minimise costs. 

 
RESOLVED THAT:  

(a) Cabinet notes the council is projected to spend within its budget for this 
financial year;  

(b) Cabinet notes the capital and treasury projected outturns; and 
(c) Cabinet agrees the virement of 14/15 budgets, including £7m of budgets 

from services to centralised area to improve budgetary control and improve 
value for money 

 
 

18. QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT   
 
Cabinet considered performance for the first quarter of 2014/15 following the first 
quarterly performance review held on 15th July 2014.  
 
The Cabinet Member Health & Wellbeing provided an update to the report that 43,000 
premises had access to fibre broadband and Vodaphone /O2 had now identified 19 sites 
across the city identified for 4g masts.  
 
The Director Economy, Communities and Corporate undertook to provide clarification to 
all members regarding the anticipated timing for neighbourhood planning referenda to 
access funding. 
 
Following issues raised by members in attendance: 

• The Director Economy, Communities & Corporate confirmed that the South Wye 
transport package would not of itself deliver the additional housing but would be a 
step towards unlocking that permission given the Highways Agency advice that 
the A49 was at capacity. 

• The Cabinet Member Young People and Children’s Wellbeing confirmed that 
Ofsted criteria applied equally to academy and maintained schools; however the 
ability of the council to impact on the response to issues raised differed 
significantly with councils having little or no duties in relation to taking action 
within academy status schools. That responsibility lay with the school sponsors 
or the Government. 

• The Cabinet Member Health & Wellbeing noted that approaches had been made 
to both the private owners of the enterprise park in Leominster and to individual 
businesses offering advice and support in securing broadband at the site. 

8



 

• The Cabinet Member Infrastructure confirmed that Leominster had not been 
prioritised for additional roads given higher priorities on the A 49 in Hereford.  

• The Director for Children’s Wellbeing advised of action being taken to address 
the core of 16-18 year olds not in education, employment or training including 
those focussing on looked after children. 

• The Director of Economy Communities & Corporate confirmed that progress at 
the Skylon Enterprise Park was good with some 40% of the land taken up. 

 
RESOLVED THAT: the performance report be noted. 
 
 

19. HEREFORDSHIRE SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN BOARD BUSINESS PLAN   
 
Cabinet received a report outlining progress made against the Herefordshire 
Safeguarding Children Board (HSCB) business plan 2013-2014 at year end, and inviting 
comments on the board’s proposed 2014-2015 business plan. 
 
Mr David McCallum, Chairman of the HSCB, summarised the role of the board and 
outlined key issues within the report, identifying areas for improvement and proposed 
action. 
 
RESOLVED THAT:  

(a) the progress achieved in the 2013-2014 Business Plan at Appendix 1 be 
noted; and 

(b) notes the 2014-2015 Business Plan at Appendix 2 
 
 

20. WEST MERCIA YOUTH JUSTICE PLAN   
 
Mr Phil Kendrick from the West Mercia Youth Offending Service presented the draft 
Youth Justice Plan, setting out how youth justice services across West Mercia are 
structured and resourced and identifying key actions to address identified risks to service 
delivery and improvement. It was noted that two factors likely to be influencing offending 
rates in Herefordshire were the sustained higher detection rates and lower than average 
use of community resolution options. 
 
In response to a question from a member in attendance Mr Kendrick advised that the 
evidence did not suggest that  the reduction in universal youth services such as 
traditional youth clubs was a cause in the numbers of young people offending. It was 
however important to ensure that young people had access to the services they needed; 
the difficulties in recruiting and retaining volunteers in this area were noted. 
 
RESOLVED THAT: the Youth Justice Plan (at Appendix A) is recommended to 
Council for approval 
 
 

21. MARCHES LOCAL ENTERPRISE PARTNERSHIP   
 
Cabinet considered a report setting out proposed governance arrangements for the joint 
exercise of executive functions in relation to the Marches Local Enterprise Partnership 
(the LEP). It was noted that the proposed arrangements were strongly encouraged by 
government.  
 
In response to questions raised by a member in attendance the Assistant Director 
Governance advised: 

9



 

• The governance proposals were entirely in support of democratic accountability 
and transparency; 

• The proposals related to executive functions rather than Council functions 
• Access to information requirements would apply in relation to the joint executive 
committee as with any other body of the local authority 

• The LEP board was not itself a decision-making body 
• A joint scrutiny committee had been proposed but was not currently supported by 
the other local authority partners; this did not preclude individual authorities’ 
overview & scrutiny committees from fulfilling their own functions. 

 
RESOLVED THAT:  
(a) the establishment of a joint committee to exercise executive functions in 

relation to the Marches LEP be approved; 
(b) The proposed constitution for the joint committee, as outlined at appendix 

A, be approved; and 
(c) Herefordshire Council provide governance support for the LEP joint 

arrangements.  
 
 

22. HOOPLE   
 
Cabinet considered a report proposing the future approach to the commissioning of 
services provided by Hoople. Detailed timescales for developing the business case and 
implementation plan were being agreed with Hoople. 
 
Cllr C Attwood declared an interest as a board member of Hoople. 
 
In response to issues raised by members in attendance: 

• It was noted that savings delivered to date against the original business case had 
been reported to General Overview & Scrutiny 

• Assurance was given that every effort would be made to complete the necessary 
arrangements in such a way that Hoople’s viability was not adversely affected. 

 
RESOLVED THAT:  
(a) In considering the need to put in place arrangements for the period beyond the 

end of the current contract in 2016, the preferred approach to the 
commissioning of support services be via a Teckal compliant entity operating 
under  control of the council and other shareholders and it’s board, subject to 
these services offering value for money; 

(b) A business case and implementation plan be developed, in partnership with 
Hoople and its board, for the establishment of appropriate legal entities to 
ensure that the council can continue to procure support services through a 
company with Teckal status and that a commercial trading company is able to 
continue to develop wider commercial benefits; and 

(c) The business case and implementation plan required under recommendation 
(b) be the subject of a further report for consideration and approval by the 
Cabinet Member Corporate Services.  

 
 

The meeting ended at 4.16pm CHAIRMAN 

10



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jeremy Callard, Team Leader (Transport Strategy) on Tel (01432) 383437 

 

 

DECISION MAKER: CABINET  

DECISION DATE: 11 September 2014 

TITLE OF REPORT: Local Transport Plan 4  

REPORT BY: Team Leader - Transport Strategy 
 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is a key decision because it is likely to be significant in terms of its effect on 
communities living or working in an area comprising one or more wards in the county. 
 
NOTICE has been served in accordance with Part 3, Section 9 (Publicity in connection with 
key decisions) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to 
Information) (England) Regulations 2012  

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To consider the approach to developing Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4) and a proposed 
recommendation to Council on 26 September 2014 that the current Local Transport Plan 3 
(LTP3) be extended until after the council’s Core Strategy is adopted, or to 31 March 2016, 
whichever is the earlier. 

Recommendation 

THAT:  
(a) It be recommended to Council that the current Local Transport Plan 3 

(LTP3) (2013/14 – 2014/15) time period be extended until after the Core 
Strategy is adopted, or to 31 March 2016, whichever is the earlier, to 
enable Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4) to reflect the adopted Core 
Strategy; and that 

(b) The process to enable adoption of the LTP4, including consultation, as 
set out in this report, is approved. 

AGENDA ITEM 4

11



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jeremy Callard, Team Leader (Transport Strategy) on Tel (01432) 383437 

 

 

Alternative Options 

1 To not extend the current LTP3 beyond March 2015. This alternative is not 
recommended because it is a requirement of the relevant provisions of the Transport 
Act 2000 (as amended) that the council maintains a current LTP. 

2 To adopt a revised LTP in advance of adoption of the Core Strategy. This alternative 
is not recommended because it would pre-empt the outcome of the Core Strategy 
adoption process and could result in the transport policy being inconsistent with the 
land use policy.   

Reasons for Recommendations  

3 To ensure the council complies with the statutory requirement to adopt and maintain 
an LTP and to avoid the premature adoption of LTP4 ahead of adoption of the Core 
Strategy. 

4 The LTP forms part of the council’s budget and policy framework and therefore 
extending the existing LTP3, pending replacement with a new LTP4, is a decision 
reserved to Council. 

Key Considerations 

Background 
 
5 The current LTP3 (see appendices 1 and 2), which is a statutory requirement and 

sets out how the council will deliver transport improvements and maintain its transport 
assets, ends on the 31 March 2015. The LTP3 needs updating to ensure it is 
consistent with our land use policies which are contained in the Core Strategy. As the 
Core Strategy is not due to be adopted until late 2015 we need to extend the current 
LTP until such a time that the Local Development Framework is adopted. We also 
need to prepare the next LTP ready for adoption after the Core Strategy is adopted. 
 

6 The advantages of this approach are that the council will conform to its legal 
requirements, it allows the LTP4 to take account of any changes in the Core Strategy 
and it allows the LTP4 to reflect the outcomes of the Highways Agency route study 
process. 

Developing the next Local Transport Plan 
 
7 Whilst it is proposed to recommend to Council to extend the time period for the 

present LTP3, the program of work will continue to thoroughly review the current 
LTP3 and publish an on-line draft version of LTP4 to help inform the final document. 

8 The programme for LTP4 consultation, development and adoption (post adoption of 
the Core Strategy) is set out below (Figure 1) showing key milestones. 

9 The process of developing our next LTP has been progressed alongside the 
development of the Core Strategy for several years. The two strategies are 
coordinated and a strategic linkage between them has been maintained such that the 
next LTP will closely support the growth proposals included within the Core Strategy. 
This linkage has been further strengthened through the joint review and development 

12



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jeremy Callard, Team Leader (Transport Strategy) on Tel (01432) 383437 

 

of evidence. Key supporting evidence for the Core Strategy, including various studies 
into the relief road and the recently completed phasing study (Strategic Prioritisation 
and Hereford Transport Strategy Review) will directly inform the LTP4’s long term 
strategy.  

10 The evidence base for the transport strategy has been developed from a number of 
studies and consultations. These have also helped shape the development of the 
Core Strategy including the delivery of the Hereford Enterprise Zone. The studies 
have addressed a wide range of transport issues including buses, rail, cycling and car 
parking. 

11 Work is now underway to develop LTP4 which can be swiftly adopted after the Core 
Strategy is adopted. In order to inform the final LTP4 and avoid delay in adopting a 
new LTP, after the Core Strategy is adopted, this work will continue and it is proposed 
to carry out consultation on transport proposals likely to be included in LTP4 later this 
year. 

 
Figure 1 Timetable for LTP and LDF adoption. 

 

J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M

Funding announcements

Preparation of draft LTP

LTP consultation including EIA 
and workshops

LTP consultation report and LTP 
review

LTP Cabinet decision and 
adoption 

LDF Submission                    

LDF Examination                 

Inspector’s LDF Report    

LDF Adoption                 

2014Task 20162015

 
 

12 Conclusion 

 Extending the time period of the current LTP3 until March 2016 will ensure: 

• Statutory duties are met by maintaining an LTP; and also that 

• A LTP4 is adopted which supports and does not pre-empt the Core Strategy. 

Community Impact 

13 The LTP4 will set out how we propose to enable economic development, reduce 
carbon dioxide emissions and improve health through supporting and facilitating the 
Core Strategy.  

14 A Strategic Environmental Impact Assessment will be carried out on LTP4 and will 
help understand the impacts of the policies and plans so they can be refined if 

13



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jeremy Callard, Team Leader (Transport Strategy) on Tel (01432) 383437 

 

necessary. 

Equality and Human Rights 

15 An Equality Impact Assessment will be carried out during the consultation process to 
enable us to understand the impacts of the policies and plans so they can be refined 
if necessary. 

Financial Implications 

16 There are no financial implications from extending the current LTP. 

17 The costs associated with LTP4 development, consultation and adoption can be met 
from within existing budgets.   

Legal Implications 

18 Extending the time period of adoption of the present LTP3, until March 2016, will fulfil 
the statutory requirements of the council, as local transport authority, to produce and 
maintain an LTP under the relevant provisions of the Transport Act 2000 (as 
amended by the Local Transport Act 2008).   

Risk Management 

19 By extending the lifetime of LTP3 we avoid: 

• Adopting LTP4 before the Core Strategy is adopted 

• Breaching the statutory duties to maintain an LTP 

Consultees 

20 None at this stage. It is proposed to undertake consultation on LTP4 later this year. 

Appendices  

Appendix 1 LTP3 Strategy and Delivery 2013-2015 

Appendix 2 LTP3 Policy 2013-2015 

Background Papers 

• None  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

(2
01

3/
14

 - 
20

14
/1

5)
 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 D
el

iv
er

y 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 

15



Co
nt

en
ts

  
1 

St
ra

te
gy

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

4 
1.

1 
LT

P 
K

ey
 O

bj
ec

tiv
es

  
1.

2 
D

es
tin

at
io

n 
H

er
ef

or
d 

– 
G

et
tin

g 
th

e 
M

os
t O

ut
 o

f a
 L

im
ite

d 
Re

so
ur

ce
  

1.
3 

Fo
cu

s o
n 

D
el

iv
er

y 
 

2 
Tr

an
sp

or
t P

la
n 

fo
r H

er
ef

or
d 

6 
2.

1 
H

ist
or

ic
 C

or
e 

 
2.

2 
W

id
er

 C
en

tr
al

 A
re

a 
 

2.
3 

Re
sid

en
tia

l A
re

as
 a

nd
 U

rb
an

 F
rin

ge
  

3 
Tr

an
sp

or
t P

la
n 

fo
r R

ur
al

 A
re

as
 a

nd
 M

ar
ke

t T
ow

ns
 

9 
3.

1 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 R

oa
d 

Sa
fe

ty
  

3.
2 

Ru
ra

l A
cc

es
s a

nd
 S

er
vi

ce
 C

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

 
3.

3 
A

cc
es

s b
y 

Ra
il 

 

4 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
Lo

ng
er

 T
er

m
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

12
 

5 
Fu

nd
in

g 
Pr

of
ile

 a
nd

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

13
 

6 
K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 
14

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
216



Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

20
13

/1
4 

to
 2

01
4/

15
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
is

 v
it

al
 t

o 
th

e 
pe

op
le

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

A
n 

ef
fi

ci
en

t 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

ne
tw

or
k 

is
 e

ss
en

ti
al

 f
or

 t
he

 
co

un
ty

’s
 e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 r
ec

ov
er

y 
fr

om
 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 d
ow

nt
ur

n.
 T

he
 a

bi
lit

y 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
in

de
pe

nd
en

ce
 is

 a
ls

o 
im

po
rt

an
t 

an
d 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

in
 a

 la
rg

e 
ru

ra
l c

ou
nt

y 
w

it
h 

an
 a

gi
ng

 p
op

ul
at

io
n.

 T
hi

s 
lo

ca
l 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
pl

an
 (L

TP
) s

et
s 

ou
t 

th
e 

Co
un

ci
l’s

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
su

pp
or

ti
ng

 b
ot

h 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 s

oc
ia

l 
in

cl
us

io
n 

an
d 

de
ta

ils
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
fo

r 
th

e 
pe

ri
od

 2
01

3/
14

 t
o 

20
14

/1
5.

 

Re
co

gn
is

in
g 

th
es

e 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
, t

he
 L

TP
 is

 
gu

id
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
ke

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

: 

• 
To

 s
up

po
rt

 a
 c

le
an

er
, h

ea
lt

hi
er

, m
or

e 
pr

os
pe

ro
us

 
co

un
ty

; a
nd

 
• 

To
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
nn

ec
ti

vi
ty

 f
or

 a
ll 

an
d 

to
 r

ed
uc

e 
so

ci
al

 is
ol

at
io

n 
fo

r 
th

os
e 

w
it

ho
ut

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

 c
ar

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
3

17



1.
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 

Th
e 

LT
P 

w
or

ks
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 o
th

er
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 p
la

ns
 s

uc
h 

as
 t

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 s

et
 o

ut
 la

nd
 u

se
 p

ro
po

sa
ls

 f
or

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 g
ro

w
th

 f
or

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
20

 y
ea

rs
 

an
d 

th
e 

Ec
on

om
ic

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
St

ra
te

gy
 w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ou

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

an
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 b

us
in

es
s 

gr
ow

th
 u

p 
to

 2
01

6.
 T

he
 M

ar
ch

es
 L

oc
al

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

is
 a

ls
o 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 it

s 
St

ra
te

gy
 f

or
 G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

or
ki

ng
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
M

ar
ch

es
 a

re
a 

w
ill

 b
ec

om
e 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 im
po

rt
an

t 
in

 s
ha

rin
g 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
at

tr
ac

tin
g 

in
w

ar
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

ov
er

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
de

ca
de

. 

1.
1.

 L
TP

 K
ey

 O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
R

ed
u

ci
n

g
 c

o
n

g
es

ti
o

n
 in

 H
er

ef
o

rd
 C

it
y 

an
d

 in
cr

ea
si

n
g

 a
cc

es
si

b
ili

ty
 b

y 
le

ss
 

p
o

llu
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 h

ea
lt

h
ie

r 
fo

rm
s 

o
f 

tr
an

sp
o

rt
 t

h
an

 t
h

e 
p

ri
va

te
 c

ar
. W

e 
ai

m
 t

o
: 

• 
Re

du
ce

 s
ho

rt
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

ca
r 

ba
se

d 
tr

ip
s 

tr
an

sf
er

rin
g 

as
 m

an
y 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 le

ss
 

po
llu

tin
g 

an
d 

he
al

th
ie

r 
m

od
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g,

 
• 

Re
du

ce
 t

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
f 

ca
r 

ac
ce

ss
 in

 t
he

 h
is

to
ric

 c
or

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
tr

af
fic

  
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
si

gn
 d

e-
cl

ut
te

rin
g;

  
• 

Su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

of
 t

he
 c

en
tr

al
 a

re
a 

by
 f

ac
ili

ta
tin

g 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
 

ex
pa

ns
io

n,
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

in
te

gr
at

io
n 

w
ith

 t
he

 e
xi

st
in

g 
sh

op
pi

ng
 a

r e
a;

 a
nd

  
• 

Su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 jo
bs

 a
t 

th
e 

Ro
th

er
w

as
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Zo

ne
 

by
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 it
s 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 h
ig

hw
ay

 
ne

tw
or

k 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s.
 

• 
M

ai
n

ta
in

in
g

 a
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

ru
ra

l r
es

id
en

ts
 a

n
d

 p
eo

p
le

 w
it

h
o

u
t 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o
 a

 c
ar

. 
W

e 
ai

m
 t

o
: 

• 
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 C

ou
nt

y’
s 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

re
m

ai
ns

 f
it 

fo
r 

pu
rp

os
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

 f
or

 t
he

 t
ra

ve
lli

ng
 p

ub
lic

; 
• 

 R
ev

ie
w

 p
as

se
ng

er
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
e 

ca
n 

co
nt

in
ue

 t
o 

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

 f
or

 t
ho

se
 m

os
t 

in
 n

ee
d;

 a
nd

  
• 

 P
ro

vi
de

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 f
or

 lo
ng

er
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

co
m

m
ut

er
s 

so
 t

ha
t 

th
ey

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
 

re
du

ce
 t

he
ir 

ca
r 

us
e 

an
d 

ad
op

t 
he

al
th

ie
r 

lif
es

ty
le

s.
  

1.
2.

 D
es

ti
n

at
io

n
 H

er
ef

o
rd

 –
 G

et
ti

n
g

 t
h

e 
M

o
st

 O
u

t 
o

f 
a 

Li
m

it
ed

 R
es

o
u

rc
e 

W
hi

ls
t 

w
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 d

ur
in

g 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

 w
e 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

th
at

 w
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

op
tim

is
e 

ho
w

 w
e 

us
e 

th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

an
d 

ge
t 

th
e 

m
os

t 
ou

t 
of

 t
he

 c
ap

ac
ity

 it
 c

an
 p

r o
vi

de
. T

hi
s 

m
ea

ns
 p

eo
pl

e 
ad

ap
tin

g 
th

ei
r 

tr
av

el
 b

eh
av

io
ur

. T
he

 D
es

tin
at

io
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
w

ill
 r

un
 

th
ro

ug
ho

ut
 t

hi
s 

pe
rio

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y,

 t
ai

lo
re

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 t
ra

ve
lle

rs
, 

co
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 a

nd
 h

el
pi

ng
 m

an
ag

e 
ho

w
 w

e 
ca

n 
ge

t 
th

e 
m

ax
im

um
 b

en
ef

it 
ou

t 
of

 o
ur

 n
et

w
or

k.
 

W
e 

kn
ow

 t
ha

t 
m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 a

re
 in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ho
w

 t
he

y 
tr

av
el

 f
or

 a
 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
re

as
on

s:
 b

ea
tin

g 
co

ng
es

tio
n;

 re
du

ci
ng

 c
os

ts
 o

f 
ru

nn
in

g 
a 

ca
r;

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

ei
r 

he
al

th
; o

r 
co

nc
er

ns
 a

bo
ut

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t.

 T
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

is
 f

ul
ly

 c
om

m
itt

ed
 t

o 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

pe
op

le
 in

 m
ak

in
g 

th
es

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

fo
r 

re
si

de
nt

s,
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
is

 le
ad

in
g 

by
 e

xa
m

pl
e 

th
ro

ug
h 

its
 o

w
n 

w
or

kp
la

ce
 t

ra
ve

l p
la

n 
an

d 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 t

o 
fle

xi
bl

e 
w

or
ki

ng
. W

hi
ls

t 
th

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
fo

cu
ss

es
 o

n 
tr

av
el

 in
to

 H
er

ef
or

d 
m

an
y 

of
 t

he
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 lo
ng

er
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

tr
av

el
le

rs
 s

uc
h 

as
 o

ur
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
sh

ar
e 

si
te

s 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

io
n 

of
 t

he
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
k.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
418



Ty
pe

s 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 t
he

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
• 

Ta
ilo

re
d 

tr
av

el
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fo

r 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 h

el
p 

th
em

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
ei

r 
ca

r 
us

e 
• 

Fr
ee

 c
yc

le
 t

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ad
ul

ts
 –

 w
e 

kn
ow

 t
ha

t 
m

an
y 

pe
op

le
 la

ck
 

co
nf

id
en

ce
 in

 t
ak

in
g 

up
 c

yc
lin

g 
• 

Fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 a

nd
 s

ch
oo

ls
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
cy

cl
e 

st
or

ag
e,

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

– 
re

la
tiv

el
y 

sm
al

l a
da

pt
at

io
ns

 a
t 

w
or

kp
la

ce
s 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
s 

ca
n 

he
lp

 
pe

op
le

 c
ha

ng
e 

ho
w

 t
he

y 
tr

av
el

 
• 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 p
ar

is
he

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

fr
ee

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
sh

ar
e 

si
te

s 
fo

r 
lo

ng
er

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
– 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 r
ed

uc
e 

th
e 

ca
rs

 
tr

yi
ng

 t
o 

ac
ce

ss
 t

he
 c

en
tr

e 
of

 H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
th

is
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 is
 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
ch

ea
p 

bu
t 

ve
ry

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
• 

W
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 h
ea

lth
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 h

ea
lth

 p
ro

bl
em

s 
an

d 
pe

op
le

 r
ec

ei
vi

ng
 h

ea
lth

 c
he

ck
s 

ba
ck

 in
to

 a
ct

iv
e 

lif
es

ty
le

s 
– 

m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 
m

ot
iv

at
ed

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
lif

es
ty

le
 c

ha
ng

es
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r 

he
al

th
 

• 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

cy
cl

e 
hi

re
 in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
so

 t
ha

t 
vi

si
to

rs
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
ou

t 
a 

bi
ke

 
ca

n 
en

jo
y 

th
e 

ci
ty

 b
y 

bi
ke

 

1.
3.

 F
o

cu
s 

o
n

 D
el

iv
er

y 
W

hi
ls

t 
au

st
er

ity
 m

ea
su

re
s 

an
d 

th
e 

ne
ed

 t
o 

m
ak

e 
ye

ar
 o

n 
ye

ar
 s

av
in

gs
 p

re
se

nt
s 

a 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
fo

r 
al

l l
oc

al
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s,
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
se

cu
re

d 
or

 h
el

pe
d 

se
cu

re
 

fu
nd

in
g 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
£7

0M
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

ov
er

 t
he

 n
ex

t 
tw

o 
ye

ar
s.

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

so
ur

ce
s 

co
m

pr
is

e 
lo

ca
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 g
ra

nt
, l

oc
al

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 f

un
d,

 
de

ve
lo

pe
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

, p
in

ch
 p

oi
nt

 f
un

di
ng

, r
ev

en
ue

 f
un

ds
 a

nd
 t

he
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

ow
n 

ca
pi

ta
l p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 t
o 

th
es

e 
so

ur
ce

s 
of

 f
un

di
ng

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
se

ek
 t

o 
pl

ay
 a

 c
en

tr
al

 ro
le

 in
 t

he
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 M
ar

ch
es

 L
oc

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 B
od

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
ta

ke
 o

ve
r 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
th

e 
de

vo
lv

ed
 m

aj
or

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 s

ch
em

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
5

19



2.
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
fo

r H
er

ef
or

d 

A
t t

he
 h

ea
rt

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y,
 H

er
ef

or
d 

C
ity

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
th

e 
bi

gg
es

t c
on

ce
nt

ra
tio

n 
of

 
ho

us
in

g,
 jo

bs
 a

nd
 s

ho
ps

. T
hi

s 
ro

le
 w

ill
 b

e 
fu

rt
he

r e
nh

an
ce

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

gr
ow

th
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 th
e 

em
er

gi
ng

 C
or

e 
St

ra
te

gy
. S

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
gr

ow
th

 o
f 

th
e 

C
ity

 is
 c

rit
ic

al
 n

ot
 ju

st
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 re
co

ve
ry

 b
ut

 to
 w

or
k 

to
w

ar
ds

 lo
ng

er
 te

rm
 

as
pi

ra
tio

ns
 to

 a
tt

ra
ct

 a
nd

 re
ta

in
 y

ou
ng

 fa
m

ili
es

 w
ith

 m
or

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 h
ou

sin
g 

an
d 

to
 

gr
ow

 th
e 

ec
on

om
y.

 E
ns

ur
in

g 
fr

ee
 fl

ow
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r w
or

ke
rs

, 
bu

sin
es

se
s,

 v
isi

to
rs

 a
nd

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
is 

ke
y 

to
 a

ch
ie

vi
ng

 th
is 

w
id

er
 a

sp
ira

tio
n.

 

Th
e 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Ci
ty

 a
re

 in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
fa

ct
or

s:
 

• 
 A

ro
un

d 
a 

th
ird

 o
f c

ar
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 in

 th
e 

m
or

ni
ng

 a
nd

 a
ft

er
no

on
 p

ea
ks

 (w
he

n 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

oc
cu

rs
) a

re
 le

ss
 th

an
 5

km
 –

 a
 s

ho
rt

 d
ist

an
ce

 w
hi

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
ea

sil
y 

cy
cl

ed
 

in
 2

0 
m

in
ut

es
 o

r l
es

s;
 

• 
 M

uc
h 

of
 th

e 
A

49
 is

 a
n 

ai
r q

ua
lit

y 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
re

a,
 il

lu
st

ra
tin

g 
th

e 
po

llu
tio

n 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 tr

af
fic

 in
 th

e 
ci

ty
; 

• 
 S

om
e 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
’s

 w
ar

ds
 e

xh
ib

it 
th

e 
hi

gh
es

t i
nc

id
en

ts
 o

f o
be

sit
y 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
ar

e 
ab

ov
e 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l a

ve
ra

ge
; 

• 
 T

he
 e

xp
an

sio
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d 

sh
op

pi
ng

 a
re

a 
w

ill
 c

om
pl

em
en

t t
he

 h
ist

or
ic

 c
en

tr
al

 a
re

a 
at

tr
ac

tin
g 

m
or

e 
pe

op
le

 in
to

 th
e 

ci
ty

; a
nd

 
• 

 H
er

ef
or

d 
w

ill
 re

m
ai

n 
an

 im
po

rt
an

t d
es

tin
at

io
n 

fo
r r

ur
al

 re
sid

en
ts

, l
on

ge
r d

ist
an

ce
 

co
m

m
ut

er
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 tr

af
fic

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

in
 

ad
va

nc
e 

of
 lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 s
ch

em
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 th
e 

re
lie

f r
oa

d.
 

Th
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
C

ity
 a

re
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
sh

or
t d

ist
an

ce
 tr

ip
s 

m
ad

e 
by

 c
ar

 a
nd

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

f c
ar

 u
se

 in
 th

e 
ce

nt
ra

l a
re

a.
 T

he
 d

ia
gr

am
 b

el
ow

 h
el

ps
 il

lu
st

ra
te

 th
e 

ba
sic

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
. T

he
 w

ho
le

 u
rb

an
 

ar
ea

 (e
nc

lo
se

d 
in

 th
e 

10
 m

in
ut

e 
cy

cl
e 

zo
ne

) c
ar

rie
s 

30
-4

0,
00

0 
ve

hi
cl

e 
tr

ip
s 

ea
ch

 
m

or
ni

ng
 a

nd
 a

ft
er

no
on

 –
 a

 th
ird

 o
f t

he
se

 a
re

 e
nt

ire
ly

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
10

 m
in

ut
e 

cy
cl

e 
zo

ne
. M

an
y 

of
 th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
tr

ip
s 

in
to

 th
e 

ce
nt

re
 (a

lo
ng

 th
e 

ke
y 

ac
ce

ss
 c

or
rid

or
s)

 in
vo

lv
e 

fu
rt

he
r c

irc
ul

at
io

n 
ar

ou
nd

 th
e 

in
ne

r r
in

g 
ro

ad
 a

s 
tr

af
fic

 s
ee

ks
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

de
st

in
at

io
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
of

fic
e 

pa
rk

in
g,

 s
ch

oo
ls 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

. I
n 

ad
di

tio
n,

 s
om

e 
of

 th
is 

is 
th

ro
ug

h 
tr

af
fic

 w
hi

ch
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 h
as

 n
o 

re
al

ist
ic

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ot
he

r t
ha

n 
to

 
tr

av
el

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

ce
nt

re
 o

f H
er

ef
or

d.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
620



2.
1.

 D
el

iv
er

y 
– 

Th
e 

H
is

to
ri

c 
Co

re
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
ce

nt
ra

l a
re

a 
an

d 
th

e 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

or
e 

(w
ith

in
 th

e 
rin

g 
ro

ad
) i

s 
a 

sp
ec

ia
l 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t w

he
re

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 m
us

t h
av

e 
to

p 
pr

io
rit

y.
 W

e 
w

an
t t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

m
or

e 
ac

ce
ss

 in
to

 th
is 

ar
ea

, t
he

 C
ou

nt
y’

s 
pr

im
ar

y 
sh

op
pi

ng
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 w

hi
lst

 re
du

ci
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

by
 c

ar
 a

nd
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
of

 tr
af

fic
. H

ow
 w

ill
 w

e 
do

 th
is?

 

2.
2.

 D
el

iv
er

y 
- T

he
 w

id
er

 c
en

tr
al

 a
re

a 
Th

e 
w

id
er

 c
en

tr
al

 a
re

a 
(w

ith
in

 th
e 

10
 m

in
ut

e 
w

al
k 

zo
ne

 o
n 

th
e 

di
ag

ra
m

) p
ro

vi
de

s 
us

 
w

ith
 fu

rt
he

r o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
to

 in
flu

en
ce

 tr
av

el
 b

eh
av

io
ur

. T
hi

s 
is 

th
e 

ar
ea

 in
 w

hi
ch

 th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f p

ub
lic

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

sp
ac

es
 a

re
 lo

ca
te

d.
 W

e 
w

an
t t

o 
co

ns
ol

id
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
so

 th
at

 w
e 

ca
n 

m
an

ag
e 

its
 u

se
 m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
co

m
m

ut
er

s 
to

 
pa

rk
 fu

rt
he

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
ce

nt
ra

l a
re

a,
 u

til
isi

ng
 p

ar
ki

ng
 c

lo
se

st
 to

 th
e 

ra
di

al
 ro

ad
 a

lo
ng

 
w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 e
nt

er
 th

e 
ci

ty
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 re
du

ce
 tr

af
fic

 o
ve

rlo
ad

in
g 

at
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f t
he

 

Sc
h

em
es

 f
o

r 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

: 
• 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
an

 a
re

a 
w

id
e 

20
m

ph
 s

ch
em

e,
 f

oc
us

in
g 

on
 t

he
 g

at
ew

ay
s 

in
to

 t
he

 
hi

st
or

ic
 c

or
e 

so
 t

ha
t 

dr
iv

er
s 

ap
pr

ec
ia

te
 t

he
 p

rio
rit

y 
fo

r 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 a
nd

 c
yc

lis
ts

 
• 

D
ev

el
op

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 c

yc
le

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
in

 o
ne

 w
ay

 s
tr

ee
ts

 –
 t

yi
ng

 
in

to
 a

 w
id

er
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 c

yc
le

 r o
ut

es
 t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t 
th

e 
ci

ty
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
cy

cl
in

g 
• 

Re
m

ov
e 

re
du

nd
an

t/
du

pl
ic

at
iv

e 
si

gn
ag

e 
an

d 
in

tr
od

uc
e 

co
he

re
nt

 a
nd

 u
ni

fo
rm

 
to

ur
is

m
/v

is
ito

r 
si

gn
in

g 
• 

U
pg

ra
di

ng
 N

ew
m

ar
ke

t 
St

re
et

 t
o 

en
su

re
 s

af
e 

an
d 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
ac

ce
ss

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
or

e 
so

 t
ha

t 
vi

si
to

rs
 

w
ill

 c
om

e 
to

 e
nj

oy
 t

he
 w

ho
le

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

• 
In

 t
he

 lo
ng

er
 t

er
m

 (a
ft

er
 2

01
4/

15
): 

• 
 R

ed
uc

in
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 f
or

 c
om

m
ut

er
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
• 

 In
tr

od
uc

in
g 

on
 s

tr
ee

t 
pa

rk
in

g 
ch

ar
ge

s 
ar

e 
ot

he
r 

fo
rm

s 
of

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

to
 

fu
rt

he
r 

r e
du

ce
 t

ra
ff

ic
 in

 t
he

 c
en

tr
e 

• 
 P

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

ov
er

al
l q

ua
lit

y 
of

 t
he

  
en

vi
r o

nm
en

t 
 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 in
 th

e 
ce

nt
re

 o
f t

he
 c

ity
 w

he
re

 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

is 
m

os
t p

ro
no

un
ce

d.
 In

 th
e 

sh
or

t t
er

m
 w

e 
ha

ve
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

so
m

e 
ju

nc
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 e
as

e 
tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

s 
at

 3
 c

on
ge

st
ed

 ju
nc

tio
ns

 in
 

th
e 

ci
ty

. W
ith

in
 th

is 
ar

ea
 w

e 
al

so
 n

ee
d 

to
 

ad
dr

es
s 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
tr

ip
s,

 w
hi

ch
 re

su
lt 

fr
om

 th
e 

re
la

tiv
el

y 
hi

gh
 

vo
lu

m
es

 o
f t

ra
ff

ic
 o

n 
th

e 
A

49
 tr

un
k 

ro
ad

 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

ad
ia

l r
ou

te
s 

w
hi

ch
 c

on
ve

rg
e 

on
 th

e 
in

ne
r r

in
g 

ro
ad

. 

Th
is 

w
id

er
 c

en
tr

al
 a

re
a 

al
so

 in
cl

ud
es

 
im

po
rt

an
t p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t f
ac

ili
tie

s 
su

ch
 

as
 th

e 
ra

il 
st

at
io

n 
an

d 
co

un
tr

y 
bu

s 
st

at
io

n.
 

It 
is 

lik
el

y 
th

at
 c

lo
se

r i
nt

eg
ra

tio
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

ra
il 

an
d 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 li

nk
 ro

ad
, w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 o
pe

n 
up

 th
e 

ra
il 

fo
re

co
ur

t f
or

 re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
H

ow
ev

er
, m

uc
h 

ne
ed

ed
 a

cc
es

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 d

ue
 

to
 b

e 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
at

 th
e 

ra
il 

st
at

io
n 

in
 th

e 
ne

xt
 tw

o 
ye

ar
s.

 

Sc
h

em
es

 f
o

r 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

: 
• 

Po
te

nt
ia

l r
el

oc
at

io
n 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 d

is
po

sa
l o

f 
M

er
to

n 
M

ea
do

w
 c

ar
 p

ar
k 

– 
th

is
 is

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 o

n 
th

e 
ur

ba
n 

vi
lla

ge
 h

ou
si

ng
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
og

re
ss

in
g 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
le

 a
cc

es
s 

an
d 

ov
er

co
m

in
g 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 a
t 

K
in

g 
St

re
et

, 
Ed

ga
r 

St
r e

et
, B

ar
to

n 
Ro

ad
 a

nd
 S

t 
O

w
en

 S
tr

ee
t 

• 
Tr

af
fic

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

m
ea

su
re

s 
at

 E
dg

ar
 S

tr
ee

t 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

, A
sd

a 
ro

un
da

bo
ut

 
an

d 
St

ar
tin

g 
G

at
e 

r o
un

da
bo

ut
 

• 
C

on
st

ru
ct

 t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e 

lin
k 

ro
ad

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 t
he

 u
rb

an
 v

ill
ag

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
an

d 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
 h

ou
si

ng
 a

nd
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
th

e 
ra

il 
st

at
io

n 
an

d 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
w

ith
 b

us
 

se
rv

ic
es

 
• 

Pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 li
ft

s 
at

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Ra

il 
St

at
io

n,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 f
ul

ly
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
pl

at
fo

rm
s 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
7

21



2.
3.

 D
el

iv
er

y 
– 

R
es

id
en

ti
al

 A
re

as
/U

rb
an

 F
ri

n
g

e 
Ex

te
nd

in
g 

th
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

ne
tw

or
k 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Th
e 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 a
nd

 u
rb

an
 f

rin
ge

 (w
ith

in
 a

 1
0 

m
in

ut
e 

cy
cl

e 
rid

e 
of

 t
he

 c
ity

 
ce

nt
re

) a
re

 w
he

re
 m

os
t 

pe
op

le
 li

ve
 in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
a 

lo
t 

of
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

or
k 

an
d 

at
te

nd
 s

ch
oo

ls
, c

ol
le

ge
s 

an
d 

ho
sp

ita
ls

. I
t 

in
cl

ud
es

 t
he

 a
rt

er
ia

l ‘
A

’ r
oa

ds
, w

hi
ch

 
co

nv
er

ge
 o

n 
th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
an

d 
ca

rr
y 

la
rg

e 
vo

lu
m

es
 o

f 
co

m
m

ut
in

g 
an

d 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 t

ra
ff

ic
 b

ut
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
es

 lo
ca

l a
cc

es
s 

fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
, c

yc
lis

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 
tr

an
sp

or
t.

 O
ur

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r 
ou

r 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
 is

 t
o 

pu
t 

in
 p

la
ce

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 

w
ill

 g
iv

e 
pe

op
le

 m
or

e 
co

nf
id

en
ce

 t
o 

w
al

k 
an

d 
cy

cl
e 

ra
th

er
 t

ha
n 

us
e 

th
e 

ca
r 

fo
r 

sh
or

t 
di

st
an

ce
 jo

ur
ne

ys
.  

Sc
h

em
es

 f
o

r 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

: 
• 

U
til

is
in

g 
th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

un
di

ng
 s

ec
ur

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 L

oc
al

 S
us

ta
in

ab
le

  
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Fu
nd

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 w
e 

w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

  
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 c
yc

le
 s

ch
em

es
 a

nd
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
be

tt
er

  
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 f
or

 lo
ca

l r
es

id
en

ts
. T

he
se

 a
re

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
on

 t
he

 p
la

n 
be

lo
w

.  
• 

C
on

st
ru

ct
 t

he
 C

on
ne

ct
 2

 s
ch

em
e 

an
d 

ne
w

 r
iv

er
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
  

di
r e

ct
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 R
ot

he
rw

as
, s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
in

 jo
bs

 in
 t

he
  

En
te

rp
ris

e 
Zo

ne
.  

• 
To

 a
ss

is
t 

lo
ng

er
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

co
m

m
ut

er
s 

co
m

in
g 

in
to

 H
er

ef
or

d 
w

e 
w

ill
 e

xp
an

d 
 

ou
r 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
sh

ar
e/

cy
cl

e 
si

te
s,

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

up
 w

ith
 t

he
 c

yc
le

 n
et

w
or

k 
 

an
d 

al
so

 li
nk

ed
 in

 t
o 

lo
ca

l b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
  

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

fu
rt

he
r 

20
m

ph
 s

ch
em

es
 in

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

, t
o 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
w

al
ki

ng
  

an
d 

cy
cl

in
g.

  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
822



3.
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
fo

r R
ur

al
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 th
e 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
ns

 

Ru
ra

l H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 is

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
ise

d 
by

 a
 v

er
y 

lo
w

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

de
ns

ity
 a

nd
 a

n 
ex

te
ns

iv
e 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k.
 F

or
 m

os
t p

eo
pl

e 
th

e 
ca

r i
s 

an
d 

w
ill

 re
m

ai
n 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
m

od
e 

of
 tr

an
sp

or
t, 

an
d 

ro
ad

 fr
ei

gh
t h

as
 a

 fu
nd

am
en

ta
l r

ol
e 

in
 o

ur
 e

co
no

m
y,

 s
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 

an
d 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f o
ur

 ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
is 

vi
ta

lly
 im

po
rt

an
t t

o 
en

su
re

 c
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 a
nd

 re
du

ce
 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 a

cc
id

en
ts

. H
ow

ev
er

, w
ith

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
sin

g 
el

de
rly

 p
op

ul
at

io
n,

 fa
m

ili
es

 o
n 

lo
w

 
in

co
m

es
 a

nd
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ith

ou
t t

he
ir 

ow
n 

tr
an

sp
or

t m
an

y 
pe

op
le

 a
re

 re
lia

nt
 o

n 
pu

bl
ic

 tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 o
th

er
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
ed

uc
at

io
n,

 w
or

k,
 s

ho
pp

in
g 

an
d 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e.

 W
e 

ar
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 a
w

ar
e 

th
at

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
vi

ta
l i

n 
he

lp
in

g 
el

de
rly

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

pe
op

le
 w

ith
 d

isa
bi

lit
ie

s 
to

 re
m

ai
n 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t a

nd
 th

at
 th

is 
is 

ve
ry

 
im

po
rt

an
t f

or
 th

ei
r w

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 h
el

ps
 re

du
ce

 o
ve

ra
ll 

co
st

s 
of

 h
ea

lth
ca

re
. 

O
ur

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
an

d 
de

liv
er

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

re
 s

tr
et

ch
ed

 a
nd

 
th

is 
is 

fu
rt

he
r c

om
po

un
de

d 
by

 c
ur

re
nt

 fu
nd

in
g 

pr
es

su
re

s.
 

In
 th

is 
co

nt
ex

t o
ur

 p
la

n 
fo

r r
ur

al
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 fo
cu

se
s 

on
 th

e 
ke

y 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

of
 n

et
w

or
k 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 m

os
t 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
. T

hi
s 

pl
an

 a
lso

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

es
 th

e 
em

er
gi

ng
 C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 p
ro

po
sa

ls 
w

hi
ch

 
w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 li

m
ite

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

ov
er

 a
 h

un
dr

ed
 ru

ra
l s

et
tle

m
en

ts
, h

el
pi

ng
 s

us
ta

in
 

ru
ra

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt

 ru
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

3.
1.

 D
el

iv
er

y 
– 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 R
oa

d 
Sa

fe
ty

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 h
as

 a
n 

ex
ce

pt
io

na
l t

ra
ck

 re
co

rd
 in

 re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

m
os

t s
er

io
us

 ro
ad

 tr
af

fic
 

ca
su

al
tie

s 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 d

ec
ad

e.
 T

hi
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 

ta
rg

et
ed

 s
af

et
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, b
as

ed
 a

n 
in

te
lli

ge
nt

 a
na

ly
sis

 o
f a

cc
id

en
t l

oc
at

io
ns

, 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 s

af
et

y 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ith
in

 
st

an
da

rd
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 w

or
ks

. W
e 

ha
ve

 re
vi

ew
ed

 ru
ra

l s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 a
nd

 a
re

 d
es

ig
ni

ng
 

a 
m

or
e 

st
re

am
lin

ed
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r i
m

pl
em

en
tin

g 
ch

an
ge

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

ro
lle

d 
ou

t a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

ov
er

 th
e 

ne
xt

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s.
 

Sc
h

em
es

 a
n

d
 in

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
fo

r 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

: 
• 

D
el

iv
er

 o
ve

r 
20

 s
af

et
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

sc
he

m
es

 
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

ta
rg

et
ed

 ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 s

ch
oo

l c
hi

ld
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 d
riv

er
s 

 
an

d 
ol

de
r 

dr
iv

er
s 

 
• 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 t

he
 S

af
er

 R
oa

ds
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 t

o 
de

liv
er

 t
ar

ge
te

d 
sp

ee
d 

 
en

fo
r c

em
en

t 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
sp

ee
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 f

or
 t

ho
se

 c
au

gh
t 

 
sp

ee
di

ng
  

• 
Im

pl
em

en
t 

10
0 

sp
ee

d 
lim

it 
ch

an
ge

s 
an

d 
re

gu
la

tio
n 

or
de

rs
 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
Sp

ee
d 

In
di

ca
to

r 
D

ev
ic

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
in

 v
ill

ag
es

 

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l n

et
w

or
k 

to
 a

 h
ig

h 
st

an
da

rd
 w

ill
 b

e 
a 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
– 

ou
r c

ap
ita

l 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
r e

du
ce

d 
ov

er
 th

e 
pa

st
 5

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 re

ve
nu

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
is 

un
de

r s
ev

er
e 

pr
es

su
re

. I
t i

s 
cr

iti
ca

l i
n 

th
is 

co
nt

ex
t t

ha
t w

e 
in

ve
st

 th
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
in

 th
e 

m
os

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

w
ay

 w
e 

ca
n.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 m

ea
n 

fo
cu

ss
in

g 
m

or
e 

of
 o

ur
 e

ff
or

ts
 o

n 
pr

ev
en

ta
tiv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 s

hi
ft

in
g 

th
e 

ba
la

nc
e 

aw
ay

 fr
om

 re
ac

tiv
e 

w
or

ks
. T

hi
s 

sh
ift

 in
 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ill

 n
ot

 a
ff

ec
t o

ur
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 fo
r t

re
at

in
g 

th
e 

m
os

t s
er

io
us

 d
ef

ec
ts

 p
ro

m
pt

ly
 

so
 th

at
 s

af
et

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d.
 W

e 
ar

e 
al

so
 e

xp
lo

rin
g 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 to
 s

ec
ur

e 
in

ve
st

m
en

t t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

re
-p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t o

f t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

on
tr

ac
t. 

W
e 

al
re

ad
y 

ha
ve

 a
 w

el
l e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
pa

ris
h 

le
ng

st
hm

an
 s

ch
em

e 
w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
re

so
ur

ce
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 to

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 to
 d

el
iv

er
 s

om
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 lo

ca
lly

. 
Th

is 
is 

a 
re

w
ar

di
ng

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 s
ee

n 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 ta

ke
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

ve
r 

iss
ue

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
lo

ca
l g

rit
tin

g 
in

 s
ev

er
e 

w
ea

th
er

, c
le

ar
in

g 
dr

ai
na

ge
 to

 h
el

p 
re

du
ce

 
flo

od
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

an
d 

ve
rg

e 
cl

ea
ra

nc
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
sa

fe
ty

 a
t j

un
ct

io
ns

. W
e 

w
an

t t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

lo
ca

l d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 s
ch

em
es

 fu
rt

he
r a

nd
 w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 to
 

as
se

ss
 w

ha
t o

th
er

 h
ig

hw
ay

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

an
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

el
y 

by
 lo

ca
l p

eo
pl

e.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
9

23



Sc
h

em
es

 f
o

r 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

: 
Tr

ea
tm

en
t 

Ta
rg

et
 

Pa
tc

hi
ng

 
71

 k
m

 
Su

rf
ac

e 
D

re
ss

in
g 

45
 k

m
 

Re
su

rf
ac

in
g 

13
.5

 k
m

 
Fo

ot
w

ay
 R

ec
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
12

 k
m

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 F
un

di
ng

 
16

 k
m

 

3.
2.

 D
el

iv
er

y 
– 

Ru
ra

l A
cc

es
s 

an
d 

Se
rv

ic
e 

Co
or

di
na

ti
on

 
W

e 
ha

ve
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t a
 n

um
be

r o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

ns
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 ro

le
 o

f t
he

 p
ub

lic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t n
et

w
or

k 
in

 th
e 

C
ou

nt
y.

 It
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

cl
ea

r f
ro

m
 th

e 
va

rie
ty

 o
f r

es
po

ns
es

 th
at

 
pe

op
le

 v
al

ue
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
w

ish
 to

 s
ee

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
re

ta
in

ed
. I

n 
th

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
on

 th
e 

LT
P 

au
tu

m
n 

20
12

 th
er

e 
w

as
 s

up
po

rt
 fo

r t
he

 re
te

nt
io

n 
of

 a
 ‘c

or
e 

ne
tw

or
k’

 o
f b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 fo

cu
s 

on
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

 a
lo

ng
 m

ai
n 

tr
an

sp
or

t c
or

rid
or

s 
w

ith
 la

rg
er

 ru
ra

l s
et

tle
m

en
ts

. P
eo

pl
e 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
ed

 th
at

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
di

ff
ic

ul
t t

o 
su

st
ai

n 
in

 th
e 

m
or

e 
sp

ar
se

ly
 p

op
ul

at
ed

 
ar

ea
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 th

is 
co

re
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 e

xp
lo

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

ar
ou

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
hi

s 
vi

ew
 w

as
 e

ch
oe

d 
in

 th
e 

Yo
ur

 C
om

m
un

ity
 Y

ou
r S

ay
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
au

tu
m

n 
20

12
. 

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

hi
s 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 w
e 

ha
ve

 w
id

en
ed

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

fu
ll 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il:

 
• 

Lo
ca

l b
us

es
 

• 
C

om
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
• 

H
om

e 
to

 s
ch

oo
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
• 

Sp
ec

ia
l e

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

• 
A

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 

W
e 

ha
ve

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t a

 n
um

be
r o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
fu

tu
re

 ro
le

 o
f t

he
 p

ub
lic

 
tr

an
sp

or
t n

et
w

or
k 

in
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y.
 It

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
cl

ea
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

va
rie

ty
 o

f r
es

po
ns

es
 th

at
 

pe
op

le
 v

al
ue

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

w
ish

 to
 s

ee
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

re
ta

in
ed

. I
n 

th
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

on
 th

e 
LT

P 
au

tu
m

n 
20

12
 th

er
e 

w
as

 s
up

po
rt

 fo
r t

he
 re

te
nt

io
n 

of
 a

 ‘c
or

e 

ne
tw

or
k’

 o
f b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 fo

cu
s 

on
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

 a
lo

ng
 m

ai
n 

tr
an

sp
or

t c
or

rid
or

s 
w

ith
 la

rg
er

 ru
ra

l s
et

tle
m

en
ts

. P
eo

pl
e 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
ed

 th
at

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
di

ff
ic

ul
t t

o 
su

st
ai

n 
in

 th
e 

m
or

e 
sp

ar
se

ly
 p

op
ul

at
ed

 
ar

ea
s 

ou
ts

id
e 

of
 th

is 
co

re
 n

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

th
at

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

sh
ou

ld
 e

xp
lo

re
 o

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s 

ar
ou

nd
 c

on
ne

ct
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 le
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. T
hi

s 
vi

ew
 w

as
 e

ch
oe

d 
in

 th
e 

Yo
ur

 C
om

m
un

ity
 Y

ou
r S

ay
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
au

tu
m

n 
20

12
. 

In
 v

ie
w

 o
f t

hi
s 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 w
e 

ha
ve

 w
id

en
ed

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

th
e 

fu
ll 

ra
ng

e 
of

 
se

rv
ic

es
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il:

 
• 

Lo
ca

l b
us

es
 

• 
C

om
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
• 

H
om

e 
to

 s
ch

oo
l t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
• 

Sp
ec

ia
l e

du
ca

tio
na

l n
ee

ds
 tr

an
sp

or
t 

• 
A

du
lt 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f p
as

se
ng

er
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 a
lso

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 

ru
ra

l a
cc

es
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
ro

un
d 

ru
ra

l h
ub

s 
an

d 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 s

ha
re

 s
ite

s.
 W

e 
ar

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 n

et
w

or
k 

of
 lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 c
ar

 d
riv

er
s 

or
 c

on
ne

ct
in

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

(s
uc

h 
as

 c
om

m
un

ity
 tr

an
sp

or
t) 

ca
n 

m
ee

t o
th

er
 d

riv
er

s 
to

 c
ar

 s
ha

re
 o

r t
ra

ns
fe

r t
o 

ot
he

r 
m

od
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 b
us

, c
yc

lin
g 

or
 ra

il.
 T

yp
ic

al
ly,

 th
es

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 w

ill
 p

ro
vi

de
 fr

ee
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

an
d 

w
he

re
 p

os
sib

le
 w

ill
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 ru
ra

l s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 o
r b

us
in

es
se

s 
in

cr
ea

sin
g 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 h
el

p 
su

st
ai

n 
th

e 
ru

ra
l e

co
no

m
y.

 F
or

 u
se

rs
, t

hi
s 

in
iti

at
iv

e 
ca

n 
de

liv
er

 a
 

nu
m

be
r o

f b
en

ef
its

: 
• 

 R
ed

uc
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
t t

he
 e

ve
nt

ua
l d

es
tin

at
io

n 
an

d 
re

du
ce

 p
et

ro
l c

os
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

sh
ar

ed
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 jo
ur

ne
y 

• 
 P

ro
vi

de
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 th
e 

bu
s/

ra
il 

ne
tw

or
k 

fo
r t

ho
se

 w
ho

 a
re

 n
ot

 w
ith

in
 w

al
ki

ng
 

di
st

an
ce

 o
f a

 b
us

 s
to

p/
ra

il 
st

at
io

n 
(O

A
Ps

 a
nd

 d
isa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ou

ld
 th

en
 b

e 
ab

le
 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

th
ei

r j
ou

rn
ey

 fo
r f

re
e 

us
in

g 
th

ei
r b

us
 p

as
s)

 
• 

 E
na

bl
in

g 
ru

ra
l c

om
m

ut
er

s 
to

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

cy
cl

in
g/

w
al

ki
ng

 in
to

 th
ei

r t
rip

 a
nd

 
av

oi
di

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
(re

la
te

s 
to

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
sh

ar
e 

on
 th

e 
ou

ts
ki

rt
s 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

) 
• 

 F
re

e 
up

 ti
m

e 
fo

r p
ar

en
ts

 a
nd

 o
th

er
s 

w
ho

 m
ig

ht
 n

or
m

al
ly

 d
riv

e 
fr

ie
nd

s 
an

d 
fa

m
ily

 
al

l t
he

 w
ay

 to
 a

 d
es

tin
at

io
n.

 S
im

ila
rly

, c
ou

ld
 e

na
bl

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t d
riv

er
s 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

m
or

e 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 in

 ru
ra

l a
re

as
 if

 th
ey

 m
ak

e 
sh

or
te

r t
rip

s 
to

 h
ub

s 
ra

th
er

 
lo

ng
er

 d
ist

an
ce

 d
oo

r t
o 

do
or

 jo
ur

ne
ys

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

024



3.
3.

 S
up

po
rt

in
g 

A
cc

es
s 

by
 R

ai
l 

W
hi

lst
 o

ur
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r t
he

 ru
ra

l c
om

m
un

ity
 fo

cu
se

s 
on

 th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k,
 w

e 
ap

pr
ec

ia
te

 th
e 

lim
ite

d 
bu

t i
m

po
rt

an
t r

ol
e 

th
at

 ra
il 

tr
av

el
 p

la
ys

 in
 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y.

 R
ai

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

e 
go

od
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 H
er

ef
or

d 
fr

om
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 a

nd
 

Le
db

ur
y 

(a
nd

 C
ol

w
al

l) 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t l
on

ge
r d

ist
an

ce
 c

om
m

ut
in

g 
an

d 
sc

ho
ol

/c
ol

le
ge

 
tr

ip
s 

in
to

 a
nd

 o
ut

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nt

y.
 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 in

ve
st

m
en

t w
en

t i
nt

o 
Le

om
in

st
er

 S
ta

tio
n 

in
 2

01
2 

w
ith

 th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

 o
f l

ift
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fu

ll 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 b

ot
h 

pl
at

fo
rm

s 
an

d 
sim

ila
r p

ro
vi

sio
n 

is 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r H
er

ef
or

d 
St

at
io

n 
in

 2
01

3/
14

. I
nv

es
tm

en
t i

s 
al

so
 p

la
nn

ed
 to

 u
pg

ra
de

 s
ig

na
lli

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

N
ew

po
rt

 a
nd

 S
hr

ew
sb

ur
y 

an
d 

th
is 

w
ill

 b
rin

g 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

ap
ac

ity
 a

t H
er

ef
or

d 
St

at
io

n,
 

he
lp

in
g 

to
 re

du
ce

 c
an

ce
lla

tio
ns

 o
n 

tr
ai

ns
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
Le

db
ur

y.
 

W
e 

w
er

e 
ke

en
 to

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

co
st

s 
an

d 
be

ne
fit

s 
of

 p
ro

po
sa

ls 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 ra
il 

ac
ce

ss
 in

 to
 

Ro
th

er
w

as
 a

nd
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 a
 s

tu
dy

 in
 e

ar
ly

 2
01

3 
in

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 N
et

w
or

k 
Ra

il 
(N

R)
 a

nd
 A

rr
iv

a 
T r

ai
ns

. T
he

 s
tu

dy
 c

on
cl

ud
ed

 th
at

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

co
st

s 
of

 th
e 

sc
he

m
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
ov

er
 £

10
M

 a
nd

 m
or

e 
sig

ni
fic

an
tly

 a
n 

on
 g

oi
ng

 s
ub

sid
y 

of
 o

ve
r £

10
 fo

r 
ev

er
y 

jo
ur

ne
y 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 fu
nd

 a
 re

gu
la

r s
er

vi
ce

. T
hi

s 
w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 re
pr

es
en

t 
go

od
 v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f s

ev
er

e 
pr

es
su

re
s 

on
 ru

ra
l b

us
 

se
rv

ic
es

. H
ow

ev
er

, f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

fu
rt

he
r d

isc
us

sio
n 

w
ith

 N
R 

it 
ha

s 
em

er
ge

d 
th

at
 th

er
e 

m
ig

ht
 b

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

t L
eo

m
in

st
er

 S
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

th
is 

w
ou

ld
 s

up
po

rt
 

pa
rk

 a
nd

 ri
de

 fo
r l

on
ge

r d
ist

an
ce

 c
om

m
ut

er
s 

tr
av

el
lin

g 
in

 to
 H

er
ef

or
d.

 W
e 

w
ill

 e
xp

lo
re

 
th

is 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 N

R 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

LT
P 

pe
rio

d 
w

ith
 a

 v
ie

w
 to

 
in

cr
ea

sin
g 

pa
rk

in
g 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
de

m
on

st
ra

tin
g 

su
ff

ic
ie

nt
 d

em
an

d 
an

d 
se

cu
rin

g 
fu

nd
in

g 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
. 

O
ut

sid
e 

of
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, t
he

 C
ou

nc
il 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 lo
bb

y 
fo

r b
as

ic
 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
gr

ea
te

r c
ap

ac
ity

 o
n 

ra
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
n 

th
e 

W
al

es
 a

nd
 

Bo
rd

er
s 

lin
e.

 T
he

 a
bi

lit
y 

to
 in

flu
en

ce
 c

ur
re

nt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

is 
ve

ry
 li

m
ite

d 
as

 a
 re

su
lt 

of
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t f
ra

nc
hi

se
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 w

ith
 D

fT
 a

nd
 W

el
sh

 A
ss

em
bl

y 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t. 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

ill
 fu

lly
 e

ng
ag

e 
in

 re
-f

ra
nc

hi
sin

g 
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

fu
rt

he
r s

er
vi

ce
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nt

y.
 

Sc
h

em
es

 a
n

d
 in

it
ia

ti
ve

s 
fo

r 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

: 
• 

D
ev

el
op

 r
ur

al
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 h
ub

s 
an

d 
pa

rk
 a

nd
 s

ha
re

 s
ite

s,
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l  

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

ca
r 

sh
ar

in
g,

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
 

cy
cl

e/
w

al
k 

 
• 

Im
pl

em
en

t 
re

vi
ew

 o
f 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

se
rv

ic
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 p

ub
lic

  
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

co
m

m
un

ity
 le

d 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

se
rv

ic
es

 
• 

In
tr

od
uc

e 
ne

w
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

fr
om

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
• 

W
or

k 
w

ith
 n

et
w

or
k 

ra
il 

an
d 

tr
ai

n 
op

er
at

in
g 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 t

o 
ex

pl
or

e 
 

op
po

rt
un

iti
es

 t
o 

in
cr

ea
se

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
rid

e 
at

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 S
ta

tio
n 

 
• 

C
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

lo
bb

y 
A

rr
iv

a 
Tr

ai
ns

 W
al

es
 f

or
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
n 

W
al

es
 a

nd
  

Bo
r d

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

en
ga

ge
 in

 re
-f

ra
nc

hi
si

ng
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
as

 t
he

y 
ar

is
e.

  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

1

25



4.
 D

ev
el

op
in

g 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

 st
ra

te
gy

 

Th
is 

LT
P 

is 
fir

m
ly

 fo
cu

ss
ed

 o
n 

de
liv

er
in

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
20

13
/1

4 
to

 2
01

4/
15

. H
ow

ev
er

, d
ur

in
g 

th
is 

pe
rio

d 
w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pi
ng

 a
 lo

ng
er

 
te

rm
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

tr
at

eg
y 

fo
r t

he
 C

ou
nt

y 
in

 th
e 

lig
ht

 o
f p

ro
po

sa
ls 

fo
r g

ro
w

th
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
be

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 th

e 
C

or
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 lo

ca
l s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
th

e 
Lo

ca
l E

nt
er

pr
ise

 
Pl

an
’s

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
fo

r G
ro

w
th

. 

W
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 c
lo

se
ly

 w
ith

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

nd
 th

e 
LE

P 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
M

ar
ch

es
 L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 B

od
y 

(M
LT

B)
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 a
ss

um
e 

re
sp

on
sib

ili
ty

 fo
r t

he
 m

aj
or

 
sc

he
m

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 In

iti
al

 in
di

ca
tio

ns
 a

re
 th

at
 th

e 
M

LT
B 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
an

 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
£1

6M
 to

 p
rio

rit
ise

 fo
r t

he
 M

ar
ch

es
 a

re
a 

fo
r t

he
 p

er
io

d 
20

15
-1

9.
 

In
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

M
LT

B 
w

e 
w

ill
 s

ee
k 

to
 s

ec
ur

e 
fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r s
ch

em
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 

he
lp

 u
s 

de
liv

er
 o

ur
 g

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
pr

op
os

al
s 

fo
cu

se
d 

on
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

Ro
th

er
w

as
 E

nt
er

pr
ise

 Z
on

e.
 A

 n
um

be
r o

f s
ig

ni
fic

an
t i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

re
 a

lre
ad

y 
pr

og
re

ss
in

g 
to

 d
et

ai
le

d 
de

sig
n 

an
d 

lo
ca

l c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

in
 s

up
po

rt
 o

f t
he

se
 s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

Be
lm

on
t T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
ac

ka
ge

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 a

ss
ist

 th
e 

Ro
th

er
w

as
 E

nt
er

pr
ise

 
Zo

ne
, t

he
 c

ity
 li

nk
 ro

ad
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

re
ge

ne
ra

tio
n 

an
d 

ho
us

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
an

d 
fu

rt
he

r d
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f t

he
 H

er
ef

or
d 

Re
lie

f R
oa

d 
an

d 
co

m
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 tr
an

sp
or

t m
ea

su
re

s 
w

hi
ch

 s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ho
us

in
g 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r t
he

 C
ity

 a
nd

 w
id

er
 c

ou
nt

y.
 

W
e 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
is 

LT
P 

in
 th

e 
lig

ht
 o

f t
he

se
 e

m
er

gi
ng

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

ar
e 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

ul
tin

g 
on

 a
 re

fr
es

he
d 

LT
P 

in
 2

01
5.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

226



Th
e 

ta
bl

e 
op

po
sit

e 
se

ts
 o

ut
 th

e 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

ca
pi

ta
l f

un
di

ng
 a

llo
ca

tio
ns

 fo
r t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
sc

he
m

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
je

ct
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t f

or
 th

e 
pe

rio
d 

20
13

/1
4 

to
 2

01
4/

15
. T

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

co
m

pr
ise

s:
 

£1
9.

58
M

 - 
LT

P 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 tr
an

sp
or

t a
nd

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 g
ra

nt
, 

£2
.4

41
M

 - 
ad

di
tio

na
l m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 fu

nd
in

g 
an

no
un

ce
d 

in
 th

e 
au

tu
m

n 
st

at
em

en
t 

£2
.1

09
M

 - 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 L
ST

F 
ca

pi
ta

l g
ra

nt
 

£1
.0

32
M

 - 
C

ap
ita

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(C
on

ne
ct

 2
 s

ch
em

e)
 

£0
.9

0k
 - 

C
yc

le
 S

af
et

y 
sc

he
m

e 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

al
so

 a
llo

ca
te

s 
sig

ni
fic

an
t r

ev
en

ue
 fu

nd
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 ro
ut

in
e 

an
d 

re
ac

tiv
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t (

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

nc
es

sio
na

ry
 fa

re
s)

. T
yp

ic
al

 
an

nu
al

 re
ve

nu
e 

sp
en

d 
on

 b
ot

h 
to

ta
ls 

of
 a

ro
un

d 
£1

0M
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
re

vi
ew

in
g 

al
l r

ev
en

ue
 b

ud
ge

ts
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 m
an

ag
e 

sig
ni

fic
an

t r
ed

uc
tio

ns
 a

nd
 h

en
ce

 it
 

is 
no

t p
os

sib
le

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
in

di
ca

tiv
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

bu
dg

et
s 

fo
r 2

01
3/

14
 to

 2
01

4/
15

 a
t t

he
 

tim
e 

th
is 

LT
P 

w
as

 p
rin

te
d.

 

* 
Th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
is 

fin
al

isi
ng

 c
os

ts
 fo

r t
he

 c
ity

 c
en

tre
 li

nk
 ro

ad
 a

nd
 w

ill 
se

ek
 to

 s
ec

ur
e 

fu
nd

in
g 

fro
m

 a
 

ra
ng

e 
of

 s
ou

rc
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

gr
am

m
e.

 T
ot

al
 c

os
t f

or
 re

m
ai

nd
er

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
 e

st
im

at
ed

 a
t £

22
.7

M
. 

**
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
s 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
se

cu
re

d 
by

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ge
nc

y 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 3
 ‘p

in
ch

 p
oi

nt
’ s

ch
em

es
 

**
* 

D
ev

el
op

er
 fu

nd
in

g 
w

ill
 p

ay
 fo

r t
he

 u
pg

ra
di

ng
 o

f N
ew

m
ar

ke
t S

tr
ee

t a
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

Ed
ga

r S
tr

ee
t 

**
**

 
N

et
w

or
k 

Ra
il 

ha
s 

se
cu

re
d 

A
cc

es
s 

fo
r A

ll 
fu

nd
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 n

ew
 li

ft
s 

at
 H

er
ef

or
d 

St
at

io
n.

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 

ex
pe

nd
itu

re
 is

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
fo

r s
ig

na
l u

pg
ra

di
ng

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

on
 th

e 
M

an
ch

es
te

r/C
ar

di
ff

 li
ne

.  

5.
 F

un
di

ng
 P

ro
fil

e 
an

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

D
el

iv
er

y 

Ta
bl

e 
1 

In
di

ca
ti

ve
 C

ap
it

al
 A

llo
ca

ti
on

s 

Sc
he

m
e 

£0

20
13

/1
4 

00
’s

 

20
14

/1
5 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Pl
an

 

Ed
ga

r S
tr

ee
t L

in
k 

Ro
ad

* 
A

49
 ju

nc
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
**

 
N

ew
m

ar
ke

t S
tr

ee
t/E

dg
ar

 S
tr

ee
t P

ed
es

tr
ia

n 
Sc

he
m

e*
**

 

TB
D

 
- -

TB
D

 
- -

Ra
il 

lif
ts

 a
nd

 s
ig

na
l u

pg
ra

di
ng

 *
**

* 
H

ol
m

e 
La

cy
 T

ra
ff

ic
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ch

em
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
C

yc
le

 S
ch

em
es

 (i
nc

 C
on

ne
ct

 2
) i

nc
. 

sig
na

ge
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

Sc
he

m
es

 

- 0 2,
22

7 
30

 

- 20
0 

1,
10

4 
30

 
H

er
ef

or
d 

20
m

ph
 z

on
es

 a
nd

 s
tre

et
 d

e-
cl

ut
te

rin
g 

H
er

ef
or

d 
bu

s 
pa

ss
en

ge
r f

ac
ili

tie
s 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t R

ev
ie

w
 

63
 

30
 

0 

11
5 

50
 

80
 

Ru
ra

l 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 S

ha
re

 
10

 
10

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 
&

 M
ar

ke
t 

Ru
ra

l C
yc

le
 s

ch
em

es
 in

c.
 s

ig
na

ge
 

Ru
ra

l P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

Sc
he

m
es

 
60

 
40

 
60

 
40

 
To

w
ns

 P
la

n 
Sa

fe
r R

ou
te

s 
to

 S
ch

oo
ls 

&
 2

0m
ph

 z
on

es
 

Ru
ra

l R
es

id
en

tia
l 2

0m
ph

 z
on

es
 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ig
ht

s 
of

 W
ay

 
Ru

ra
l b

us
 p

as
se

ng
er

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
Ru

ra
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 R
ev

ie
w

 

60
 

20
 

20
 

15
0 

0 

70
 

40
 

20
 

10
0 

80
 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
M

in
or

 H
ig

hw
ay

 S
af

et
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 
25

0 
25

0 
Sa

fe
ty

 
Sp

ee
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 S

ID
s 

95
 

95
 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
H

ig
hw

ay
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 (c

ap
ita

lis
ed

 c
os

ts
) 

9,
54

8 
8,

40
5 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
Ri

gh
ts

 o
f W

ay
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

n 
25

 
25

 
Br

id
ge

w
or

ks
 

90
0 

90
0 

O
th

er
 

LT
P 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
25

 
25

 

To
ta

l I
nd

ic
at

iv
e 

A
llo

ca
ti

on
s 

13
,5

53
 

11
,6

99
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

3

27



6.
 K

ey
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 In

di
ca

to
rs

 

Ke
y 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
us

 a
ss

es
s 

th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 w
e 

ar
e 

m
ak

in
g 

w
ith

 th
e 

LT
P 

ar
e:

 

Pe
rf

o
rm

an
ce

 In
d

ic
at

o
r 

A
im

 
Ta

rg
et

 b
y 

20
14

/1
5 

Pe
op

le
 k

ill
ed

 o
r 

se
rio

us
ly

 
in

ju
re

d 
on

 t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

 
ne

tw
or

k 

Re
du

ce
 n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
pe

op
le

 k
ill

ed
 o

r 
se

rio
us

ly
 

in
ju

re
d 

fr
om

 b
as

e 
lin

e 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 1
19

. 

Le
ss

 t
ha

n 
85

 K
SI

 
ca

su
al

tie
s 

H
ig

hw
ay

 C
on

di
tio

n 
-

Pr
in

ci
pa

l R
oa

d 
Im

pr
ov

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
pr

in
ci

pa
l r

oa
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

5%
 o

f 
ne

tw
or

k 
ne

ed
in

g 
tr

ea
tm

en
t 

fr
om

 9
%

. 

C
ou

nt
yw

id
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

us
e 

(b
us

 a
nd

 
ra

il)
 

In
cr

ea
se

 in
 b

us
 u

se
rs

 
1.

3%
 in

cr
ea

se
 t

o 
4,

70
0 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 

A
ve

ra
ge

 w
ee

kd
ay

 c
ar

 
flo

w
s 

on
 h

ig
hw

ay
s 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
H

er
ef

or
d 

ci
ty

 
ce

nt
re

 (p
ea

k 
pe

rio
ds

 
07

:0
0 

to
 0

9:
00

 &
 1

6:
00

 
to

 1
8:

00
) 

Re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
ar

 jo
ur

ne
ys

 
to

 c
ity

 c
en

tr
e.

 
3%

 re
du

ct
io

n 
to

 2
8,

20
0 

ca
r 

tr
ip

s 

Re
du

ce
 N

O
x 
µg

/m
3 

in
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
A

Q
M

A
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
 

5%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

to
 4

6.
9 

µg
/m

3 

N
um

be
r 

of
 w

ee
kd

ay
 

cy
cl

e 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
In

cr
ea

se
 in

 c
yc

lin
g 

6%
 in

cr
ea

se
 t

o 
3,

60
0 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

428



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

5

29



If
 y

o
u

 w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 h
el

p
 t

o
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 t
h

is
 d

o
cu

m
en

t,
 o

r 
w

o
u

ld
 li

ke
 it

 in
 a

n
o

th
er

 f
o

rm
at

 o
r 

la
n

g
u

ag
e,

 
p

le
as

e 
ca

ll 
01

43
2 

26
05

00
 o

r 
em

ai
l i

n
fo

@
h

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e.
g

o
v.

u
k 

30



Lo
ca

l T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

(2
01

3/
14

 - 
20

14
/1

5)
 

Po
lic

y 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 

31



Co
nt

en
ts

 
In

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
3 

 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
5 

 

Ro
ad

 S
af

et
y 

11
  

Sp
ee

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
14

  

Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

17
  

H
ig

hw
ay

 N
et

w
or

k 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

24
  

Ca
r P

ar
ki

ng
 

26
  

Fr
ei

gh
t 

28
  

A
ct

iv
e 

Tr
av

el
 (w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g)
 

29
  

St
re

et
sc

ap
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

31
  

Sm
ar

te
r T

ra
ve

l C
ho

ic
es

 
33

  

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

 (T
ra

ns
po

rt
) 

37
  

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ig
ht

s o
f W

ay
 

40
  

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

N
oi

se
 

41
  

Ze
ro

 a
nd

 L
ow

 E
m

iss
io

n 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 

42
  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
232



In
tr

od
uc

ti
on

 

Th
e 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 o

ur
 L

oc
al

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n 

(L
TP

) i
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l h
as

 a
 c

le
ar

 p
la

n 
fo

r i
nv

es
tm

en
t i

n 
th

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t n

et
w

or
k 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

, e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 

he
al

th
ie

r l
ife

st
yl

es
, m

ai
nt

ai
n 

co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
, m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f o
ur

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
ne

tw
or

k 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 o
f o

ur
 ro

ad
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r t
ra

ns
po

rt
 a

ss
et

s.
 

Th
is 

LT
P 

Po
lic

y 
St

at
em

en
t d

oc
um

en
t d

et
ai

ls 
ou

r p
ol

ic
ie

s 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 o

ur
 

tr
an

sp
or

t p
la

ns
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 o

ur
 L

TP
.  

Th
ey

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

ew
ed

 p
er

io
di

ca
lly

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

ey
 

re
m

ai
n 

re
le

va
nt

 a
nd

 fi
t-

fo
r-p

ur
po

se
. 

Th
e 

LT
P 

ha
s 

tw
o 

m
ai

n 
fo

cu
se

s:
 

• 
Re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
in

 H
er

ef
or

d 
C

ity
 a

nd
 in

cr
ea

sin
g 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 b
y 

le
ss

 p
ol

lu
tin

g 
an

d 
he

al
th

ie
r f

or
m

s 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

t t
ha

n 
th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

r. 
W

e 
ai

m
 to

: 

• 
 R

ed
uc

e 
sh

or
t d

ist
an

ce
 c

ar
 b

as
ed

 tr
ip

s 
tr

an
sf

er
rin

g 
as

 m
an

y 
as

 p
os

sib
le

 to
 le

ss
  

po
llu

tin
g 

an
d 

he
al

th
ie

r m
od

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g,
  

• 
 R

ed
uc

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f c

ar
 a

cc
es

s 
in

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
or

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
tr

af
fic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d 

sig
n 

de
-c

lu
tt

er
in

g;
 

• 
 S

up
po

rt
 th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ce
nt

ra
l a

re
a 

by
 fa

ci
lit

at
in

g 
ci

ty
 c

en
tr

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n,

 
en

su
rin

g 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
sh

op
pi

ng
 a

re
a;

 a
nd

 
• 

 S
up

po
rt

 th
e 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 in

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

jo
bs

 a
t t

he
 R

ot
he

rw
as

 E
nt

er
pr

ise
 Z

on
e 

by
 

en
su

rin
g 

th
at

 it
s 

ex
pa

ns
io

n 
ca

n 
be

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

ed
 w

ith
in

 h
ig

hw
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s.
 

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

cc
es

s 
fo

r r
ur

al
 re

sid
en

ts
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
ou

t a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

 c
ar

. W
e 

ai
m

 to
: 

• 
 E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
C

ou
nt

y’
s 

ex
te

ns
iv

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

re
m

ai
ns

 fi
t f

or
 p

ur
po

se
  

an
d 

sa
fe

 fo
r t

he
 tr

av
el

lin
g 

pu
bl

ic
;  

• 
 R

ev
ie

w
 p

as
se

ng
er

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 w
e 

ca
n 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ac
ce

ss
 fo

r t
ho

se
 m

os
t i

n 
ne

ed
; a

nd
 

• 
 P

ro
vi

de
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

es
 fo

r l
on

ge
r d

ist
an

ce
 c

om
m

ut
er

s 
so

 th
at

 th
ey

 c
an

 a
lso

 re
du

ce
 

th
ei

r c
ar

 u
se

 a
nd

 a
do

pt
 h

ea
lth

ie
r l

ife
st

yl
es

. 

W
he

re
 re

cu
rr

in
g 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
is 

an
 is

su
e 

w
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 o
ur

 N
et

w
or

k 
C

ap
ac

ity
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t H

ie
ra

rc
hy

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
pr

ob
le

m
. 

• 
St

ep
 1

 - 
D

em
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t -
 U

se
 s

m
ar

te
r c

ho
ic

es
 to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 to

 
so

lo
 c

ar
 u

se
. F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
e 

ou
r H

ea
lth

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 T

ra
ve

l S
tr

at
eg

y.
 

• 
St

ep
 2

 - 
N

et
w

or
k 

M
an

ag
em

en
t -

 S
pe

ci
fic

 lo
ca

l c
on

ge
st

io
n 

iss
ue

s 
w

hi
ch

 c
an

 o
ft

en
 

be
 im

pr
ov

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t, 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

or
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t o

f h
ig

hw
ay

 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

. S
ee

 P
ol

ic
y 

LT
P 

H
N

2.
 

• 
St

ep
 3

 - 
Ta

rg
et

ed
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 –

 E
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r o

pe
ra

tio
na

l c
ap

ac
ity

. 
• 

St
ep

 4
 - 

Ro
ad

 W
id

en
in

g 
- W

id
en

in
g 

th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

hi
gh

w
ay

 th
er

eb
y 

in
cr

ea
sin

g 
th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

f i
nd

iv
id

ua
l h

ig
hw

ay
 li

nk
s.

 
• 

St
ep

 5
 –

 N
ew

 R
oa

d 
Bu

ild
in

g 
- C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

of
 n

ew
 ro

ad
 li

nk
s.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
3

33



LT
P 

O
bj

ec
ti

ve
s 

Ta
bl

e 
1 

id
en

tif
ie

s 
th

e 
lin

ks
 b

et
w

ee
n 

ou
r L

TP
 th

em
es

 a
nd

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
.  

Th
em

e 
O

b
je

ct
iv

es
 

Pa
ss

en
g

er
 

• 
M

ax
im

is
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 a
nd

 c
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
ll 

tr
av

el
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 f

or
 t

ho
se

 
Tr

an
sp

o
rt

 
w

ith
ou

t 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

a 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

r;
 a

nd
 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
of

 p
as

se
ng

er
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 t
hr

ou
gh

 g
re

at
er

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

W
al

ki
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
yc

lin
g

 
• 

Re
du

ce
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
of

 s
ho

rt
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

ca
r 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
pr

ac
tic

al
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 c
ho

ic
es

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 b

eh
av

io
ur

; 
• 

Su
pp

or
t 

ev
er

yd
ay

 p
hy

si
ca

l a
ct

iv
ity

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 re
si

de
nt

s;
 

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

us
e;

 a
nd

 
• 

Im
pr

ov
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 s
tr

ee
ts

ca
pe

 f
or

 re
si

de
nt

s,
 s

ho
pp

er
s 

an
d 

vi
si

to
rs

. 

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 S

af
et

y 
• 

Re
du

ce
 t

he
 n

um
be

r 
an

d 
se

ve
rit

y 
of

 a
cc

id
en

ts
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 c

on
fli

ct
s 

be
tw

ee
n 

di
ff

er
en

t 
m

od
es

 o
f 

tr
an

sp
or

t,
 a

nd
 

re
du

ci
ng

 s
pe

ed
in

g 
an

d 
dr

in
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 a
nd

 
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

ne
tw

or
k 

th
at

 is
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 t
ha

t 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 

H
ig

h
w

ay
 N

et
w

o
rk

 
• 

Su
pp

or
t 

ec
on

om
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y;

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

t 
• 

En
su

re
 a

cc
es

s 
to

 h
ou

si
ng

 a
nd

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t 
si

te
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

; 
• 

Re
du

ce
 t

he
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

of
 t

ra
ff

ic
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 C

O
2,

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 n

oi
se

; a
nd

 
• 

M
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
on

 b
io

di
ve

rs
ity

, w
at

er
 q

ua
lit

y,
 h

er
ita

ge
 la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s.

 

H
ig

h
w

ay
s 

• 
Pr

ot
ec

t 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

k 
fr

om
 e

xt
re

m
e 

w
ea

th
er

; a
nd

 
M

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 
• 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

co
nd

iti
on

 o
f 

ou
r 

ro
ad

s,
 f

oo
tw

ay
s 

an
d 

cy
cl

e-
w

ay
s,

 b
rid

ge
s,

 m
ile

st
on

es
, s

ig
na

ge
 a

nd
 s

tr
ee

t 
fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
 t

he
ir 

co
nd

iti
on

. 

O
ur

 L
TP

 c
on

ta
in

s 
tw

o 
de

liv
er

y 
pl

an
s:

 
• 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Pl
an

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 H

er
ef

or
d 

C
ity

 a
nd

 it
s 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 ru
ra

l a
re

a 
• 

Ru
ra

l H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 M

ar
ke

t 
To

w
ns

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 P

la
n,

 w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 th

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

Ro
th

er
w

as
 E

nt
er

pr
ise

 Z
on

e 
an

d 
th

e 
vi

lla
ge

s 
of

 C
le

ho
ng

er
, H

am
pt

on
 

m
ar

ke
t t

ow
ns

 o
f B

ro
m

ya
rd

, K
in

gt
on

, L
ed

bu
ry

, L
eo

m
in

st
er

, R
os

s-
on

-W
ye

 a
nd

 th
e 

Bi
sh

op
, L

ug
w

ar
di

ne
 a

nd
 W

ith
in

gt
on

; 
vi

lla
ge

s 
an

d 
ru

ra
l a

re
as

 n
ot

 c
ov

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
t S

tr
at

eg
y.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
434



A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

Th
is

 p
ol

ic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

nt
ri

bu
te

s 
to

w
ar

ds
 t

he
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 t

he
 f

ol
lo

w
in

g 
LT

P 
O

bj
ec

ti
ve

s 
• 

Su
pp

or
t e

co
no

m
ic

 g
ro

w
th

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

an
d 

 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y;
  

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 h

ou
sin

g 
an

d 
em

pl
oy

m
en

t s
ite

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

ise
 Z

on
e;

  
• 

En
co

ur
ag

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 c
ho

ic
es

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 ri

sk
s 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 w

ith
 

th
ei

r u
se

; 
• 

Pr
ov

id
e 

a 
ro

ad
 n

et
w

or
k 

th
at

 is
 s

af
e 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

po
sit

iv
e 

 
jo

ur
ne

y 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e;

  
• 

Pr
ot

ec
t H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 h

ig
hw

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

fr
om

 e
xt

re
m

e 
w

ea
th

er
; a

nd
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f o
ur

 ro
ad

s,
 fo

ot
w

ay
s 

an
d 

cy
cl

e-
w

ay
s,

 b
rid

ge
s,

  
m

ile
st

on
e,

 s
ig

na
ge

 a
nd

 s
tr

ee
t f

ur
ni

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

 th
ei

r c
on

di
tio

n.
  

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t c
ov

er
s 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
as

se
ts

: 
• 

Ro
ad

s 
w

ith
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
ve

rg
es

 a
nd

 d
ra

in
s 

• 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
ig

ht
s 

of
 W

ay
 

• 
Br

id
ge

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r s

tr
uc

tu
re

s 
• 

St
re

et
lig

ht
s 

• 
D

ra
in

ag
e 

gu
lli

es
 a

nd
 h

ig
hw

ay
 d

ra
in

ag
e 

sy
st

em
s 

• 
Tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
l s

et
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
U

rb
an

 T
ra

ff
ic

 M
an

ag
em

en
t C

on
tr

ol
 (U

TM
C

) e
qu

ip
m

en
t 

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

sin
gs

 
• 

Ro
ad

 s
ig

ns
 

• 
Ro

ad
 m

ar
ki

ng
s 

• 
Sa

fe
ty

 fe
nc

es
 

• 
Tr

ee
s 

• 
Fo

ot
w

ay
s 

an
d 

cy
cl

ew
ay

s 
• 

Pa
rk

 a
nd

 R
id

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

(o
nc

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d)

 
• 

Bu
s 

st
op

s 

Th
is 

po
lic

y 
st

at
em

en
t s

et
s 

ou
t o

ur
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e,
 th

ro
ug

h 
so

un
d 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
th

e 
sa

fe
ty

, a
va

ila
bi

lit
y,

 re
lia

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 in
te

gr
ity

 o
f o

ur
 p

ub
lic

 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k.

 T
he

 p
ub

lic
 h

ig
hw

ay
 c

on
sis

ts
 o

f a
ny

 v
er

ge
, f

oo
tw

ay
, c

yc
le

w
ay

, 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
, b

rid
le

w
ay

 o
r f

oo
tp

at
h 

ov
er

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
as

 a
 ri

gh
t o

f w
ay

. 
W

e 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 e

ve
ry

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
w

id
er

 b
en

ef
its

 o
f h

ig
hw

ay
 a

ss
et

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 b

y 
in

te
gr

at
in

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 th

e 
co

re
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

ct
iv

ity
. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 b

es
t p

ra
ct

ise
 w

e 
ar

e 
w

or
ki

ng
 to

w
ar

ds
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 o
ur

 h
ig

hw
ay

 a
ss

et
s 

ar
e 

va
lu

ed
 a

lo
ng

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
lin

es
 a

s 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
th

at
 th

e 
di

sc
ip

lin
es

 o
f 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t v

al
ue

 a
nd

 d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
ar

e 
ap

pl
ie

d.
 C

on
se

qu
en

tly
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
, r

en
ew

al
 a

nd
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f o

ur
 tr

an
sp

or
t a

ss
et

s 
m

us
t b

e 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

pr
io

rit
isa

tio
n 

ba
se

d 
on

 s
ou

nd
 a

ss
et

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ra
ct

ic
es

, p
la

nn
in

g 
ou

r a
ct

io
ns

, 
fo

cu
sin

g 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

an
d 

m
ea

su
rin

g 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f w

ha
t w

e 
do

. 

A
ss

et
 m

an
ag

em
en

t f
ac

ili
ta

te
s 

be
tt

er
 d

ec
isi

on
-m

ak
in

g 
by

 s
up

po
rt

in
g 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

ju
dg

em
en

t w
ith

 fi
na

nc
ia

l, 
ec

on
om

ic
 a

nd
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
an

al
ys

is.
 It

 h
el

ps
 u

s 
to

 b
et

te
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 a

nd
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
be

tw
ee

n 
w

ho
le

 li
fe

 c
os

t a
nd

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

e 
ev

id
en

ce
 b

as
e 

fo
r o

ur
 in

ve
st

m
en

t d
ec

isi
on

s.
 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

M
1 

A
cc

o
u

n
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 M

an
ag

in
g

 t
h

e 
V

al
u

e 
o

f 
o

u
r 

Tr
an

sp
o

rt
 

A
ss

et
s 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t 
po

lic
y,

 w
e 

w
ill

 a
do

pt
 a

 s
et

 o
f 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
an

d 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
 v

al
ue

, d
ep

re
ci

at
io

n 
an

d 
in

ve
st

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 a

ss
et

s 
ar

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

an
ag

ed
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
5

35



Co
st

-E
ff

ec
ti

ve
 A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Re
so

ur
ce

 c
on

st
ra

in
ts

 m
ak

e 
it 

es
se

nt
ia

l t
ha

t w
e 

di
re

ct
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

hi
gh

es
t 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
an

d 
th

e 
m

os
t e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

w
ay

s 
to

 a
dd

re
ss

 th
es

e.
 

W
e 

w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 h

ig
hw

ay
 s

ur
ve

ys
 e

ac
h 

ye
ar

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 v

ar
io

us
 e

le
m

en
ts

 o
f h

ig
hw

ay
 

co
nd

iti
on

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 S
C

A
N

N
ER

 s
ur

ve
y, 

w
hi

ch
 m

ea
su

re
s 

th
e 

ro
ad

 c
on

di
tio

n,
 

cr
ac

ki
ng

, r
ut

tin
g,

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 d

ef
or

m
at

io
n,

 a
nd

 a
 S

C
RI

M
 s

ur
ve

y 
w

hi
ch

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

e 
te

xt
ur

e 
of

 th
e 

ro
ad

 a
nd

 th
e 

lik
el

ih
oo

d 
of

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
sk

id
di

ng
 in

 w
et

 w
ea

th
er

. 

W
e 

al
so

 a
na

ly
se

 re
su

lts
 fr

om
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
an

d 
Tr

an
sp

or
ta

tio
n 

Pu
bl

ic
 

Sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

Su
rv

ey
, t

he
 H

ig
hw

ay
 S

af
et

y 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

Su
rv

ey
 a

nd
 th

e 
vi

ew
s 

of
 p

ar
ish

 
co

un
ci

ls 
an

d 
lo

ca
lit

y 
ar

ea
s.

 

Th
e 

da
ta

 p
ro

du
ce

d 
by

 th
es

e 
su

rv
ey

s 
is 

an
al

ys
ed

 b
y 

en
gi

ne
er

s 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

w
or

k 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

M
2 

C
o

st
-E

ff
ec

ti
ve

 A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

W
e 

ar
e 

m
ov

in
g 

to
 a

 s
ys

te
m

 o
f 

pl
an

ne
d 

in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 p
re

se
rv

e,
 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
en

ha
nc

e 
ou

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

as
se

ts
, c

om
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

a 
w

ho
le

-li
fe

 c
os

t/
be

ne
fit

 a
pp

ro
ac

h 
to

 d
et

er
m

in
e 

th
e 

m
os

t 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 t
o 

de
liv

er
y 

ba
se

d 
on

: 
• 

Th
e 

co
lle

ct
io

n 
an

d 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f 
go

od
-q

ua
lit

y,
 t

im
el

y 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 t
he

  
co

nd
iti

on
, f

un
ct

io
n 

an
d 

pa
st

 r e
co

rd
 o

f 
al

l a
ss

et
s.

  
• 

Ti
m

el
y 

in
te

rv
en

tio
n 

to
 c

or
re

ct
 d

ef
ec

ts
 b

ef
or

e 
th

ey
 c

au
se

 m
or

e 
fu

nd
am

en
ta

l  
pr

ob
le

m
s 

 
• 

Re
se

ar
ch

 in
to

 m
or

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 
• 

Be
in

g 
cl

ea
r 

on
 s

er
vi

ce
 le

ve
ls

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

ne
tw

or
k 

an
d 

at
 e

ac
h 

lo
ca

lit
y,

  
m

at
ch

in
g 

as
se

t 
co

nd
iti

on
 t

o 
ne

ed
.  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
636



D
el

iv
er

in
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

M
3 

D
el

iv
er

 e
ff

ec
ti

ve
 m

ai
n

te
n

an
ce

 

W
e 

w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
di

ff
er

en
t 

as
se

t 
ca

te
go

rie
s:

 

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

ea
ch

 a
ss

et
 c

la
ss

 in
 t

he
 li

gh
t 

of
 t

he
ir 

fu
nc

tio
n,

 c
ha

ra
ct

er
is

tic
s,

  
op

po
rt

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 r

is
ks

:  

• 
C

ar
ria

ge
w

ay
s 

(in
cl

ud
in

g 
By

w
ay

s 
O

pe
n 

to
 A

ll 
Tr

af
fic

 (B
O

A
TS

) b
ut

 n
ot

 u
nb

ou
nd

 
by

w
ay

s)
. M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 t
he

 f
un

ct
io

n 
of

 t
he

 ro
ad

, i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 it
s 

co
nd

iti
on

 a
nd

 t
he

 li
ke

ly
 

us
ag

e.
 

• 
Ro

ad
 m

ar
ki

ng
s 

an
d 

st
ud

s 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
 k

ey
 e

le
m

en
t 

of
 t

he
 e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 a
nd

 s
af

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 t

he
 h

ig
hw

ay
. F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
a 

co
m

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 s

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

 in
 

20
09

, t
he

 s
ys

te
m

 o
f 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

ha
s 

be
en

 im
pr

ov
ed

, a
nd

 w
e 

w
ill

 b
ui

ld
 

up
on

 t
hi

s 
as

 w
e 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 o

f 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

an
d 

pr
ev

en
ta

tiv
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

. 

• 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
sa

fe
ty

 f
en

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 m

iti
ga

te
 r

is
ks

 p
os

ed
 t

o 
hi

gh
w

ay
 u

se
rs

 b
y 

ha
za

rd
s 

or
 

to
 p

ro
te

ct
 a

ss
et

s 
fr

om
 d

am
ag

e.
 C

ov
er

s 
re

ac
tiv

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 (e

.g
. v

eh
ic

le
 

st
rik

es
) a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
ro

ut
in

e 
an

d 
pr

ev
en

tiv
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
s 

pa
rt

 
of

 w
id

er
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 s

ch
em

es
. 

• 
Tr

af
fic

 c
al

m
in

g,
 p

rim
ar

ily
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 a
dv

er
se

 e
ff

ec
ts

 o
f 

tr
af

fic
 a

ro
un

d 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
in

 u
rb

an
 a

re
as

. I
ns

pe
ct

ed
, m

an
ag

ed
 a

nd
 m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
as

 p
ar

t 
of

 t
he

 g
en

er
al

 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

• 
St

ru
ct

ur
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 b

rid
ge

s 
an

d 
st

ru
ct

ur
es

 w
hi

ch
 im

pi
ng

e 
in

 a
ny

 w
ay

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fo
ot

pr
in

t 
of

 t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

 o
r 

w
hi

ch
 a

ff
ec

t 
th

e 
su

pp
or

t 
of

 t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

 o
r 

ad
ja

ce
nt

 la
nd

. A
s 

w
el

l a
s 

th
e 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 t

he
m

se
lv

es
, t

he
re

 a
re

 k
ey

 c
om

po
ne

nt
s 

w
ith

 f
in

ite
 li

ve
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

br
id

ge
 b

ea
rin

gs
. R

eg
ul

ar
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 is
 

cr
iti

ca
lly

 im
po

rt
an

t.
 

• 
Fo

ot
w

ay
s 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
ro

ut
es

. T
he

se
 a

re
 s

eg
re

ga
te

d 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 e
xc

lu
di

ng
 o

n-
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
 c

yc
le

 la
ne

s 
(p

ar
t 

of
 t

he
 c

ar
ria

ge
w

ay
 a

nd
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
as

se
ts

) a
nd

 
fo

ot
pa

th
s 

as
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 t

he
 R

ig
ht

s 
of

 W
ay

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pl
an

 (R
O

W
IP

). 
A

lth
ou

gh
 

th
e 

pr
im

ar
y 

pu
rp

os
e 

of
 t

he
se

 a
ss

et
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

us
ed

 b
y 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
 c

yc
lis

ts
, 

ca
te

go
ris

at
io

n,
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 m

us
t 

ta
ke

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 
ot

he
r 

us
es

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 v

eh
ic

ul
ar

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 p

re
m

is
es

. 

• 
H

ig
hw

ay
 d

ra
in

ag
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
dr

ai
na

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 it

se
lf 

an
d 

th
e 

dr
ai

na
ge

 o
f 

la
nd

 o
r 

pr
em

is
es

 o
nt

o 
or

 a
dj

ac
en

t 
to

 t
he

 h
ig

hw
ay

. T
hi

s 
is

 a
 c

rit
ic

al
 

as
pe

ct
 in

 t
er

m
s 

of
 s

af
et

y,
 s

er
vi

ce
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

ab
ili

ty
. T

he
 L

an
d 

D
ra

in
ag

e 
A

ct
 

pr
ov

id
es

 s
pe

ci
fic

 p
ow

er
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

as
 d

oe
s 

th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ct
, a

nd
 t

he
 

Fl
oo

d 
an

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
A

ct
, w

hi
ch

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il 

is
 t

he
 le

ad
 lo

ca
l f

lo
od

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
 

• 
Pu

bl
ic

 R
ig

ht
s 

of
 W

ay
 a

re
 d

et
ai

le
d 

in
 t

he
 P

ub
lic

 R
ig

ht
s 

of
 W

ay
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
Pl

an
 

• 
Li

gh
tin

g 
an

d 
ill

um
in

at
ed

 s
ig

ns
, w

ith
 s

pe
ci

fic
 e

m
ph

as
is

 o
n 

th
e 

ro
le

 in
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
an

d 
ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
m

ak
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 e

ne
rg

y,
 w

ho
le

-li
fe

 c
os

t 
an

d 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 

• 
Tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
ls

 a
nd

 s
ig

na
lis

ed
 c

ro
ss

in
gs

, w
ith

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

em
ph

as
is

 o
n 

m
ax

im
is

in
g 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 c

ap
ac

ity
. 

• 
Bu

s 
st

op
s 

an
d 

sh
el

te
rs

. A
 p

ro
ce

ss
 o

f 
in

sp
ec

tin
g 

an
d 

ra
tin

g 
sh

el
te

rs
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 t
o 

co
nd

iti
on

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

ce
nt

ly
 in

tr
od

uc
ed

. 

• 
So

ft
 e

st
at

e 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
 t

re
es

. S
of

t 
es

ta
te

 c
on

si
st

s 
of

 v
er

ge
s 

an
d 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
to

 
th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
. W

e 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 t

he
se

 a
re

as
 a

nd
 a

ll 
hi

gh
w

ay
 t

re
es

 a
re

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
m

an
ag

ed
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
7

37



M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 a
 s

af
e 

ef
fi

ci
en

t 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

W
e 

w
ill

 fo
cu

s 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 a

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 ro
ad

s 
hi

er
ar

ch
y 

(b
as

ed
 

on
 th

e 
di

ff
er

en
t c

la
ss

es
 o

f r
oa

d)
 c

om
bi

ne
d 

w
ith

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 n

et
w

or
k 

co
nd

iti
on

. 
Th

is 
w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
us

 to
 m

ee
t t

he
 e

xp
ec

ta
tio

ns
 o

f o
ur

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

, b
us

in
es

se
s 

an
d 

ro
ad

 
us

er
s 

on
 d

iff
er

en
t c

la
ss

es
 o

f r
oa

d,
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 w

ith
 a

 re
lia

bl
e 

an
d 

sa
fe

 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k.

 

H
ie

ra
rc

h
y 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

Ty
p

e 
o

f 
R

o
ad

 G
en

er
al

 D
es

cr
ip

ti
o

n
 

D
et

ai
le

d
 D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

 

St
ra

te
g

ic
 R

o
u

te
 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l ‘
A

’ r
oa

ds
 b

et
w

ee
n 

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ro
ut

es
 f

or
 f

as
t 

m
ov

in
g 

lo
ng

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
tr

af
fic

 w
ith

 li
tt

le
 f

ro
nt

ag
e 

ac
ce

ss
 o

r 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

D
es

tin
at

io
n.

 
tr

af
fic

. S
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 a
re

 u
su

al
ly

 in
 e

xc
es

s 
of

 4
0m

ph
 a

nd
 t

he
re

 a
re

 f
ew

 ju
nc

tio
ns

. 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

s 
ar

e 
ei

th
er

 s
eg

re
ga

te
d 

or
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
an

d 
pa

rk
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
ar

e 
ge

ne
ra

lly
 

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 

M
ai

n
 D

is
tr

ib
u

to
r 

M
aj

or
 U

rb
an

 N
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
In

te
r-

Pr
im

ar
y 

Ro
ut

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
Ro

ut
es

 a
nd

 li
nk

in
g 

ur
ba

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
to

 t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 n

et
w

or
k 

w
ith

 
Li

nk
s.

 S
ho

rt
 -

 m
ed

iu
m

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
tr

af
fic

 (A
 a

nd
 

lim
ite

d 
fr

on
ta

ge
 a

cc
es

s.
 In

 u
rb

an
 a

re
as

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 a
re

 u
su

al
ly

 4
0m

ph
 o

r 
le

ss
, p

ar
ki

ng
 is

 
B 

C
la

ss
). 

re
st

ric
te

d 
at

 p
ea

k 
tim

es
 a

nd
 t

he
re

 a
re

 p
os

iti
ve

 m
ea

su
re

s 
fo

r 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sa
fe

ty
. 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

D
is

tr
ib

u
to

r 
C

la
ss

ifi
ed

 ro
ad

 (B
 a

nd
 C

 c
la

ss
) a

nd
 

In
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 t

he
se

 ro
ad

s 
lin

k 
th

e 
la

rg
er

 v
ill

ag
es

 a
nd

 H
G

V
 g

en
er

at
or

s 
to

 t
he

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 a

nd
 

un
cl

as
si

fie
d 

ur
ba

n 
bu

s 
ro

ut
es

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
lo

ca
l 

M
ai

n 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

or
 N

et
w

or
k.

 In
 b

ui
lt 

up
 a

re
as

 t
he

se
 ro

ad
s 

ha
ve

 3
0m

ph
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

its
 a

nd
 v

er
y 

tr
af

fic
 w

ith
 f

ro
nt

ag
e 

ac
ce

ss
 a

nd
 f

re
qu

en
t 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

ac
tiv

ity
 w

ith
 s

om
e 

cr
os

si
ng

 f
ac

ili
tie

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

ze
br

a 
cr

os
si

ng
s.

 
ju

nc
tio

ns
. 

O
n 

st
re

et
 p

ar
ki

ng
 is

 g
en

er
al

ly
 u

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

ex
ce

pt
 f

or
 s

af
et

y 
re

as
on

s.
 

Li
n

k 
R

o
ad

 
Ro

ad
s 

lin
ki

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

th
e 

M
ai

n 
an

d 
In

 r
ur

al
 a

re
as

 t
he

se
 ro

ad
s 

lin
k 

th
e 

sm
al

le
r 

vi
lla

ge
s 

to
 t

he
 d

is
tr

ib
ut

or
 ro

ad
s.

 T
he

y 
ar

e 
Se

co
nd

ar
y 

D
is

tr
ib

ut
or

 N
et

w
or

k 
w

ith
 f

ro
nt

ag
e 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 v

ar
yi

ng
 w

id
th

 a
nd

 n
ot

 a
lw

ay
s 

ca
pa

bl
e 

of
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

tw
o-

w
ay

 t
ra

ff
ic

. I
n 

ur
ba

n 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 f
re

qu
en

t 
ju

nc
tio

ns
. 

ar
ea

s 
th

ey
 a

re
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l o
r 

in
du

st
ria

l i
nt

er
co

nn
ec

tin
g 

ro
ad

s 
w

ith
 3

0m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

, 
ra

nd
om

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

m
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 u

nc
on

tr
ol

le
d 

pa
rk

in
g.

 

Lo
ca

l A
cc

es
s 

R
o

ad
 

Ro
ad

s 
se

rv
in

g 
lim

ite
d 

nu
m

be
rs

 o
f 

pr
op

er
tie

s 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 o

nl
y 

ac
ce

ss
 t

ra
ff

ic
. 

In
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 t

he
se

 ro
ad

s 
se

rv
e 

sm
al

l s
et

tle
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 in

di
vi

du
al

 
pr

op
er

tie
s 

an
d 

la
nd

. T
he

y 
ar

e 
of

te
n 

un
su

ita
bl

e 
fo

r 
H

G
V.

 In
 u

rb
an

 a
re

as
 t

he
y 

ar
e 

of
te

n 
re

si
de

nt
ia

l l
oo

p 
ro

ad
s 

or
 c

ul
 d

e 
sa

c.
 

R
u

ra
l A

cc
es

s 
La

n
es

 
Pa

rt
ia

lly
 u

n 
m

et
al

le
d 

ro
ad

s 
se

rv
in

g 
oc

ca
si

on
al

 
ru

ra
l p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
th

e 
co

un
tr

ys
id

e 
ca

rr
yi

ng
 o

nl
y 

ac
ce

ss
 t

ra
ff

ic
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
838



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

M
4 

M
ai

n
ta

in
in

g
 a

 s
af

e,
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
h

ig
h

w
ay

 n
et

w
o

rk
 

W
e 

w
ill

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
a 

sa
fe

, e
ff

ic
ie

nt
 h

ig
hw

ay
 b

y:
 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
th

at
 t

he
 p

rio
rit

is
at

io
n 

of
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 w

or
ks

 o
n 

ca
rr

ia
ge

w
ay

s 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 a
ss

et
s 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

ro
ad

 f
un

ct
io

n 
as

 s
et

 o
ut

 in
 t

he
 ro

ad
s 

hi
er

ar
ch

y.
 

• 
U

si
ng

 t
he

 S
ki

d 
Re

si
st

an
ce

 P
ol

ic
y 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
th

e 
ris

k 
of

 w
et

-r
oa

d 
sk

id
di

ng
. 

• 
U

si
ng

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
n 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

to
 t

ar
ge

t 
re

so
ur

ce
s.

 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 w

in
te

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 t
he

 w
in

te
r 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

 f
or

  
ca

rr
ia

ge
w

ay
s,

 f
oo

tw
ay

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
ew

ay
s.

  

• 
M

an
ag

in
g 

dr
ai

na
ge

 t
o 

ke
ep

 s
ur

fa
ce

 w
at

er
 f

ro
m

 t
he

 c
ar

ria
ge

w
ay

. 

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 s

tr
en

gt
he

ni
ng

 b
rid

ge
s 

an
d 

st
ru

ct
ur

es
 t

o 
 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
ey

 m
ee

t 
th

ei
r 

fu
nc

tio
na

l r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
.  

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

an
d 

m
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 s
tr

ee
t,

 f
oo

tw
ay

 a
nd

 c
yc

le
w

ay
 li

gh
tin

g 
an

d 
 

ill
um

in
at

ed
 s

ig
na

ge
.  

• 
M

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 s

ig
na

ls
 a

nd
 s

ig
na

ge
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

, r
oa

d 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 o

f 
ou

r 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
. 

Re
du

ci
ng

 o
ur

 E
nv

ir
on

m
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 a

nd
 R

es
po

nd
in

g 
to

 C
lim

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
 

H
ig

hw
ay

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 re
qu

ire
s 

sig
ni

fic
an

t n
at

ur
al

 re
so

ur
ce

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 e

ne
rg

y.
 It

 a
lso

 
ge

ne
ra

te
s 

la
rg

e 
am

ou
nt

s 
of

 w
as

te
 a

nd
 c

an
 a

ff
ec

t h
er

ita
ge

 s
ite

s 
an

d 
th

e 
na

tu
ra

l 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t. 
W

e 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

se
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

, 
w

he
re

 p
os

sib
le

, s
up

po
rt

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l e
nh

an
ce

m
en

ts
. I

n 
ad

di
tio

n,
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 is
 

lik
el

y 
to

 b
rin

g 
ab

ou
t n

ew
 d

em
an

ds
 in

 te
rm

s 
of

 m
or

e 
ex

tr
em

e 
w

ea
th

er
 e

ve
nt

s,
 m

or
e 

in
te

ns
e 

ra
in

fa
ll,

 s
no

w
fa

ll 
an

d 
la

nd
sli

de
s.

 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

M
5 

R
ed

u
ci

n
g

 o
u

r 
En

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l I
m

p
ac

t 
an

d
 R

es
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t

o
 

C
lim

at
e 

C
h

an
g

e 

W
he

ne
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
, w

e 
w

ill
 a

do
pt

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 w

hi
ch

 re
du

ce
 d

em
an

ds
 f

or
 n

at
ur

al
 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 m
in

im
is

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
lo

ca
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s.

 W
e 

w
ill

 
al

so
 t

ak
e 

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
of

 a
ny

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

ou
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

ad
ap

t 
ou

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

la
nn

in
g 

to
 t

ak
e 

ac
co

un
t 

of
 t

he
 li

ke
ly

 im
pa

ct
s 

of
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

• 
U

se
 e

ar
ly

 in
te

rv
en

tio
ns

, s
uc

h 
as

 s
ur

fa
ce

 d
re

ss
in

g,
 t

o 
pr

es
er

ve
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
av

oi
d 

ha
vi

ng
 t

o 
ta

ke
 m

or
e 

re
so

ur
ce

-in
te

ns
iv

e 
in

te
rv

en
tio

n.
 

• 
U

se
 re

cy
cl

ed
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 w
he

re
 p

os
si

bl
e 

to
 re

du
ce

 re
so

ur
ce

 a
nd

 e
ne

rg
y 

de
m

an
ds

. 

• 
D

is
po

se
 o

f 
w

as
te

 w
ith

 re
ga

rd
 t

o 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
s 

an
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l t
o 

en
ab

le
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

. 

• 
In

ve
st

ig
at

e 
ne

w
 a

nd
 in

no
va

tiv
e 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 t

o 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
. 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

um
pt

io
n 

of
 s

tr
ee

t 
lig

ht
in

g,
 il

lu
m

in
at

ed
 s

ig
ns

 a
nd

 
tr

af
fic

 s
ig

na
ls

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

LE
D

 t
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

an
d 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 ‘t

rim
m

in
g 

an
d 

di
m

m
in

g’
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s.
 

• 
A

ct
iv

el
y 

re
vi

ew
 t

he
 re

si
lie

nc
e 

of
 o

ur
 a

ss
et

s 
an

d 
ne

tw
or

ks
 in

 t
he

 li
gh

t 
of

 
cl

im
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 a
nd

 a
dj

us
t 

th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 re
gi

m
es

 t
o 

m
ee

t 
th

es
e 

ch
al

le
ng

es
. 

• 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 t

ra
ve

l m
od

es
 a

re
 g

iv
en

 s
uf

fic
ie

nt
 p

rio
rit

y 
to

 h
el

p 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

th
ei

r 
us

e.
 

• 
C

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 t

o 
be

 li
nk

ed
 t

o 
ou

r 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
9

39



M
an

ag
in

g 
Ch

an
gi

ng
 D

em
an

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

ne
w

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

D
em

an
d 

on
 th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

is 
no

t s
ta

tic
. N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 c
an

 c
ha

ng
e 

th
e 

vo
lu

m
es

 a
nd

 ty
pe

s 
of

 v
eh

ic
le

 u
sin

g 
a 

se
ct

io
n 

of
 ro

ut
e 

or
 ju

nc
tio

n 
sig

ni
fic

an
tly

. W
e 

w
ill

 
be

 m
in

df
ul

 o
f p

la
nn

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 w

e 
ca

n 
m

ee
t s

uc
h 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 

de
m

an
d.

 

W
he

re
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
tly

 a
lte

r t
he

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 a

n 
ar

ea
 a

nd
 it

 re
qu

ire
s 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

an
d 

te
ch

ni
qu

es
, w

e 
w

ill
 re

qu
ire

 d
ev

el
op

er
s 

to
 p

ay
 

a 
co

m
m

ut
ed

 s
um

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f t

he
se

 it
em

s.
  W

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, 
Se

ct
io

n 
27

8 
an

d 
Se

ct
io

n 
38

 A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

pr
ov

isi
on

 fo
r c

om
m

ut
ed

 
su

m
s 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f s

uc
h 

ite
m

s.
 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

M
6 

M
an

ag
in

g
 C

h
an

g
in

g
 D

em
an

d
, i

n
cl

u
d

in
g

 n
ew

 
d

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
 

W
he

ne
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
, w

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
m

in
df

ul
 t

ha
t 

ou
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
ac

kn
ow

le
dg

es
 p

la
nn

ed
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

w
e 

ca
n 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

to
 a

n 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
w

he
re

 it
 m

ee
ts

 f
ut

ur
e 

de
m

an
d 

or
ig

in
at

in
g 

fr
om

 c
ha

ng
es

 in
 h

ig
hw

ay
 u

se
. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 s

pa
tia

l p
la

nn
er

s,
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 o

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
ap

pr
oa

ch
es

 t
o 

m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 t

he
ir 

on
-g

oi
ng

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

ad
op

tio
n 

of
 e

nh
an

ce
d 

st
an

da
rd

s 

• 
Re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
fo

r 
co

m
m

ut
ed

 s
um

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
as

se
ss

ed
 f

or
 e

ac
h 

si
te

 p
rio

r 
to

 t
he

 
dr

af
tin

g 
of

 S
ec

tio
n 

27
8 

an
d 

Se
ct

io
n 

38
 A

gr
ee

m
en

ts
 

• 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 w
ith

 a
nd

 e
ng

ag
e 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 b
us

in
es

se
s 

to
 b

et
te

r 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 t
he

ir 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

• 
Pu

bl
is

hi
ng

 t
he

 f
or

w
ar

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
an

d 
co

ns
ul

t 
w

ith
 o

th
er

 
ag

en
ci

es
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
en

ab
le

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 f

un
ds

 t
o 

be
 s

ou
rc

ed
 t

o 
br

in
g 

ab
ou

t 
fu

rt
he

r 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
 a

lo
ng

si
de

 p
la

nn
ed

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 

• 
Pr

ep
ar

in
g 

‘p
ac

ka
ge

s’
 o

f 
sc

he
m

es
 w

hi
ch

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 e
le

m
en

ts
 

al
on

gs
id

e 
ot

he
r 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

de
liv

er
 n

et
w

or
k 

ca
pa

ci
ty

, s
af

et
y 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

040



Ro
ad

 S
af

et
y 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y;
 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

us
e;

 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y 

of
 ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ff
er

en
t 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 
sp

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

rin
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 is

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e;
 a

nd
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
ou

r 
ro

ad
s,

 f
oo

tw
ay

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
e-

w
ay

s,
 b

rid
ge

s,
  

m
ile

st
on

es
, s

ig
na

ge
 a

nd
 s

tr
ee

t 
fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
 t

he
ir 

co
nd

iti
on

.  

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 u

se
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t a
nd

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
. W

e 
w

ill
 fo

cu
s 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 o
n 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g,
 ta

ki
ng

 in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 n
at

io
na

l 
gu

id
an

ce
 b

ut
 fo

cu
sin

g 
on

 s
pe

ci
fic

 lo
ca

l i
ss

ue
s:

 
• 

Ta
ck

lin
g 

al
l i

nc
id

en
ce

s 
of

 k
ill

ed
 o

r s
er

io
us

ly
 in

ju
re

d 
ca

su
al

tie
s 

on
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 ro
ad

 
ne

tw
or

k 
in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

Re
du

ci
ng

 ri
sk

 a
m

on
gs

t y
ou

ng
 a

nd
 o

ld
er

 d
riv

er
s 

• 
C

on
tin

ue
d 

re
du

ct
io

n 
in

 c
hi

ld
 c

as
ua

lti
es

 
• 

Re
du

ci
ng

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

ist
 c

as
ua

lti
es

 
• 

Re
du

ci
ng

 m
ot

or
cy

cl
ist

 c
as

ua
lti

es
 

• 
Ta

ck
lin

g 
ill

eg
al

 a
nd

 in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 s
pe

ed
s 

• 
Ta

rg
et

in
g 

po
or

 ro
ad

 u
se

r b
eh

av
io

ur
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

rin
k 

an
d 

dr
ug

 d
riv

er
s 

• 
Ta

ilo
rin

g 
tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 to
 a

dd
re

ss
 lo

ca
lis

ed
 is

su
es

 

M
in

or
 S

af
et

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

M
ai

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 h
ig

hw
ay

 a
ss

et
 is

 a
 k

ey
 d

et
er

m
in

an
t f

or
 a

 s
af

e 
hi

gh
w

ay
 

ne
tw

or
k.

 T
he

re
 a

re
 a

 n
um

be
r o

f i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 th

at
 c

an
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

to
 ro

ad
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ts

 to
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ris
k 

of
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 o
r t

he
 s

ev
er

ity
 o

f a
cc

id
en

ts
 if

 c
ol

lis
io

ns
 

oc
cu

r. 
Th

e 
cl

os
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

an
d 

sh
ar

ed
 d

el
iv

er
y 

te
am

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
hi

gh
w

ay
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 m

in
or

 s
af

et
y 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 e
ns

ur
es

 th
e 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
is 

of
 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

sc
he

m
es

 a
re

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 in

 a
 c

os
t e

ff
ec

tiv
e 

m
an

ne
r. 

A
 v

ar
ie

ty
 o

f 
m

et
ho

ds
 a

re
 u

se
d 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
ar

ea
s 

of
 th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
re

qu
iri

ng
 a

tt
en

tio
n 

an
d 

tr
ea

tm
en

t. 
Th

es
e 

in
cl

ud
e:

 
• 

C
lu

st
er

 S
ite

 Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
• 

Ro
ut

e 
In

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 
• 

M
as

s 
A

ct
io

n 
Tr

ea
tm

en
ts

 
• 

Sa
fe

ty
 A

ud
its

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

1

41



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
R

S1
 –

 M
in

o
r 

Sa
fe

ty
 Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
na

ly
se

 o
ur

 K
ey

A
C

C
ID

EN
T 

da
ta

ba
se

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

th
e 

ge
og

ra
ph

ic
al

 a
re

as
 o

r 
ro

ut
es

 w
ith

 t
he

 h
ig

he
st

 le
ve

ls
 o

f 
pe

rs
on

al
 in

ju
ry

 c
ol

lis
io

ns
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

 d
et

ai
le

d 
co

lli
si

on
 

si
te

/ro
ut

e 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
ns

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ar
ea

s 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
so

lu
tio

ns
 a

t 
th

es
e 

si
te

s 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t 

co
st

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
sa

fe
ty

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

a 
pr

io
rit

is
ed

 b
as

is
 u

si
ng

 o
ur

 s
ch

em
e 

pr
io

rit
is

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s.
 

A
cc

id
en

t 
Si

te
 S

el
ec

ti
o

n
 C

ri
te

ri
a 

an
d

 P
ri

o
ri

ti
sa

ti
o

n
 R

an
ki

n
g

 P
ro

ce
ss

 

“U
rb

an
” 

Si
te

s 

• 
Sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

40
 m

ph
 

or
 le

ss
 

• 
6 

or
 m

or
e 

PI
A

s 
w

ith
in

 a
n 

in
iti

al
 

ra
di

us
 o

f 
25

m
 

“R
u

ra
l”

 S
it

es
 

• 
Sp

ee
d 

lim
it 

50
 m

ph
 

or
 m

or
e 

• 
3 

or
 m

or
e 

PI
A

s 
w

ith
in

 a
n 

in
iti

al
 

ra
di

us
 o

f 
10

0m
 

A
cc

id
en

t 
Si

te
 

Se
le

ct
io

n 
C

rit
er

ia
 a

nd
 

Pr
io

rit
is

at
io

n 
Ra

nk
in

g 
Pr

oc
es

s 

In
it

ia
l l

is
ts

 r
an

ke
d

 
u

si
n

g
 f

o
rm

u
la

 t
h

at
 

ta
ke

s 
ac

co
u

n
t 

o
f:

 

• 
To

ta
l n

um
be

rs
 o

f 
ac

ci
de

nt
s 

• 
H

ig
he

r 
ac

ci
de

nt
 

nu
m

be
rs

 in
 m

os
t 

re
ce

nt
 y

ea
rs

 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
d 

‘w
ei

gh
tin

g’
 f

or
 

“R
ur

al
” 

si
te

s 
to

 
ba

la
nc

e 
ag

ai
ns

t 
“u

rb
an

” 

Fi
na

l c
om

bi
ne

d 
an

d 
ra

nk
ed

 li
st

s 
us

ed
 a

s 
a 

ba
si

s 
fo

r 
in

ve
st

ig
at

io
n 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
co

m
in

g 
ye

ar
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

242



Ed
uc

at
io

n,
 t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
it

y 

W
e 

re
co

gn
ise

 th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f r
ai

sin
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 b
eh

av
io

ur
 th

at
 c

an
 in

cr
ea

se
 

ris
k.

 A
ct

iv
iti

es
 to

 ra
ise

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

ar
e 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 lo
w

 c
os

t a
nd

 p
ro

vi
de

 g
oo

d 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
 h

av
in

g 
th

e 
co

m
bi

ne
d 

be
ne

fit
 o

f i
nc

re
as

in
g 

ro
ad

 u
se

r c
on

fid
en

ce
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
he

lp
in

g 
to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
ris

k 
of

 a
cc

id
en

t a
nd

 in
ju

ry
. E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 fo
r w

al
ki

ng
 

an
d 

cy
cl

in
g,

 a
nd

 ta
rg

et
ed

 c
am

pa
ig

ns
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 w

ith
 s

ch
oo

l p
up

ils
, 

as
sis

ts
 in

 e
xp

an
di

ng
 ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
kn

ow
le

dg
e,

 re
du

ci
ng

 fe
ar

, a
nd

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
s 

m
or

e 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
R

S2
 –

 R
o

ad
 S

af
et

y 
Ed

u
ca

ti
o

n
, T

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

u
b

lic
it

y 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 s
ch

oo
ls

 a
nd

 e
m

er
ge

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
to

 
de

liv
er

 ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

ed
uc

at
io

n,
 t

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
. A

ct
iv

iti
es

 w
ill

 
in

cl
ud

e:
 

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

th
re

e 
le

ve
ls

 o
f 

‘B
ik

ea
bi

lit
y’

 c
yc

le
 t

ra
in

in
g 

to
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 le

ve
l p

up
ils

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ad
ul

ts
. 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
 t

o 
pr

e-
sc

ho
ol

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

s 
to

 
he

lp
 t

he
m

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 in

-c
ar

 s
af

et
y 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

• 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

pa
ck

s 
at

 s
ch

oo
ls

 t
o 

pa
re

nt
s 

of
 a

ll 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 a

re
 

st
ar

tin
g 

sc
ho

ol
 f

or
 t

he
 f

irs
t 

tim
e 

an
d 

pr
ov

id
e 

al
l p

rim
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 t
o 

jo
in

 t
he

 ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

of
fic

er
s’

 s
ch

em
e.

 

• 
C

on
ta

ct
in

g 
ea

ch
 s

ch
oo

l w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
an

d 
w

he
n 

re
qu

es
te

d 
ca

rr
y 

ou
t 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
sa

fe
ty

. 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
ta

rg
et

ed
 ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
ev

en
ts

 a
t 

sc
ho

ol
s 

ac
ro

ss
 t

he
 

co
un

ty
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

‘C
ru

ci
al

 C
re

w
’ e

ve
nt

s 
w

ith
 Y

ea
r 

6 
pu

pi
ls

. 

• 
Ta

rg
et

ed
 ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 li
nk

in
g 

w
ith

 n
at

io
na

l a
nd

 re
gi

on
al

 in
iti

at
iv

es
, 

fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

ta
ck

lin
g 

hi
gh

 r
is

k 
m

in
or

ity
 ro

ad
 u

se
r 

be
ha

vi
ou

rs
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

dr
in

k 
dr

iv
in

g 
an

d 
dr

ug
 u

se
. 

• 
M

an
ag

in
g 

th
e 

Sc
ho

ol
 C

ro
ss

in
g 

Pa
tr

ol
s 

se
rv

ic
e.

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ro

ad
 s

af
et

y 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

ith
 Y

ea
r 

3 
pu

pi
ls

. 

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

‘P
as

s 
Pl

us
’ a

nd
 O

ld
er

 D
riv

er
 R

ef
re

sh
er

 t
ra

in
in

g 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
, w

he
re

 
bu

dg
et

 is
 a

va
ila

bl
e,

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

fu
rt

he
r 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

dr
iv

er
’s

 
sk

ill
s.

 

• 
A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
fo

r 
sc

ho
ol

s 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

s 
to

 s
et

 u
p 

‘w
al

ki
ng

 b
us

es
’ a

s 
a 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
en

co
ur

ag
in

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 t
o 

sc
ho

ol
 a

nd
 a

ls
o 

as
 a

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
in

 r
ur

al
 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 S
ch

oo
l C

ro
ss

in
g 

pa
tr

ol
s 

ar
e 

no
t 

ju
st

ifi
ed

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

3

43



Sp
ee

d 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

us
e;

 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y 

of
 ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ff
er

en
t 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 
sp

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

rin
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 a
nd

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 is

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 

In
 2

01
0 

w
e 

un
de

rt
oo

k 
a 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
sp

ee
d 

lim
its

 o
n 

al
l A

 a
nd

 B
 c

la
ss

 ro
ad

s 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 t
he

 C
ou

nt
y.

 T
hi

s 
w

as
 in

 t
he

 c
on

te
xt

 o
f 

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
fo

r 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

(D
fT

) r
eq

ue
st

 t
ha

t 
hi

gh
w

ay
 a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
re

vi
ew

 t
he

 s
ui

ta
bi

lit
y 

of
 a

ll 
th

e 
pr

ev
ai

lin
g 

sp
ee

d 
lim

its
 a

lo
ng

 t
he

 e
nt

ire
 le

ng
th

 o
f 

al
l o

f 
th

ei
r 

A
 a

nd
 B

 c
la

ss
 ro

ad
s.

 T
hi

s 
en

co
m

pa
ss

ed
 a

ll 
60

 m
ph

 n
at

io
na

l s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 a
nd

 a
ll 

70
 m

ph
 n

at
io

na
l s

pe
ed

 
lim

its
 o

n 
du

al
 c

ar
ria

ge
w

ay
s.

 O
ur

 re
vi

ew
 w

as
 c

ar
rie

d 
ou

t 
in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 t
he

 
D

fT
 C

irc
ul

ar
 0

1/
20

06
 S

et
tin

g 
Lo

ca
l S

pe
ed

 L
im

its
. 

In
 s

et
tin

g 
sp

ee
d 

lim
its

 in
 u

rb
an

 a
re

as
, t

he
 D

fT
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

re
ta

in
s 

a 
st

an
da

rd
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

it 
of

 3
0m

ph
. 4

0m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 o

n 
hi

gh
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

su
bu

rb
an

 ro
ad

s 
or

 th
os

e 
on

 th
e 

ou
ts

ki
rt

s 
of

 u
rb

an
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 c

er
ta

in
 o

th
er

 c
rit

er
ia

 a
re

 m
et

. I
n 

ar
ea

s 
w

he
re

 th
er

e 
is 

a 
ris

k 
to

 v
ul

ne
ra

bl
e 

ro
ad

 u
se

rs
, 2

0 
m

ph
 li

m
its

 a
nd

 2
0 

m
ph

 z
on

es
 w

ill
 

be
 c

on
sid

er
ed

. 

In
 e

xc
ep

tio
na

l c
irc

um
st

an
ce

s 
50

 m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 m
ay

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 w

he
re

 c
er

ta
in

 
cr

ite
ria

 a
re

 m
et

. S
im

ila
r a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

ta
ke

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

D
fT

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
on

 ru
ra

l 
ro

ad
s 

an
d 

in
 v

ill
ag

es
. C

le
ar

ly
 s

om
e 

fle
xi

bi
lit

y 
is 

re
qu

ire
d 

in
 d

ef
in

in
g 

a 
vi

lla
ge

. D
fT

 
gu

id
an

ce
 re

qu
ire

s 
th

at
 a

 3
0m

ph
 li

m
it 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
se

t i
f t

he
 v

ill
ag

e 
ha

s 
20

 o
r m

or
e 

ho
us

es
 o

n 
on

e 
or

 b
ot

h 
sid

es
 o

f t
he

 ro
ad

; a
nd

 a
 m

in
im

um
 le

ng
th

 o
f 6

00
 m

et
re

s 
an

d 

an
 a

ve
ra

ge
 d

en
sit

y 
of

 a
t l

ea
st

 3
 h

ou
se

s 
pe

r 1
00

 m
et

re
s.

 W
he

re
 a

 c
om

m
un

ity
 is

 le
ss

 
bu

ilt
 u

p,
 c

on
sid

er
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

es
en

ce
 o

f k
ey

 b
ui

ld
in

gs
 s

uc
h 

as
 a

 
sh

op
, c

hu
r c

h 
or

 s
ch

oo
l, 

ot
he

rw
ise

 a
 4

0m
ph

 o
r 5

0m
ph

 li
m

it 
m

ay
 b

e 
co

ns
id

er
ed

. W
he

n 
vi

lla
ge

s 
ar

e 
le

ss
 th

an
 6

00
m

 a
pa

rt
 th

e 
30

m
ph

 li
m

it 
m

ay
 b

e 
ex

te
nd

 to
 c

ov
er

 b
ot

h 
se

ct
io

ns
. 

W
e 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 re
vi

ew
in

g 
th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f t
he

 la
te

st
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f T

ra
ns

po
rt

 c
irc

ul
ar

 
– 

Se
tt

in
g 

Lo
ca

l S
pe

ed
 L

im
its

 0
1/

20
13

 - 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 fo

r s
et

tin
g 

sp
ee

d 
lim

its
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SM

 1
 –

 S
et

ti
n

g
 A

p
p

ro
p

ri
at

e 
Sp

ee
d

s 
Li

m
it

s 

W
e 

w
ill

 im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
20

10
 S

pe
ed

 L
im

it 
Re

vi
ew

 a
cr

os
s 

ur
ba

n 
an

d 
ru

ra
l r

oa
ds

 
an

d 
in

 o
ur

 v
ill

ag
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e:
 

• 
Pu

bl
ic

is
in

g 
w

id
el

y 
th

e 
ra

tio
na

le
 f

or
 t

he
 re

vi
ew

, i
ts

 m
et

ho
do

lo
gy

 a
nd

 o
ve

ra
ll 

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
.  

• 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 w
ith

 a
nd

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
en

ga
gi

ng
 o

ur
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 in

 im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
, w

ith
 re

ga
rd

 f
or

 w
id

er
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
on

ce
rn

s 
an

d 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

. 

• 
Pr

io
rit

is
in

g 
th

e 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 t
he

 re
vi

ew
 o

n 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 e

vi
de

nc
e,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 a
cc

id
en

t 
da

ta
 a

nd
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 t
he

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
in

 e
ac

h 
ca

se
 t

ow
ar

ds
 k

ey
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

su
ch

 a
s 

th
e 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 
cy

cl
in

g.
 

• 
Im

pl
em

en
tin

g 
th

e 
m

od
ifi

ed
 li

m
its

, o
r 

st
re

ng
th

en
in

g 
th

e 
em

ph
as

is
 o

n 
 

un
ch

an
ge

d 
lim

its
, a

cc
or

di
ng

 t
o 

Tr
af

fic
 S

ig
ns

 R
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e 
 

fr
om

 t
he

 U
K

 a
nd

 e
ls

ew
he

re
.  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

444



Re
si

de
nt

ia
l 2

0m
ph

 z
on

es
 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SM

 2
 –

 R
es

id
en

ti
al

 2
0m

p
h

 Z
o

n
es

 

W
e 

ai
m

 t
o 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 t
he

 d
ef

au
lt 

sp
ee

d 
lim

it 
w

ith
in

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l a

re
as

 t
o 

20
m

ph
. 

C
ha

ng
es

 t
o 

sp
ee

d 
lim

its
 w

ill
 o

nl
y 

oc
cu

r 
w

he
re

 t
he

re
 is

 s
up

po
rt

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 lo

ca
l 

co
m

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 t

he
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e 
of

 s
pe

ed
in

g 
tr

af
fic

 is
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

. 

Co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
it

h 
Sp

ee
d 

Li
m

it
s 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 is
 fu

nd
am

en
ta

l i
n 

en
su

rin
g 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f b
ot

h 
dr

iv
er

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r r

oa
d 

us
er

s.
 H

ow
ev

er
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

a 
nu

m
be

r m
in

or
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

an
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

th
at

 e
xc

ee
d 

sp
ee

d 
lim

its
 a

nd
 ri

sk
 d

an
ge

rin
g 

no
t o

nl
y 

th
em

se
lv

es
 b

ut
 o

th
er

 ro
ad

 u
se

rs
. 

W
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 w
or

k 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 th

e 
Sa

fe
r R

oa
ds

 P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 to

 h
el

p 
in

cr
ea

se
 c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

its
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 

en
co

ur
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t m
ea

su
re

s.
 W

e 
w

ill
 fo

cu
s 

ef
fo

rt
s 

on
 s

ite
s 

w
he

re
 

th
er

e 
is 

a 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
d 

pr
ob

le
m

 w
ith

 s
pe

ed
in

g 
an

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l p

rio
rit

y 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

w
he

re
 th

er
e 

is 
al

so
 a

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t a

cc
id

en
t h

ist
or

y.
 

In
 o

rd
er

 to
 s

pr
ea

d 
lim

ite
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
w

id
el

y 
w

e 
w

ill
 p

rio
rit

ise
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 lo
w

 c
os

t 
m

et
ho

ds
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 s

pe
ed

 li
m

it 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
su

ch
 a

s 
Ve

hi
cl

e 
A

ct
iv

at
ed

 s
ig

na
ge

. T
he

 
in

tr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 p
hy

sic
al

 tr
af

fic
 c

al
m

in
g 

its
el

f c
an

 b
e 

ex
pe

ns
iv

e 
an

d 
w

e 
th

er
ef

or
e 

an
tic

ip
at

e 
its

 u
se

 to
 b

e 
lim

ite
d.

 

Th
e 

Sa
fe

r H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
af

et
y 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

in
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
1 

hi
gh

lig
ht

ed
 e

xc
es

siv
e 

sp
ee

di
ng

 a
nd

 ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

as
 h

ig
h 

pr
io

rit
y 

iss
ue

s 
fo

r l
oc

al
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. W
he

re
 th

er
e 

is 
pu

bl
ic

 c
on

ce
rn

 o
ve

r e
xc

es
siv

e 
sp

ee
ds

 in
 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 b
ut

 w
he

re
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
ca

nn
ot

 b
e 

pr
io

rit
ise

d 
ba

se
d 

on
 s

pe
ed

 a
nd

 
ac

ci
de

nt
 d

at
a 

w
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
ei

r P
ar

ish
 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 d

ep
lo

y 
Sp

ee
d 

In
di

ca
tin

g 
D

ev
ic

es
 (S

ID
s)

. T
he

se
 a

re
 a

 lo
w

 c
os

t a
nd

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
w

ay
 o

f r
ai

sin
g 

dr
iv

er
s'

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 th

ei
r s

pe
ed

. 

W
he

re
 s

pe
ed

in
g 

po
se

s 
sig

ni
fic

an
t c

on
ce

rn
 to

 th
e 

co
m

m
un

ity
, t

he
 S

af
er

 R
oa

ds
 

Pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

ca
n 

de
cl

ar
e 

th
em

 a
 c

om
m

un
ity

 c
on

ce
rn

 s
ite

 o
r t

he
 lo

ca
l p

ol
ic

e 
m

ay
 

pr
ov

id
e 

lo
ca

l s
pe

ed
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t. 

Th
es

e 
sit

es
 m

ay
 n

ot
 h

av
e 

a 
co

lli
sio

n 
hi

st
or

y,
 b

ut
 

ha
ve

 a
 s

ig
ni

fic
an

t s
pe

ed
in

g 
pr

ob
le

m
 to

 w
ar

ra
nt

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t b
ef

or
e 

ac
ci

de
nt

s 
oc

cu
r. 

Th
e 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t i

nv
ol

ve
s 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
sp

ee
ds

 th
ro

ug
h 

m
ob

ile
 s

pe
ed

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
ca

m
er

as
 a

nd
 is

 a
n 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

m
et

ho
d 

at
 re

du
ci

ng
 s

pe
ed

in
g 

ve
hi

cl
es

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

5

45



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SM

 3
 –

 S
p

ee
d

 L
im

it
 C

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

ur
 p

ar
tn

er
s,

 lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

 P
ar

is
h 

C
ou

nc
ils

 t
o 

us
e 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

co
st

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 t
o 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 

sp
ee

d 
lim

its
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

m
en

t 
an

d 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
m

ea
su

re
s.

 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

: 

• 
U

si
ng

 c
le

ar
 s

ig
na

ge
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 v
eh

ic
le

 a
ct

iv
at

ed
 s

ig
ns

 (S
ID

S)
. 

• 
U

si
ng

 f
ix

ed
 a

nd
 m

ob
ile

 s
pe

ed
 c

am
er

as
 w

he
re

 t
he

se
 c

an
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

e 
to

w
ar

ds
 

gr
ea

te
r 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

an
d 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y.

 

• 
In

te
gr

at
in

g 
so

un
d 

de
si

gn
 a

nd
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
al

on
gs

id
e 

sp
ee

d 
lim

it 
si

gn
ag

e 
to

 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

dr
iv

er
s 

to
 re

co
gn

is
e 

an
d 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
it 

ch
an

ge
s.

 T
he

se
 

m
ay

 b
e 

in
tr

od
uc

ed
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
en

ha
nc

ed
 ro

ut
in

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

. 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
re

al
is

tic
 a

pp
ro

ac
he

s 
to

 m
an

ag
in

g 
sp

ee
d,

 re
co

gn
is

in
g 

th
e 

ec
on

om
ic

 im
po

rt
an

ce
 o

f 
ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
. 

• 
C

on
si

de
rin

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 p
hy

si
ca

l m
ea

su
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
ro

ad
 h

um
ps

 w
he

re
 t

he
se

 
ar

e 
ju

st
ifi

ed
 b

y 
ac

ci
de

nt
 d

at
a 

an
d 

ha
ve

 a
 h

ig
h 

de
gr

ee
 o

f 
co

m
m

un
ity

 s
up

po
rt

. 

• 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 w
ith

 m
ea

su
re

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
sp

ee
d 

in
di

ca
to

r 
de

vi
ce

s 
w

he
re

 t
he

se
 c

an
 

be
 s

ho
w

n 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 c
om

m
un

ity
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n.

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

dr
iv

er
 e

du
ca

tio
n,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
sp

ee
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

yo
un

g/
pr

e 
dr

iv
in

g 
tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

• 
U

si
ng

 s
ha

re
d 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

in
no

va
tio

ns
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 t

he
 S

af
er

 R
oa

ds
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 lo

ca
l p

ol
ic

e 
te

am
s 

w
he

re
 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

so
lu

tio
ns

 c
an

’t
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 o

r 
w

he
re

 in
fo

rm
al

 m
ea

su
re

s 
ha

ve
 

no
t 

re
du

ce
d 

sp
ee

di
ng

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

646



Pa
ss

en
ge

r T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y;
 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ho
rt

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
ca

r 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
al

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

ho
ic

es
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 b
eh

av
io

ur
; 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ev

er
yd

ay
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 re
si

de
nt

s;
  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

us
e;

 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
 f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
. 

• 
M

ax
im

is
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 a
nd

 c
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
ll 

tr
av

el
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 f

or
 t

ho
se

 w
ith

ou
t 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
a 

pr
iv

at
e 

ca
r;

 a
nd

 

• 
In

cr
ea

se
 e

ff
ic

ie
nc

y 
of

 p
as

se
ng

er
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 t
hr

ou
gh

 g
re

at
er

 c
oo

rd
in

at
io

n 
of

 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

Pa
ss

en
ge

r t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

ov
er

s 
al

l a
sp

ec
ts

 o
f t

ra
ns

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
de

liv
er

y 
th

at
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

fo
r p

ub
lic

 u
se

 w
he

re
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
is 

pa
id

 fo
r a

t t
he

 p
oi

nt
 o

f u
se

. 

Bu
s 

Tr
av

el
 

O
ur

 c
or

e 
bu

s 
ne

tw
or

k 
co

ns
ist

s 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
vi

ew
ed

 a
s 

es
se

nt
ia

l t
o 

th
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
ne

tw
or

k 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 a

re
 d

es
ig

na
te

d 
ro

ut
e 

pr
io

rit
ie

s.
  T

he
se

 o
pe

ra
te

 
al

on
g 

th
e 

m
ai

n 
co

rr
id

or
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

 fo
r c

om
m

ut
er

 a
nd

 s
oc

ia
l d

em
an

d 
be

tw
ee

n 
H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

M
ar

ke
t T

ow
ns

 a
nd

 la
rg

er
 v

ill
ag

e 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
e 

co
re

 b
us

 n
et

w
or

k 
w

e 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 to

 s
up

po
rt

 o
th

er
 ru

ra
l b

us
 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 li

nk
 in

to
 o

ur
 c

or
e 

bu
s 

ne
tw

or
k 

at
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

bu
s 

st
op

s 
or

 ru
ra

l 
tr

an
sp

or
t h

ub
s,

 th
us

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

a 
hu

b 
an

d 
sp

ok
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r t
ra

ns
po

rt
 m

od
el

 fo
r t

he
 

co
un

ty
.  

A
 h

ub
 w

ou
ld

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 w

ai
tin

g 
fa

ci
lit

y 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 c
lo

se
 p

ro
xi

m
ity

 
to

 lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
to

 m
in

im
ise

 a
ny

 ri
sk

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
ei

r u
se

. C
yc

le
 a

nd
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 

w
ill

 a
lso

 b
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 b
us

 u
se

 b
y 

pe
op

le
 w

ho
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 d
o 

no
t u

se
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t. 

To
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

th
e 

co
re

 n
et

w
or

k 
w

e 
re

ly
 o

n 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 
(s

ub
sid

ise
d)

 s
er

vi
ce

s.
 T

he
 s

up
po

rt
ed

 b
us

 n
et

w
or

k 
is 

de
sig

ne
d 

to
 c

om
pl

em
en

t 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
ly

-o
pe

ra
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

he
re

 th
es

e 
do

 n
ot

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ad
eq

ua
te

 le
ve

l o
f 

se
rv

ic
e.

 S
up

po
rt

ed
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
fu

nc
tio

ns
: 

• 
En

ha
nc

em
en

t o
f c

om
m

er
ci

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

by
 th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
 o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 th

at
 

ex
te

nd
 th

e 
op

er
at

in
g 

da
y;

 
• 

Fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
 o

f c
om

m
er

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

op
er

at
in

g 
da

y;
 

• 
Ev

en
in

g 
an

d 
Su

nd
ay

 s
er

vi
ce

s;
 

• 
Se

rv
ic

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
 o

n 
ro

ut
es

 w
he

re
 n

o 
op

er
at

or
 is

 p
re

pa
re

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 

se
rv

ic
e;

 a
nd

 
• 

Be
sp

ok
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 c
at

er
in

g 
fo

r s
pe

ci
fic

 jo
ur

ne
y 

pu
rp

os
es

 a
nd

 ta
ilo

re
d 

to
 m

ee
t t

he
 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 m

ar
ke

t. 

Su
bs

id
y 

is 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

on
 th

e 
ba

sis
 o

f t
he

 re
la

tiv
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
rid

er
sh

ip
 (c

os
t p

er
 p

as
se

ng
er

). 
A

 s
er

vi
ce

 q
ua

lif
ie

s 
fo

r s
ub

sid
y 

if 
th

e 
co

st
 p

er
 

pa
ss

en
ge

r i
s 

at
 o

r b
el

ow
 a

 s
ta

nd
ar

d 
am

ou
nt

. T
hi

s 
st

an
da

rd
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

lte
rs

 in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 

bu
dg

et
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y.
 A

t t
he

 ti
m

e 
of

 w
rit

in
g 

(2
01

2)
 th

e 
ra

te
 is

 £
4 

pe
r p

as
se

ng
er

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

7

47



Su
pp

or
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

on
ly

 w
he

re
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

do
 n

ot
 m

ee
t t

he
 

pu
bl

ic
 n

ee
d.

 T
he

 s
iz

e 
an

d 
sh

ap
e 

of
 th

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
ha

s 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

ov
er

 ti
m

e 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 
to

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
de

m
an

d 
an

d 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fu
nd

in
g.

 It
 w

ill
 b

e 
di

ff
ic

ul
t t

o 
su

st
ai

n 
th

e 
ex

ist
in

g 
le

ve
l o

f p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t c

ov
er

ag
e 

in
 ru

ra
l a

re
as

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
no

n-
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 v

ia
bi

lit
y 

of
 

op
er

at
in

g 
th

es
e 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PT

1 
- 

Su
p

p
o

rt
ed

 b
u

s 
n

et
w

o
rk

 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
 t

o 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

ou
r 

co
re

 b
us

 n
et

w
or

k,
 w

e 
w

ill
 s

up
po

rt
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
, s

up
po

rt
 t

he
 e

co
no

m
y 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
m

od
al

 s
hi

ft
 w

he
re

 it
 is

 a
ff

or
da

bl
e 

to
 d

o 
so

.  
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y:
 

• 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 w
he

re
 it

 is
 a

ff
or

da
bl

e,
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

go
od

 v
al

ue
 f

or
 m

on
ey

 
an

d 
de

liv
er

s 
cl

ea
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
r 

m
od

al
 s

hi
ft

 b
en

ef
its

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

a 
re

as
on

ab
le

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

to
 c

ar
 t

ra
ve

l. 
 

• 
Su

pp
or

tin
g 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
 r

ur
al

 a
re

as
 w

hi
ch

 w
ou

ld
 e

na
bl

e 
re

si
de

nt
s 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
es

se
nt

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 s

oc
ia

l i
so

la
tio

n.
  T

he
se

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
a 

da
ily

 b
as

is
 a

nd
 m

ay
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 a

 c
om

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 

• 
W

he
re

 s
up

po
rt

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ca
n 

no
 lo

ng
er

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 w
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 b
us

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 a

nd
 c

om
m

un
ity

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 s

ch
em

es
 t

o 
ex

pl
or

e 
th

e 
po

ss
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

fu
nd

in
g 

sm
al

le
r 

fe
ed

er
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 li
nk

 in
to

 t
he

 c
or

e 
ne

tw
or

k 
at

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
. 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 p

ar
is

h 
co

un
ci

ls
 t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
se

rv
ic

es
  

w
hi

ch
 w

ou
ld

 b
e 

fu
nd

ed
 lo

ca
lly

.  

To
 h

el
p 

co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
od

e 
of

 C
on

du
ct

 o
n 

Bu
s 

Se
rv

ic
e 

St
ab

ili
ty

, r
ou

tin
e 

te
nd

er
in

g 
of

 c
on

tr
ac

ts
 is

 re
st

ric
te

d 
to

 o
ne

 o
f t

w
o 

da
te

s 
ea

ch
 y

ea
r. 

Te
nd

er
s 

ar
e 

in
vi

te
d 

in
di

vi
du

al
ly,

 a
lth

ou
gh

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 a

re
 in

vi
te

d 
to

 s
ub

m
it 

di
sc

ou
nt

ed
 p

ric
es

 fo
r b

at
ch

es
 o

f 
on

e 
or

 m
or

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
s.

 T
hi

s 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

al
lo

w
s 

th
e 

au
th

or
ity

 to
 b

en
ef

it 
fr

om
 e

co
no

m
ie

s 
of

 s
ca

le
 a

nd
 th

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l s

ol
ut

io
ns

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
fr

om
 s

uc
h 

an
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

w
ith

ou
t r

es
tr

ic
tin

g 
co

m
pe

tit
io

n 
fo

r c
on

tr
ac

ts
. 

In
 a

 li
m

ite
d 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
as

es
, s

uc
h 

as
 d

iv
er

sio
ns

 o
f, 

or
 m

in
or

 e
xt

en
sio

ns
 to

 o
th

er
w

ise
 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 s
er

vi
ce

s,
 w

he
re

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

te
nd

er
in

g 
is 

no
t a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, a

dv
an

ta
ge

 is
 

ta
ke

n 
of

 th
e 

de
-m

in
im

is 
pr

ov
isi

on
s 

of
 th

e 
Tr

an
sp

or
t A

ct
 to

 n
eg

ot
ia

te
 a

 c
on

tr
ac

t w
ith

 
th

e 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 o

pe
ra

to
r. 

Th
e 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 c

on
ce

rn
in

g 
de

-m
in

im
is 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 a

llo
w

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 s
pe

nd
 u

p 
to

 2
5%

 o
f i

ts
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t b
ud

ge
t f

or
 b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
 s

up
po

rt
 

in
 th

is 
w

ay
. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

in
vi

te
s 

te
nd

er
s 

fr
om

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 o

n 
ei

th
er

 a
 m

in
im

um
 c

os
t o

r m
in

im
um

 
su

bs
id

y 
ba

sis
. T

hi
s 

m
ax

im
ise

s 
th

e 
co

m
pe

tit
io

n 
fo

r t
en

de
rs

 g
iv

en
 th

at
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 h
av

e 
di

ff
er

in
g 

ap
pr

oa
ch

es
 to

 m
an

ag
in

g 
ris

k.
 M

in
im

um
 c

os
t c

on
tr

ac
ts

 g
iv

e 
th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 

gr
ea

te
r c

on
tr

ol
 o

ve
r f

ar
es

 a
nd

 m
ay

 b
e 

m
or

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 in
 a

re
as

 w
he

re
 fa

re
s 

se
t b

y 
op

er
at

or
s 

ar
e 

ris
in

g 
sig

ni
fic

an
tly

 a
bo

ve
 in

fla
tio

n.
 T

he
 re

ve
nu

e 
ris

k,
 h

ow
ev

er
, l

ie
s 

w
ith

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
an

d 
m

ay
 in

vo
lv

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l c

os
t i

n 
en

su
rin

g 
th

at
 re

ve
nu

e 
is 

co
rr

ec
tly

 
co

lle
ct

ed
 a

nd
 a

llo
ca

te
d.

 C
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
27

%
 o

f c
on

tr
ac

ts
 a

re
 le

t a
s 

‘m
in

im
um

 c
os

t’.
 

M
in

im
um

-s
ub

sid
y 

co
nt

ra
ct

s 
of

fe
r a

n 
in

ce
nt

iv
e 

to
 th

e 
op

er
at

or
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

as
 th

e 
ad

di
tio

na
l r

ev
en

ue
 is

 re
ta

in
ed

. S
uc

h 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

ar
e 

sim
pl

er
 a

nd
 c

he
ap

er
 fo

r t
he

 
C

ou
nc

il 
to

 a
dm

in
ist

er
 a

nd
 th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
ris

k 
lie

s 
w

ith
 th

e 
op

er
at

or
. T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
ho

w
ev

er
, h

as
 le

ss
 c

on
tr

ol
 o

ve
r f

ar
es

. A
pp

ro
xi

m
at

el
y 

73
%

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 c

on
tr

ac
ts

 a
re

 le
t 

in
 th

is 
w

ay
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
1

848



Bu
s 

fa
re

s 
an

d 
ti

ck
et

in
g 

Th
e 

co
st

 o
f u

sin
g 

bu
s 

tr
av

el
 fo

r p
ay

in
g 

pa
ss

en
ge

rs
 h

as
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

sig
ni

fic
an

tly
 a

bo
ve

 
ge

ne
ra

l i
nf

la
tio

n 
ov

er
 re

ce
nt

 y
ea

rs
 a

nd
 is

 v
ie

w
ed

 a
s 

a 
ba

rr
ie

r t
o 

its
 u

se
. W

e 
w

ill
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 w

ho
 s

et
 th

e 
pr

ic
e 

of
 tr

av
el

 to
 lo

ok
 a

t w
ay

s 
of

 m
ak

in
g 

bu
s 

us
e 

m
or

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 a
nd

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
e 

w
he

n 
co

m
pa

re
d 

to
 th

e 
co

st
 o

f u
sin

g 
th

e 
ca

r. 
 In

cr
ea

sin
g 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ar
ki

ng
 fo

r c
om

m
ut

er
s 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

ha
s 

a 
ro

le
 in

 th
is 

pr
oc

es
s.

 

Th
e 

En
gl

ish
 N

at
io

na
l C

on
ce

ss
io

na
ry

 B
us

 T
ra

ve
l s

ch
em

e 
is 

ad
m

in
ist

er
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. T
hi

s 
sc

he
m

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 fr

ee
 b

us
 tr

av
el

 fo
r o

ld
er

 a
nd

 d
isa

bl
ed

 
pe

op
le

. T
he

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t w

an
ts

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 b

us
 tr

av
el

, i
n 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
, r

em
ai

ns
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
m

ea
ns

 o
f t

ho
se

 o
n 

lim
ite

d 
in

co
m

es
 a

nd
 th

os
e 

w
ho

 h
av

e 
m

ob
ili

ty
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s.
 W

ith
 

an
 a

gi
ng

 p
op

ul
at

io
n 

th
e 

am
ou

nt
 o

f c
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 tr

av
el

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ty

 is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 h

av
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

n 
bu

dg
et

s 
un

le
ss

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 fi

na
nc

ia
l s

up
po

rt
 c

an
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 b

y 
ce

nt
ra

l g
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PT

2 
– 

B
u

s 
fa

re
s 

an
d

 t
ic

ke
ti

n
g

 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 a
nd

 t
he

 D
fT

 t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
th

e 
af

fo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 o

f 
us

in
g 

an
d 

de
liv

er
in

g 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
. W

e 
w

ill
 t

ar
ge

t 
fin

an
ci

al
 a

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
w

he
re

 it
 is

 
af

fo
rd

ab
le

 t
o 

do
 s

o 
an

d 
w

he
re

 t
he

re
 is

 g
re

at
es

t 
ne

ed
.  

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
A

dm
in

is
te

rin
g 

th
e 

En
gl

is
h 

N
at

io
na

l C
on

ce
ss

io
na

ry
 T

ra
ve

l S
ch

em
e 

fo
r 

ol
de

r 
 

an
d 

di
sa

bl
ed

 p
eo

pl
e.

  

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 re

gu
la

r 
fa

re
 re

vi
ew

s.
 

• 
W

he
re

 t
he

 f
ar

e 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

is
 is

su
ed

 a
nd

 m
an

ag
ed

 b
y 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
w

e 
w

ill
 s

et
 f

ar
es

 w
ith

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
co

st
s 

an
d 

co
m

m
er

ci
al

 f
ar

es
. 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 t
o 

ex
pl

or
e 

w
ay

s 
of

 a
dd

re
ss

in
g 

th
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

ili
ty

 o
f 

 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 f

or
 lo

w
 in

co
m

e 
gr

ou
ps

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

jo
b 

 
se

ek
er

s.
  

• 
Ex

pl
or

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 m

ul
ti-

op
er

at
or

 s
m

ar
tc

ar
d 

tic
ke

tin
g 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
 

w
ith

 lo
ca

l o
pe

ra
to

rs
. 

Bu
s 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

Th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 b
us

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 ra

ng
e 

fr
om

 lo
w

 c
os

t i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

t i
nd

iv
id

ua
l b

us
 s

to
ps

 to
 a

id
 m

ob
ili

ty
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y,

 to
 h

ig
h-

co
st

 b
us

 p
rio

rit
y 

m
ea

su
re

s 
de

sig
ne

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 b
us

es
 w

ith
 a

 
co

m
pe

tit
iv

e 
ad

va
nt

ag
e 

ov
er

 q
ue

ui
ng

 tr
af

fic
 in

 u
rb

an
 a

re
as

. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PT

3 
– 

B
u

s 
in

fr
as

tr
u

ct
u

re
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 p
as

se
ng

er
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 o
pe

ra
to

rs
 a

nd
 P

ar
is

h 
 

C
ou

nc
ils

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
bu

s 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 b
us

 u
se

rs
  

w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.  
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y:
  

• 
C

on
tin

ui
ng

 o
ur

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 lo

w
-c

os
t 

bu
s 

st
op

 u
pg

ra
de

s 
in

 t
he

 s
ho

rt
 t

er
m

, 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

im
pr

ov
ed

 p
as

se
ng

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 c

om
fo

rt
, a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 r

ai
se

d 
ke

rb
s 

to
 m

ee
t 

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 D

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
A

ct
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. T

hi
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

be
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
a 

co
rr

id
or

/ro
ut

e 
ba

se
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ith

 
pr

io
rit

y 
to

 o
ur

 c
or

e 
ne

tw
or

k.
 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 P

ar
is

h 
an

d 
To

w
n 

C
ou

nc
ils

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

bu
s 

sh
el

te
rs

. 

• 
Re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 a

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
fle

et
 b

y 
se

tt
in

g 
qu

al
ity

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 w

ith
in

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
re

ne
w

al
s.

 W
e 

ai
m

 t
o 

en
su

re
 a

ll 
co

nt
ra

ct
ed

 b
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 E

ur
o 

5 
em

is
si

on
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 b
y 

20
18

 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f 
bu

s 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 in
 t

he
 m

ed
iu

m
 t

o 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

to
 in

fo
rm

 o
ur

 m
ed

iu
m

 t
o 

lo
ng

 t
er

m
 in

ve
st

m
en

ts
. 

Th
is

 re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

 c
as

e 
fo

r 
in

ve
st

in
g 

in
 b

us
 la

ne
s 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
pr

io
rit

y 
m

ea
su

re
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

Tr
an

sp
or

t 
H

ub
. 

• 
U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 a

 re
vi

ew
 o

f 
ru

ra
l b

us
 s

to
ps

 t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

po
te

nt
ia

l R
ur

al
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 
H

ub
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
m

ed
iu

m
 t

o 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 in
ve

st
m

en
t 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

to
 

up
gr

ad
e 

su
ita

bl
e 

si
te

s.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
1

9

49



Pa
ss

en
ge

r 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

Pr
in

te
d 

bu
s 

tim
et

ab
le

s 
ar

e 
pu

bl
ish

ed
 b

y 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 a

t t
he

 m
aj

or
ity

 o
f b

us
 s

to
ps

. I
t i

s 
pr

op
os

ed
, w

he
re

 fe
as

ib
le

, t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

at
 a

ll 
st

op
s 

to
 in

cr
ea

se
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

Pr
in

te
d 

ra
il 

se
rv

ic
e 

tim
et

ab
le

s 
ar

e 
pu

bl
ish

ed
 b

y 
Tr

ai
n 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
C

om
pa

ni
es

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
ei

r f
ra

nc
hi

se
 a

gr
ee

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 a

re
 d

isp
la

ye
d 

at
 a

ll 
ra

ilw
ay

 s
ta

tio
ns

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 
U

nl
ik

e 
th

e 
bu

s 
op

er
at

or
s,

 a
ll 

ra
ilw

ay
 c

om
pa

ni
es

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

rin
te

d 
tim

et
ab

le
 le

af
le

ts
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
at

 m
an

ne
d 

st
at

io
ns

. 

W
he

re
 c

om
m

un
ity

 tr
an

sp
or

t o
pe

ra
to

rs
 p

ro
vi

de
 p

rin
te

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

is 
is 

pr
ov

id
ed

 b
y 

lo
ca

l s
ch

em
e 

op
er

at
or

s.
 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
w

eb
sit

e 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
po

rt
al

 fo
r t

ra
ve

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. T
he

 w
eb

sit
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
n 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 c

op
y 

of
 a

ll 
pr

in
te

d 
tim

et
ab

le
s,

 
gu

id
es

 a
nd

 m
ap

s 
in

 a
dd

iti
on

 to
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 d
iff

er
en

t m
od

es
 o

f t
ra

ns
po

rt
. 

It 
is 

al
so

 u
se

d 
to

 p
ub

lic
ise

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 tr
an

sp
or

t-
re

la
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il.
 

In
 re

sp
on

se
 to

 th
e 

gr
ow

th
 in

 d
em

an
d 

of
 s

oc
ia

l n
et

w
or

ki
ng

 s
ite

s 
(F

ac
eb

oo
k 

an
d 

Tw
itt

er
) w

e 
w

ill
 e

xp
an

d 
th

ei
r u

se
, i

n 
lin

e 
w

ith
 o

ur
 c

or
po

ra
te

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

gu
id

el
in

es
. S

uc
h 

sit
es

 c
an

 b
e 

ve
ry

 e
ff

ec
tiv

e 
in

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

in
g 

dy
na

m
ic

 tr
av

el
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

 o
f u

np
la

nn
ed

 e
ve

nt
s 

ca
us

in
g 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
or

 
up

da
te

s 
on

 th
e 

pr
og

re
ss

 o
f g

rit
tin

g 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PT

4 
– 

Pa
ss

en
g

er
 T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

an
d 

w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 p
as

se
ng

er
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
op

er
at

or
s 

to
 d

is
se

m
in

at
e 

pr
in

te
d 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 e

ns
ur

e  
it 

re
m

ai
ns

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

w
ith

 b
es

t 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
in

te
d 

tim
et

ab
le

s 
w

he
re

 d
is

pl
ay

 c
as

es
 a

re
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

at
 b

us
 s

to
ps

 
an

d 
bu

s 
st

at
io

ns
, i

n 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

ith
 b

us
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

. W
e 

w
ill

 in
cr

ea
se

 t
he

 
nu

m
be

r 
of

 b
us

 s
to

ps
 w

ith
 d

is
pl

ay
 c

as
es

. 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

co
un

ty
w

id
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

tim
et

ab
le

 b
oo

kl
et

 a
nd

 m
ak

in
g 

it 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

at
 a

 m
in

im
al

 c
os

t 
th

ro
ug

h 
a 

va
rie

ty
 o

f 
ou

tle
ts

. 

• 
D

is
tr

ib
ut

in
g 

C
ou

nt
y 

Tr
av

el
 G

ui
de

s,
 c

ov
er

in
g 

th
e 

no
rt

h 
an

d 
so

ut
h 

of
 t

he
 

co
un

ty
, a

nd
 H

er
ef

or
d 

ci
ty

. 

• 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 t
ra

in
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 a
nd

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

rs
 t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
of

 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

tim
et

ab
le

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

 

• 
W

e 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
w

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 p

as
se

ng
er

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 o

pe
ra

to
rs

 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 p
rin

te
d 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

m
ap

s 
an

d 
gu

id
es

 t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
. 

• 
W

e 
w

ill
 c

on
tin

ue
 t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

ul
ti-

m
od

al
 t

ra
ve

l i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
on

 t
he

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
w

eb
si

te
. A

ll 
pa

ge
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

pe
rio

di
ca

lly
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
ed

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
pr

ov
id

ed
 re

m
ai

ns
 re

le
va

nt
. 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
th

e 
sc

op
e 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ea

se
 o

f 
us

e 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 t
he

 L
TP

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

. 

• 
W

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 s

oc
ia

l n
et

w
or

ki
ng

 s
ite

s 
w

he
n 

di
ss

em
in

at
in

g 
dy

na
m

ic
 t

ra
ve

l 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

lin
ks

 w
ith

 o
ur

 S
C

O
O

T 
tr

af
fic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
 in

 
H

er
ef

or
d 

to
 re

la
y 

tr
av

el
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
vi

a 
Tw

itt
er

 e
tc

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
2

050



Co
m

m
un

it
y 

an
d 

V
ol

un
ta

ry
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 a
nd

 V
ol

un
ta

ry
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ex

ist
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 

fo
r p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 a

re
 u

na
bl

e 
to

 u
se

 o
th

er
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 w
ho

 li
ve

 in
 a

re
as

 
w

he
re

 n
o 

su
ch

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
. C

om
m

un
ity

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 th
e 

vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
se

ct
or

 w
ith

 fu
nd

in
g 

fr
om

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
th

ro
ug

h 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Le

ve
l 

A
gr

ee
m

en
ts

 a
s 

w
el

l a
s 

ot
he

r f
un

di
ng

 s
ou

rc
es

. 

Se
rv

ic
es

 c
at

er
 fo

r a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 jo
ur

ne
y 

pu
rp

os
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
he

al
th

, w
or

k,
 le

ar
ni

ng
, 

so
ci

al
 a

nd
 le

isu
re

. H
ea

lth
 re

la
te

d 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 a

cc
ou

nt
 fo

r u
p 

to
 4

0%
 o

f t
rip

s,
 a

 fa
r h

ig
he

r 
pr

op
or

tio
n 

th
an

 o
n 

co
nv

en
tio

na
l b

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 C
ur

re
nt

ly
 C

om
m

un
ity

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

pr
ov

isi
on

 is
 m

os
tly

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
du

rin
g 

w
ee

kd
ay

 d
ay

tim
es

, a
lth

ou
gh

 th
er

e 
is 

lim
ite

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 th

e 
ev

en
in

gs
 a

nd
 a

t w
ee

ke
nd

s 
w

he
re

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
pa

rt
 fu

nd
s 

se
ve

n 
di

ff
er

en
t C

om
m

un
ity

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 s

ch
em

es
: 

• 
Br

om
ya

rd
 C

om
m

un
ity

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
; 

• 
C

om
m

un
ity

 W
he

el
s 

an
d 

H
er

ef
or

d 
C

ar
 S

ch
em

e 
(b

as
ed

 in
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
); 

• 
D

or
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

; 
• 

H
ay

 a
nd

 D
ist

ric
t D

ia
l-A

-R
id

e;
 

• 
H

er
ef

or
d 

D
ia

l-A
-R

id
e;

 
• 

Le
db

ur
y 

Ri
ng

 a
nd

 R
id

e;
 a

nd
 

• 
Ro

ss
 A

re
a 

Tr
an

sp
or

t. 

Se
ve

ra
l v

ol
un

ta
ry

 o
rg

an
isa

tio
ns

 p
ro

vi
de

 tr
an

sp
or

t a
s 

an
 a

dd
iti

on
 to

 th
ei

r c
or

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 

su
ch

 a
s 

A
ge

 U
K 

an
d 

th
e 

Re
d 

C
ro

ss
. 

Th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f C
om

m
un

ity
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 d
el

iv
er

y 
is 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

a 
‘R

oo
t a

nd
 

Br
an

ch
’ r

ev
ie

w
 o

f p
as

se
ng

er
 tr

an
sp

or
t w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. T

he
 s

tr
at

eg
ic

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 

of
 th

e 
re

vi
ew

 in
cl

ud
e:

 
• 

In
cr

ea
sin

g 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 

• 
In

cr
ea

sin
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
• 

In
te

gr
at

io
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 tr

an
sp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

• 
Fi

na
nc

ia
l s

us
ta

in
ab

ili
ty

 
• 

M
ee

tin
g 

th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

w
ho

 a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PT

5 
– 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

an
d

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 C
om

m
un

ity
 a

nd
 V

ol
un

ta
ry

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
es

se
nt

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

fo
r 

th
os

e 
un

ab
le

 t
o 

us
e 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
ei

th
er

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f 

in
ca

pa
ci

ty
 d

ue
 t

o 
ill

 h
ea

lth
 o

r 
di

sa
bi

lit
y,

 o
r 

be
ca

us
e 

pu
bl

ic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
is

 n
ot

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
2

1

51



Ta
xi

s a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

H
ire

 V
eh

ic
le

s 

Ta
xis

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

H
ire

 V
eh

icl
es

 m
ak

e 
a 

va
lu

ab
le

 c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

to
 p

ro
vid

in
g 

tra
ns

po
rt 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
co

un
ty.

 T
he

se
 v

eh
icl

es
 o

ffe
r 2

4 
ho

ur
s a

 d
ay

 d
em

an
d 

re
sp

on
siv

e 
se

rv
ice

, w
hi

ch
 p

ro
vid

es
 a

 
do

or
 to

 d
oo

r s
er

vic
e.

 Ta
xis

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

H
ire

 V
eh

icl
es

 a
lso

 p
ro

vid
e 

a 
va

lu
ab

le
 se

rv
ice

 fo
r p

ub
lic

 
tra

ns
po

rt 
in

te
rc

ha
ng

e,
 b

y 
al

lo
w

in
g 

ce
rta

in
 g

ro
up

s a
cc

es
s t

o 
se

rv
ice

s t
he

y 
ot

he
rw

ise
 c

ou
ld

 
no

t r
ea

ch
. F

or
 m

an
y 

ca
se

s t
he

y 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
on

ly 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 lin
k 

to
 lo

ng
 d

ist
an

ce
 tr

an
sp

or
t, 

fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

by
 ra

il o
r a

ir.
 Ta

xis
 a

nd
 P

riv
at

e 
H

ire
 V

eh
icl

es
 a

re
 a

lso
 u

se
d 

on
 a

 re
gu

la
r b

as
is 

fo
r 

so
cia

l c
ar

e 
an

d 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

. 

Th
e 

Ta
xi 

Lic
en

sin
g 

an
d 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t P

ol
icy

 h
av

e 
a 

nu
m

be
r o

f r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 in
 p

la
ce

 w
hi

ch
 

en
su

re
 a

 h
ig

h 
qu

al
ity

, s
af

e 
jo

ur
ne

y 
fo

r e
ve

ry
 p

as
se

ng
er

. T
hi

s p
ol

icy
 e

ns
ur

es
 ta

xi 
dr

ive
rs

 a
nd

 
op

er
at

or
s a

re
 lic

en
se

d 
co

rre
ct

ly 
an

d 
th

er
ef

or
e 

ca
rry

 o
ut

 th
ei

r t
ra

de
 in

 a
cc

or
da

nc
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 re
gu

la
tio

ns
. T

he
 p

ol
icy

 a
lso

 e
na

bl
es

 ta
xi 

fa
re

 ta
rif

fs
 to

 b
e 

se
t t

ha
t r

ep
re

se
nt

 th
e 

m
ax

im
um

, r
at

he
r t

ha
n 

an
 e

xa
ct

 fa
re

 so
 a

s t
o 

al
lo

w
 fo

r c
om

pe
tit

io
n 

be
tw

ee
n 

th
e 

ta
xi 

co
m

pa
ni

es
. 

W
e 

cu
rre

nt
ly 

lic
en

ce
 2

60
 ta

xis
, 1

00
 P

riv
at

e 
H

ire
 V

eh
icl

es
 a

nd
 5

34
 d

ua
l d

riv
er

s. 
Si

nc
e 

20
02

 n
o 

qu
an

tit
y 

re
st

ric
tio

ns
 h

av
e 

be
en

 in
 p

la
ce

. A
pp

ro
xim

at
el

y 
30

%
 o

f t
he

 ta
xi 

fle
et

 a
re

 w
he

el
ch

ai
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
. 

Ta
xis

 a
nd

 P
riv

at
e 

H
ire

 V
eh

icl
es

 a
re

 o
fte

n 
th

e 
on

ly 
m

ea
ns

 o
f a

cc
es

sib
le

 lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
po

rt 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

fo
r d

isa
bl

ed
 a

nd
 e

ld
er

ly 
pe

op
le

. T
he

 D
fT

 re
co

gn
ise

s t
he

 im
po

rta
nc

e 
of

 ta
xi 

dr
ive

rs
 h

av
in

g 
th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 a
ss

ist
 d

isa
bl

ed
 p

as
se

ng
er

s a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

ly,
 c

on
se

qu
en

tly
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 ta

xi 
dr

ive
rs

 a
re

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 su
ch

 tr
ai

ni
ng

. A
ll T

ax
is 

an
d 

Pr
iva

te
 H

ire
 

Ve
hi

cle
s a

lso
 a

dh
er

e 
to

 th
e 

D
isa

bi
lit

y 
D

isc
rim

in
at

io
n 

A
ct

’s 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 to

 c
ar

ry
 g

ui
de

 a
nd

 
he

ar
in

g 
do

gs
 w

ith
ou

t a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

ha
rg

e.
 

W
e 

ac
kn

ow
le

dg
e 

th
e 

im
po

rta
nt

 ro
le

 ta
xis

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

icl
es

 h
av

e 
in

 p
ro

vid
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 sh
op

pi
ng

, l
ei

su
re

, e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t a
nd

 h
ea

lth
 se

rv
ice

s f
or

 m
an

y 
m

em
be

rs
 o

f o
ur

 c
om

m
un

ity
. 

It 
is 

th
er

ef
or

e 
es

se
nt

ia
l t

ha
t t

ax
i r

an
ks

 a
re

 e
as

ily
 a

cc
es

sib
le

, a
nd

 lo
ca

te
d 

clo
se

 to
 a

m
en

iti
es

. 
Th

e 
ne

ed
s o

f t
ax

i u
se

rs
 m

us
t b

e 
ta

ke
n 

in
to

 a
cc

ou
nt

 w
he

n 
co

ns
id

er
in

g 
pr

op
os

al
s f

or
 tr

af
fic

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 a
cc

es
s r

es
tri

ct
io

ns
 in

 to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s a
nd

 o
th

er
 a

re
as

 w
ith

 im
po

rta
nt

 
am

en
iti

es
. I

t i
s a

lso
 e

ss
en

tia
l t

ha
t t

ax
is 

ar
e 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 o
ur

 p
ub

lic
 tr

an
sp

or
t i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e,
 a

nd
 

ha
ve

 d
ed

ica
te

d 
sp

ac
e 

al
lo

ca
tio

n 
to

 a
llo

w
 in

te
ra

ct
io

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
se

rv
ice

s t
he

y 
pr

ov
id

e.
 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PT

6 
– 

Ta
xi

s 
an

d
 P

ri
va

te
 H

ir
e 

V
eh

ic
le

s 

W
e 

w
ill

 p
er

fo
rm

 o
ur

 li
ce

nc
in

g 
du

ty
 f

or
 H

ac
kn

ey
 C

ar
ria

ge
s 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

hi
re

 
ve

hi
cl

es
 t

o 
en

su
re

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y ,
 s

af
et

y 
an

d 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

co
m

fo
rt

. T
hi

s 
in

cl
ud

es
: 

• 
Re

qu
ire

 b
y 

lic
en

ce
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 t
ha

t 
al

l a
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 f
or

 H
ac

kn
ey

 C
ar

ria
ge

s 
ar

e 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

. 

• 
Re

qu
ire

 t
hr

ou
gh

 li
ce

nc
e 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
th

at
 d

riv
er

s 
ar

e 
aw

ar
e 

of
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t 
of

 c
ar

ry
in

g 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

as
se

ng
er

s 
an

d 
as

si
st

an
ce

 d
og

s.
 

• 
En

su
re

 t
ha

t 
w

he
el

ch
ai

r 
ve

hi
cl

es
 a

re
 s

ui
ta

bl
y 

eq
ui

pp
ed

 a
t 

al
l t

im
es

 t
o 

ca
rr

y 
pe

rs
on

s 
w

hi
ls

t 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 s
ea

te
d 

in
 t

he
ir 

w
he

el
ch

ai
rs

. 

• 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

an
 a

nn
ua

l c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

te
st

 a
nd

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 M

O
Ts

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 

on
 t

he
 a

ge
 o

f 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e.
 

• 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 t
o 

re
vi

ew
 t

he
 c

on
di

tio
n 

an
d 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f 
lic

en
ce

d 
ve

hi
cl

es
. 

• 
A

ll 
dr

iv
er

s 
of

 li
ce

nc
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

En
ha

nc
ed

 D
BS

s 
up

on
 a

pp
lic

at
io

n 
an

d 
ev

er
y 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

af
te

r. 

• 
A

ll 
dr

iv
er

s 
of

 li
ce

nc
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
w

ill
 h

av
e 

a 
M

ed
ic

al
 E

xa
m

in
at

io
n 

to
 G

ro
up

 1
1 

st
an

da
rd

 u
po

n 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
ev

er
y 

fiv
e 

ye
ar

s 
af

te
r. 

U
po

n 
re

ac
hi

ng
 t

he
 a

ge
 

of
 6

5 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
is

 f
or

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 m

ed
ic

al
. 

• 
Li

m
iti

ng
 t

he
 a

ge
 a

nd
 e

m
is

si
on

 s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 o

f 
H

ac
kn

ey
 C

ar
ria

ge
s 

an
d 

pr
iv

at
e 

hi
re

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
sa

fe
ty

 a
nd

 m
in

im
is

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pa

ct
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
2

252



Ra
il 

Ra
il 

ha
s 

an
 e

ss
en

tia
l r

ol
e 

to
 p

la
y 

in
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 lo

ca
l a

nd
 n

at
io

na
l c

en
tr

es
. 

D
em

an
d 

fo
r r

ai
l u

se
 h

as
 s

te
ad

ily
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

sin
ce

 2
00

3.
 T

he
 C

ou
nc

il 
is 

co
m

m
itt

ed
 to

 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
tr

ai
n 

op
er

at
in

g 
co

m
pa

ni
es

 a
nd

 N
et

w
or

k 
Ra

il 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

be
st

 
po

ss
ib

le
 s

er
vi

ce
 is

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
. A

ct
iv

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

at
 th

e 
Re

gi
on

al
 R

ai
l 

Fo
ru

m
, M

ar
ch

es
 R

ai
l g

ro
up

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
ro

ss
 B

or
de

r F
or

um
 e

ns
ur

es
 th

at
 ra

il 
iss

ue
s 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 a

re
 d

isc
us

se
d 

an
d 

ac
tio

ns
 ta

ke
n 

to
 e

lim
in

at
e 

tim
et

ab
le

 s
er

vi
ce

 g
ap

s.
 

Ra
il 

fr
an

ch
ise

s 
ar

e 
m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
D

fT
. T

he
 d

at
es

 o
f t

he
 ra

il 
fr

an
ch

ise
 re

ne
w

al
s 

w
hi

ch
 

w
ill

 a
ff

ec
t H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

• 
20

13
 G

re
at

 W
es

te
rn

 
• 

20
15

 L
on

do
n 

M
id

la
nd

 
• 

20
18

 A
rr

iv
a 

Tr
ai

ns
 W

al
es

 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PT

7 
– 

R
ai

l i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 

W
e 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 t
he

 D
fT

 a
nd

 t
ra

in
 o

pe
ra

tin
g 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 in

 im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
fr

eq
ue

nc
y,

 q
ua

lit
y,

 re
lia

bi
lit

y,
 c

om
fo

rt
 a

nd
 a

ff
or

da
bi

lit
y 

of
 r

ai
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

w
ith

in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 s

up
po

rt
: 

• 
Jo

in
t 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

th
e 

fr
an

ch
is

es
 d

ue
 f

or
 re

ne
w

al
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 t

o 
pr

ot
ec

t 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
Lo

nd
on

 v
ia

 L
ed

bu
ry

. 

• 
Pa

ss
in

g 
ba

ys
 t

o 
in

cr
ea

se
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

lia
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
on

 t
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
to

 
M

al
ve

rn
 li

ne
 (i

m
pa

ct
s 

fo
r 

Le
db

ur
y 

an
d 

C
ol

w
al

l).
 

• 
Th

e 
el

im
in

at
io

n 
of

 t
im

et
ab

le
 s

er
vi

ce
 g

ap
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

de
liv

er
y 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
se

rv
ic

es
 b

et
w

ee
n 

A
be

rg
av

en
ny

, H
er

ef
or

d,
 L

eo
m

in
st

er
 a

nd
 S

hr
ew

sb
ur

y.
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 t
im

et
ab

lin
g 

to
 li

m
it 

in
co

ns
is

te
nt

 g
ap

s 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 t
im

es
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
cl

oc
k-

fa
ce

 t
im

et
ab

le
. 

• 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 ro
lli

ng
 s

to
ck

 o
n 

se
rv

ic
es

 t
o 

Bi
rm

in
gh

am
 a

nd
 e

xp
lo

re
 n

ew
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

ac
ce

ss
in

g 
Bi

rm
in

gh
am

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l A
irp

or
t.

 

• 
G

re
at

er
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
fo

r 
cy

cl
is

ts
 a

t 
st

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 o

n 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

• 
A

cc
es

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t 
H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

Le
om

in
st

er
 r

ai
lw

ay
 s

ta
tio

ns
 b

y 
20

14
 t

o 
en

su
re

 b
ot

h 
st

at
io

ns
 a

re
 f

ul
ly

 a
cc

es
si

bl
e 

an
d 

m
ee

t 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 u

nd
er

 t
he

 
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 D
is

cr
im

in
at

io
n 

A
ct

 2
00

5.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
2

3

53



H
ig

hw
ay

 N
et

w
or

k 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y;
 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y 

of
 ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ff
er

en
t 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 
sp

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

rin
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 is

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e;
 

• 
Pr

ot
ec

t 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 h

ig
hw

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

fr
om

 e
xt

re
m

e 
w

ea
th

er
; a

nd
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
ou

r 
ro

ad
s,

 f
oo

tw
ay

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
e-

w
ay

s,
 b

rid
ge

s,
  

m
ile

st
on

es
, s

ig
na

ge
 a

nd
 s

tr
ee

t 
fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
 t

he
ir 

co
nd

iti
on

.  

Th
is 

po
lic

y 
st

at
em

en
t c

ov
er

s 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 ro
ad

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
.  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

ge
ne

ra
lly

 h
as

 a
 h

ig
hl

y 
re

lia
bl

e 
ro

ad
 n

et
w

or
k 

w
ith

 re
cu

rr
in

g 
co

ng
es

tio
n 

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

th
e 

A
44

 B
ar

ga
te

s 
ju

nc
tio

n 
in

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 w
he

re
 jo

ur
ne

y 
tim

e 
re

lia
bi

lit
y 

is 
a 

w
id

el
y 

re
co

gn
ise

d 
pr

ob
le

m
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
H

N
1 

- 
N

et
w

o
rk

 C
ap

ac
it

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
H

ie
ra

rc
h

y 

W
he

re
 re

cu
rr

in
g 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
is

 a
n 

is
su

e 
w

e 
w

ill
 u

se
 o

ur
 N

et
w

or
k 

C
ap

ac
ity

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
H

ie
ra

rc
hy

 t
o 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

pr
ob

le
m

. 

St
ep

 1
 -

 D
em

an
d

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

U
se

 s
m

ar
te

r 
ch

oi
ce

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
al

te
rn

at
iv

es
 t

o 
so

lo
 c

ar
 u

se
. F

or
 m

or
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
e 

ou
r 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 T
ra

ve
l S

tr
at

eg
y.

 

St
ep

 2
 -

 N
et

w
o

rk
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 

Sp
ec

ifi
c 

lo
ca

l c
on

ge
st

io
n 

is
su

es
 w

hi
ch

 c
an

 o
ft

en
 b

e 
im

pr
ov

ed
 t

hr
ou

gh
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t,

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
or

 e
nf

or
ce

m
en

t 
of

 h
ig

hw
ay

 re
st

ric
tio

ns
. S

ee
 P

ol
ic

y 
LT

P 
H

N
2.

 

St
ep

 3
 -

 T
ar

g
et

ed
 e

n
g

in
ee

ri
n

g
 im

p
ro

ve
m

en
ts

 

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ju
nc

tio
ns

 t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
ei

r 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
ca

pa
ci

ty
. 

St
ep

 4
 -

 R
o

ad
 W

id
en

in
g

 

W
id

en
in

g 
th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
hi

gh
w

ay
 t

he
re

by
 in

cr
ea

si
ng

 t
he

 c
ap

ac
ity

 o
f 

in
di

vi
du

al
 

hi
gh

w
ay

 li
nk

s.
 

St
ep

 5
 –

 N
ew

 R
o

ad
 B

u
ild

in
g

 

C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
of

 n
ew

 ro
ad

 li
nk

s.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
2

454



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
H

N
2 

- 
N

et
w

o
rk

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 

W
e 

w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

of
 t

he
 h

ig
hw

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

to
 re

du
ce

 a
nd

 
pr

ev
en

t 
re

cu
rr

in
g 

co
ng

es
tio

n.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y 

co
ns

id
er

in
g 

a 
ra

ng
e 

of
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

lo
ca

l c
on

ge
st

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

to
ol

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

op
er

at
io

n 
of

 t
he

 
hi

gh
w

ay
 n

et
w

or
k.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y:
 

• 
U

si
ng

 e
xi

st
in

g 
an

d 
ne

w
 T

ra
ff

ic
 R

eg
ul

at
io

n 
O

rd
er

s 
to

 b
et

te
r 

ta
rg

et
  

en
fo

rc
em

en
t 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 p

ar
ki

ng
 t

ha
t 

re
st

ric
ts

 t
ra

ff
ic

 f
lo

w
s 

re
su

lti
ng

 in
  

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 t
ra

ff
ic

 d
el

ay
s 

or
 s

af
et

y 
co

nc
er

ns
.  

• 
Re

vi
ew

in
g 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

hi
er

ar
ch

y 
of

 p
rio

rit
y 

ro
ut

es
 f

or
 k

ey
 m

od
es

 o
f 

tr
av

el
 t

o 
en

su
re

 t
he

 c
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n,
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
lo

ca
l h

ig
hw

ay
 

ne
tw

or
k 

re
fle

ct
 t

he
ir 

ex
is

tin
g 

fu
nc

tio
n.

 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
dr

iv
er

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
s 

us
in

g 
va

ria
bl

e 
m

es
sa

gi
ng

 s
ys

te
m

s 
an

d 
in

te
rn

et
 b

as
ed

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 c

ar
 p

ar
ki

ng
 a

va
ila

bi
lit

y,
 

pl
an

ne
d 

ev
en

ts
 a

nd
 t

he
 o

cc
ur

re
nc

e 
of

 c
on

ge
st

io
n 

th
at

 m
ig

ht
 im

pa
ct

 jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y.
 

• 
C

on
si

de
rin

g 
th

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
of

 m
ov

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 o

ff
en

ce
s 

w
he

re
 it

 c
au

se
s 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
or

 im
pa

ct
s 

ro
ad

 s
af

et
y 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
of

 y
el

lo
w

 b
ox

es
. 

H
ig

hw
ay

 N
et

w
or

k 
Ex

pa
ns

io
n 

W
he

re
 d

em
an

d 
an

d 
ne

tw
or

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ea

su
re

s 
ha

ve
 b

ee
n 

pr
ov

ed
 to

 b
e 

in
su

ff
ic

ie
nt

 to
 re

du
ce

 c
on

ge
st

io
n,

 w
e 

w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g 

so
lu

tio
ns

 to
 in

cr
ea

se
 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 o
n 

ou
r e

xi
st

in
g 

hi
gh

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k.
 

To
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
gr

ow
th

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
fo

r H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 o
ur

 N
et

w
or

k 
C

ap
ac

ity
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t H

ie
ra

rc
hy

, n
ew

 h
ig

hw
ay

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

 T
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
Re

lie
f 

Ro
ad

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
a 

se
co

nd
 ri

ve
r c

ro
ss

in
g 

is 
vi

ta
l t

o 
H

er
ef

or
d’

s 
tr

an
sp

or
t n

et
w

or
k 

to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

ad
di

tio
na

l t
ra

ff
ic

 c
ap

ac
ity

 a
nd

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

M
ot

or
w

ay
 a

nd
 T

ru
nk

 R
oa

d 
N

et
w

or
k 

O
f t

he
 2

,0
72

 m
ile

s 
of

 h
ig

hw
ay

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 5
6 

m
ile

s 
or

 3
%

 fo
rm

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

M
ot

or
w

ay
 a

nd
 T

ru
nk

 R
oa

d 
N

et
w

or
k 

an
d 

is 
m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
ge

nc
y.

 
Ro

ut
es

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

A
49

(T
), 

A
44

9(
T)

, A
40

(T
) a

nd
 M

50
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
H

N
5 

- 
M

o
to

rw
ay

 a
n

d
 T

ru
n

k 
R

o
ad

 N
et

w
o

rk
 r

el
ia

b
ili

ty
  

im
p

ro
ve

m
en

ts
  

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 t
he

 H
ig

hw
ay

’s
 A

ge
nc

y 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

 
re

lia
bi

lit
y ,

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

ef
fic

ie
nc

y 
of

 t
he

 M
ot

or
w

ay
 a

nd
 T

ru
nk

 R
oa

d 
N

et
w

or
k 

 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

W
e 

w
ou

ld
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 s

up
po

rt
: 

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 ju

nc
tio

n 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 o

n 
th

e 
A

49
(T

) i
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
to

 re
du

ce
 c

on
ge

st
io

n.
 

• 
Th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 f
un

di
ng

 a
nd

 d
el

iv
er

y 
of

 d
riv

er
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
sy

st
em

s 
us

in
g 

va
ria

bl
e 

m
es

sa
gi

ng
 s

ys
te

m
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
va

ila
bi

lit
y,

 
pl

an
ne

d 
ev

en
ts

 a
nd

 c
on

ge
st

io
n.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
2

5

55



Ca
r P

ar
ki

ng
 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y;
 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y 

of
 ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ff
er

en
t 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 
sp

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

rin
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 is

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e;
 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ev

er
yd

ay
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 re
si

de
nt

s;
 a

nd
  

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
 f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
. 

Th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

pr
ic

in
g 

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
of

 c
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
s 

pl
ay

s 
a 

m
aj

or
 ro

le
 in

 
su

pp
or

tin
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 a

nd
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 tr
an

sp
or

t s
ys

te
m

. T
he

 
av

ai
la

bi
lit

y 
an

d 
pr

ic
e 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

 is
 a

 k
ey

 fa
ct

or
 in

 d
et

er
m

in
in

g 
pe

op
le

’s
 c

ho
ic

e 
of

 m
od

e 
fo

r a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 jo
ur

ne
y.

 T
og

et
he

r w
ith

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 in
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
m

od
es

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

th
e 

“c
ar

ro
t”

, s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

fo
r p

ar
ki

ng
 s

up
pl

y 
an

d 
co

nt
ro

l c
an

 o
ff

er
 a

n 
im

po
rt

an
t 

to
ol

 to
 m

an
ag

e 
de

m
an

d 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 a

 m
od

al
 s

hi
ft

 a
w

ay
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
ca

r 
to

w
ar

ds
 m

or
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
od

es
. 

H
er

ef
or

d 

C
ar

 p
ar

ki
ng

 w
ill

 p
la

y 
a 

ke
y 

ro
le

 in
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e,

 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f c

om
m

ut
er

 tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
en

su
rin

g 
ac

ce
ss

 th
ro

ug
h 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t. 
 O

ur
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 m

an
ag

in
g 

ca
r p

ar
ki

ng
 s

ite
s 

w
ill

 a
lso

 a
ss

ist
 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
to

w
ns

ca
pe

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 th

ro
ug

h 
m

an
ag

ed
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f s
m

al
le

r c
ar

 p
ar

ks
 in

 th
e 

hi
st

or
ic

 c
or

e 
an

d 
re

di
st

rib
ut

io
n 

of
 

pu
bl

ic
 p

ar
ki

ng
 to

 th
e 

ed
ge

 o
f t

he
 c

en
tr

al
 a

re
a,

 c
lo

se
 to

 k
ey

 tr
an

sp
or

t c
or

rid
or

s 
an

d 
th

e 
ev

en
tu

al
 re

lo
ca

tio
n 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 to

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
rid

e 
sit

es
 o

ut
sid

e 
th

e 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
2

656



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PS

1 
– 

H
er

ef
o

rd
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 P
o

lic
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 H
er

ef
or

d 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il,
 H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 t

o 
co

nt
in

ua
lly

 re
vi

ew
 t

he
 s

up
pl

y 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

ca
r 

pa
rk

in
g 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

d.
  A

ct
iv

iti
es

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

• 
Se

tt
in

g 
of

 c
ar

 p
ar

k 
ch

ar
ge

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 t
he

 c
ou

nc
il’

s 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 w

ith
 lo

ng
 s

ta
y 

pa
rk

in
g 

ch
ar

ge
s 

to
 b

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

an
nu

al
ly

 t
o 

m
at

ch
 

th
os

e 
of

 c
om

pa
ra

bl
e 

ce
nt

re
s;

 

• 
Ph

as
ed

 re
du

ct
io

n 
ov

er
 t

he
 p

er
io

d 
to

 2
03

1 
of

 lo
ng

-s
ta

y 
co

m
m

ut
er

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
su

pp
ly

 w
ith

in
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e;
 

• 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 c

yc
le

 a
nd

 p
ar

k 
an

d 
sh

ar
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 b
e 

fr
ee

 t
o 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 u

se
rs

 w
ith

 
se

cu
re

 c
yc

le
 s

to
ra

ge
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 a
t 

pa
rk

 a
nd

 c
yc

le
 s

ite
s;

 

• 
G

oo
d 

qu
al

ity
 s

ig
ni

ng
 t

o 
m

ak
e 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 u

se
 o

f 
pa

rk
in

g 
su

pp
ly

; 

• 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
th

e 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

A
ge

nc
y 

to
 in

tr
od

uc
e 

re
al

 t
im

e 
si

gn
in

g 
to

 re
du

ce
 u

n-
ne

ce
ss

ar
y 

ca
r 

m
ov

em
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 t
he

 c
ity

 
ce

nt
re

 a
nd

 re
du

ce
 d

riv
er

 s
ea

rc
h 

tim
es

; 

• 
W

or
k 

in
 p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 w

ith
 t

he
 F

re
ig

ht
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n,

 R
oa

d 
H

au
la

ge
 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

an
d 

lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
al

te
ra

tiv
e 

lo
rr

y 
pa

rk
in

g 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 M

er
to

n 
M

ea
do

w
; 

• 
Pe

de
st

ria
n 

ac
ce

ss
 ro

ut
es

 c
on

ne
ct

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 o

ff
-s

tr
ee

t 
pa

rk
in

g 
w

ith
 u

rb
an

 
ce

nt
re

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ex

am
in

ed
 f

or
 p

ot
en

tia
l e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

en
su

re
 

th
ey

 a
re

 s
af

e 
an

d 
pl

ea
sa

nt
 t

o 
us

e;
 

• 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

th
e 

fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f 
in

st
al

lin
g 

el
ec

tr
ic

 v
eh

ic
le

 c
ha

rg
in

g 
po

in
ts

 in
 s

el
ec

te
d 

ca
r 

pa
rk

s;
 

• 
Re

vi
ew

 t
he

 o
pe

ra
tio

n,
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d 
ch

ar
gi

ng
 o

f 
Re

si
de

nt
s 

Pa
rk

in
g 

Sc
he

m
es

 t
o 

en
su

re
 re

si
de

nt
s 

ca
n 

pa
rk

 w
ith

in
 a

 re
as

on
ab

le
 d

is
ta

nc
e 

of
 t

he
ir 

ho
m

e 
an

d 
th

at
 c

om
m

ut
er

s 
an

d 
sh

or
t 

st
ay

 u
se

rs
 a

re
 d

is
co

ur
ag

ed
 f

ro
m

 u
si

ng
 

re
si

de
nt

ia
l s

tr
ee

ts
; 

• 
Pa

rk
in

g 
al

lo
ca

tio
ns

 f
or

 n
ew

 a
nd

 re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 m
us

t 
co

m
pl

y 
w

ith
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ui
de

 f
or

 N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 

Co
un

ty
w

id
e 

En
su

rin
g 

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

is 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

to
 m

ee
t d

em
an

d 
is 

fu
nd

am
en

ta
l t

o 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 lo
ca

l e
co

no
m

y 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 g
ro

w
th

.  
Th

e 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d:

 

• 
Th

er
e 

m
us

t b
e 

ad
eq

ua
te

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
up

pl
y 

to
 m

ee
t d

em
an

d 
in

 e
ac

h 
of

 th
e 

m
ar

ke
t 

to
w

ns
. 

• 
Th

er
e 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
at

 le
as

t 1
0%

 s
pa

re
 c

ap
ac

ity
 w

ith
in

 e
ac

h 
to

w
n 

to
 e

ff
ic

ie
nt

ly
 

m
an

ag
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

de
m

an
d,

 li
m

it 
se

ar
ch

 ti
m

es
 a

nd
 re

du
ce

 u
nn

ec
es

sa
ry

 c
ar

 u
se

. 
• 

Lo
ng

-s
ta

y 
pa

rk
in

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 lo
ca

te
d 

fu
rt

he
r f

ro
m

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ce

nt
re

s 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

sh
or

t-
st

ay
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

up
pl

y 
is 

ea
sy

 a
cc

es
sib

le
 a

nd
 a

va
ila

bl
e.

 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PS

2 
– 

C
o

u
n

ty
w

id
e 

Pa
rk

in
g

 P
o

lic
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 w
ith

 t
ow

n 
an

d 
pa

ris
h 

co
un

ci
ls

 t
o 

m
an

ag
e 

ca
r 

 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

 

• 
Pu

bl
ic

 o
ff

-r
oa

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
su

pp
ly

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 t

o 
m

ee
t 

de
m

an
d,

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

gr
ow

th
 a

nd
 b

e 
lo

ca
te

d 
in

 c
on

ve
ni

en
t 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 b

y 
m

ai
n 

di
st

rib
ut

or
 ro

ad
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pa

rk
ed

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
do

 n
ot

 o
bs

tr
uc

t 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ig

hw
ay

; 

• 
G

oo
d 

qu
al

ity
 s

ig
ni

ng
 t

o 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
to

 m
ak

e 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 u
se

 o
f 

pa
rk

in
g 

su
pp

ly
; 

• 
C

ha
rg

es
 w

ill
 a

pp
ly

 f
or

 a
ll 

of
f-

st
re

et
 p

ar
ki

ng
, u

nl
es

s 
th

er
e 

is
 a

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

 
ec

on
om

ic
 re

as
on

 f
or

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 f

re
e 

pa
rk

in
g;

 

• 
C

ha
rg

es
 f

or
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

 c
lo

se
r 

to
 t

he
 c

en
tr

e 
ar

e 
se

t 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 s

ho
rt

 s
ta

y 
an

d 
a 

tu
rn

ov
er

 o
f 

sp
ac

es
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
th

e 
lo

ca
l e

co
no

m
y 

w
ith

 lo
ng

er
 t

er
m

 p
ar

ki
ng

 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 c

ar
 p

ar
ks

 f
ur

th
er

 f
ro

m
 t

he
 c

en
tr

e;
 

• 
O

n-
st

re
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 t
o 

be
 f

re
e 

in
 t

he
 M

ar
ke

t 
To

w
ns

; a
nd

 

• 
O

n-
st

re
et

 p
ar

ki
ng

 is
 c

on
tr

ol
le

d 
by

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

lim
ite

d 
w

ai
tin

g 
re

st
ric

tio
ns

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

he
 e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 t
ur

no
ve

r 
of

 s
ho

rt
-s

ta
y 

pa
rk

in
g 

fo
r 

sh
op

pe
rs

 a
nd

 v
is

ito
rs

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
2

7

57



Fr
ei

gh
t 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y 

of
 ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ff
er

en
t 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 
sp

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

rin
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 a
nd

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 is

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 

Fr
ei

gh
t t

ra
ns

po
rt

 is
 a

n 
es

se
nt

ia
l p

ar
t o

f b
us

in
es

s,
 e

na
bl

in
g 

an
d 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

l e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t. 
A

t a
 lo

ca
l l

ev
el

 fr
ei

gh
t e

na
bl

es
 th

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 

go
od

s 
to

 b
us

in
es

se
s,

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
sit

es
, r

et
ai

l p
re

m
ise

s 
an

d 
ho

us
eh

ol
ds

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
fr

ei
gh

t m
ov

em
en

t, 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 b

y 
ro

ad
, a

lso
 g

iv
es

 ri
se

 to
 a

 ra
ng

e 
of

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
pr

ob
le

m
s.

 

Ra
il 

fr
ei

gh
t c

ur
re

nt
ly

 p
la

ys
 o

nl
y 

a 
lim

ite
d 

ro
le

, n
ot

ab
ly

 w
ith

 th
e 

Ta
rm

ac
 q

ua
rr

y 
in

 th
e 

w
es

t o
f t

he
 c

ou
nt

y 
m

ak
in

g 
us

e 
of

 a
 ra

ilh
ea

d 
no

rt
h 

of
 H

er
ef

or
d.

 T
he

re
 is

 a
lso

 ra
il 

fr
ei

gh
t t

ra
ff

ic
 ru

nn
in

g 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
co

un
ty

. C
on

se
qu

en
tly

 th
e 

ke
y 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 c

on
ce

rn
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f r

oa
d-

ba
se

d 
fr

ei
gh

t m
ov

em
en

t w
ith

in
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f o
ur

 n
et

w
or

k 
m

an
ag

em
en

t d
ut

y.
 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
FR

1 
- 

M
an

ag
in

g
 F

re
ig

h
t 

M
o

ve
m

en
ts

 

W
e 

w
ill

 p
la

n 
fo

r 
an

d 
en

ab
le

 t
he

 e
ff

ic
ie

nt
 m

ov
em

en
t 

of
 f

re
ig

ht
 t

o,
 f

ro
m

, 
th

ro
ug

h 
an

d 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 w

hi
ls

t,
 w

he
re

 p
os

si
bl

e,
 re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

of
 f

re
ig

ht
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t 

an
d 

ou
r 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

. T
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

vo
lv

e:
 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

fr
ei

gh
t 

st
ra

te
gy

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

th
e 

M
ar

ch
es

 L
EP

 a
nd

 lo
ca

l 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 w
hi

ch
 t

ak
es

 a
cc

ou
nt

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 c
on

ne
ct

io
ns

 w
ith

 t
he

 W
es

t 
M

id
la

nd
s 

an
d 

W
al

es
. 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
D

fT
 a

nd
 n

ei
gh

bo
ur

in
g 

au
th

or
iti

es
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 fr
ei

gh
t r

ou
te

s 
ar

e 
cl

ea
rly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
on

 s
ig

ns
 a

nd
 m

ap
s 

an
d 

th
at

 th
es

e 
ro

ut
es

 a
re

 fe
d 

in
to

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
po

rt
al

s 
fo

r a
cc

es
s 

by
 th

e 
fr

ei
gh

t i
nd

us
tr

y 
an

d 
th

os
e 

se
rv

ed
 b

y 
it.

 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
su

ita
bl

e 
in

sp
ec

tio
ns

, m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 in
te

rv
al

s 
an

d 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 f

or
 

th
os

e 
ro

ut
es

 a
nd

 ju
nc

tio
ns

 w
hi

ch
 c

ar
ry

 s
ig

ni
fic

an
t 

fr
ei

gh
t 

tr
af

fic
. 

• 
In

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

an
d,

 w
he

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
, e

nc
ou

ra
gi

ng
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
ra

il 
fr

ei
gh

t.
 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
th

at
 t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l i

m
pa

ct
 o

f 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 o
n 

fr
ei

gh
t 

m
ov

em
en

ts
 a

re
 f

ul
ly

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

C
on

tr
ol

 p
ro

ce
ss

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
st

ric
tin

g 
de

liv
er

y 
ve

hi
cl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

tim
es

. 

• 
En

ga
gi

ng
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

ff
ec

te
d 

by
 f

re
ig

ht
 m

ov
em

en
ts

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
d 

ag
re

e 
su

ita
bl

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
2

858



A
ct

iv
e 

Tr
av

el
 (w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g)
 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ho
rt

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
ca

r 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
al

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

ho
ic

es
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 b
eh

av
io

ur
; 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ev

er
yd

ay
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 re
si

de
nt

s;
  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
 

w
ith

 t
he

ir 
us

e;
 a

nd
  

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
 f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
. 

W
ith

in
 th

is 
LT

P 
Po

lic
y 

St
at

em
en

t t
he

 te
rm

 ‘A
ct

iv
e 

Tr
av

el
’ r

ef
er

s 
to

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

 a
nd

 
cy

cl
ist

s.
 

W
al

ki
ng

 is
 th

e 
m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t m
od

e 
of

 tr
av

el
 a

t t
he

 lo
ca

l l
ev

el
 a

nd
 o

ff
er

s 
th

e 
gr

ea
te

st
 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 re
pl

ac
in

g 
ca

r t
rip

s 
of

 le
ss

 th
an

 o
ne

 m
ile

. C
yc

lin
g 

of
fe

rs
 a

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
fo

r 
sh

or
t t

rip
s 

of
 u

p 
to

 fi
ve

 m
ile

s.
 W

ith
in

 th
is 

po
lic

y 
st

at
em

en
t b

ot
h 

m
od

es
 a

re
 to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 to

ge
th

er
 a

s 
th

ey
 s

ha
re

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 p

os
iti

ve
 b

en
ef

its
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 
• 

Re
du

ce
d 

co
ng

es
tio

n,
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 if

 fo
cu

se
d 

on
 p

ea
k 

ho
ur

 tr
ip

s.
 A

t p
ea

k 
tim

es
 a

lo
ng

 
ra

di
al

 ro
ut

es
 in

 m
an

y 
ur

ba
n 

ar
ea

s,
 c

yc
lin

g 
w

ill
 ty

pi
ca

lly
 b

e 
fa

st
er

 th
an

 u
sin

g 
a 

ca
r o

r 
bu

s.
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

ed
 h

ea
lth

 th
ro

ug
h 

in
cr

ea
se

d 
ph

ys
ic

al
 a

ct
iv

ity
 –

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 m
aj

or
 c

hr
on

ic
 

di
se

as
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
or

on
ar

y 
he

ar
t d

ise
as

e,
 s

tr
ok

e,
 d

ia
be

te
s 

an
d 

so
m

e 
ca

nc
er

s.
 

• 
Lo

w
 c

os
t a

cc
es

sib
ili

ty
 fo

r m
an

y 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ith

 o
r w

ith
ou

t a
cc

es
s 

to
 a

 c
ar

. 
• 

N
o 

lo
ca

l a
ir 

po
llu

tio
n 

or
 c

ar
bo

n 
em

iss
io

ns
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

T1
 -

 M
ai

n
ta

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
xt

en
d

in
g

 o
u

r 
ac

ti
ve

 t
ra

ve
l 

in
fr

as
tr

u
ct

u
re

 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 
(f

oo
tw

ay
s 

an
d 

cy
cl

ew
ay

s)
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 a
ny

 p
hy

si
ca

l b
ar

rie
rs

 b
y 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
a 

hi
gh

 
qu

al
ity

 a
ct

iv
e 

tr
av

el
 n

et
w

or
k 

th
at

 is
 c

on
ve

ni
en

t,
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e,
 c

om
fo

rt
ab

le
 a

nd
 

at
tr

ac
tiv

e 
to

 u
se

. 

Th
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
M

in
im

is
in

g 
th

e 
oc

cu
rr

en
ce

 o
f 

de
fe

ct
s 

on
 a

ct
iv

e 
tr

av
el

 ro
ut

es
. 

• 
In

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

ch
an

ge
s 

in
 T

ra
ff

ic
 O

rd
er

s 
to

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
in

cr
ea

se
d 

cy
cl

e 
us

e 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

of
 c

yc
le

 c
on

tr
a 

flo
w

s 
in

 o
ne

-w
ay

 s
tr

ee
ts

. 

• 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 a
ct

iv
e 

tr
av

el
 e

nh
an

ce
m

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
dr

op
pe

d 
ke

rb
s 

an
d 

cr
os

si
ng

s 
fo

r 
no

n-
m

ot
or

is
ed

 m
od

es
. 

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

cl
ea

r 
an

d 
co

nc
is

e 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
 s

ig
na

ge
 t

o 
ra

is
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 s
af

er
 

ro
ut

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
vo

id
 h

ig
h 

vo
lu

m
es

 o
f 

tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 o

f 
th

e 
na

tio
na

l c
yc

le
 n

et
w

or
k.

 
A

ll 
si

gn
ag

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 m

us
t 

re
sp

ec
t 

th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

r 
of

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

w
he

re
 it

 
is

 u
se

d.
 

• 
Ex

pa
nd

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 2

0m
ph

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l z

on
es

 in
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
re

as
 (s

ee
 p

ol
ic

y 
LT

P 
SM

2)
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
m

or
e 

se
cu

re
 c

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

 s
pa

ce
s 

or
 s

to
ra

ge
 a

t 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l 
es

ta
bl

is
hm

en
ts

, r
et

ai
l c

en
tr

es
, p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 in

te
rc

ha
ng

es
, l

ei
su

re
 f

ac
ili

tie
s,

 
w

or
kp

la
ce

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

m
aj

or
 jo

ur
ne

y 
at

tr
ac

to
rs

 w
he

re
 d

em
an

d 
re

qu
ire

s 
it.

 

• 
In

te
gr

at
in

g 
cy

cl
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

w
ith

 p
ub

lic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 a
t 

ru
ra

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
 h

ub
s 

to
 

fa
ci

lit
at

e 
cy

cl
e 

us
e 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 lo

ng
er

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
jo

ur
ne

ys
. 

• 
Re

co
gn

is
in

g 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 a

ct
iv

e 
tr

av
el

 u
se

rs
 w

ith
in

 o
ur

 w
in

te
r 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
en

su
re

 t
ha

t 
he

av
ily

-u
se

d 
of

f-
ro

ad
 ro

ut
es

 a
re

 g
rit

te
d.

 

• 
In

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

th
e 

co
nv

er
si

on
 o

f 
di

su
se

d 
ra

ilw
ay

 li
ne

s 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

tr
af

fic
-f

re
e 

ru
ra

l r
ou

te
s 

fo
r 

ac
tiv

e 
tr

av
el

, w
he

re
 f

ea
si

bl
e 

an
d 

w
he

re
 f

un
di

ng
 is

 a
va

ila
bl

e.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
2

9

59



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

T2
 -

 E
xt

en
d

in
g

 o
u

r 
ac

ti
ve

 t
ra

ve
l n

et
w

o
rk

 in
 n

ew
 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
to

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
ac

tiv
e 

tr
av

el
 a

cc
es

s 
w

hi
ch

 is
 

co
nv

en
ie

nt
, a

cc
es

si
bl

e,
 c

om
fo

rt
ab

le
 a

nd
 s

af
e.

 C
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
to

 a
ct

iv
e 

tr
av

el
 

ac
ce

ss
 m

us
t 

be
 g

iv
en

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

de
si

gn
 o

f 
ne

w
 re

si
de

nt
ia

l a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 a

nd
 re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
to

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 a

ct
iv

e 
tr

av
el

. 
Th

is
 w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 b

y:
 

• 
D

es
ig

ni
ng

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 re
si

de
nt

ia
l, 

bu
si

ne
ss

 a
nd

 re
ta

il 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 w

ay
s 

w
hi

ch
 p

rio
rit

is
e 

ac
ce

ss
 b

y 
w

al
ki

ng
 a

nd
 c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

ac
tiv

e 
tr

av
el

 n
et

w
or

k.
 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
al

l a
ct

iv
e 

tr
av

el
 s

ch
em

es
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

w
ith

in
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
re

 
co

ns
is

te
nt

 w
ith

 t
he

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

H
ig

hw
ay

s 
D

es
ig

n 
G

ui
de

 f
or

 N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 re
le

va
nt

 g
ui

da
nc

e.
 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

vo
id

 s
ev

er
in

g 
ro

ut
es

 u
se

d 
by

 c
yc

lis
ts

 o
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 o

r 
pr

ej
ud

ic
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 b
y 

w
al

ki
ng

 o
r 

cy
cl

in
g.

 If
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
do

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
w

al
ki

ng
 o

r 
cy

cl
in

g 
ne

tw
or

k 
th

en
 a

n 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ro

ut
e 

m
us

t 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
by

 d
ev

el
op

er
s.

 T
he

 
qu

al
ity

 o
f 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ro
ut

es
 m

us
t 

be
 o

f 
eq

ua
l o

r 
be

tt
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

th
an

 t
he

 
op

tio
n 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

w
ith

ou
t 

in
cu

rr
in

g 
on

-g
oi

ng
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
re

ve
nu

e 
co

st
s 

to
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

• 
Pr

ot
ec

tin
g 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
in

g 
hi

st
or

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 ro
ut

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 d

is
m

an
tle

d 
ra

ilw
ay

s 
in

to
 n

ew
 d

es
ig

ns
, w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

. 

• 
En

co
ur

ag
in

g 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 g
re

en
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

, w
he

re
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
, i

n 
ne

w
 a

nd
 e

xi
st

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

, t
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

en
ha

nc
ed

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 n

at
ur

al
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ts
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt
 e

co
sy

st
em

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

bi
od

iv
er

si
ty

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
3

060



St
re

et
sc

ap
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ho
rt

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
ca

r 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
al

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

ho
ic

es
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 b
eh

av
io

ur
; 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ev

er
yd

ay
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 re
si

de
nt

s;
  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 t

he
ir 

us
e;

 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
 f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
. 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y 

of
 ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ff
er

en
t 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 
sp

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

rin
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 is

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e;
 a

nd
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
ou

r 
ro

ad
s,

 f
oo

tw
ay

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
e-

w
ay

s,
 b

rid
ge

s,
  

m
ile

st
on

es
, s

ig
na

ge
, a

nd
 s

tr
ee

t 
fu

rn
itu

re
  a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
 t

he
ir 

co
nd

iti
on

.  

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
 m

an
y 

hi
gh

 q
ua

lit
y 

na
tu

ra
l a

nd
 h

ist
or

ic
 a

ss
et

s 
w

hi
ch

 in
st

il 
lo

ca
l p

rid
e 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 th
e 

co
un

ty
’s

 to
ur

ism
 ‘o

ff
er

’. 
Th

e 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
ha

s 
a 

st
ro

ng
 ro

le
 

in
 s

up
po

rt
in

g 
th

e 
co

un
ty

’s
 to

ur
ism

 p
ot

en
tia

l b
y 

ea
sin

g 
th

e 
m

ov
em

en
t o

f p
eo

pl
e 

ar
ou

nd
 th

e 
co

un
ty

, m
an

ag
in

g 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 ri
gh

ts
 o

f w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
re

ge
ne

ra
tin

g 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 u

rb
an

 s
tr

ee
ts

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 s

pa
ce

s.
 

Th
is 

po
lic

y 
st

at
em

en
t f

ul
ly

 s
up

po
rt

s 
th

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 th

e 
H

er
ef

or
d 

St
re

et
sc

ap
e 

D
es

ig
n 

St
ra

te
gy

 a
nd

 th
e 

ai
m

s 
of

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

d 
C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
Re

ge
ne

ra
tio

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 

w
hi

ch
 id

en
tif

y 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f ‘

qu
al

ity
’ i

n 
cr

ea
tin

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 im

pr
es

sio
n,

 u
sin

g 
th

e 
rig

ht
 m

at
er

ia
ls 

fo
r p

ub
lic

 s
pa

ce
s 

ne
xt

 to
 n

ew
 b

ui
ld

 a
nd

 re
no

va
tio

n 
sc

he
m

es
. 

O
ur

 H
er

ef
or

d 
C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
St

re
et

sc
ap

e 
Vi

sio
n 

an
d 

Pr
io

rit
ie

s 
do

cu
m

en
t s

et
s 

ou
t 

pr
op

os
al

s 
fo

r i
nv

es
tm

en
t p

rio
rit

ie
s 

fo
r t

he
 H

er
ef

or
d 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e 

pu
bl

ic
 re

al
m

. T
he

 
pr

op
os

al
s 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
in

 th
e 

do
cu

m
en

t, 
w

hi
ch

 lo
ok

 fu
rt

he
r t

o 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

do
m

in
an

ce
 o

f 
ve

hi
cl

es
 in

 th
e 

ci
ty

 c
en

tr
e,

 w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 th
e 

ba
sis

 fo
r o

n-
go

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 c
ity

 
ce

nt
re

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
 

W
e 

al
so

 a
ck

no
w

le
dg

e 
th

e 
im

po
rt

an
ce

 o
f r

ed
uc

in
g 

tr
af

fic
 a

nd
 v

eh
ic

le
 s

pe
ed

s 
in

 ru
ra

l 
vi

lla
ge

s 
an

d 
co

m
bi

ni
ng

 th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 c

on
ta

in
ed

 w
ith

in
 n

at
io

na
l p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

do
cu

m
en

ts
 s

uc
h 

as
 ‘M

an
ua

l f
or

 S
tr

ee
ts

’ a
nd

 ‘T
ra

ff
ic

 in
 V

ill
ag

es
’. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
3

1

61



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
ST

1 
– 

Im
p

ro
vi

n
g

 t
h

e 
p

u
b

lic
 r

ea
lm

 

W
e 

w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 e
nh

an
ce

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 in
 a

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
an

d 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
w

ay
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 m
ax

im
is

e 
th

e 
co

nv
en

ie
nc

e 
an

d 
co

m
fo

rt
 o

f 
al

l 
tr

av
el

le
rs

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 f

oo
tf

al
l a

nd
 e

nh
an

ci
ng

 a
cc

es
si

bi
lit

y.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
D

es
ig

n 
of

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

 t
o 

be
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

lo
w

 s
pe

ed
 t

ra
ff

ic
 f

lo
w

s 
re

in
fo

rc
ed

 
by

 2
0 

m
ph

 s
pe

ed
 li

m
its

 u
si

ng
 t

he
 m

in
im

um
 o

f 
si

gn
ag

e.
 

• 
Pr

om
ot

in
g 

a 
ba

rr
ie

r-
fr

ee
 p

ub
lic

 re
al

m
, a

llo
w

in
g 

fr
ee

 m
ov

em
en

t 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 
w

ith
 li

m
ite

d 
m

ob
ili

ty
 a

nd
, t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 a

vo
id

an
ce

 o
f 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
ba

rr
ie

rs
, 

ex
ce

ss
iv

e 
st

re
et

 f
ur

ni
tu

re
 a

nd
 s

ud
de

n 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 le
ve

l. 

• 
D

es
ig

ni
ng

 m
ea

su
re

s 
th

at
 a

llo
w

 t
he

 f
or

m
 a

nd
 p

at
te

rn
s 

of
 t

he
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
to

 b
e 

ea
si

ly
 re

ad
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

st
oo

d 
by

 p
ed

es
tr

ia
ns

, c
yc

lis
ts

 a
nd

 d
riv

er
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 

in
cl

ud
e 

na
vi

ga
tio

na
l a

nd
 g

ui
da

nc
e 

cl
ue

s 
fo

r 
pe

op
le

 w
ith

 v
is

ua
l i

m
pa

irm
en

t 
an

d 
in

fr
eq

ue
nt

 v
is

ito
rs

 t
o 

th
e 

ci
ty

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
oa

ch
 d

riv
er

s.
 C

le
ar

 g
at

ew
ay

s 
an

d 
tr

an
si

tio
n 

po
in

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
en

co
ur

ag
ed

 t
ha

t 
de

fin
e 

th
e 

bo
un

da
rie

s 
of

 t
he

 p
ub

lic
 

re
al

m
. 

• 
D

es
ig

ni
ng

 s
tr

ee
ts

ca
pe

s 
as

 a
 w

ho
le

, r
at

he
r 

th
an

 a
s 

a 
se

rie
s 

of
 s

ep
ar

at
e 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s.

 A
ll 

co
m

po
ne

nt
s 

of
 t

he
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 p
av

in
g 

m
at

er
ia

ls
, 

tr
ee

s 
an

d 
hi

gh
w

ay
 s

ig
ni

ng
, w

ill
 b

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

ed
 a

s 
fa

r 
as

 p
os

si
bl

e.
 

• 
M

in
im

is
in

g 
en

er
gy

 u
se

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

du
ra

bl
e 

an
d 

lo
ca

lly
 s

ou
rc

ed
 p

av
in

g 
m

at
er

ia
ls

. D
ec

is
io

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 m
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 c

om
po

ne
nt

s 
ar

e 
lik

el
y 

to
 

ha
ve

 e
nd

ur
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

s 
on

 t
he

 q
ua

lit
y 

of
 t

he
 lo

ca
lit

y 
an

d 
its

 p
ub

lic
 re

al
m

. W
e 

w
ill

 s
ee

k 
to

 a
vo

id
 m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 re
qu

ire
 re

pl
ac

em
en

t 
in

 t
he

 s
ho

rt
-t

er
m

, a
nd

 
se

ek
 t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
el

em
en

ts
 t

ha
t 

w
ill

 m
in

im
is

e 
th

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 c
os

ts
 a

nd
 

m
ax

im
is

e 
lo

ng
-t

er
m

 b
en

ef
its

. 

• 
D

es
ig

ns
 s

ho
ul

d 
re

fle
ct

 t
he

 d
is

tin
ct

iv
e 

qu
al

iti
es

 o
f 

H
er

ef
or

d 
an

d 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t 
to

w
ns

, a
nd

 a
vo

id
 re

pe
tit

io
n 

of
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

so
lu

tio
ns

 a
pp

lie
d 

el
se

w
he

re
. 

W
he

re
ve

r 
po

ss
ib

le
, d

es
ig

n 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

an
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f 

th
e 

hi
st

or
y,

 c
on

te
xt

 a
nd

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 c

ha
ra

ct
er

 o
f 

th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
3

262



Sm
ar

te
r T

ra
ve

l C
ho

ic
es

 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y;
 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ho
rt

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
ca

r 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
al

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

ho
ic

es
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 b
eh

av
io

ur
; 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ev

er
yd

ay
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 re
si

de
nt

s;
 a

nd
  

• 
M

ax
im

is
e 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 a
nd

 c
on

ne
ct

iv
ity

 w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
of

 a
ll 

tr
av

el
 o

pt
io

ns
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 f

or
 t

ho
se

 w
ith

ou
t 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
a 

pr
iv

at
e 

ca
r 

Sm
ar

te
r t

ra
ve

l c
ho

ic
es

 a
re

 lo
w

 c
os

t t
ec

hn
iq

ue
s 

fo
r i

nf
lu

en
ci

ng
 p

eo
pl

e’
s 

tr
av

el
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r t
ow

ar
d s

 m
or

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
op

tio
ns

 s
uc

h 
as

 w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 

tr
an

sp
or

t u
se

. B
ui

ld
in

g 
on

 b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fr

om
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t f
or

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
’s

 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
Tr

av
el

 T
ow

ns
, w

e 
ha

ve
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 a
n 

ea
sil

y 
re

co
gn

isa
bl

e 
br

an
d 

fo
r u

se
 in

 
ou

r m
ar

ke
tin

g 
ca

m
pa

ig
n 

to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

an
sp

or
t. 

 

Th
e 

‘C
ho

os
e 

ho
w

 y
ou

 m
ov

e’
 b

ra
nd

 (F
ig

ur
e 

A
) i

s 
ce

nt
ra

l t
o 

th
e 

D
es

tin
at

io
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
pr

oj
ec

t a
nd

 o
ur

 w
id

er
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

n.
  W

e 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

m
ar

ke
t o

n 
th

e 
D

es
tin

at
io

n 
H

er
ef

or
d 

pr
oj

ec
t a

nd
 th

is 
w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 d

el
iv

er
y 

of
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 in

 th
e 

m
ed

iu
m

 to
 lo

ng
 te

rm
. 

Fi
gu

re
 A

 –
 C

ho
os

e 
ho

w
 y

ou
 m

ov
e 

br
an

di
ng

 

Be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
su

gg
es

ts
 th

at
 is

ol
at

ed
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
 a

re
 g

en
er

al
ly

 n
ot

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l 

an
d 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

ar
e 

so
on

 fo
rg

ot
te

n.
 C

on
sis

te
nt

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

is 
im

po
rt

an
t 

to
 m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ca
m

pa
ig

n 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

bu
t t

ar
ge

te
d 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 
su

pp
or

t a
re

 c
rit

ic
al

 to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
nd

 s
us

ta
in

 b
eh

av
io

ur
 c

ha
ng

e.
 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SC

1 
– 

Sm
ar

te
r 

Tr
av

el
 C

h
o

ic
e 

M
ar

ke
ti

n
g

 C
am

p
ai

g
n

s 
an

d
  

B
ra

n
d

in
g

  

W
e 

w
ill

 u
se

 t
he

 ‘C
ho

os
e 

ho
w

 y
ou

 m
ov

e’
 b

ra
nd

in
g 

to
 c

oo
rd

in
at

e 
al

l t
ra

ns
po

rt
-

re
la

te
d 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
by

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 P

ub
lic

 
Se

rv
ic

es
 t

o 
pr

om
ot

e 
Sm

ar
t 

C
ho

ic
es

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
o-

or
di

na
te

 o
ur

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 S

m
ar

te
r 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
bu

ild
in

g 
on

 o
ur

 
co

re
 v

al
ue

s,
 t

on
e 

an
d 

st
yl

e 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

th
at

 w
ill

 m
ot

iv
at

e,
 in

fo
rm

 
an

d 
su

pp
or

t 
be

ha
vi

ou
r 

ch
an

ge
. 

C
am

pa
ig

ns
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 t
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 t

ra
ve

l m
od

es
 w

ill
 u

se
 

a 
va

rie
ty

 o
f 

m
ed

ia
 a

nd
 o

th
er

 e
le

m
en

ts
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 

• 
Bu

s 
Ba

ck
s 

on
 c

ity
 c

en
tr

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 re

fu
se

 f
le

et
 c

ou
nt

yw
id

e.
 

• 
Lo

ca
l r

ad
io

. 

• 
Lo

ca
l p

re
ss

 a
nd

 p
os

te
rs

 d
is

pl
ay

ed
 in

 p
ub

lic
 b

ui
ld

in
gs

. 

• 
A

cc
es

si
bl

e 
an

d 
at

tr
ac

tiv
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 a

ll 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
m

od
es

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
in

  
pr

in
t 

an
d 

on
lin

e.
  

• 
C

al
en

da
r 

of
 t

ar
ge

te
d 

pr
om

ot
io

ns
 t

o 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

tr
ia

l o
f 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

m
od

es
. 

• 
O

n-
go

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 t

o 
ad

vi
ce

 a
nd

 h
el

p 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 n
ew

 u
se

rs
. 

• 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
Tr

av
el

 E
ve

nt
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
Bi

ke
 w

ee
k 

an
d 

W
al

k 
to

 S
ch

oo
l w

ee
k.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
3

3

63



Tr
av

el
 P

la
ns

 

A
 tr

av
el

 p
la

n 
is 

a 
pa

ck
ag

e 
of

 m
ea

su
re

s 
pr

od
uc

ed
 b

y 
de

ve
lo

pe
rs

, e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

an
d 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
es

 to
 s

ol
o 

ca
r u

se
 fo

r t
ho

se
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
th

at
 

ac
ce

ss
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 lo
ca

tio
n 

on
 a

 re
gu

la
r b

as
is.

 T
ra

ve
l p

la
ns

 a
re

 c
en

tr
al

 to
 th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
of

 
Sm

ar
te

r C
ho

ic
es

 a
nd

 a
re

 p
re

pa
re

d 
as

 a
 c

on
di

tio
n 

of
 a

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
or

 o
n 

a 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

ba
sis

. 

In
 g

en
er

al
 tr

av
el

 p
la

ns
 in

cl
ud

e 
a 

co
m

bi
na

tio
n 

of
 in

iti
at

iv
es

 b
ot

h 
‘h

ar
d’

 (p
hy

sic
al

 
en

gi
ne

er
in

g)
 a

nd
 ‘s

of
t’ 

(n
on

-p
hy

sic
al

 e
ng

in
ee

rin
g)

 m
ea

su
re

s.
 A

 tr
av

el
 p

la
n 

co
ul

d 
in

cl
ud

e:
 c

ar
 s

ha
rin

g 
sc

he
m

es
; a

 c
om

m
itm

en
t t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
cy

cl
in

g 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s;

 a
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
or

 re
st

ric
te

d 
ca

r p
ar

ki
ng

 a
llo

ca
tio

ns
. I

t m
ig

ht
 a

lso
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

fle
xi

bl
e-

w
or

ki
ng

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 re

m
ot

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
nd

 v
id

eo
 c

on
fe

re
nc

in
g.

 

W
or

kp
la

ce
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
ha

s 
so

ug
ht

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

its
 W

or
kp

la
ce

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
n 

as
 th

e 
ex

em
pl

ar
 fo

r a
ll 

ot
he

r W
or

kp
la

ce
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 

el
ec

tr
ic

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
fo

r u
se

 a
s 

po
ol

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
to

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 it
s 

‘g
re

y 
fle

et
’. 

G
re

y 
fle

et
 is

 a
 te

rm
 u

se
d 

to
 d

es
cr

ib
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

’s
 o

w
n 

ve
hi

cl
es

 fo
r b

us
in

es
s 

us
e,

 fo
r w

hi
ch

 a
 m

ile
ag

e 
ra

te
 is

 p
ai

d 
fo

r c
la

im
s 

m
ad

e.
 

O
th

er
 th

an
 th

os
e 

se
cu

re
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

 w
e 

in
ce

nt
iv

ise
 th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
of

 W
or

kp
la

ce
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

tr
av

el
 g

ra
nt

 s
ch

em
e 

fo
r b

us
in

es
se

s.
 T

hi
s 

al
lo

w
s 

bu
sin

es
se

s 
w

ith
 tr

av
el

 p
la

ns
 to

 a
pp

ly
 fo

r g
ra

nt
 fu

nd
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 tr
av

el
 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 (c

yc
le

 p
ar

ki
ng

, l
oc

ke
rs

, s
ho

w
er

s 
et

c)
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 to

 w
or

k 
an

d 
re

du
ce

d 
bu

sin
es

s 
tr

av
el

. 

O
ur

 p
rim

ar
y 

fo
cu

s 
is 

to
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 m
aj

or
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
th

at
 d

o 
no

t h
av

e 
an

 e
xi

st
in

g 
tr

av
el

 
pl

an
 o

r t
ho

se
 th

at
 h

av
e 

a 
tr

av
el

 p
la

n 
w

hi
ch

 re
qu

ire
s 

up
da

tin
g.

 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SC

2 
– 

W
o

rk
p

la
ce

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
n

s 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

w
or

k 
w

ith
 e

m
pl

oy
er

s 
w

ith
 t

he
 a

im
 o

f 
re

du
ci

ng
 s

ol
o 

ca
r 

us
e,

 
pr

om
ot

in
g 

em
pl

oy
ee

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 t
ra

ve
l b

eh
av

io
ur

 a
nd

 r e
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 n
ee

d 
to

 
tr

av
el

 b
y 

de
ve

lo
pi

ng
 a

nd
 re

vi
ew

in
g 

W
or

kp
la

ce
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 a

nd
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

he
 

Tr
av

el
 f

or
 W

or
k 

H
er

ef
or

d 
ne

tw
or

k.
 W

e 
w

ill
 a

ch
ie

ve
 t

hi
s 

by
: 

• 
Fo

cu
si

ng
 o

n 
m

aj
or

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

w
e 

w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 s

ite
 v

is
its

 t
o 

au
di

t 
ex

is
tin

g 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
, p

ro
vi

de
 a

 t
em

pl
at

e 
tr

av
el

 s
ur

ve
y 

an
d 

on
-

go
in

g 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

nd
 a

dv
ic

e 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

ho
w

 t
he

 t
ra

ve
l p

la
n 

co
ul

d 
be

 u
pd

at
ed

. 

• 
In

ce
nt

iv
is

in
g 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

by
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 s
m

al
l-s

ca
le

 g
ra

nt
s 

fo
r 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

 
tr

av
el

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
.  

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
th

e 
Tr

av
el

 f
or

 W
or

k 
H

er
ef

or
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

fo
r 

di
ss

em
in

at
in

g 
tr

av
el

  
pr

om
ot

io
ns

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

er
so

na
l t

ra
ve

l a
dv

ic
e 

di
re

ct
 t

o 
em

pl
oy

ee
s,

 a
nd

  
pr

ov
id

in
g 

en
ha

nc
ed

 s
up

po
rt

 t
o 

H
er

ef
or

d 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

.  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
in

g 
sm

al
le

r 
em

pl
oy

er
s 

sh
ar

in
g 

si
te

s 
to

 w
or

k 
to

ge
th

er
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 

sh
ar

ed
 re

so
ur

ce
s 

to
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 t
ra

ve
l. 

• 
En

co
ur

ag
in

g 
re

du
ct

io
ns

 in
 g

re
y 

fle
et

 (e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

ow
n 

ve
hi

cl
e)

 m
ile

ag
e 

an
d 

 
pr

om
ot

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

lte
rn

at
iv

e 
m

ea
ns

 o
f 

tr
av

el
.  

Sc
ho

ol
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 

Th
e 

jo
ur

ne
y 

to
 a

nd
 fr

om
 s

ch
oo

l b
y 

ca
r i

s 
a 

m
aj

or
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

or
 to

 p
ea

k 
ho

ur
 c

ar
 u

se
 

w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
d.

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 m
or

ni
ng

 p
ea

k 
ve

hi
cl

e 
flo

w
s 

in
 2

00
9 

in
di

ca
te

d 
a 

20
%

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 tr

af
fic

 fl
ow

s 
du

rin
g 

no
n-

te
rm

 ti
m

es
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

d.
 

Sc
ho

ol
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

th
e 

us
e 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 m

od
es

 o
f t

ra
ve

l t
o 

pu
pi

ls 
an

d 
pa

re
nt

s 
vi

a 
so

ft
 m

ea
su

re
s,

 s
uc

h 
as

 c
yc

le
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
in

g 
w

al
ki

ng
 b

us
es

 a
nd

 
ca

r s
ha

rin
g.

 S
ch

oo
l T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 c

on
ta

in
 ta

rg
et

s 
fo

r m
od

al
 s

hi
ft

 a
nd

 a
 c

om
m

itm
en

t t
o 

m
on

ito
r t

ra
ve

l p
at

te
rn

s 
an

d 
re

vi
se

 a
nd

 u
pd

at
e 

th
e 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
3

464



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SC

3 
– 

Sc
h

o
o

l T
ra

ve
l P

la
n

s 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
sc

ho
ol

s 
to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 re
vi

ew
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
sc

ho
ol

 t
ra

ve
l p

la
ns

 t
ha

t 
ai

m
 t

o 
re

du
ce

 c
ar

 u
se

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 
be

ha
vi

ou
r. 

Pe
rs

on
al

is
ed

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
ns

 

Pe
rs

on
al

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
nn

in
g 

(P
TP

) i
s 

ty
pi

ca
lly

 d
el

iv
er

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
la

rg
e 

re
sid

en
tia

l a
re

as
. I

t i
s 

a 
w

el
l-e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
m

et
ho

d 
th

at
 in

fo
rm

s 
an

d 
su

pp
or

ts
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
th

at
 w

an
t t

o 
m

ak
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SC

4 
– 

Pe
rs

o
n

al
is

ed
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

n
s 

W
e 

w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 P
er

so
na

lis
ed

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
nn

in
g 

in
 t

he
 s

ho
rt

 t
er

m
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f 
th

e 
D

es
tin

at
io

n 
H

er
ef

or
d 

pr
oj

ec
t.

 P
er

so
na

lis
ed

 T
ra

ve
l P

la
nn

in
g 

w
ill

 o
nl

y 
be

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 h
ou

se
ho

ld
s 

w
ith

in
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 u
si

ng
 b

es
t 

pr
ac

tic
e 

to
ol

s 
an

d 
te

ch
ni

qu
es

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 in

 o
th

er
 U

K
 t

ow
ns

 a
nd

 c
iti

es
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 

• 
O

ne
-t

o-
on

e 
co

nv
er

sa
tio

ns
, e

ith
er

 a
t 

th
e 

do
or

st
ep

 o
r 

by
 t

el
ep

ho
ne

, b
et

w
ee

n 
re

si
de

nt
s 

an
d 

tr
ai

ne
d 

fie
ld

 o
ff

ic
er

s 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 a

nd
 m

ot
iv

at
e 

a 
ch

an
ge

 in
 

be
ha

vi
ou

r. 

• 
Th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 h
ow

 t
o 

tr
av

el
 s

us
ta

in
ab

ly
 (f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 m
ap

s 
or

 g
ui

de
s 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
lo

ca
l b

us
 n

et
w

or
k,

 w
al

ki
ng

 a
nd

 c
yc

lin
g 

ro
ut

es
). 

• 
In

ce
nt

iv
es

 t
o 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 m
od

es
 (f

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 f
re

e 
pr

iz
e 

dr
aw

s,
 p

ed
om

et
er

s,
 w

at
er

 b
ot

tle
s 

an
d 

bu
s 

tic
ke

ts
). 

Th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
Pe

rs
on

al
is

ed
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

nn
in

g 
in

 a
lte

rin
g 

tr
av

el
 b

eh
av

io
ur

 w
ill

 b
e 

as
se

ss
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 D
es

tin
at

io
n 

H
er

ef
or

d 
pr

oj
ec

t 
an

d 
if 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
gi

ve
n 

to
 e

xp
an

di
ng

 t
hi

s 
pr

oc
es

s 
to

 t
he

 m
ar

ke
t 

to
w

ns
 in

 
th

e 
m

ed
iu

m
 a

nd
 lo

ng
 t

er
m

. 

Sm
ar

te
r 

Tr
av

el
 C

ho
ic

e 
In

it
ia

ti
ve

s 

To
 ra

ise
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f a
w

ar
en

es
s 

in
di

vi
du

al
s 

ha
ve

 re
ga

rd
in

g 
th

ei
r t

ra
ve

l c
ho

ic
es

, w
e 

w
ill

 
de

liv
er

 a
 ra

ng
e 

of
 S

m
ar

te
r C

ho
ic

e 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 d
es

ig
ne

d 
to

 ra
ise

 th
e 

pr
of

ile
 o

f c
er

ta
in

 
tr

av
el

 m
od

es
. 

• 
Ch

oo
se

 C
yc

lin
g:

 L
ov

e 
to

 R
id

e,
 A

du
lt 

an
d 

ch
ild

 c
yc

le
 tr

ai
ni

ng
, i

m
pr

ov
ed

 s
ig

na
ge

, 
en

co
ur

ag
em

en
t f

or
 n

ew
 c

yc
lis

ts
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

se
rie

s 
of

 le
d 

rid
es

 a
nd

 p
ro

m
ot

io
n 

of
 b

ik
e 

hi
re

 
• 

Ch
oo

se
 W

al
ki

ng
: W

al
ki

ng
 C

ha
lle

ng
e 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
of

 w
al

ki
ng

 fo
r h

ea
lth

 le
d 

w
al

ks
 

• 
Ch

oo
se

 B
us

: N
ew

 tr
av

el
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ta

rg
et

in
g 

ne
w

 u
se

rs
 a

nd
 T

ry
 th

e 
Bu

s 
pr

om
ot

io
ns

 in
vo

lv
in

g 
lo

ca
l o

pe
ra

to
rs

 
• 

Ch
oo

se
 S

m
ar

t 
Ca

r 
U

se
: T

ar
ge

te
d 

pr
om

ot
io

ns
 to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 in

cr
ea

se
d 

sig
n-

up
 to

 
tw

os
ha

re
.c

o.
uk

 a
nd

 a
lso

 in
te

gr
at

io
n 

of
 P

ar
k 

&
 S

ha
re

/ P
ar

k 
an

d 
C

yc
le

 to
 h

el
p 

m
or

e 
pe

op
le

 to
 fi

nd
 a

 s
uc

ce
ss

fu
l m

at
ch

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
3

5

65



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
SC

5 
– 

Sm
ar

te
r 

C
h

o
ic

e 
In

it
ia

ti
ve

s 

W
e 

w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
nd

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

de
ve

lo
p 

th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 S
m

ar
te

r 
C

ho
ic

e 
In

iti
at

iv
es

 
pr

ov
id

ed
 t

o 
en

ha
nc

e 
an

d 
pr

om
ot

e 
sm

ar
te

r 
ch

oi
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 in

cl
ud

in
g:

 

• 
Su

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 E
ve

n
ts

 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

an
d 

pr
om

ot
e 

ke
y 

na
tio

na
l e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
in

iti
at

iv
es

 
w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
, w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 u

se
r 

gr
ou

ps
 t

o 
br

oa
de

n 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

an
d 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

fr
om

 t
he

 g
en

er
al

 p
ub

lic
. W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

pr
om

ot
e 

ev
en

ts
 v

ia
 

ou
r 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

n 
co

nt
ac

ts
 a

nd
 w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 e
m

pl
oy

er
s 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
Te

ac
he

rs
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

an
d 

sc
ho

ol
s 

to
 b

ec
om

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
. E

xa
m

pl
es

 o
f 

ou
r 

su
pp

or
te

d 
ev

en
ts

 in
cl

ud
e:

 

• 
Lo

ve
 t

o
 R

id
e 

w
eb

si
te

 

W
e 

w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

ou
r 

on
-li

ne
 c

yc
lin

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 t
hr

ou
gh

 o
ur

 L
ov

e 
to

 
Ri

de
 w

eb
si

te
 w

hi
ch

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
a 

ra
ng

e 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

fo
r 

ne
w

 a
nd

 re
tu

rn
in

g 
cy

cl
is

t.
 

• 
C

h
ild

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 C

yc
le

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

W
e 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 a
ll 

Tr
av

el
 P

la
ns

 b
y 

co
-o

rd
in

at
in

g 
a 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 c

hi
ld

 a
nd

 a
du

lt 
cy

cl
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 a

dv
ic

e 
on

 ro
ut

e 
se

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

cy
cl

e 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

cl
as

se
s.

 C
hi

ld
 c

yc
le

 t
ra

in
in

g 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 v

ia
 t

he
 s

ch
oo

l. 
A

du
lt 

cy
cl

e 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

co
un

ty
 t

hr
ou

gh
 o

ur
 t

ea
m

 o
f 

fu
lly

 q
ua

lif
ie

d 
Bi

ke
ab

ili
ty

 
cy

cl
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
st

ru
ct

or
s.

 

• 
A

ct
iv

e 
Tr

av
el

 S
ig

n
in

g
 U

p
g

ra
d

e 

W
e 

w
ill

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 c
om

pr
eh

en
si

ve
 re

vi
ew

 o
f 

si
gn

ag
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ci
ty

’s
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
ne

tw
or

k 
an

d 
w

ill
 o

ve
rh

au
l s

ig
ni

ng
 f

or
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
, c

yc
lis

ts
 a

nd
 p

ub
lic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
. 

Ra
is

in
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

in
g 

tr
av

el
le

rs
 o

f 
th

e 
op

tio
ns

 t
he

y 
ha

ve
, s

uc
h 

as
 s

ho
rt

 
cu

ts
 a

nd
 s

af
er

 ro
ut

es
 is

 a
 k

ey
 m

ot
iv

at
or

 t
o 

be
ha

vi
ou

r 
ch

an
ge

. 

• 
H

er
ef

o
rd

 C
yc

le
 H

ir
e 

H
er

ef
or

d’
s 

fir
st

 b
ik

e 
hi

re
 a

nd
 lo

an
 s

ch
em

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
in

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
fr

om
 2

01
2/

13
 a

nd
 

is
 m

an
ag

ed
 b

y 
ou

r 
pa

rt
ne

r, 
H

A
LO

. T
he

 s
ch

em
e 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 t
ho

se
 lo

ok
in

g 
to

 t
ria

l 
cy

cl
in

g 
to

 w
or

k 
or

 c
ol

le
ge

 a
nd

 e
na

bl
e 

us
 t

o 
di

re
ct

ly
 m

ar
ke

t 
cy

cl
e 

tr
ai

ni
ng

. 

• 
W

al
ki

n
g

 C
h

al
le

n
g

e 

To
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 in
cr

ea
se

d 
w

al
ki

ng
, w

e 
w

ill
 c

re
at

e 
C

ho
os

e 
W

al
ki

ng
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

pa
ck

s 
w

ith
 h

in
ts

 a
nd

 t
ip

s 
to

 b
oo

st
 re

gu
la

r 
w

al
ki

ng
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 a
 p

ed
om

et
er

 a
nd

 a
 re

co
rd

 
sh

ee
t 

to
 t

ra
ck

 p
ro

gr
es

s.
 In

 a
dd

iti
on

 w
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
le

d 
w

al
ks

 a
nd

 t
he

 a
nn

ua
l 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 W

al
ki

ng
 F

es
tiv

al
. 

• 
C

ar
 S

h
ar

in
g

 –
 in

cl
u

d
in

g
 P

ar
k 

an
d

 S
h

ar
e 

/ P
ar

k 
an

d
 R

id
e 

W
e 

w
ill

 p
ro

m
ot

e 
ou

r 
co

un
ty

w
id

e 
ca

r 
sh

ar
e 

sc
he

m
e 

(w
w

w
.t

w
os

ha
re

.c
o.

uk
) a

s 
a 

co
re

 s
up

po
rt

 f
or

 a
ll 

W
or

kp
la

ce
 T

ra
ve

l P
la

ns
 a

nd
 a

s 
a 

m
ea

ns
 o

f 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

ru
ra

l 
ac

ce
ss

. H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 h

as
 a

 w
el

l-e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

ca
r-

sh
ar

in
g 

sc
he

m
e 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

re
si

de
nt

s 
an

d 
pe

op
le

 w
ho

 w
or

k 
in

 o
r 

vi
si

t 
th

e 
co

un
ty

. T
he

 L
TP

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 t
o 

su
pp

or
t 

Tw
os

ha
re

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

th
e 

na
tio

na
l L

ift
sh

ar
e 

ne
tw

or
k.

 

Bu
ild

in
g 

on
 T

w
os

ha
re

 w
e 

w
ill

 d
el

iv
er

 a
 n

um
be

r 
of

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
Sh

ar
e 

si
te

s 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ru

ra
l c

om
m

ut
er

s 
w

ith
 m

or
e 

fle
xi

bl
e 

op
tio

ns
 f

or
 c

ar
 s

ha
rin

g,
 c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

pu
bl

ic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

. F
or

 m
an

y 
ru

ra
l r

es
id

en
ts

 c
ar

 s
ha

rin
g 

is
 n

ot
 a

 v
ia

bl
e 

op
tio

n 
du

e 
to

 t
he

 la
rg

e 
de

to
ur

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ee

t 
up

. P
ar

k 
an

d 
Sh

ar
e 

w
ill

 id
en

tif
y 

a 
ne

tw
or

k 
of

 h
ub

s 
fo

r 
ca

r 
sh

ar
er

s 
to

 m
ee

t,
 e

n-
ro

ut
e 

to
 t

he
ir 

de
st

in
at

io
n,

 e
na

bl
in

g 
m

or
e 

pe
op

le
 t

o 
m

at
ch

 jo
ur

ne
ys

. 

In
 a

dd
iti

on
, P

ar
k 

an
d 

Sh
ar

e 
co

m
pr

is
es

 a
 s

er
ie

s 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 h
ub

s 
on

 t
he

 f
rin

ge
s 

of
 

H
er

ef
or

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ev
en

 g
re

at
er

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 f
or

 s
ha

rin
g 

as
 jo

ur
ne

ys
 c

on
ve

rg
e 

on
 t

he
 c

ity
. M

an
y 

of
 t

he
se

 h
ub

s,
 e

sp
ec

ia
lly

 t
ho

se
 n

ea
r 

to
 H

er
ef

or
d 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
se

tt
le

m
en

ts
, w

ill
 e

na
bl

e 
Pa

rk
 a

nd
 R

id
e 

w
he

re
 u

se
rs

 c
an

 in
te

gr
at

e 
w

ith
 e

xi
st

in
g 

bu
s 

se
rv

ic
es

, a
nd

 P
ar

k 
an

d 
C

yc
le

 h
ub

s 
w

he
re

 u
se

rs
 c

an
 c

om
pl

et
e 

jo
ur

ne
ys

 b
y 

bi
ke

. W
e 

ha
ve

 e
ng

ag
ed

 w
ith

 a
 w

id
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 p
riv

at
e 

se
ct

or
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
a 

ne
tw

or
k 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 h

ub
s 

an
d 

sp
ac

es
 w

hi
ch

 a
re

 d
on

at
ed

 f
re

e 
of

 c
ha

rg
e 

fo
r 

us
e 

by
 s

ha
re

rs
. 

Th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

is
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
in

g 
sp

ac
es

 f
ro

m
 it

s 
ow

n 
pr

op
er

ty
 a

ss
et

s.
 

• 
C

ar
 C

lu
b

s 

W
e 

w
ill

 s
up

po
rt

 t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 le

d 
ca

r 
cl

ub
s 

by
 f

ac
ili

ta
tin

g 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 p

ar
ki

ng
 s

pa
ce

s 
fo

r 
ca

r 
cl

ub
 c

ar
s.

 A
llo

ca
te

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
w

ill
 o

nl
y 

be
 

pr
ov

id
ed

 f
ol

lo
w

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
3

666



D
ev

el
op

m
en

t C
on

tr
ol

 (T
ra

ns
po

rt
) 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ec

on
om

ic
 g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 c

on
ge

st
io

n 
an

d 
im

pr
ov

in
g 

jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y;
 

• 
En

su
re

 s
ui

ta
bl

e 
ac

ce
ss

 t
o 

ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

em
pl

oy
m

en
t 

si
te

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

 
Ro

th
er

w
as

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Zo
ne

;  

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
 

w
ith

 t
he

ir 
us

e;
  

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
 f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
; 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

an
d 

se
ve

rit
y 

of
 ro

ad
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

cc
id

en
ts

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 b
y 

re
du

ci
ng

 t
he

 c
on

fli
ct

s 
be

tw
ee

n 
di

ff
er

en
t 

m
od

es
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t,

 a
nd

 re
du

ci
ng

 
sp

ee
di

ng
 a

nd
 d

rin
k/

dr
ug

 d
riv

in
g;

 a
nd

 

• 
Pr

ov
id

e 
a 

ro
ad

 n
et

w
or

k 
th

at
 is

 s
af

e 
an

d 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 a

nd
 t

ha
t 

pr
ov

id
es

 a
 p

os
iti

ve
 

jo
ur

ne
y 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 

A
s 

a 
st

at
ut

or
y 

co
ns

ul
te

e 
in

 th
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 p
ro

ce
ss

, H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
as

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l 
H

ig
hw

ay
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

ha
s 

a 
du

ty
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t n
et

w
or

k 
is 

fit
 fo

r p
ur

po
se

. 

W
e 

en
co

ur
ag

e 
a 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p-

le
d 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 in
 th

e 
de

sig
n 

of
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 

ar
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

in
 tr

an
sp

or
t t

er
m

s 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 m
iti

ga
te

 th
ei

r i
m

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

ne
tw

or
k.

 T
o 

de
liv

er
 th

es
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 m

us
t b

e 
pl

an
ne

d,
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

co
ns

tr
uc

te
d 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
N

at
io

na
l P

la
nn

in
g 

Po
lic

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

lo
ca

l 
po

lic
ie

s.
 W

e 
en

co
ur

ag
e 

ea
rly

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

to
 m

ax
im

ise
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t’s
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 

po
te

nt
ia

l, 
w

hi
le

 m
in

im
isi

ng
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f n

ew
 a

nd
 re

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
sit

es
 

an
d 

m
in

im
isi

ng
 c

os
ts

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
3

7

67



Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
D

C
1 

– 
Pl

an
n

in
g

 f
o

r 
Su

st
ai

n
ab

le
 D

ev
el

o
p

m
en

ts
 

W
e 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
s 

of
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

on
 t

he
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 n
et

w
or

k 
ar

e 
fu

lly
 c

on
si

de
re

d 
fo

r 
ne

w
 o

r 
re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
si

te
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ac

hi
ev

ed
 

by
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e:

 

• 
Th

os
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 n
ew

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
’ m

us
t 

fo
llo

w
 lo

ca
lly

 a
do

pt
ed

 g
ui

da
nc

e,
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
H

ig
hw

ay
s 

D
es

ig
n 

G
ui

de
 a

nd
 S

pe
ci

fic
at

io
n 

fo
r 

N
ew

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
. 

• 
Th

e 
hi

er
ar

ch
y 

of
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 m
od

es
 is

 u
se

d 
to

 in
fo

rm
 t

he
 d

es
ig

n 
fo

r 
ne

w
 a

nd
 

re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

of
 s

ite
s.

 T
hi

s 
hi

er
ar

ch
y 

is
 n

ot
 a

n 
or

de
r 

or
 p

re
ce

de
nc

e 
fo

r 
ac

tu
al

 
pr

ov
is

io
n,

 b
ut

 s
im

pl
y 

an
 o

rd
er

 o
f 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
th

at
 s

ee
ks

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

de
ci

si
on

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

de
si

gn
 a

re
 c

on
si

st
en

t 
w

ith
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

e 
ob

je
ct

iv
es

 o
f 

th
e 

LT
P.

 

H
ig

he
st

 1
 

Pe
de

st
ria

ns
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 m

ob
ili

ty
 d

iff
ic

ul
tie

s 
2 

C
yc

lis
ts

 a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 u
se

rs
 

3 
C

om
m

er
ci

al
 / 

bu
si

ne
ss

 u
se

rs
 a

nd
 p

ow
er

ed
 t

w
o 

w
he

el
er

s 
4 

C
ar

 b
or

ne
 s

ho
pp

er
s 

/ v
is

ito
rs

 a
nd

 c
oa

ch
 b

or
ne

 v
is

ito
rs

 
Lo

w
es

t 
5 

C
ar

 b
or

ne
 c

om
m

ut
er

s 

• 
N

ew
 a

nd
 re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 a

re
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

an
d 

lo
ca

te
d 

to
 m

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

on
 

th
e 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
ne

tw
or

k,
 s

uc
h 

th
at

 jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
es

 a
nd

 jo
ur

ne
y 

tim
e 

re
lia

bi
lit

y 
do

 
no

t 
de

te
rio

ra
te

. M
ea

su
re

s 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 t
hi

s 
w

ill
 in

cl
ud

e:
 lo

ca
tin

g 
ne

w
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 o
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g,

 p
as

se
ng

er
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 a
nd

 h
ig

hw
ay

 
ro

ut
es

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s;
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
th

e 
us

e 
of

 n
on

-c
ar

 m
od

es
 s

uc
h 

th
at

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
 

on
 c

on
ge

st
ed

 s
ec

tio
ns

 o
f 

th
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
ar

e 
m

in
im

is
ed

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
in

g 
in

 
w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
pa

ss
en

ge
r 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
en

ab
lin

g 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 t
o 

be
 a

cc
es

se
d 

w
ith

ou
t 

in
cu

rr
in

g 
on

-g
oi

ng
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
re

ve
nu

e 
co

st
s 

to
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 C
ou

nc
il.

 

• 
N

ew
 a

nd
 re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
si

te
s 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
de

si
gn

ed
 a

nd
 c

on
st

ru
ct

ed
 in

 
a 

w
ay

 t
ha

t 
do

es
 n

ot
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

sa
fe

ty
 o

f 
hi

gh
w

ay
 u

se
rs

, a
nd

 w
he

re
 lo

ca
te

d 
ad

ja
ce

nt
 t

o 
ex

is
tin

g 
pr

ob
le

m
at

ic
 s

ite
s,

 in
co

rp
or

at
e 

so
lu

tio
ns

 in
to

 t
he

 d
es

ig
n.

 

• 
Th

e 
in

cl
us

io
n 

of
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 is

 t
o 

be
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
de

si
gn

 o
f 

ne
w

 a
nd

 re
-d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. 

• 
N

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

re
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
of

 e
xi

st
in

g 
si

te
s 

sh
ou

ld
 a

lw
ay

s 
av

oi
d 

se
ve

rin
g 

r o
ut

es
 u

se
d 

by
 c

yc
lis

ts
 o

r 
pe

de
st

ria
ns

 o
r 

pr
ej

ud
ic

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 b

y 
w

al
ki

ng
 o

r 
cy

cl
in

g.
 If

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
pr

op
os

al
s 

do
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

w
al

ki
ng

 o
r 

cy
cl

in
g 

ne
tw

or
k 

th
en

 a
n 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

ro
ut

e 
m

us
t 

be
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 d

ev
el

op
er

s.
 T

he
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 
al

te
rn

at
iv

e 
ro

ut
es

 m
us

t 
be

 o
f 

eq
ua

l o
r 

be
tt

er
 q

ua
lit

y 
th

en
 t

he
 o

ne
 im

pa
ct

ed
 b

y 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
w

ith
ou

t 
in

cu
rr

in
g 

on
-g

oi
ng

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 re

ve
nu

e 
co

st
s 

to
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il.
 P

ro
te

ct
 a

nd
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
in

to
 t

he
 d

es
ig

n,
 h

is
to

ric
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 
ro

ut
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 d
is

m
an

tle
d 

ra
ilw

ay
s 

to
 b

e 
us

ed
 a

s 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

lin
ks

. 

• 
Su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
U

rb
an

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
pr

in
ci

pl
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 a

ll 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 w

he
re

 
th

ey
 a

re
 p

ra
ct

ic
al

 a
nd

 t
ec

hn
ic

al
ly

 f
ea

si
bl

e 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

su
rf

ac
e 

w
at

er
 r

un
of

f 
an

d 
al

le
vi

at
e 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 f

lo
od

in
g.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
3

868



In
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
tr

an
sp

or
t i

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 c

an
no

t b
e 

m
et

 s
ol

el
y 

fr
om

 p
ub

lic
 

fu
nd

s.
 F

in
an

ci
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 fr

om
 th

e 
pr

iv
at

e 
se

ct
or

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 th
e 

pr
om

ot
er

s 
of

 n
ew

 la
nd

 u
se

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
, a

re
 re

qu
ire

d 
to

 re
fle

ct
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 p
la

ce
d 

on
 th

e 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 a

nd
 o

pe
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t n

et
w

or
k 

by
 n

ew
 a

nd
 re

-d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
D

C
2 

– 
D

ev
el

o
p

er
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

s 
to

 m
it

ig
at

e 
th

e 
im

p
ac

ts
 o

f 
n

ew
 

an
d

 r
e-

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
ts

 o
n

 t
h

e 
tr

an
sp

o
rt

 n
et

w
o

rk
 

W
e 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t 
on

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

ne
tw

or
k 

ar
e 

fu
lly

 c
on

si
de

re
d 

w
he

n 
pl

an
ni

ng
 n

ew
 la

nd
 u

se
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 t

o 
en

su
re

 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

, s
us

ta
in

ab
le

 s
af

e,
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
lly

 f
rie

nd
ly

 a
nd

 m
ai

nt
ai

na
bl

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
th

at
 t

he
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 le

ve
ls

 o
f 

fin
an

ci
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 a

re
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 

de
ve

lo
pe

rs
 t

ow
ar

ds
 t

he
 c

ap
ita

l a
nd

 o
n-

go
in

g 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 c

os
ts

 o
f 

on
 a

nd
 

of
f-

si
te

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
co

ns
id

er
ed

 n
ec

es
sa

ry
 t

o 
m

iti
ga

te
 

th
ei

r 
im

pa
ct

s 
to

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 n

et
w

or
k.

 

Fo
r 

m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 d
ev

el
op

er
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 p
le

as
e 

re
fe

r 
to

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 O

bl
ig

at
io

ns
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
D

oc
um

en
t.

 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
3

9

69



Pu
bl

ic
 R

ig
ht

s o
f W

ay
 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 n
um

be
r 

of
 s

ho
rt

 d
is

ta
nc

e 
ca

r 
jo

ur
ne

ys
 w

ith
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

pr
ac

tic
al

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
 c

ho
ic

es
 t

o 
su

pp
or

t 
su

st
ai

na
bl

e 
tr

av
el

 b
eh

av
io

ur
; 

• 
Su

pp
or

t 
ev

er
yd

ay
 p

hy
si

ca
l a

ct
iv

ity
 t

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
 o

f 
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
’s

 re
si

de
nt

s;
  

• 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

su
st

ai
na

bl
e 

tr
av

el
 c

ho
ic

es
 b

y 
re

du
ci

ng
 t

he
 s

af
et

y 
ris

ks
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
 

w
ith

 t
he

ir 
us

e;
  

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
 f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
; 

• 
Pr

ot
ec

t 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 h

ig
hw

ay
 n

et
w

or
k 

fr
om

 e
xt

re
m

e 
w

ea
th

er
; a

nd
 

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
co

nd
iti

on
 o

f 
ou

r 
ro

ad
s,

 f
oo

tw
ay

s 
an

d 
cy

cl
e-

w
ay

s,
 b

rid
ge

s,
  

m
ile

st
on

es
, s

ig
na

ge
, s

tr
ee

t 
fu

rn
itu

re
 a

nd
 s

us
ta

in
 t

he
ir 

co
nd

iti
on

  

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ig
ht

s 
of

 W
ay

 in
cl

ud
e 

fo
ot

pa
th

s,
 b

rid
le

w
ay

s,
 re

st
ric

te
d 

by
w

ay
s 

an
d 

by
w

ay
s 

op
en

 to
 a

ll 
tr

af
f ic

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 o

ve
ra

ll 
tr

an
sp

or
t a

nd
 a

cc
es

s 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 
A

lth
ou

gh
 th

es
e 

ro
ut

es
 a

re
 m

an
ag

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
a 

Ri
gh

ts
 o

f W
ay

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

la
n 

it 
is 

im
po

rt
an

t t
o 

re
co

gn
ise

 th
ei

r b
ro

ad
 fu

nc
tio

n 
in

: 
• 

Pr
ov

id
in

g 
lo

ca
l a

cc
es

s 
to

 b
us

 a
nd

 ra
il 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
su

ch
 a

s 
sc

ho
ol

s,
 

w
or

kp
la

ce
s 

an
d 

lo
ca

l s
er

vi
ce

s.
 

• 
En

co
ur

ag
in

g 
an

d 
en

ab
lin

g 
pe

op
le

 to
 u

se
 s

us
ta

in
ab

le
 tr

av
el

 m
od

es
. 

• 
En

ab
lin

g 
pe

op
le

 to
 ta

ke
 h

ea
lth

y 
ex

er
ci

se
 th

ro
ug

h 
w

al
ki

ng
, c

yc
lin

g 
an

d 
eq

ue
st

ria
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

. 
• 

En
co

ur
ag

in
g 

to
ur

ism
. 

• 
Pr

ov
id

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 c
ou

nt
ry

sid
e 

an
d 

gr
ee

n 
sp

ac
es

. 
• 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
oh

es
io

n 
an

d 
sa

fe
ty

 th
ro

ug
h 

hi
gh

 le
ve

ls 
of

 u
se

 o
f p

ub
lic

 s
pa

ce
. 

Pa
ris

h 
C

ou
nc

ils
 h

av
e 

st
at

ut
or

y 
po

w
er

s 
an

d 
al

so
 d

ev
ol

ve
d 

fu
nd

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
sc

he
m

es
 s

uc
h 

as
 th

e 
Pa

ris
h 

Pa
th

s 
Pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 c
an

 u
se

 to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f o

ur
 

Ri
gh

ts
 o

f W
ay

 n
et

w
or

k.
 T

hi
s 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 w

ill
 b

e 
en

ha
nc

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
pr

ov
isi

on
s 

of
 

th
e 

Lo
ca

lis
m

 A
ct

. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
PR

W
1 

– 
Po

lic
y 

B
3 

M
an

ag
in

g
 P

u
b

lic
 R

ig
h

ts
 o

f 
W

ay
 

W
e 

w
ill

 d
ev

el
op

, p
ro

m
ot

e,
 m

an
ag

e 
an

d 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

ou
r 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ig
ht

s 
of

 w
ay

 
ne

tw
or

k.
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 in
vo

lv
e:

 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
th

at
 t

he
 v

al
ue

 o
f 

th
es

e 
as

se
ts

 a
nd

 t
he

 li
nk

s 
w

hi
ch

 t
he

y 
en

ab
le

 a
re

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

an
d 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 o
ur

 p
la

nn
in

g,
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

sc
he

m
e 

ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
pr

oc
es

se
s.

 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
ou

r 
as

se
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
oc

es
se

s,
 a

s 
se

t 
ou

t 
in

 t
he

 T
ra

ns
po

rt
 

A
ss

et
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
, t

o 
pr

ov
id

e 
fo

r 
pl

an
ne

d,
 p

ro
ac

tiv
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

pu
bl

ic
 r

ig
ht

s 
of

 w
ay

. 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
an

d 
de

pl
oy

in
g 

th
e 

ca
te

go
ris

at
io

n 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

is
at

io
n 

sy
st

em
 in

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
w

ith
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
iti

es
 a

nd
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 re
pr

es
en

tin
g 

rig
ht

s 
of

 w
ay

 u
se

rs
. 

• 
C

on
su

lti
ng

 w
ith

 a
ll 

lo
ca

l c
om

m
un

iti
es

, a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f 

ou
r 

ac
ce

ss
ib

ili
ty

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s,
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
ke

y 
ro

ut
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 e

nh
an

ce
 t

he
ir 

ac
ce

ss
 

to
 a

 r
an

ge
 o

f 
de

st
in

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 t

o 
pu

bl
ic

 t
ra

ns
po

rt
. 

• 
Bu

ild
in

g 
ke

y 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

an
d 

lo
ca

l l
in

ks
 in

to
 o

ur
 L

oc
al

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

an
d 

in
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 li

st
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 t
o 

en
su

re
 t

ha
t 

th
ey

 c
an

 b
e 

sa
fe

gu
ar

de
d 

an
d 

im
pr

ov
ed

 t
hr

ou
gh

 t
he

 P
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

C
on

tr
ol

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
. 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 la

nd
ow

ne
rs

, d
ev

el
op

er
s 

an
d 

de
si

gn
er

s 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ts
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 ro
ad

s)
 d

o 
no

t 
fr

ag
m

en
t 

th
e 

rig
ht

s 
of

 w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k 
an

d 
th

at
 e

ve
ry

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 is
 t

ak
en

 t
o 

in
tr

od
uc

e 
en

ha
nc

em
en

ts
. 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
an

d 
ag

re
ei

ng
 w

ith
 a

ll 
re

le
va

nt
 s

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s 

a 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

 t
o 

ad
dr

es
s 

th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 o
f 

br
id

ge
s 

on
 t

he
 r

ig
ht

s 
of

 w
ay

 n
et

w
or

k.
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
4

070



A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

an
d 

N
oi

se
 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s;

 a
nd

  

• 
Im

pr
ov

e 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 s

tr
ee

ts
ca

pe
 f

or
 re

si
de

nt
s,

 s
ho

pp
er

s 
an

d 
vi

si
to

rs
. 

A
ir

 Q
ua

lit
y 

Lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

ie
s 

ha
ve

 a
 d

ut
y 

un
de

r t
he

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
t A

ct
 1

99
5 

to
 re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 a
ss

es
s 

lo
ca

l a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 w

ith
in

 th
ei

r a
re

as
. G

en
er

al
ly

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
 in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 is

 v
er

y 
go

od
. 

Th
e 

ex
ce

pt
io

ns
 o

cc
ur

 in
 c

en
tr

al
 H

er
ef

or
d,

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 a
nd

 o
n 

th
e 

A
40

 a
t P

en
cr

ai
g.

 

In
 2

00
1 

an
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t A
re

a 
(A

Q
M

A
) w

as
 d

ec
la

re
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
A

49
 (T

) 
co

rr
id

or
 th

ro
ug

h 
H

er
ef

or
d 

C
ity

 C
en

tr
e.

 T
he

 H
er

ef
or

d 
C

ity
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
 w

as
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
in

 2
00

8 
an

d 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

15
 a

ct
io

ns
 d

es
ig

ne
d 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ai

r q
ua

lit
y 

in
 th

e 
ci

ty
. C

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e 

ex
ist

in
g 

A
Q

M
A

 b
ou

nd
ar

y 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 a

s 
po

llu
tio

n 
le

ve
ls 

at
 H

ol
m

er
 R

oa
d 

ar
e 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
w

hi
lst

 p
ol

lu
tio

n 
le

ve
ls 

at
 W

hi
te

cr
os

s 
Ro

ad
 a

re
 

de
te

rio
ra

tin
g.

 

In
 2

00
5 

an
 A

Q
M

A
 w

as
 d

ec
la

re
d 

al
on

g 
th

e 
A

44
 in

 L
eo

m
in

st
er

 c
ov

er
in

g 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

Ba
rg

at
es

 Ju
nc

tio
n,

 a
nd

 a
n 

A
ir 

Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 is
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 b

ei
ng

 a
gr

ee
d.

 M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 th
e 

A
40

 b
et

w
ee

n 
W

ilt
on

 to
 P

en
cr

ai
g 

in
di

ca
te

s 
th

at
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 m
ea

n 
ni

tr
og

en
 d

io
xi

de
 th

re
sh

ol
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

su
rp

as
se

d 
(g

re
at

er
 

th
an

 4
0 

N
O

2u
g/

m
3)

, b
ut

 n
o 

fo
rm

al
 A

Q
M

A
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

de
sig

na
te

d.
 T

he
 e

xt
en

t o
f a

n 
A

40
 A

Q
M

A
 re

qu
ire

s 
lia

iso
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

H
ig

hw
ay

 A
ge

nc
y 

w
ho

 m
an

ag
e 

th
is 

tr
un

k 
ro

ad
. 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
A

Q
1 

- 
Im

p
ro

vi
n

g
 A

ir
 Q

u
al

it
y 

W
e 

w
ill

 a
im

 t
o 

re
du

ce
 a

ir 
po

llu
tio

n 
fr

om
 t

ra
ff

ic
 t

hr
ou

gh
 m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 m

an
ag

e 
tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

le
ve

ls
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 b
y:

 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
an

d 
pr

io
rit

is
in

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

sc
he

m
es

 w
hi

ch
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 t
he

 u
se

 o
f 

le
ss

-p
ol

lu
tin

g 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

m
od

es
, i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
al

ki
ng

, c
yc

lin
g 

an
d 

pa
ss

en
ge

r 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

w
ith

in
 u

rb
an

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ts

 a
nd

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 f
or

 jo
ur

ne
ys

 t
o,

 f
ro

m
 

or
 t

hr
ou

gh
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
A

re
as

. 

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
s,

 a
s 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
; t

o 
m

iti
ga

te
 t

he
 

tr
an

sp
or

t 
re

la
te

d 
ca

us
es

 o
f 

po
or

 a
ir 

qu
al

ity
. 

• 
W

or
ki

ng
 in

 p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

, p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 w
ith

 t
he

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
A

ge
nc

y,
 d

ev
el

op
er

s 
an

d 
To

w
n 

C
ou

nc
ils

 t
o 

im
pl

em
en

t 
th

e 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pl

an
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 d
oe

s 
no

t 
fu

rt
he

r 
de

te
rio

ra
te

. 

• 
En

su
rin

g 
th

at
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 A
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
in

 s
up

po
rt

 o
f 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

ns
 f

or
 n

ew
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 t
ak

e 
ac

co
un

t 
of

 t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 g
en

er
at

ed
 b

y 
ne

w
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

. 

• 
M

on
ito

rin
g 

ai
r 

qu
al

ity
, p

ar
tic

ul
ar

ly
 o

n 
tr

af
fic

 s
en

si
tiv

e 
st

re
et

s,
 t

o 
id

en
tif

y 
at

 a
n 

ea
rly

 s
ta

ge
, p

ot
en

tia
l a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n,
 a

nd
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

re
la

te
d 

ca
us

es
 o

f 
th

e 
ai

r 
qu

al
ity

 d
et

er
m

in
at

io
n 

an
d 

de
si

gn
at

e 
as

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
A

ir 
Q

ua
lit

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
A

re
a.

 

N
oi

se
 

N
oi

se
 m

ap
s 

sh
ow

in
g 

no
ise

 le
ve

ls 
fr

om
 ro

ad
, r

ai
l a

nd
 in

du
st

ry
 a

re
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 b
ei

ng
 

pr
od

uc
ed

 fo
r a

r e
as

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

U
K 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
W

es
t M

id
la

nd
s 

as
 p

ar
t o

f a
 s

tu
dy

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 b
y 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t f

or
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t F
oo

d 
an

d 
Ru

ra
l A

ff
ai

rs
. N

oi
se

 m
ap

s 
fo

r 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
re

 n
ot

 c
ur

re
nt

ly
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

bu
t w

he
n 

pr
od

uc
ed

 th
ey

 w
ill

 h
ig

hl
ig

ht
 a

re
as

 
of

 c
on

ce
rn

 s
o 

th
at

 fu
tu

re
 A

ct
io

n 
Pl

an
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

ev
el

op
ed

. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
4

1

71



Ze
ro

 a
nd

 L
ow

 E
m

iss
io

n 
Ve

hi
cl

es
 

Th
is

 p
o

lic
y 

st
at

em
en

t 
co

n
tr

ib
u

te
s 

to
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
d

el
iv

er
y 

o
f 

th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 

LT
P 

O
b

je
ct

iv
es

 

• 
Re

du
ce

 t
he

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

s 
of

 t
ra

ff
ic

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 C
O

2,
 a

ir 
qu

al
ity

 a
nd

 
no

is
e;

 a
nd

 

• 
M

in
im

is
e 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f 
tr

an
sp

or
t 

on
 b

io
di

ve
rs

ity
, w

at
er

 q
ua

lit
y,

 h
er

ita
ge

  
la

nd
sc

ap
es

 a
nd

 t
ow

ns
ca

pe
s.

  

Th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 o
f r

ur
al

 jo
ur

ne
ys

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 b

e 
m

ad
e 

by
 m

ot
or

ise
d 

ve
hi

cl
es

 d
ue

 to
 th

e 
di

st
an

ce
s 

tr
av

el
le

d 
an

d 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

as
se

ng
er

 tr
an

sp
or

t 
al

te
r n

at
iv

es
. T

he
 lo

ng
-t

er
m

 fu
tu

re
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

ho
w

 th
e 

ca
r w

ill
 b

e 
po

w
er

ed
 is

 n
ot

 
ce

rt
ai

n.
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f Z
er

o 
an

d 
Lo

w
 E

m
iss

io
n 

Ve
hi

cl
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
fo

rm
ed

 b
y 

m
ar

ke
t 

co
nd

iti
on

s 
go

ve
rn

in
g 

w
or

ld
 o

il 
pr

ic
es

 a
nd

 te
ch

no
lo

gi
ca

l a
dv

an
ce

s 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

ly
 b

at
te

rie
s.

 

Po
lic

y 
LT

P 
ZL

V
 1

 –
 Z

er
o

 a
n

d
 L

o
w

 E
m

is
si

o
n

 V
eh

ic
le

s 

W
e 

w
ill

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 t

ra
ns

po
rt

 p
ro

vi
de

rs
 a

nd
 b

us
in

es
se

s 
to

 e
nc

ou
ra

ge
 t

he
 u

se
 o

f 
m

or
e 

ef
fic

ie
nt

 v
eh

ic
le

s:
 

• 
A

im
in

g 
fo

r 
al

l c
on

tr
ac

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
bu

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 f

or
 li

ce
ns

ed
 t

ax
is

 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
hi

re
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

to
 c

om
pl

y 
w

ith
 E

ur
o 

5 
em

is
si

on
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 b
y 

20
18

 

• 
D

em
on

st
ra

tin
g 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
by

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
al

l H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 P

ub
lic

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
fle

et
 

ve
hi

cl
es

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 t
he

 la
te

st
 E

ur
o 

Em
is

si
on

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

• 
En

co
ur

ag
in

g 
bu

si
ne

ss
es

 t
hr

ou
gh

 W
or

k 
Pl

ac
e 

Tr
av

el
 P

la
ns

 t
o 

lim
it 

‘g
re

y 
fle

et
’ 

bu
si

ne
ss

 m
ile

ag
e 

an
d 

pu
rc

ha
se

 a
nd

 u
se

 m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 f

ue
l e

ff
ic

ie
nt

 v
eh

ic
le

s 
as

 a
 p

oo
l f

le
et

. 

• 
Pr

om
ot

in
g 

m
or

e 
ef

fic
ie

nt
 d

riv
in

g 
st

yl
es

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 t

hr
ou

gh
 t

ra
in

in
g 

co
ur

se
s 

an
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

. 

• 
C

on
si

de
rin

g,
 w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, i
nc

re
as

in
g 

th
e 

av
ai

la
bi

lit
y 

of
 

re
fu

el
lin

g/
ch

ar
gi

ng
 p

oi
nt

s 
fo

r 
el

ec
tr

ic
 v

eh
ic

le
s 

on
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 P
ub

lic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

ow
ne

d 
pr

em
is

es
. 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

)
4

272



H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il 
Lo

ca
l T

ra
ns

po
rt

 P
la

n 
(2

01
3/

14
 -

 2
01

4/
15

) 
4

3

73



If
 y

o
u

 w
o

u
ld

 li
ke

 h
el

p
 t

o
 u

n
d

er
st

an
d

 t
h

is
 d

o
cu

m
en

t,
 o

r 
w

o
u

ld
 li

ke
 it

 in
 a

n
o

th
er

 f
o

rm
at

 o
r 

la
n

g
u

ag
e,

 
p

le
as

e 
ca

ll 
01

43
2 

26
05

00
 o

r 
em

ai
l i

n
fo

@
h

er
ef

o
rd

sh
ir

e.
g

o
v.

u
k 

74



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson, Director for children’s wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

 

MEETING: CABINET  

MEETING DATE: 11 September 2014 

TITLE OF REPORT: Outcome of children’s safeguarding Ofsted 
inspection and action plan 

REPORT BY: Director for children’s wellbeing 
 

Classification  

Open 

Key Decision  

This is not a key decision. 

Wards Affected 

County-wide  

Purpose 

To note the outcome of the Ofsted inspection of services for children in need of help and 
protection, children looked after and care leavers, which was conducted between 29 April 
and 21 May 2014.  
 
To consider the council’s response to the areas for improvement identified. 

Recommendation(s) 

THAT:  
(a) note the outcome of the inspection attached at Appendix 1;   
(b) approve the action plan attached as Appendix 2 as the response to the areas 

for improvement identified;   

AGENDA ITEM 5

75



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson, Director for children’s wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

Alternative Options 

1 No alternative options listed as this is a report to enable Cabinet to consider and 
approve the proposed actions in response to Ofsted’s identified areas for 
improvement and make further recommendations. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The council is required to submit an action plan to Ofsted within 70 days of the 
publication of their report (which is 7 October 2014), outlining how it intends to 
address each of the identified areas for improvement, the timescales for action to be 
undertaken, and the monitoring and evaluation arrangements.  

3 In order for Cabinet to comment and approve its submission to Ofsted regarding the 
proposed actions to address the areas for improvement identified by Ofsted.  

Key Considerations 

4 The previous Ofsted inspection of children’s safeguarding in Herefordshire took place 
in September 2012, at which time services were found to be inadequate, with children 
potentially left at risk of significant harm in the county. The Department for Education 
(DfE) placed Herefordshire under an improvement notice, and has overseen the 
council’s improvement plan implementation and associated actions since, through the 
Herefordshire Safeguarding and Protecting Children’s Improvement Board. 

The inspection 

5 Ofsted returned on 29 April 2014 to undertake a combined inspection of services for 
children in need of help and protection, children looked after and care leavers, which 
also incorporated an inspection of fostering and adoption services, under the terms of 
their new inspection framework, implemented in November 2013.  

6 The outcomes of the inspection were as follows: 

• The experiences and progress of children who need help and protection – Requires 
Improvement 

• The experiences and progress of children looked after and achieving permanent 
homes and families for them – Requires Improvement, including:  

o Adoption performance – Good 
o Experience and progress of care leavers – Requires Improvement 

• Leadership, management and governance – Requires Improvement 
• The Effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding Children’s Board (LSCB) – Requires 

Improvement 
 

7 Overall Judgement:  Requires Improvement. (See Appendix 1 for full report) 

8 As part of the inspection, Ofsted identified a number of strengths including the 
following: 

• Councillors and senior managers show commitment to improving services to 
children and families – backed by resource allocation 

• Social work caseloads are now more manageable, linked to investment in the 
project team to address work backlog 

76



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson, Director for children’s wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

• Children and families are able to receive a wide range of early help support to 
prevent problems escalating 

• Children in need of protection are identified and assessed well. 
• Most children who are looked after live in high quality local foster placements 

9 Ofsted also reported that at the time of the inspection there were no widespread or 
serious failures that create or leave children being harmed or at risk of harm. 

10 These outcomes represented recognition from Ofsted as to the progress made by the 
council and its partners since September 2012.  It also recognised that progress had 
in some areas been very recent, and need to be able to demonstrate sustainability. 
There are 28 specific areas for improvement, detailed in Appendix 1. Whilst many 
relate to specific operational and practice improvements, there are a number of 
strategic recommendations, including: 

• Ensure elected members understand and effectively undertake corporate parent 
role 

• Ensure manageable caseloads 
• Robust audit and performance management 
• Ensure diversity issues assessed and addressed 
• Ensure partners and communities are aware of private fostering 

The review of the Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board (HSCB) 

11 Under the new framework, the HSCB was reviewed by Ofsted. The Board is an 
important component of the governance arrangements for safeguarding work in 
Herefordshire.  Details of findings are included in Appendix 1. Key findings for the 
Board include: 

• Governance arrangements between the LSCB and the local authority are well 
established. 

• The terms of reference for the LSCB are clear, as are the roles and 
responsibilities of the Chair and board members. The role of the LSCB Chair is 
sufficiently independent. However the respective roles of the Improvement Board 
and the LSCB are not sufficiently clear, with no protocol established between 
them. 

12 The Board also needs to submit an action plan, and Cabinet are invited to make any 
recommendations for change to the plan for the Board. 

13 Whilst the council is no longer judged as being inadequate, the council remains in 
Government intervention. This is in recognition of the recent nature of many of the 
improvements and needed to be able to demonstrate sustainability. 

14 However, the DfE are committed to a formal review of progress prior to the end of the 
calendar year, to establish whether progress has by that point been sufficiently 
embedded and sustained that they can recommend the lifting of the intervention 
notice to the minister.  It is the progress against the attached action plans by both the 
Council and the HSCB which will be central to the DfE review and recommendation to 
the minister. 

15 The council and its partners have made good use of external challenge and support 
to secure improvement, and the HSCB has commissioned a peer challenge for the 

77



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson, Director for children’s wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

autumn to provide further input to strengthen and improve so that it is ready to take 
over fully from the Improvement Board. 

The council’s action plan and performance monitoring 

16 The action plan, attached at Appendix 2 is iterative and will continue to be refreshed 
and updated. Cabinet will be kept informed of progress against the action as part of 
the performance reporting process. The plan includes clear responsibilities and where 
changes are made this will only be following evidence of the reason for the changes.   

17 As the Ofsted inspection took place in May, work has both continued and in some 
areas already commenced in connection with some of the actions as follows: 

• A Looked After Children Pledge will be presented to Council in September for 
formal adoption.     
 

• The Cabinet member for children’s services and cabinet support member have 
been speaking to local business leaders about apprenticeships and work 
experience for our looked after children.  

 
• A commissioning exercise has been undertaken and a contract awarded with 

respect to the development of the Herefordshire Intensive Placement Support 
Service (HIPSS) and Therapeutic Intensive Support Services (TISS), which will 
support vulnerable children and young people to remain in local placement 
settings as appropriate to their needs and reduce the need for high cost external 
placements. 
 

• The council has been quite clear that its ambition and expectation is for 
safeguarding services to be good by 2016/17. The Ofsted report and these action 
plans are important staging posts in monitoring progress to achieve this 
expectation and ensure that where child protection services are needed, they are 
of high quality.  

• The Council has established its longer term strategy to secure good child 
protection services within an environment of reducing resources. The priorities for 
change are to build independence and self-support within families and 
communities, including the use of volunteer activity; to target support services 
proactively in areas of need; and to change the models of delivery. These 
activities are set out in the children’s transformation programme, Children of 
Herefordshire Improvement and Partnership Plan (CHIPP) 

• Governance of the Ofsted action plans lie on a multi-agency basis with the 
Herefordshire Safeguarding Children Board; Council oversight will be through the 
performance framework, specifically the monthly children’s performance 
monitoring and the cross council quarterly performance reviews. Final challenge 
and assurance will occur through Cabinet, Scrutiny and the Health and Wellbeing 
Board, as appropriate. For the period that the Council remains in intervention, the 
Improvement Board will continue to monitor and secure assurance that change is 
continuing to take place and become embedded. 

Community Impact 

21  The successful implementation of the action plan will bring about further improvement 
towards achieving the council’s priorities of keeping children and young people safe 

78



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson, Director for children’s wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

and giving them a great start in life and enabling residents to live safe, healthy and 
independent lives; improving access to learning opportunities at all levels and 
improved outcomes for children and young people . 

22  Vulnerable children and young people, their families and carers, will experience 
different approaches to service delivery as a consequence of the implementation of 
the actions set out in the plan and in the context of the plan’s status within the wider 
children’s change programme. 

Equality and Human Rights 

23 As the action plan is implemented, equality impact assessments will be carried out 
where relevant to ensure that due regard is paid to the public sector equality duty as 
set out below: 

• "A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the 
need to - 

• eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct ... 
prohibited by or under this Act;  

• advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it;  

• foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and persons who do not share it."  

Financial Implications 

24 The actions included in the plan in appendix 2 can be contained within the current 
year’s budget.  Each of the areas for improvement is being progressed within the 
context of the directorate’s transformation programme, the Children of Herefordshire’s 
Improvement and Partnership Programme (CHIPP). As the transformation 
programme develops, detailed financial planning will be taking place with regard to 
the actions and where appropriate further reports will be presented to Cabinet or the 
cabinet member.   

 

Legal Implications 

25  Section 137 of the Education and Inspections Act 1996, requires the Council following 
an inspection report to prepare a written statement of the action and the period within 
which they propose to take that action. The attached action plans comply with this.  

26  The report must be published within 70 working days of receiving the inspection 
report and a copy must be available by either inspection at Council offices or by 
providing a copy upon payment of a reasonable fee.  

Risk Management 

27  Risks associated with the failure to implement the action plan are: 

• Reputation - should the council remain under an improvement notice. In 
particular, this has the impact of adversely affecting the recruitment and retention 
strategy and associated caseload management problems, which in turn have the 

79



Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Jo Davidson, Director for children’s wellbeing on Tel (01432) 260039 

 

potential to negatively impact on performance and quality of service for children 
and families. 

• The council returns to a position where there are widespread failures to protect 
children and young people from harm. 

• The HSCB is unable to demonstrate to the Minister its ability and capacity to 
effectively govern the improvement of the multi-agency response to safeguarding 
children, to enable him to be sufficiently reassured to lift the improvement notice.  

• Delays in implementing the necessary structural changes to the HSCB business 
unit will undermine the Boards ability to demonstrate its effectiveness. 

Consultees 

28  All members of the Herefordshire Safeguarding and Improvement Board, 
management board, children’s wellbeing directorate senior management team, HSCB 
board members and staff within children’s wellbeing directorate have been consulted 
and their views have been incorporated within the action plan.  

Appendices 

Appendix 1- Ofsted inspection of services for children in need of help and protection, children 
looked after and care leavers. Published 30 June 2014 

Appendix 2- Ofsted inspection May 2014 action plan 

Background Papers 

None identified. 

 

 
 
 

80



 

 

 1 

Herefordshire Council 
Inspection of services for children in need of help and 
protection, children looked after and care leavers 

and 

Review of the effectiveness of the local safeguarding children 
board1 

Inspection date: 29 April 2014 – 21 May 2014 

Report published: 30 June 2014  

The overall judgement is requires improvement  

There are no widespread or serious failures that create or leave children being 
harmed or at risk of harm. The welfare of looked after children is safeguarded and 
promoted. However, the authority is not yet delivering good protection and help and 
care for children, young people and families.  

It is Ofsted’s expectation that, as a minimum, all children and young people receive 
good help, care and protection. 

1. Children who need help and protection 
Requires 
improvement 

2. Children looked after and achieving permanence 
Requires 
improvement 

 

2.1 Adoption performance  Good 

2.2 Experiences and progress of care leavers 
Requires 
improvement 

3. Leadership, management and governance 
Requires 
improvement 

The effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) 
requires improvement  

The LSCB is not yet demonstrating the characteristics of good.  

                                           

 
1 Ofsted produces this report under its power to combine reports in accordance with section 152 of 
the Education and Inspections Act 2006. This report includes the report of the inspection of local 
authority functions carried out under section 136 of the Education and Inspection Act 2006 and the 
report of the review of the Local Safeguarding Children Board carried out under the Local 
Safeguarding Children Boards (Review) Regulations 2013. 

81



 

 

 2 

Contents 
Section 1: the local authority 3 

Summary of key findings 3 

What does the local authority need to improve? 5 

Information about this inspection 8 

Information about this local authority area 9 

Inspection judgements about the local authority 11 

What the inspection judgements mean: the local authority 31 

Section 2: The effectiveness local safeguarding children board 32 

What the inspection judgments mean: the LSCB 36 

 

 

82



 

 

 3 

Section 1: the local authority 

Summary of key findings 

This local authority requires improvement and is not yet good because 

1. Services for safeguarding children and young people in Herefordshire have 
only recently improved since they were judged to be inadequate in the Ofsted 
inspection of child protection in 2012. No widespread or serious failures were 
identified by this inspection that currently left children being harmed or at risk 
of harm. However, progress to improve how children are safeguarded has 
been slow and many improvements are very recent. Too many of the areas 
for development from the inspection in 2012 continue to be areas that require 
improvement. 

2. Services for looked after children have not improved since they were judged 
to be good in 2012 and some of the work has got worse because many staff 
have left and the local authority has found it difficult to recruit experienced 
permanent social workers and managers. This has meant that many looked 
after children have experienced too many changes of workers and some have 
not received good quality support or been able to form relationships with their 
social workers. 

3. In 2013 children’s services in Herefordshire experienced many difficulties, 
such as high numbers of referrals, high caseloads for social workers, many 
social workers and managers moving jobs and poor electronic recording 
systems. As a result children and their families often received services that 
were not good enough. 

4. Staffing remains fragile and a major challenge to maintaining improvements in 
the quality of work. More permanent social work and management staff have 
been recruited and many of the high number of agency staff who are being 
employed are on long term contracts. The use of agency social work staff is 
beginning to reduce from the September 2013 high of 50%.  

5. During 2013 the local authority and other agencies joined together to form a 
multi-agency safeguarding hub to receive contacts and referrals about children 
and to decide what action needed to be taken. At first this did not function 
properly, but from the beginning of 2014 it has improved and now assesses 
the needs of children and families well; it is better managed and improves 
how staff from different agencies share information. However, the service is 
still at an early stage of development.  

6. The authority’s children’s services have developed electronic systems to record 
details about children and families to allow managers and other agencies to 
understand what services are needed and how well they work. However, the 
information they contain is not accurate enough and managers often are not 
able to get the information that they need. 

83



 

 

 4 

7. Herefordshire has a relatively small number of children and families from 
diverse ethnic and cultural backgrounds. Few services have been developed in 
the area tailored to their needs. The diverse cultural and ethnic needs of many 
children and families who are known to children’s social care services are not 
properly assessed or met. 

8. Child protection conferences are not well managed and child protection plans 
made at conference are too vague. Most agencies attend conferences, but few 
children are invited. People who attend conferences often do not get the 
reports or minutes quickly enough. 

The local authority has the following strengths 

9. From the beginning of 2014 the quality of social work and operational 
management has significantly improved and the morale of staff has risen.  

10. Children and their families are able to receive a wide range of early help to 
prevent any difficulties that they experience from getting worse. 

11. Children in need of protection are identified and assessed well. Many more 
children have been helped through child protection plans than in previous 
years, and not many are subject to a second or subsequent plan.  

12. Most children who are looked after live in stable and supportive foster 
placements or in high standard residential accommodation that is in or close 
to Herefordshire. They are supported well by their carers and are helped to 
maintain positive contact with their families where this is best for them. 

13. Where children cannot live with their families, adoption is promptly considered 
and court proceedings are rapidly completed so that the children can quickly 
settle into new permanent families. People interested in adopting children are 
well prepared and supported throughout and following the adoption process. 

14. Local authority councillors and senior managers show commitment to 
improving services for children and families and have secured extensive 
financial and staffing resources. They have worked closely with partner 
agencies to improve how staff work together to prioritise the needs of children 
and young people in the area. The senior staff team in children’s social care 
services is now established and increasingly has gained the confidence and 
commitment of staff. 

15. Social work caseloads are now more manageable because an external agency 
has been temporarily brought in, until July 2014, to finish off work with some 
children and families. This has given space for the authority’s social work 
teams to improve their work. 

84



 

 

 5 

What does the local authority need to improve? 

Priority and immediate action 

16. There are no areas of priority action. 

Areas for improvement 

17. Ensure that caseloads in children in need and looked after children’s teams 
remain manageable and reduce caseloads within the Children with 
Disabilities service so that all social workers have sufficient time to provide 
children with the level of service they require. 

18. Ensure that the electronic case and performance management system in 
children’s social care provides accurate performance information. 

19. Ensure that audit and performance management is robustly and routinely 
undertaken by managers across children’s services and is effectively used to 
develop services and to improve the quality of practice.  

20. Ensure that consistent and high quality formal supervision of social care staff 
is provided and that all staff have regular supervision that provides reflection 
and challenge. 

21. Ensure that regular case file audits and re-audits within social work teams 
are undertaken and are used to identify areas of strength and development 
and to measure the effectiveness of actions taken to improve performance. 

22. Ensure that thresholds for access to children’s services are understood and 
consistently applied by local authority staff and partner agencies, so that 
children and families get the right help at the right time.  

23. Ensure that the independent reviewing officers effectively structure and 
manage child protection conferences and develop specific and measurable 
child protection plans. Ensure that there is effective leadership, practice, 
quality assurance and capacity within the Independent Reviewing Officer 
service.  

24. Ensure that all children with a disability known to children’s services are 
rigorously assessed to ensure that their needs are met and that the local 
authority is fulfilling its statutory functions.   

25. Ensure that information about children who go missing is effectively shared 
and robustly analysed between partner agencies.  

26. Ensure that the partner agencies and the community are aware of the need 
to notify children’s social care services of private fostering arrangements. 

27. Ensure that the Emergency Duty Team effectively supports young people 
held in police custody out of hours and that appropriate alternative 

85



 

 

 6 

accommodation is available to prevent young people being held in police 
custody overnight. 

28. Fully utilise Family Group Conferences to inform care planning, particularly 
where care proceedings are being considered. 

29. Ensure that diversity issues and the ethnic and cultural identity of children 
and their families are thoroughly assessed and addressed.  

30. Implement and monitor a robust system for making timely decisions to 
ensure there are no delays in accommodating children when they need to be 
looked after. 

31. Ensure that plans for permanency are made and clearly recorded at 
children’s second looked after review in line with national guidance. 

32. Develop specific assessment methods to inform decisions about whether 
siblings should be permanently placed together or apart. Record assessments 
and decisions in detail to reflect the significance of the decision being made. 

33. Ensure that regular analysis and reporting from the advocacy service 
provides an accurate account of emerging themes.  

34. Ensure that the virtual school develops and implements a strategy to narrow 
the gap in attainment between looked after children and all other children in 
Herefordshire. 

35. Ensure that all looked after children and young people make consistently 
good or better progress at every stage of their education and close the 
attainment gap between looked after children and all children in 
Herefordshire.  

36. Ensure effective joint working with the police and youth offending services to 
routinely record and analyse information about looked after children engaged 
in offending behaviour. 

37. Develop and implement working arrangements with local Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Service providers to enable better access to 
treatment for looked after children. 

38. Ensure that the children in care council is effective, is representative of the 
range of looked after children and has membership of the council’s corporate 
parenting group. 

39. Ensure all local authority elected members understand and effectively 
undertake their role as a corporate parent.  

40. Refresh and re-launch the recruitment strategy to increase the number of 
adopters for children with complex needs and for larger sibling groups. 

86



 

 

 7 

41. Ensure that all pathway plans are up to date, are of good quality, are based 
on a robust analysis of need, with clear and agreed goals and are regularly 
reviewed. 

42. Ensure that all care leavers receive a copy of their health records.  

43. Ensure that all looked after children and care leavers understand their rights, 
responsibilities and entitlements and receive the guidance, support and 
resources to realise them. 

44. Ensure that learning from complaints and representations from children and 
young people, parents and carers and service users is systematically collated 
and analysed and is used to improve service delivery and development. 

 

 

 

87



 

 

 8 

Information about this inspection 

Inspectors have looked closely at the experiences of children and young people who 
have needed or still need help and/or protection. This also includes children and 
young people who are looked after and young people who are leaving care and 
starting their lives as young adults. 

Inspectors considered the quality of work and the difference adults make to the lives 
of children, young people and families. They read case files, watched how 
professional staff work with families and each other and discussed the effectiveness 
of help and care given to children and young people. Wherever possible, they talked 
to children, young people and their families. In addition the inspectors have tried to 
understand what the local authority knows about how well it is performing, how well 
it is doing and what difference it is making for the people who it is trying to help, 
protect and look after. 

The inspection of the local authority was carried out under section 136 of the 
Education and Inspections Act 2006. 

The review of the Local Safeguarding Children Board was carried out under section 
15A of the Children Act 2004. 

Ofsted produces this report of the inspection of local authority functions and the 
review of the local safeguarding children board under its power to combine reports in 
accordance with section 152 of the Education and Inspections Act 2006. 
 
The inspection team consisted of seven of Her Majesty’s Inspectors (HMI) from 
Ofsted and an additional inspector (AI). 

The inspection team 

Lead inspector: Pietro Battista 

Team inspectors: Shirley Bailey, Brenda McLaughlin, Susan Myers, Lynn Radley, 
Judith Nelson, Lisa Williams (AI) and Steven Gauntley. 

88



 

 

 9 

Information about this local authority area2 

Children living in this area  

n Approximately 36,000 children and young people under the age of 18 years 
live in Herefordshire. This is 19% of the total population in the area. 

n Approximately 10% of the local authority’s children are living in poverty. 

n The proportion of children entitled to free school meals: 

- in primary schools is 10.5% (the national average is 19.2%) 

- in secondary schools is 9% (the national average is 16.3%). 

n Children and young people from minority ethnic groups account for 6.3% of 
all children living in the area, compared with 20.2% in the country as a 
whole. 

n The largest minority ethnic groups of children and young people in the area 
are White other (1.62%). 

n The proportion of children and young people with English as an additional 
language: 

- in primary schools is 6% (the national average is 18.1%)  

- in secondary schools is 4.3% (the national average is 13.6%). 
Child protection in this area 

n At 31 March 2014, 1,269 children had been identified through assessment 
as being formally in need of a specialist children’s service. This is a 
reduction from 1,444 at 31 March 2013. 

n At 31 March 2014, 237 children and young people were the subject of a 
child protection plan. This is an increase from 208 at 31 March 2013. 

n At 31 March 2014, four children lived in a privately arranged fostering 
placement. This is an increase from two at 31 March 2013. 

Children looked after in this area 

n At 31 March 2014, 242 children are being looked after by the local authority 
(a rate of 67.24 per 10,000 children). This is an increase from 216 (60 per 
10,000 children) at 31 March 2013. Of this number: 

- 65 (27%) live outside the local authority area 

- 14 live in residential children’s homes, of whom 92.86% live out of 
the authority area 

                                           

 
2 The local authority was given the opportunity to review this section of the report and has updated it 
with local unvalidated data where this was available. 

89



 

 

 10 

- None live in residential special schools3 

- 148 live with foster families, of whom 11.5% live out of the authority 
area 

- 11 live with parents, of whom one is living out of the authority area 

- There are no unaccompanied asylum-seeking children. 

n In the last 12 months: 

- there have been 17 adoptions 

- nine children became subjects of special guardianship orders 

- 95 children have ceased to be looked after, of whom three 
subsequently returned to be looked after 

- 19 children and young people have ceased to be looked after and 
moved on to independent living 

- No children and young people have ceased to be looked after and are 
now living in houses of multiple occupations. 

 Other Ofsted inspections 

n The local authority does not operate children’s homes.   

n The previous inspection of Herefordshire’s arrangements for the protection 
of children was in October 2012. The local authority was judged to be 
inadequate. 

n The previous inspection of Herefordshire’s services for looked after children 
was in October 2010. The local authority was judged to be good. 

n The previous inspection of Herefordshire’s fostering services was in March 
2013. The local authority was judged to be adequate. 

n The previous inspection of Herefordshire’s adoption services was in July 
2011. The local authority was judged to be good. 

n The previous inspection of Herefordshire’s services for private fostering was 
in March 2009. The local authority was judged to be inadequate. 

Other information about this area 

n The Director of Children’s Services has been in post since January 2012. 

n The chair of the LSCB has been in post since February 2012. 

                                           

 
3 These are residential special schools that look after children for fewer than 295 days. 

90



 

 

 11 

Inspection judgements about the local authority 

The experiences and progress of children who need help and protection 
requires improvement  

45. Children and their families who need early help are able to access a wide 
range of services that offer support to prevent their problems escalating. The 
recent reconfiguration of early help services into a more holistic family 
support service for children and young people up to 19 years of age is 
enhanced by co-location with children’s social care teams.  

46. The stability of the workforce in Families First enables children to build 
relationships with workers and to make positive changes in their lives; for 
example, to improve school attendance and to improve relationships at 
home. In the majority of cases seen, age-appropriate direct work with 
children was undertaken and used to inform case planning. Preventive work 
with children and young people is appropriately targeted to those at risk of 
becoming looked after. A large proportion of these children are subject to 
child protection plans or have recently been removed from such plans.  

47. The Common Assessment Framework (CAF) is embedded across the county 
and its use is slowly increasing. At the time of the inspection there were 950 
active CAFs. A further 400 CAFs had been completed and were waiting to be 
closed. Practitioners engaged in CAFs understand their roles and staff from 
many partner agencies take on the role of the lead professional. Information 
sharing at monthly Multi Agency Meetings (MAGS) ensures that children 
receive additional support when they need it from a range of agencies. 

48. The Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) has contributed to the recent 
improvement in multi-agency information sharing across the partnership. 
This enables partners to better identify children in need of help and 
protection. Currently the local authority and Herefordshire’s Safeguarding 
Children’s Board (HSCB) are reviewing their thresholds for services as they 
are not being consistently applied by staff across partner agencies, resulting 
in some inappropriate referrals to children’s social care services.  

49. Since January 2014, decisions by managers on contacts and referrals in the 
MASH are timely and in the majority of cases are appropriate with clear case 
direction. The process for managing referrals has been clear and most 
decisions to take action are made within 24 hours. Referrals that meet the 
threshold for an assessment are allocated to social workers promptly. 

50. Assessments of children’s needs by social workers in the MASH are prompt in 
the majority of cases, and most assessments result in the delivery of 
appropriate services. However, in a small number of cases, assessments 
focused primarily on mothers and failed to sufficiently consider adult males in 
the households. A few assessments were overly optimistic about what can be 
achieved by some families, leading to re-referrals and delay in understanding 

91



 

 

 12 

the children’s experiences. In some cases, inconsistent use of chronologies 
and recording resulted in key information not being effectively used to 
inform the analysis. 

51. In nearly all cases seen by inspectors, assessments did not demonstrate any 
meaningful consideration of the religious, ethnic or cultural needs of children 
or their families. Planning is not informed by the child’s diverse needs and 
children and their families are often treated as having the same needs. 

52. Neglect was a major factor in most cases seen by inspectors. Recent 
improvements in early help services have enabled early recognition of signs 
of neglect in families and more timely work to tackle the causes. However, in 
a few cases where management oversight was poor, delay in recognising the 
impact of chronic neglect on children resulted in an approach that was too 
focused on the needs of adults or on the presenting incident. The local 
authority’s own audits identify the need to improve the quality of assessment 
for children and young people who suffer neglect. Staff are beginning to be 
trained in a variety of methods to measure the impact of neglect. 

53. Since January 2014 management oversight of casework has become more 
robust. This has resulted in some improvement in practice and in the 
timeliness of work undertaken with children and families. However, 
inspectors saw many cases where the standards of social work assessment, 
support and case planning and management oversight were inadequate 
throughout 2013. This was confirmed by audits undertaken by the local 
authority, LSCB and partners in that period. 

54. Since January 2014 referrals that meet the threshold for a child protection 
enquiry have been appropriately undertaken by suitably qualified social 
workers. Child protection strategy discussions that include relevant partner 
agencies are timely. Follow-up strategy meetings are fully recorded and 
result in well coordinated arrangements to protect children. No cases were 
seen of children and families being subjected to child protection 
investigations unnecessarily and none where children were left at risk of 
harm. Two cases were brought to the attention of children’s social care 
services by inspectors where necessary child protection enquires had not 
been undertaken. Appropriate immediate action was taken to ensure that the 
children were safe. 

55. The majority of child protection case conferences are appropriately held 
within timescales, are quorate and have good multi-agency attendance by 
partners. This results in the timely progression of child protection plans by 
core groups. However, conferences observed were poorly managed and 
meetings were too long and unfocused. Lack of capacity in administrative 
support for conferences results in unacceptable delays in distributing 
invitations to meetings, minutes and plans. In one case a parent reported 
receiving the conference minutes and child protection plan at the review 
conference six months later. 

92



 

 

 13 

56. Outline plans made at initial child protection conferences are not sufficiently 
specific and measurable. They are too long and lack clarity on actions and 
timescales. However, most core groups are developing more robust child 
protection plans. Core groups are regularly held and are well attended by a 
range of agencies. Children subject to child protection plans are seen 
regularly and are seen alone where appropriate. 

57. The local authority has taken decisive action to reduce social work caseloads 
to a manageable level. Caseloads have reduced from an average of over 30 
in October 2013 to an average of 18 at the time of the inspection. This has 
been achieved by commissioning an external agency social work team to 
complete some work, provisionally until July 2014. The impact has been 
positive on staff morale and now social workers have time to spend with 
children which enables them to improve the quality of direct work with 
children and families. Improvements in practice are evident, particularly in 
the last three months, but have yet to be sustained. 

58. Management oversight of social work practice and clarity of managers’ 
decision making and direction in cases has begun to improve slowly. 
However management decisions and the reasons were not recorded well 
enough in the majority of cases. Supervision of social work staff is improving 
in regularity, but remains inconsistent in its quality. The local authority has 
recognised this and has recently provided supervision training to managers. 

59. Children and their families have experienced frequent changes in social 
workers, often at short notice. For example, in two cases seen there had 
been eight different social workers in a two year period. This negatively 
affects the development of meaningful relationships with their social workers 
and has led to drift and delay. Where relationships with social workers have 
been sustained, inspectors saw examples of effective work leading to good 
outcomes for those children. 

60. Inspectors reviewed 11 cases where children were living in households 
where there are concerns about parental mental health, domestic abuse and 
substance abuse. Similar significant improvement was evident from January 
2014, with good child-focused direct work and assessment using research-
based analysis and risk assessment. Collaborative partnerships working with 
the Drug & Alcohol Services, the adult mental health service and police in 
these cases resulted in timely intervention and better outcomes for those 
families. 

61. The Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) is well established 
to consider children in families where domestic violence is known, with good 
representation and input from partner agencies. Inspectors saw evidence of 
appropriate communication between the police and children's social care 
services through the MARAC with strong links to the Multi-Agency Public 
Protection arrangements. 

93



 

 

 14 

62. Arrangements for identifying and tracking individual young people who are 
missing from home are now managed and progressed well by the MASH 
team. A return interview takes place within 48 hours by staff from the early 
help service. Interviews are recorded and address issues of safety and 
vulnerability to sexual exploitation.  However, information from return 
interviews is not routinely collated or analysed to understand trends, and is 
not shared with the police to enable them to develop local intelligence. 

63. Effective work is undertaken to identify and respond to individual young 
people at risk of child sexual exploitation. In most cases seen, strategy 
meetings and child protection conferences were held where it was 
appropriate to do so.  

64. Children who are missing from care, particularly those children placed in the 
area by another authority, do not receive a consistent response. Data on the 
number and type of incident is not robustly maintained or analysed. The 
number of reported missing episodes of looked after children is rising, as are 
the number of children who go missing three or more times in a 90-day 
period. The lack of a robust multi-agency approach means that for most 
children this is being managed on a case-by-case basis without consistent 
collaborative information sharing. 

65. At the time of the inspection 17 children were missing from education. Clear 
protocols are in place between schools, the fair access panel and children’s 
social care services. As a result, children missing from education receive a 
consistent response and any children not found within 14 days are referred 
to the MASH and are appropriately assessed. There are currently 100 
children home educated, who are subject of robust safeguarding 
consideration. 

66. The eligibility criteria for children with disabilities (CWD) lacks clarity and this 
means that children who have a disability are not always appropriately 
identified. Some children in receipt of respite care who meet the criteria are 
not currently being reviewed by the Independent Reviewing service. In one 
case, a young person in a joint-funded placement had not been reviewed by 
the local authority for five years. Inspectors reviewed all the current children 
with disabilities where there were child protection concerns, and recent risk 
assessments are robust. However, in one case child protection concerns had 
not been properly considered in 2013, and the local authority acknowledged 
this.  

67. Few children are enabled or encouraged to attend child protection 
conferences.  Advocates are available for children over ten who do effectively 
represent their views, although this support is not extended to 
representation at core groups.  The voice of younger children is not 
independently represented as there is no advocacy service offered to 
children under ten years old. 

94



 

 

 15 

68. Arrangements to identify and support children who are privately fostered are 
underdeveloped and issues identified in previous inspections of 
Herefordshire’s private fostering have not been fully addressed. During the 
inspection the local authority reported they were aware of seven private 
fostering arrangements. All four cases seen by inspectors had a private 
fostering assessment and appropriate visits had been undertaken. There is 
an on-line private fostering training module and a poster campaign in schools 
and children’s centres, but little evidence that awareness raising initiatives 
are having any impact. 

69. Arrangements for managing and responding to allegations of abuse or 
mistreatment of children by professionals and carers, through the Local 
Authority Designated Officer (LADO) have recently been reviewed. All cases 
seen by inspectors were responded to appropriately. Outcomes of referrals 
to the LADO are reported to the Local Safeguarding Children Board.  

70. The Emergency Duty Team (EDT) for children is commissioned from a 
neighbouring authority. Effective systems are in place which ensure good 
communication between the EDT and the social work teams and access to 
electronic case files. However, arrangements for young people detained in 
police custody needing alternative accommodation out of office hours are 
poor. There is no local authority emergency accommodation for children held 
by the police. The EDT do not always sufficiently explore all options, 
resulting in young people being detained in police cells overnight 
unnecessarily. This was identified in previous inspection by HMIC in 
September 2013 and has not been resolved. 

The experiences and progress of children looked after and achieving 
permanence requires improvement  

71. For children where family breakdown is likely, intensive support services 
provided by the early help team work well and improve outcomes for the 
majority of children. Targeted youth support working in partnership with 
social workers also provides help for those at risk of becoming looked after. 
Edge of care services are located within the children in need service. The 
placement panel provides routine oversight, case guidance and monitoring of 
edge of care work. 

72. Where legal processes are required to secure a safe future for children 
improvements have, in most cases, resulted in effective use of the public law 
outline (PLO) and legal planning meetings. However, in four cases out of six 
seen children did not become looked after promptly enough as a result of 
delay in taking assertive action prior to 2014. 

73. Family Group Conferences (FGC’s) are not used to inform legal planning. The 
service is under-resourced and poorly developed, and generally staff in 
children’s services are unaware of the benefits that FGC’s bring to effective 
care planning. Early identification of children requiring permanence is 

95



 

 

 16 

achieved by adoption managers’ routine attendance at legal planning 
meetings.  

74. The development of the court team over the last year is positive, and where 
children need the protection of legal orders work is timely and delays are the 
exception. Nearly all cases are completed within 30 weeks and performance 
in the timeliness of court proceedings continues to improve. The Judiciary 
and CAFCASS report that Herefordshire is raising its practice standards, 
although they acknowledge that some social work court reports are still 
insufficiently analytical.  

75. Where looked after children are returned to their families, reunification plans 
are not consistently robust. In three cases out of the 15 seen work was well 
planned and structured to support children’s return home. However, in 
others children returned home in an unplanned way, without planned 
support, and in one case a young person moved in and out of care several 
times in a short period. 

76. Enabling children to maintain positive contact with their families is a priority 
in care planning, and social workers take a flexible approach to ensure that 
children benefit from and enjoy contact. When contact is being planned or 
reviewed children’s views are sought and taken into account. They are able 
to influence how often they see their relatives and for how long.  Resourcing 
supervision of contact remains a challenge for the local authority, and recent 
improvements include the provision of additional staffing and an in-house 
manager to oversee and co-ordinate arrangements. 

77. The vast majority of the 65 children who are placed outside of Herefordshire 
are not disadvantaged and their needs are currently met. 42 are placed in 
adjoining authorities. Children are only placed at distance to meet their 
individual, specific needs, for example to be with family members or because 
of complex disabilities. Social workers visit children regularly and routine 
monitoring of provider standards is undertaken by a contracting team. A 
young person living out of the area reports very good care, access to 
specialist help and high levels of satisfaction with the support that they 
receive.  

78. Permanence plans are not always made as promptly as they should be. 
Managers acknowledge that these plans are not always made at the second 
review and can be significantly delayed. A small number of plans were seen 
which were not prompt or focused where young people were accommodated 
on an emergency basis.  

79. Care plans are reviewed in a timely way and the views of children and young 
people are sought and are included.  An advocacy service is available and 
either a young person or their carer can make a referral. The number of 
times advocacy is used for children looked after appears high at 116 in the 
last year; no analysis has been undertaken to determine how effective the 

96



 

 

 17 

service is or what issues it helps to address. In addition young people report 
there can be a long wait to see an advocate.  

80. Independent Reviewing Officers (IROs) routinely see children prior to their 
review and very occasionally between review dates. Where plans for 
permanence are not made promptly enough or use of the PLO is prolonged, 
IROs do not always challenge practice. Some reviews are chaired well by 
IROs, who are sensitive to the needs and emotions of children and family 
members. Managers acknowledge that substantial work is required to fully 
implement the requirements of the IRO handbook. The quality assurance 
role of IROs is underdeveloped and currently the IRO team does not have 
sufficient capacity to progress and develop its work as swiftly as it needs to. 
The drive and leadership required to ensure the IRO service becomes fully 
effective is not evident.    

81. For some brothers and sisters with permanence plans a specialist therapist 
within the adoption team provides good quality assessments of whether they 
should live together or separately. For other children, placement planning 
meetings make these decisions and the minutes seen were poorly recorded 
and did not reflect the significance of the decisions made. Where children 
achieve permanence through long-term fostering the match to their carer is 
thoroughly considered at Placement Panel. Matching reports are good and 
the significance of the event is marked by a letter and certificate for the child 
from the Head of Service.  

82. The vast majority of children live in good quality, stable foster care and 
appropriate use of Independent Fostering Agencies ensures that there is 
sufficient placement choice. Placement stability is good, with only 7% of 
children having three or more placement moves in a year in 2012–13 
compared to a national average of 11%. Children seen understand why they 
are in care and what their care plans mean for them. They all say that they 
feel safe at home and school. Whilst children make meaningful and positive 
relationships with their carers, often they experience many changes in social 
worker without any warning or reason being given. Further, they are not 
always made aware of and sure of their rights and entitlements. 

83. Performance in securing permanent arrangements for children through the 
use of special guardianship (SGO) is good. In 2012–13, 21% of children left 
care through SGO compared to statistical neighbours at 9%. Currently 65 
children are subject to special guardianship and a full review of their 
placements and support plans is taking place. Plans are well advanced to 
implement a kinship and special guardians’ unit to centralise and improve 
standards of support. 

84. The local authority meets its duty to ensure that there are sufficient suitable 
placements to meet children’s needs through the use of in-house and 
purchased placements. A well-planned sufficiency strategy is in place and 
future projections of need are realistic. Placement costs are benchmarked 

97



 

 

 18 

against both neighbouring authorities and national averages. Managers have 
appropriate plans to increase their in-house provision and demonstrate 
success through an additional 14 carers in the last year. Kinship care is 
routinely used, underpinned by appropriate assessments, and numbers are 
steadily increasing.  

85. Family-finding strategies for children who require permanence through long-
term fostering are effective and are informed by a detailed knowledge of 
children’s needs.  Placement support is good and meets the child’s and 
carer’s needs. Fostering files are clear and well-maintained. Training for 
carers is good, wide-ranging and easily accessible. Children receive effective 
individual support when needed from a specific family support worker who is 
a member of the fostering team. Delegation of day-to-day authority to 
enable foster carers to make decisions about children is clear. Foster carers 
receive good management oversight. Routine reviews of foster carers, 
unannounced visits, and required reference checks are all undertaken and 
are recorded well in case files. 

86. An experienced, independent chair of the Fostering Panel works well with the 
Agency Decision Maker (ADM) to ensure that safe decisions are made about 
the approval and review of foster carers. The panel is appropriately 
constituted, has a measured approach and provides robust quality assurance 
of the work it oversees.   

87. The majority of looked after children are now making the educational 
progress expected of their age, taking into account their often low starting 
points when they enter care. In 2012/3, however, progress and attainment 
at Key Stage 2 dropped well below the national average for looked after 
children because only 5 out of 15 children achieved as expected. At Key 
Stage 4, most made good progress and seven out of 14 gained five or more 
good GCSEs, following improvement on the previous two years performance. 
Most of the remainder gained at least five A-G grades at the same level. The 
proportion achieving good grades in English and mathematics remains in line 
with the national average for looked after children and, therefore, the gap in 
attainment with all children in Herefordshire is not closing.  

88. School attendance of looked after children is good. Those with a history of 
persistent absence prior to coming into care improve their attendance 
rapidly. Behaviour of looked after children at school is good and resulted in a 
low level of fixed-term exclusions that has fallen further this year, with 20 
incidences to date. There were no permanent exclusions of looked after 
children in the two school years to 2013, however, one child has been 
excluded this year. 

89. The virtual school has had a positive impact on raising the profile of looked 
after children, in partnership with a well-established network of designated 
teachers. The large majority of looked after children are in schools judged to 
be good or outstanding by Ofsted. Additional support has been put in place 

98



 

 

 19 

for the 24 children already attending two local schools when they were not 
judged good by Ofsted. Progress in all education placements is monitored, 
including for the seven children receiving alternative education or less than 
25 hours education for medical reasons. No looked after child was missing 
from education at the time of the inspection. The virtual school’s active 
involvement in care placement planning enables suitable education to be 
found swiftly, in or outside the county, and most children enjoy good 
continuity in schooling throughout their time in care.  

90. Good quality personal education plans (PEP) underpin the tracking of 
individual pupil attendance, behaviour, progress and attainment. Children 
play an active part in PEP meetings and plans are readily available to social 
workers and IROs to use in looked after children reviews. Nine of 12 plans 
seen by inspectors were good, comprehensive and meaningful for all 
concerned, including children and young people. Suitable attention is paid to 
personal and social development as well as behaviour and learning goals. 
However, academic target setting does not always focus sufficiently on 
rapidly improving the progress of children who are, or are at risk of, falling 
behind.                

91. The virtual school’s capacity to directly provide targeted support to children 
has been strengthened this year by retaining a proportion of the pupil 
premium which is delegated to schools. There is keen awareness that more 
needs to be done to close the attainment gap and additional education 
psychology support, group and individual tuition and activities to raise 
aspirations are underway. Children benefit from a diverse range of 
recreational activities and opportunities in and outside of school. The 
participation project within the virtual school runs popular weekly Fun Clubs 
and recently enabled a group of young people to make an excellent hard-
hitting film about bullying, working alongside professionals in the media 
industry. 

92. Improving the health outcomes for looked after children is appropriately 
prioritised. Within the last six months, very rapid improvement in the 
capacity to offer timely appointments for initial health assessments means 
that 82% of looked after children were seen promptly. General practitioners 
are now notified when a child becomes looked after, facilitating the prompt 
sharing of information if a child has an existing medical condition. Improved 
performance is also demonstrated, with 92% of immunisations completed 
and clear reasons for those not completed. Partnerships with health 
professionals work well to provide specific examinations and assessments 
that contribute to child protection processes. 

93. Access to Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service (CAMHS) treatment is 
inconsistent. While many referrals are made to CAMHS very few looked after 
children and young people meet the threshold for treatment so do not 
receive the help requested. Managers are placing reliance on the Therapeutic 
Intervention Support Service due to be operational in September 2014 to fill 

99



 

 

 20 

the gap in support for the emotional and mental wellbeing of looked after 
children.  

94. The children in care council is underdeveloped, but the recent appointment 
of a dedicated participation worker as part of the virtual school has brought 
new direction, commitment and energy to developing the council. Over the 
last six to nine months a small but enthusiastic group of young people are 
starting to make a difference in representing looked after children and have 
engaged in revising the pledge, staff recruitment and the development of a 
website.   

95. The quality of management oversight in the looked after children team is too 
variable. Case records demonstrate some improvements in recording 
manager’s directions in the last few months. Managers in the fostering and 
adoption teams demonstrate good oversight, clearly recorded on case files.  
The placement panel provides an additional and beneficial layer of oversight 
to managing looked after children’s work. The complex needs panel meets 
routinely and oversees and makes decisions about joint-funded placements 
for children requiring the highest levels of support and care. 

96. Performance management across looked after children services is poor, and 
is not supported by effective management information. This means that 
strategic and operational managers do not have an accurate overview or 
contemporaneous knowledge of what is happening in their services. The 
adoption and fostering teams have compensated for this through the use of 
effective manual systems and benefit from an in-depth knowledge of their 
service. 

The graded judgment for adoption performance is good  

97. When children cannot live with their parents, or within their extended family, 
adoption is appropriately considered as a permanence option. Adoption plans 
were made within six months of the child coming into care for the vast 
majority of the 15 children who are currently waiting for adoption. For seven 
of those children a potential match has been identified but has not yet 
progressed to the adoption panel. Legal planning meetings thoroughly 
consider the thresholds for legal proceedings. The decision for adoption and 
seeking a placement order by the agency decision maker (ADM) is made in a 
timely way, which helps children move into their adoptive placement as 
quickly as possible.  

98. The local authority’s improving performance in relation to the Adoption 
Scorecard is good. Court timescales currently average 30 weeks and make a 
good contribution to helping children move in with their adoptive family as 
soon as possible once their placement orders are granted. Good performance 
is also demonstrated in the time it takes for children to move to their 
prospective adopter from coming into care.  In January 2014 Herefordshire 
was one of only 36 authorities meeting its target in this area. Since then, 

100



 

 

 21 

based on the local authority’s unvalidated data to March 2014, performance 
has improved further with the time taken now standing at 15 months. This is 
significantly better than the current national average of 21 months and, if 
performance is sustained, is in line to achieve the DfE target for 2016 of 14 
months.  

99. When there are delays in adoption these are clear and appropriate, for 
example in some cases the reason for delay relates to legal processes such 
as an appeal against the placement order. In other cases evidence clearly 
demonstrates that there is continued and persistent family finding activity. 
The adoption team do not like to ‘give up’ and their commitment, combined 
with their expertise in family finding, means that only three children have 
had their plans changed away from adoption in the last year. In those cases 
children have remained with existing carers or moved to extended family. 

100. Applicants are routinely informed during their training about the benefits for 
children of concurrent planning and fostering to adopt. They are encouraged 
to consider this during their assessment and good evidence was seen of this 
in Prospective Adopter Reports and panel minutes. However, no concurrent 
or foster to adopt placements have been made.  

101. Co-location and good information sharing between the adoption and 
fostering teams helps social workers to build a detailed knowledge of the 
children who may need an adoptive family. Information gathered is used well 
to develop children’s profiles which are circulated within the team, 
neighbouring authorities, the Adoption Register and more widely as the 
family finding process progresses.  

102. Adoption service managers effectively oversee the progress of family finding 
for all children who are waiting for an adoptive placement.  This is supported 
by effective (manual) management information systems. Monthly progress 
reports are made to adoption panel and six monthly reports to senior 
managers which set out progress and the local authority’s performance 
against the adoption scorecard.  

103. Rates of recruiting adopters are satisfactory and numbers have increased 
year on year. The authority acknowledges that more targeted recruitment is 
needed to better meet the needs of children who are waiting too long. Some 
progress has been made but continued negotiations to develop a regional 
approach, through the West Mercia project, has added delay.  

104. Prospective adopters have good, prompt access to preparation and training. 
Stage 1 of the application process is completed promptly and within required 
timescales. The content of the training is appropriate and applicants report 
positively about the learning they have gained, particularly in relation to 
attachment issues. Stage 2 is also timely and compliant with national 
guidance. Assessments are thorough; reports are of good quality and 
increasingly analytical.  

101



 

 

 22 

105. The adoption panel and the panel chair ensure good standards of practice, 
robust quality assurance of reports and constructive feedback to applicants. 
The panel chair provides challenge to improve assessment practice and to 
ensure appropriate levels of adoption support for children.  A strong working 
relationship between the adoption panel chair and the ADM ensures that the 
matches between children and prospective adopters are thorough and 
timely.   

106. Adopters spoken to said that adoption social workers are professional, 
approachable and very skilled in making the assessment process feel 
thorough, probing but not intrusive and a ‘two way process’. Case files are 
compliant with regulations and case recording is up to date and detailed. 
Adoption team social workers provide good, highly-valued support to 
adopters throughout the process and this is evidenced in routine post-
adoption order feedback. The part-time child and adolescent therapist 
attached to the team provides good individual support for children and 
families from assessment to post-adoption. One adopter said that work done 
with their child had made the difference between having ‘a happy family and 
one that was just about coping’.   

107. Post-adoption order support is good. The service is responsive to all parties 
in post-adoption arrangements. Adopters appreciate being able to access 
advice and more extensive support when they need it. 21 children have 
received adoption support in the past year, not including children who have 
been in receipt of financial support only. A dedicated Letterbox coordinator 
provides a good service to support contact with birth relatives post-adoption 
for 125 children. The adoption team also provides valued counselling for 
birth parents and, in the last year, for 22 adopted adults. Good use is made 
of learning from this aspect of their practice by enriching preparation of 
adopters and undertaking life story work with children.  

The graded judgment for the experiences and progress of care leavers is 
requires improvement  

108. The 16+ team, which provides services for older looked after young people 
and care leavers, is emerging from a long period of instability, management 
changes and a legacy of under-resourcing, well below the national average.  
Over the last year, clear direction from a new team manager, development 
of the No4 centre as a team base and centre for young people, and 
additional qualified staff, have all had a positive impact on the service. Staff 
morale is now high and a strong team ethos is developing.  However, many 
policies, procedures and practices are new and their impact on improving 
outcomes for care leavers has not yet been fully demonstrated.  

109. In the last six months, improvements in transition arrangements from looked 
after children teams to the 16+ service are helping to support young people 
as they progress through and out of care.  All young people, including those 
with learning difficulties and disabilities, have named personal advisors who 

102



 

 

 23 

provide good continuity at key stages towards independence or transition to 
adult services. Care leavers with learning disabilities also have a lead worker 
in the adult learning difficulties service to facilitate joint planning. 

110. The majority of young people have a pathway plan based on an assessment 
of their needs. However, nine of the 12 plans seen required improvement 
and two were inadequate or were out of date. This was a key area for 
improvement at the last inspection of looked after children’s services and 
remains so. Different planning and risk assessment tools, for example in 
relation to drug use or sexual exploitation, are used but do not link together 
coherently. A much-improved interactive electronic planning tool is being 
developed to address this. Young people contribute to their plans and 
reviews, but few plans reflect their aspirations or individual needs 
sufficiently. Partner agencies, who often provide key services and support to 
care leavers, are not routinely involved in plans.  

111. The quality of plans contrasts sharply with the views that young people 
expressed to inspectors, which were positive about the care, support and 
practical help provided by the 16+ team. One young person said ‘They go 
the extra mile for you’. Workers build trusting relationships over time 
through regular contact and reviews.  

112. Young people are encouraged to live healthy life-styles and make informed 
choices about their health, relationships and behaviour. The looked after 
children nurse runs a weekly drop-in session at No4, with the option of a full 
health assessment for all aged under 18. The take-up is currently low but is 
improving and non-attendance is followed up. Young people have good 
access to youth counselling, substance misuse and sexual health services. 
Ten young people make regular use of the free gym membership that is 
available to all care leavers. Personal advisors ensure that young people 
have relevant identity documents, national insurance numbers and birth 
certificates. Only three young people currently have a copy of their full 
health record and action is being taken to ensure that they all do. 

113. A range of suitable accommodation and housing meets the needs of young 
people and this includes supported housing, foyer provision and tenancies. 
91% of care leavers are in suitable accommodation, which is above the 
national average of 88%. Young people told inspectors that they felt safe 
where they lived and benefited from practical support and regular contact 
with personal advisors and housing workers, helping them to develop 
independent living skills. The Staying Put policy has increased choice for 
those who want to remain in foster care with a level of support well matched 
to individual need.  Eleven young people have chosen this so far, with carers 
trained for three more. The 16+ team works well with the youth offending 
service to meet the needs of young people in custody in preparation for their 
return to the community.  

103



 

 

 24 

114. As a result of learning in 2013 from a local serious case review, no young 
people are placed in bed and breakfast accommodation. Improved 
partnership work and information sharing between children’s social care, the 
housing department and key partners ensures that 16 and 17 year-olds who 
present as homeless and cannot return home safely are found suitable 
accommodation which meets their needs.  However, a gap remains in 
specialist provision locally for the small number of highly vulnerable care 
leavers with complex needs and often chaotic life-styles, who are more likely 
to be placed out of the area at a greater distance from support networks. 
The local authority is exploring how to meet this need locally. 

115. The virtual school supports all young people well in their initial transition into 
further education. A post-16 personal education plan is available, but only a 
few are currently in place and arrangements are informal and ad hoc. 
Although the majority of care leavers are engaged positively in education, 
training or work, 14 out of 50 aged 16 to 19 years are not. Care leavers in 
Herefordshire are four times more likely to be out of work, not in education 
or training than their peers locally. The local authority recognises that more 
targeted and independent information, advice and careers guidance is 
needed. Work experience, mentoring opportunities and two apprenticeships 
have been identified specifically for care leavers and are being developed as 
part of the local authority’s New Belongings programme. 

116. Care leavers attending university are well supported. Seven young people 
are currently on degree courses and four more have places in September 
2014. The virtual school is working with foster carers, linked to a number of 
other new activities, to raise young people’s aspirations in relation to higher 
education.   

117. Care leavers are not always aware of their legal entitlements and this is not a 
routine part of pathway planning. A small, committed and active group of 
care leavers are supported well to raise the profile of care leavers and to 
champion their views within the local authority, partner agencies and with 
other young people.  Care leavers are involved in recruitment and selection 
processes, support the work of the children in care council, and undertake 
voluntary work in the community. They are engaged in the development of a 
new website designed to provide helpful information and advice. 

Leadership, management and governance requires improvement  

118. Progress has been made in improving the quality of front-line practice since 
Ofsted judged the local authority as inadequate in an inspection of local 
authority arrangements for the protection of children in October 2012. 
However, until very recently this has been too slow and erratic. Many of the 
improvements in front line practice are as recent as January 2014. 

119. Services for looked after children and care leavers have deteriorated since 
the child protection and children looked after inspection in 2010 which 

104



 

 

 25 

judged the services as good. In contrast, adoption services have been 
maintained at a good level. 

120. Following the issue of an improvement notice by the Department for 
Education (DfE) in February 2013 the local authority engaged in a 
comprehensive improvement plan which was subsequently refined and more 
sharply focused as a result of learning from a rigorous peer review 
undertaken in October 2013. 

121. Despite high levels of self-knowledge and activity demonstrated at every 
level in the local authority, too many areas for improvement identified in the 
child protection inspection of 2012 have not resulted in positive progress 
prior to January 2014. Throughout 2013 there were significant concerns in 
relation to poor standards of practice and management throughout children’s 
services which left children at risk. 

122. Ensuring that the senior leadership team within the local authority has 
sufficient capacity and skill to lead organisational change has been a key 
challenge that has slowed the pace of improvement. Since the appointment 
of a permanent Chief Executive in March 2013 and a lead member with 
specific responsibility for children’s services the pace of change has 
accelerated. Senior management capacity has been increased by separating 
the previously combined role of Director of Children’s Services and Director 
of Adult Services in August 2013. Other key posts in the current children’s 
services senior leadership were filled in October 2013 and the team in its 
current establishment has been fully operational since January 2014. 

123. Senior leaders in the local authority, strategic partners and key elected 
members now demonstrate a detailed and consistent understanding of the 
service’s strengths and weaknesses based on learning from the inspection of 
2012, a rigorous Local Government Association (LGA) peer review conducted 
in October 2013 and reviewed in February 2014, and on-going monitoring 
and evaluation of its progress by the independent Improvement Board. 
However, progress has been hampered by the persistently poor quality of 
performance management information available within the children’s 
services, from electronic case file and data systems which are still being 
developed. Also, many of the plans that have been developed to improve 
services are in draft form or have only recently been implemented, making it 
too early to evaluate their effectiveness. 

124. Protecting children and giving them a great start in life is a key priority for 
the local authority and across partnerships, who now ensure that the focus 
on protecting children is not lost in the light of competing priorities in a time 
of severe financial austerity. Despite challenging reductions required in the 
council expenditure over the next three years, children’s services as a whole 
has been largely protected in the savings identified for other council services 
and there are no plans to cut front-line social care services. Efficiency 
savings in other parts of the organisation, such as in business support, have 

105



 

 

 26 

had a negative impact, for example resulting in delayed distribution of 
invitations and minutes of child protection conferences. This was identified in 
recent multi-agency audits and is being closely monitored by the senior 
leadership team. 

125. Leadership, management and governance arrangements comply with 
statutory guidance and are well understood by all key stakeholders including 
elected members, the Chief Executive and other members of the senior 
management team. They discharge their individual and collective 
responsibilities diligently and with effect. The Chief Executive meets regularly 
with the Director of Children’s Services (DCS), the chair of Herefordshire 
Safeguarding Children’s Board (HSCB) and the lead member for children’s 
services. There is mutual constructive debate and challenge within these 
meetings that shapes the development of children’s services. 

126. The local authority makes good use of its links with the LGA and is active in 
seeking out new opportunities to learn from good practice elsewhere. For 
example a group of councillors recently visited another local authority to 
explore how to improve their role as corporate parents. 

127. The establishment of a Multi- Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) during early 
2013 for the contact, referral and assessment service was ineffectively 
overseen and significant practice, management and resource issues amongst 
the contributing partner agencies were not recognised or resolved. A Peer 
review of October 2013 identified that significant urgent changes were 
required in relation to the consistency, timeliness, and the quality of 
partnership working within the MASH. This resulted in the local authority and 
its partners taking prompt, decisive remedial action. As a result, since 
December 2013, more timely and effective assessment and safeguarding of 
children has been supported by increasingly effective partnership working at 
the front door in the MASH. Since January 2014 there is evidence of 
appropriate management oversight of cases within the MASH in almost all 
cases. However, the quality and regularity of management oversight in the 
rest of children’s services remains too variable. 

128. The local authority invested in supervision training for all frontline managers 
in April 2014. Staff report that they receive regular formal and informal 
supervision. However, the use of regular formal written supervision as a tool 
for reflection, support and management of performance is inconsistent. In 13 
of 26 supervision records seen there were gaps in the frequency of 
supervision and records were brief. Inspectors saw few examples of good 
supervision records, demonstrating appropriate challenge and support. 
Prompt recording of supervision is not prioritised in all teams.  The Local 
Authority had already identified this issue prior to this inspection and an 
audit of supervision is planned for July 2014. 

129. Staff report that senior managers are visible and supportive. The Chief 
Executive and elected members visited social care teams following the last 

106



 

 

 27 

Ofsted inspection and members of the senior leadership team regularly visit 
teams. A staff forum has been held to consult with staff formally and to keep 
them apprised of developments. Another, which was planned for the time of 
this inspection, was postponed. Staff told inspectors that senior managers, 
after a period of many changes, are now making an ‘emotional investment’ 
in the authority as well as a financial investment in improving and developing 
their service. As a result staff express confidence and commitment to the 
service. 

130. Almost all the areas for improvement identified in the inspection of child 
protection services in 2012 have been addressed, albeit at a slow pace, and 
some, such as the screening and prioritisation of referrals in the MASH, are 
now working well. However, performance monitoring and quality assurance 
arrangements continue to pose significant challenges, as does the number of 
changes of social worker experienced by children and their families. Both 
were identified as areas for development in that inspection. 

131. Performance management is not embedded in management culture. The 
local authority’s ability to evaluate its own performance is compromised at 
every stage of the child’s journey due to inaccuracies and gaps in its data 
collection. The local authority struggled to provide prompt, accurate data to 
inspectors during the course of this inspection. 

132. Improvements and adjustments to the authority’s electronic systems were 
identified as an area for further improvement by the DfE following the twelve 
month review meeting on the 12 March 2014. There is a clear work plan to 
address the issues by July 2014. 

133. There has been improvement since January 2014 in the accuracy of data 
within the MASH team which enables managers to monitor the timeliness of 
work. However, across the rest of the service accuracy of data remains poor. 
The most easily accessible and accurate data seen by inspectors were those 
held in the adoption and fostering teams, which is collected manually. 

134. The quality of case file audits undertaken by the local authority for the 
purpose of this inspection was good, using a comprehensive audit tool. 
Findings were aspirational, and where deficits in practice had been identified 
appropriate plans with clear priorities had already been put in place.  
However, routine case auditing at a team and service level is not sufficiently 
established and learning from those audits that have taken place has not 
been used to collate themes.  

135. Learning from complaints is anecdotal, and insufficiently robust. The local 
authority identified in October 2013 that the complaints process in relation to 
children’s services was ineffective and required fundamental changes to 
ensure it is meeting statutory guidance. There are plans to transfer 
responsibilities to the quality assurance team in June 2014 in order to 
streamline the process and improve robustness of investigation and 

107



 

 

 28 

response. The current arrangements, although improving, remain 
insufficiently detailed to assist analysis of themes arising from complaints. 
Similarly, qualitative evaluation of the impact of the advocacy service across 
looked after children and child protection provision is not undertaken, and 
there is no collation of themes to inform organisational learning. 

136. The local authority acknowledges that until very recently corporate parenting 
was not given sufficient priority. The creation of a dedicated health and 
social care overview committee, supported by a permanent operational 
safeguarding group, has resulted in increased focus on children’s services. 
This group has made a series of key recommendations to strengthen elected 
members’ understanding of the role of corporate parent, including 
mandatory training as part of the induction process for newly elected 
members. This has not yet taken place. The number of cross-party 
councillors in the corporate parent group has been increased. This newly 
reconstituted group has made some progress. They have refreshed the 
Pledge which is now written by young people, and held events to raise 
awareness of children in care, including the planning of a looked after 
children celebration event. Many recent developments are standard practice 
in most local authorities and much further work is required for the local 
authority to achieve its goal of becoming ‘good’ corporate parents.   

137. There has recently been substantially increased investment in the leaving 
care service, which was significantly under-resourced compared to statistical 
neighbours and national averages. This was the result of learning from a 
recent serious case review. Expenditure on care leavers has increased from 
2% to 7% of the children’s services budget this year, which is now in line 
with the national average. The leaving care grant has been increased and a 
contract for commissioned services to improve levels of support to young 
people with complex needs in supported accommodation is being tendered. 

138. The retention and recruitment of a suitable workforce with sufficient capacity 
to deliver good quality services for children remains a key risk to the 
sustainability of improvements in practice and management of the local 
authority children’s services. Until as recently as March 2014 caseloads were 
too high, in part due to increased referral rates. Attempts to address the 
balance by transfer of cases between teams were ineffective. This, combined 
with high staff turnover, caused delay and uncertainty for some children. 
Leaders took decisive and effective action and, in March 2014, engaged a 
short-term project team provided by an external agency to reduce caseloads 
and to ensure that children now receive a prompt and effective service. 
Caseloads in the Children with Disabilities team remain too high and have 
been compounded by an increase in children subject to child protection 
processes within that service as a result of improved recognition of risk. 

139. A period of destabilisation and high turnover of staff followed the findings of 
the Ofsted inspection in 2012. The ratio of agency staff to permanent rose 
sharply due to a variety of factors, including positive moving on of both 

108



 

 

 29 

permanent and agency staff who were unable to provide the standard or 
work required.  As a result, many children have had too many changes of 
worker and this has negatively affected the quality and consistency of 
practice in the past two years. Some workers report that they have had up to 
three changes of manager in a year. This has begun to stabilise through 
securing more permanent staff and through securing suitable agency staff on 
longer-term contracts. 

140. The local authority workforce strategy is comprehensive, realistic, and is 
based on a detailed analysis of local market forces. It incorporates financial 
and professional development incentives to make working in the authority 
competitive. It acknowledges the inevitability of use of interims and 
minimises disruption to children by the use of long-term contracts with 
skilled agency staff. Finance to support sustainability is agreed. The current 
ratio of agency to permanent staff is improving, but remains high. The local 
authority has recently recruited a further eight newly qualified social workers 
as part of a ‘grow our own’ initiative. 

141. The local authority has developed effective strategic partnerships with the 
Children and Court Advisory Service (Cafcass) and the judiciary and protocols 
with health partners which have resulted in a substantial reduction of 
timescales in court proceedings to avoid delay in securing outcomes for 
children. Targets set under the Public Law Outline of within 26 weeks are 
nearly met.  A member of the judiciary commented that the local authority 
has done ‘astonishingly well’ to reverse the position they were in 2009–10, 
when Herefordshire had nine out of ten of the longest running cases placed 
before courts locally to now having the fewest. 

142. The Children and Families Joint Commissioning Group, with the local 
authority and health partners, commissions services based on the priorities 
of the Children and Young People’s Partnership forum. The priorities are 
consistent across strategic groups and ensure that vulnerable children and 
those known to children’s social care services remain at the forefront of joint 
commissioning arrangements. Priorities drawn from the Joint Strategic 
Analysis (JSNA) are recognised by the group to have insufficient detail about 
children, and this is being addressed through a further analysis of the needs 
of vulnerable children commissioned to report in June 2014. The local 
authority and partners are improving the targeting of services through more 
robust analysis of need. For example, a domestic abuse needs analysis 
resulted in increased services commissioned from Women’s Aid and a review 
of the effectiveness of the CAHMS service, which has recently been 
completed. 

143. The looked after children commissioning strategy is robust. It is based on 
trend analysis and an understanding of gaps in provision, and good team 
level knowledge of the young people known to children’s services. It is 
informed by best practice considerations, statutory requirements and case 
law. 

109



 

 

 30 

144. Within local authority commissioned services recent consultation with service 
users and other interested stakeholders have enabled young people and their 
carers to be actively involved in the drawing up of service specifications and 
evaluation panels, ensuring that the tendering process is fully inclusive and 
relevant to the needs of specific groups. Monitoring of contracts across 
services that are commissioned is informed by unannounced visits to 
providers, user feedback and short-term evaluation of impact based on case 
studies which, whilst appropriate and informative, is insufficiently robust. 

145. Current services commissioned are relevant to the local authority’s statutory 
duties. Stakeholder events with third sector providers and private business 
have been held to promote development of alternative funding to maintain 
services which, whilst helpful and enriching to children’s lives, do not meet 
the threshold for statutory intervention. Events were well attended but it is 
too early to measure effectiveness. 

146. Commissioning of short breaks for children with disabilities to move from a 
medical model of respite care has been too slow. The identified service in 
place since January 2014 has so far recruited only one carer and received 
two referrals neither of which was suitable. Currently, therefore, there is 
insufficient choice and flexibility of provision available to support disabled 
children and their families. 

147. The local authority has not effectively addressed the diverse needs of the 
children and families that its supports at either a strategic level or when 
assessing or meeting the diverse needs of individual children. Strategic 
planning is hampered by poor information collection and by the relatively 
small number, but wide range, of families from cultural and ethnically diverse 
groups. This also poses a challenge for staff to gain knowledge and 
experience to understand and engage with children and young people from 
diverse backgrounds.  However, inspectors saw two good examples of 
careful and sensitive work that took into account children’s individual identity 
needs.  

110



 

 

 31 

What the inspection judgements mean: the local 
authority 

An outstanding local authority leads highly effective services that contribute to 
significantly improved outcomes for children and young people who need help and 
protection and care. Their progress exceeds expectations and is sustained over time. 

A good local authority leads effective services that help, protect and care for 
children and young people and those who are looked after and care leavers have 
their welfare safeguarded and promoted.  

In a local authority that requires improvement, there are no widespread or 
serious failures that create or leave children being harmed or at risk of harm. The 
welfare of looked after children is safeguarded and promoted. Minimum 
requirements are in place, however, the authority is not yet delivering good 
protection, help and care for children, young people and families. 

A local authority that is inadequate is providing services where there are 
widespread or serious failures that create or leave children being harmed or at risk of 
harm or result in children looked after or care leavers not having their welfare 
safeguarded and promoted. 

111



 

 

 32 

Section 2: The effectiveness of the Local Safeguarding 
Children Board (LSCB) 

The effectiveness of the LSCB requires improvement  

Priority and immediate action 

148. There are no areas for priority or immediate action. 

Areas for improvement 

149. Ensure that governance arrangements between the LSCB and the 
Improvement Board are clarified. 

150. Ensure that LSCB policies and procedures are up to date and incorporate 
issues specific to Herefordshire. 

151. Ensure that the LSCB receives accurate and relevant performance 
information from its partners to enable it to assure itself on the quality of 
safeguarding work. 

152. Ensure that the work of the LSCB operational groups is manageable and 
prioritised. 

153. Ensure that learning from multi-agency case audits is actioned and the 
impact is reviewed through repeat audits. 

154. Ensure that robust strategies and intelligence in relation to specific 
vulnerable groups are developed and implemented, in particular missing 
children and those at risk of child sexual exploitation. 

155. Ensure that multi-agency safeguarding training is sufficient, taken up by 
partners and is robustly evaluated. 

156. Ensure that the LSCB business unit is effectively able to support the work of 
the LSCB. 

Key strengths and weaknesses of the LSCB 

157. Governance arrangements between the LSCB and the local authority are well 
established, with the LSCB chair regularly meeting with the Director of 
Children’s Services and Chief Executive Officer, to ensure that the authority 
is fulfilling its safeguarding responsibilities. The LSCB Chair is a member of 
the Children and Young People’s Partnership, which helps to ensure that 
safeguarding children is appropriately considered in the wider context of 
services for children and families and is incorporated into the Children and 
Young People’s Plan. Whilst the LSCB Chair has made presentations on 
safeguarding children to the Health and Wellbeing Board, safeguarding of 
children is not clearly prioritised by this board. 

112



 

 

 33 

158. The LSCB complies with its statutory responsibilities. The LSCB minutes and 
the last published annual report provide sufficient account of the challenges 
faced by the Board and its partners in developing and promoting 
safeguarding issues and of the activity of the board. The 2013–14 report has 
not yet been completed. The board and its sub-groups have developed 
detailed actions plans which are specific and measurable. However, the 
extensive range of practice, policy and procedural issues that need to be 
addressed, revised or updated poses a significant challenge to partners on 
how well, quickly or systematically actions that have been agreed are 
progressed.  

159. The terms of reference for the LSCB are clear, as are the roles and 
responsibilities of the Chair and board members. The role of the LSCB Chair 
is sufficiently independent. However the respective roles of the Improvement 
Board and the LSCB are not sufficiently clear, with no protocol established 
between them. The LSCB is described by members as ‘reporting to’ the 
Improvement Board and, particularly in the period following the last Ofsted 
inspection 2012, aspects of the LSCB work programme were established by 
the Improvement Board plan. Engagement by the LSCB in the Improvement 
Board has strengthened and enhanced the profile of the LSCB and secured 
commitment from senior officers from partner agencies. However, as the 
LSCB increases its effectiveness its lead statutory role in safeguarding 
children needs to be realigned with that of the Improvement Board.   

160. The LSCB has received reports on the range of early help provision in the 
area, and in April 2014 began to consider proposed changes to early help 
services and to explore its governance role in relation to these. However, this 
is very recent and the Board has exerted little influence in the development 
or targeting of early help services or in the evaluation of the effectiveness of 
early help services in preventing the need for safeguarding children or 
children being subject to repeat plans of protection. The LSCB has 
appropriately maintained an overview of the safeguarding of looked after 
children, including those placed outside the area, and has challenged 
children’s services to report to the Board on the effectiveness of these 
services. 

161. The LSCB has focused appropriately on performance management, primarily 
through enhancing the role of its Quality Assurance sub-group, which has 
undertaken regular multi-agency audits of safeguarding practice. An 
extensive programme of themed audits has been scheduled, focused on key 
practice issues. However, repeat audits of the same themes, to ascertain 
whether actions resulting from the learning have improved practice, have not 
been achieved due to the extensive and overambitious work programme for 
this sub-group. One repeat audit on child protection conferences did not 
demonstrate significant improvements in the areas identified by the previous 
audit. The sub-committee also considers performance information from 
partner agencies, and is particularly dependent on data from the local 
authority children’s services. Partners recognise that repeated inaccuracies in 

113



 

 

 34 

performance data provided by children’s services severely undermine their 
ability to robustly analyse safeguarding practice. The Board and its partners 
have continually challenged the local authority to provide accurate data. The 
LSCB and its sub-groups and partners had not identified the issues of 
concern in relation to practice in the Multi-agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) 
as it was becoming established in 2013, which were identified by the Peer 
Review. The LSCB now more rigorously monitors the effectiveness of the 
MASH through an LSCB governance group. 

162. The LSCB has responded to developments in child sexual exploitation 
through a case discussion group and working group tasked to develop local 
plans. A new sexual exploitation and trafficking strategic group was 
established in March 2014 to review local policies and to develop a new 
action plan, intelligence and information sharing. A new operational group is 
to be established to consider individual cases and themes arising from these. 
Similarly, strategic planning for missing children is underdeveloped. Whilst 
the LSCB uses the West Mercia Police joint protocol, this was last reviewed in 
2011, is outdated and does not include local issues. The LSCB developed a 
missing children action plan in 2013. Whilst work with individual children who 
are vulnerable, at risk of going missing or of sexual exploitation is 
appropriate, this is not yet well supported by strategic oversight and 
intelligence sharing and is not sufficiently joined up. 

163. The Child Death Overview Panel and the Joint Case Review Sub-Group are 
well-established, well-represented by partner agencies and robustly consider 
detailed information. One Serious Case Review has been recently completed 
and several single and multi-agency reviews have been appropriately 
undertaken, with learning shared at the Board and with partner agencies. 
Due consideration has been given to joining these groups with similar groups 
in neighbouring authorities, as the work programmes are low, commensurate 
with the size of the area, but the LSCB has decided to retain locally focused 
groups. 

164. Safeguarding is appropriately prioritised by partner agencies and this is 
confirmed through the safeguarding audits that agencies completed in 2013, 
under Section 11 of the Children Act 2004. Partners from all agencies are 
well-represented at the right level on the Board and its sub-groups. Strong 
commitment and enthusiasm to work collaboratively to improve safeguarding 
services is now evident. The LSCB has implemented a range of safeguarding 
policies and procedures, many based on regionally agreed policies. However, 
few have been reviewed and updated to incorporate local and national 
emerging issues, and an LSCB policies and procedures sub-group has now 
been tasked to undertake this.  

165. Board members recognise the need to engage with children, young people, 
families and the community to secure their views to influence the 
development of its work and safeguarding practice. However, little progress 
has been made in obtaining the views of children and their families who have 

114



 

 

 35 

contact with safeguarding services. Several lay members have been 
appointed to the LSCB to represent the views of the community and are 
actively engaged in the LSCB and its sub-groups. The voluntary sector is 
extensively and well engaged in the work of the Board, which is currently 
considering how to ensure that third sector organisations in the area take 
responsibility for safeguarding children.     

166. The LSCB is appropriately funded by contributions from member agencies. A 
significant proportion of funding is used to maintain the LSCB business unit 
that facilitates the operation of the Board. However, the business unit has a 
significant challenge in meeting the widespread demand of the ambitious 
LSCB work programme and supporting the LSCB and its operational groups. 
The business unit also supports the Adult Safeguarding Board in the area, 
whose business has significantly expanded. As a result, the business unit has 
struggled to effectively support both boards and this has been exacerbated 
by staff and role changes in the unit. The local authority and both boards are 
currently considering how to reconfigure and resource the unit. 

167. The LSCB has an established multi-agency training programme, which 
underpins safeguarding training provided within individual partner agencies. 
This has recently been revised and commissioned from an external provider 
following the departure of the LSCB training officer. Significant effort has 
been put into developing e-learning for partners. However, there has been 
low take-up or completion of e-learning. For example, e-learning on 
leadership for representatives engaging in the work of the LSCB has had 
poor take-up, with the exception of voluntary sector representatives, even 
though there are increasing numbers of new representatives on LSCB 
groups.  Evaluation of the quality and impact of training on improving 
practice and the experience of children is significantly underdeveloped. This 
is primarily based on basic feedback from training participants through short 
questionnaires, which are not effectively used to ensure the quality, content 
or relevance of training or to enable the strategic development of multi-
agency training.  A number of awareness raising seminars have been 
delivered on behalf of the board, for example on learning from case reviews. 
These have been well received and enhanced awareness and understanding 
of safeguarding issues across partners.   

115



 

 

 36 

What the inspection judgements mean: the LSCB 

An outstanding LSCB is highly influential in improving the care and protection of 
children. Their evaluation of performance is exceptional and helps the local authority 
and its partners to understand the difference that services make and where they 
need to improve. The LSCB creates and fosters an effective learning culture. 

An LSCB that is good coordinates the activity of statutory partners and monitors the 
effectiveness of local arrangements. Multi-agency training in the protection and care 
of children is effective and evaluated regularly for impact. The LSCB provides robust 
and rigorous evaluation and analysis of local performance that identifies areas for 
improvement and influences the planning and delivery of high-quality services. 

An LSCB requires improvement if it does not yet demonstrate the characteristics 
of good.  

An LSCB that is inadequate does not demonstrate that it has effective 
arrangements in place and the required skills to discharge its statutory functions. It 
does not understand the experiences of children and young people locally and fails to 
identify where improvements can be made. 

116



 

 

 37 

Any complaints about the inspection or the report should be made following the procedures set out in 
the guidance ‘raising concerns and making complaints about Ofsted', which is available from Ofsted’s 
website: www.ofsted.gov.uk. If you would like Ofsted to send you a copy of the guidance, please 
telephone 0300123 4234, or email enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Office for Standards in Education, Children's Services and Skills (Ofsted) regulates and inspects to 
achieve excellence in the care of children and young people, and in education and skills for learners of 
all ages. It regulates and inspects childcare and children's social care, and inspects the Children and 
Family Court Advisory and Support Service (Cafcass), schools, colleges, initial teacher training, work 
based learning and skills training, adult and community learning, and education and training in prisons 
and other secure establishments. It inspects services for looked after children and child protection. 
 
If you would like a copy of this document in a different format, such as large print or Braille, please 
telephone 0300 123 4234, or email enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk. 
 
You may copy all or parts of this document for non-commercial educational purposes, as long as you 
give details of the source and date of publication and do not alter the information in any way. 
 
To receive regular email alerts about new publications please visit our website and go to ‘Subscribe’. 
 
Piccadilly Gate 
Store St 
Manchester 
M1 2WD 
T: 0300 123 4234 
Text phone: 0161 618 8524 
E: enquiries@ofsted.gov.uk 
W: www.ofsted.gov.uk 
© Crown copyright 2014 
 

117



118



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

P
ar

t 
1 

 

O
FS
TE
D

 IN
SP
EC
TI
O
N

 M
A
Y 
20
14

 !
 A
CT

IO
N

 P
LA

N
 

K
ey

:  
 

  
O

fs
te

d 
P

ar
a 

N
um

be
r 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

A
re

a 
of

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

O
ut

co
m

e 
of

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4 

  
C

hi
ld

re
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

an
d 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(C
H

IP
P

) 
is

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

th
e 

O
fs

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
. 

  
E

ac
h 

ar
ea

 f
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
cl

ea
r 

le
ad

 a
nd

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 it

s 
de

liv
er

y.
   

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

1.
 

 
17

.  

(5
7,

 1
38

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
as

el
oa

ds
 in

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 
ne

ed
 a

nd
 lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

te
am

s 
re

m
ai

n 
m

an
ag

ea
bl

e 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
R

ev
ie

w
 o

f M
ed

ic
ar

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
A

ll 
ca

se
s 

no
w

 
tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
ba

ck
 to

 th
e 

fie
ld

w
or

k 
te

am
s.

   
  

W
ee

kl
y 

ca
se

lo
ad

 r
ep

or
ts

.  
 

M
on

th
ly

 r
ep

or
ts

 to
 

M
on

th
ly

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

ith
 L

ea
de

r,
 C

X
, 

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

an
d 

G
ro

up
 L

ea
de

rs
.  

 

2.
 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

F
ie

ld
w

or
k 

P
ro

fil
e 

ca
se

lo
ad

s 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
w

ha
t a

 
re

as
on

ab
le

 c
as

el
oa

d 
w

ou
ld

 lo
ok

 li
ke

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
W

ee
kl

y 
re

po
rt

s 
no

w
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

tr
en

d 
an

al
ys

is
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

ac
tio

n 
ca

n 
be

 ta
ke

n 
qu

ic
kl

y 
if 

pe
ak

s 
em

er
ge

.  
   

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

3.
 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

 
W

or
k 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
F

or
ec

as
tin

g 
of

 s
up

po
rt

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
m

ed
iu

m
 

te
rm

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

as
se

ss
m

en
t o

f p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 d
at

a 
to

 
in

fo
rm

 d
ire

ct
 w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
A

 n
ew

 H
ea

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
 W

or
k 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
po

st
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

cr
ea

te
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
 p

os
t 

fr
om

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.  
  

M
on

ito
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
C

H
IP

P
.  

  

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
C

om
m

itt
ee

. 

4.
 

 
 

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 
D

ire
ct

or
: 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
&

 F
am

ily
 

A
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

w
ho

le
 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
w

he
th

er
 th

e 
in

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

 is
 

rig
ht

 a
nd

 to
 in

fo
rm

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ta

ffi
ng

 a
nd

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
T

he
 r

ec
on

fig
ur

at
io

n 
of

 s
en

io
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 in
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 

w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

as
 fr

om
 1

 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

119



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 2
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

S
up

po
rt

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
.  

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r.
   

  

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 / 
P

ro
je

ct
 

Le
ad

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 r

ev
ie

w
in

g 
bu

dg
et

s 
to

 in
fo

rm
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y 

fo
r 

th
e 

ne
xt

 3
 

fin
an

ci
al

 y
ea

rs
.  

  

C
H

IP
P

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

B
oa

rd
 a

nd
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
Le

ad
er

sh
ip

 T
ea

m
 

5.
 

 
17

.  

(1
38

) 

R
ed

uc
e 

ca
se

lo
ad

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
so

 th
at

 a
ll 

so
ci

al
 w

or
ke

rs
 h

av
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t t
im

e 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ith
 th

e 
le

ve
l o

f 
se

rv
ic

e 
th

ey
 r

eq
ui

re
. 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
T

w
o 

ad
di

tio
na

l s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 to

 b
e 

em
pl

oy
ed

 in
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
Ju

ne
 2

01
4 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 a

s 
at

 J
un

e 
20

14
 

 

6.
 

 
 

 
Le

ad
 M

an
ag

er
 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
n 

in
te

rim
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f t
he

 C
W

D
 s

er
vi

ce
 to

 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 

su
ffi

ci
en

t c
ap

ac
ity

 in
 li

gh
t o

f t
he

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
F

am
ili

es
 A

ct
 2

01
4 

an
d 

th
e 

C
ar

e 
A

ct
 

20
14

  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

7.
 

 
 

 
Le

ad
 M

an
ag

er
 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

W
D

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 o

ve
r 

a 
12

 m
on

th
 

pe
rio

d 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
to

 th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 a
n 

in
te

gr
at

ed
 s

er
vi

ce
 m

od
el

 in
 th

e 
co

nt
ex

t o
f  

th
e 

C
ar

e 
A

ct
 2

01
4 

an
d 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

an
d 

F
am

ili
es

 A
ct

; t
he

 in
no

va
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e,
 

pe
rs

on
al

iz
at

io
n,

 a
du

lts
 w

el
lb

ei
ng

 
tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
he

al
th

 
or

ga
ni

sa
tio

ns
 a

nd
 th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l f

or
 a

 
di

ffe
re

nt
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 s
er

vi
ce

 m
od

el
.  

 

.  
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 
A

 le
ad

 m
an

ag
er

 fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 h

as
 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 
po

st
 fr

om
 1

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.  

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

B
oa

rd
 

C
ab

in
et

 

8.
 

 
 

 
 

T
o 

su
pp

or
t t

he
 C

W
D

 r
ev

ie
w

, e
xt

er
na

l 
ex

pe
rt

is
e 

an
d/

or
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

.  
T

he
 le

ad
 m

an
ag

er
 fo

r 
th

e 
C

W
D

 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 in
ve

st
ig

at
e 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
to

 
in

co
rp

or
at

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
  

9.
 

 
18

.  

(9
6,

 1
22

, 
13

0,
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

el
ec

tr
on

ic
 c

as
e 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
 in

 
ch

ild
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

pr
ov

id
es

 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
.in

 
co

nj
un

ct
io

n 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 is
 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n,

 w
ith

 fu
ll 

sy
st

em
 r

ev
is

io
n 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

en
d 

20
14

/1
5.

   
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f F
W

I a
nd

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

C
om

pl
et

io
n 

of
 th

e 
re

po
rt

s 
re

po
si

to
ry

 in
 F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 to

ok
 

pl
ac

e 
20

 J
un

e 
20

14
.  

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t r
ep

or
ts

 w
ill

 
fo

cu
s 

on
 im

pa
ct

 o
f 

120



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 3
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

13
1,

13
2,

 
13

3)
 

ac
cu

ra
te

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n.

  
w

ith
  S

er
vi

ce
 

M
an

ag
er

 –
 IC

T
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

in
te

gr
at

ed
 d

at
a 

sh
ar

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 h

ea
lth

, 
so

ci
al

 c
ar

e 
an

d 
pu

bl
ic

 h
ea

lth
.  

.D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 u
pg

ra
de

s 
of

 F
W

I w
ill

 
ta

ke
 p

la
ce

  
.

In
st

al
l o

f 5
 o

ut
st

an
di

ng
 r

ep
or

ts
 

fo
r 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 r
ep

os
ito

ry
 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
te

st
ed

 a
nd

 a
re

 
no

w
 li

ve
.  

8 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
up

gr
ad

es
 to

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 c

ar
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
  w

en
t 

liv
e 

at
 th

e 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
  

A
ug

us
t 2

01
4.

   

R
ec

on
fig

ur
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
C

P
 

m
od

el
 is

 d
ue

 to
 b

e 
fin

al
is

ed
 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

4.
   

 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 IC

T
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 

10
. 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 in
 

co
nj

un
ct

io
n 

w
ith

  S
er

vi
ce

 
M

an
ag

er
 –

 IC
T

 
S

tr
at

eg
y 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

A
s 

th
e 

pr
oj

ec
t i

s 
re

ac
hi

ng
 c

lo
su

re
 a

 
be

ne
fit

s 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

th
e 

sk
ill

s 
an

d 
ca

pa
bi

lit
ie

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 m
ai

nt
ai

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
th

e 
sy

st
em

  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
   

 
C

H
IP

P
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
  

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 –
 IC

T
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 

11
. 

 
 

 
Q

A
 a

nd
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

Q
A

 a
nd

 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 fr

am
ew

or
k 

is
 b

ei
ng

 
in

te
gr

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
H

S
C

B
’s

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
jo

ur
ne

y 
of

 th
e 

ch
ild

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

its
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 o

n 
19

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
4 

ag
re

ed
 d

ra
ft 

fr
am

ew
or

k.
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 

12
. 

 
19

.  

(1
34

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ud

it 
an

d 
pe

rf
or

m
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

s 
ro

bu
st

ly
 a

nd
 r

ou
tin

el
y 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
m

an
ag

er
s 

ac
ro

ss
 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

us
ed

 to
 d

ev
el

op
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f p
ra

ct
ic

e.
   

Q
A

 a
nd

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  A
ny

 ir
re

gu
la

rit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 r
ep

or
ts

 w
ill

 b
e 

ro
ut

in
el

y 
au

di
te

d 
by

 th
e 

Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

T
ea

m
 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 c
or

re
ct

iv
e 

ac
tio

n 
w

ill
 b

e 
ta

ke
n.

   

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 w

ill
 b

e 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 

H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 D
LT

.  
 A

n 
ac

tio
n 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

Q
A

 M
an

ag
er

s 
pr

es
en

te
d 

th
e 

ho
lis

tic
 d

ra
ft 

Q
A

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

k/
S

tr
at

eg
y 

to
 H

ea
d 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 o

n 
14

 J
ul

y 
an

d 
w

ill
 

go
 to

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 m

ee
tin

g 
  S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

14
 

Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

s 
ha

ve
 jo

in
ed

 H
S

C
B

 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
&

 F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

121



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 4
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

pl
an

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 d

ef
ic

it 
is

su
es

 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

re
po

rt
.  

Le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 a
ud

it 
to

 in
fo

rm
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t n

ee
ds

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

T
ea

m
 

w
ith

 S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

A
ca

de
m

y 

20
14

 
Q

A
 s

ub
-g

ro
up

 a
nd

 jo
in

t 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

ag
re

ed
 (

19
 J

ul
y 

20
14

).
   

 

T
he

m
at

ic
 A

ud
it 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

su
bj

ec
t t

o 
C

P
 P

la
ns

 fo
r 

2n
d/

S
ub

 ti
m

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

  
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 H

oS
 M

ee
tin

g 
on

 
14

 J
ul

y 
20

14
  

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 A

na
ly

si
s 

R
ep

or
ts

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 fo
r 

13
/1

4 
A

ud
it 

A
ct

iv
ity

 –
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 a
s 

a 
ba

se
lin

e 
fr

om
 w

hi
ch

 to
 

m
ea

su
re

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
an

d 
im

pa
ct

 
th

ro
ug

h 
14

/1
5.

 A
ud

it 
re

po
rt

 
pr

es
en

te
d 

to
 H

oS
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 
14

 J
ul

y 
20

14
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 A

na
ly

si
s 

R
ep

or
t 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r 
‘A

s 
If’

 O
fs

te
d 

A
ud

it 
an

d 
fo

r 
ac

tu
al

 O
fs

te
d 

A
ud

it 
– 

 p
re

se
nt

ed
 to

 H
oS

 o
n 

14
 J

ul
y 

20
14

. 

T
ra

ck
in

g 
of

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 
(i.

e.
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

/ 
pr

og
re

ss
ed

) 
ha

s 
be

en
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r 
A

s 
If 

an
d 

O
fs

te
d 

au
di

ts
 a

nd
 e

vi
de

nc
ed

 
in

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

fil
es

. 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 A

ud
it 

Is
su

es
 L

og
 

ha
s 

be
en

 in
tr

od
uc

ed
 s

o 
th

at
 

th
em

es
 c

an
 b

e 
ca

pt
ur

ed
 fr

om
 

m
on

th
ly

 c
as

e 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
. 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

C
ab

in
et

 R
ep

or
ts

 

13
. 

 
20

.  

(5
8,

 1
28

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 c
on

si
st

en
t a

nd
 h

ig
h 

qu
al

ity
 fo

rm
al

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

 o
f s

oc
ia

l 
ca

re
 s

ta
ff 

is
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

an
d 

th
at

 a
ll 

st
af

f 
ha

ve
 r

eg
ul

ar
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 th

at
 

pr
ov

id
es

 r
ef

le
ct

io
n 

an
d 

ch
al

le
ng

e.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
 

A
ll 

m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 b
e 

tr
ai

ne
d 

in
 r

ef
le

ct
iv

e 
su

pe
rv

is
io

n 
an

d 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

ex
pe

ct
at

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 s

up
er

vi
si

on
 p

ol
ic

y.
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

al
l s

oc
ia

l c
ar

e 
m

an
ag

er
s 

to
ok

 p
la

ce
 in

 
M

ar
ch

/A
pr

il.
   

 

F
ur

th
er

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 w
ill

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 

in
 la

te
 2

01
4.

   
A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f a
 

ne
w

 m
an

ag
er

’s
 in

du
ct

io
n 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

122



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 5
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
a 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t t

o 
co

m
pl

et
e 

th
e 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

.  
 

14
. 

 
 

 
Q

A
 a

nd
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 w

ith
 

B
ris

to
l U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 ta
ki

ng
 p

la
ce

 in
 J

un
e 

20
14

 a
nd

 w
ill

 b
e 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
to

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 jo

in
t s

en
io

r 
m

an
ag

em
en

t t
ea

m
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
33

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 h

av
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
nd

 a
 

sa
m

pl
e 

of
 8

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
ke

rs
 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
fo

rm
al

ly
 

in
te

rv
ie

w
ed

.  
  

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

15
. 

 
 

 
Q

A
 a

nd
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

S
up

er
vi

si
on

 A
ud

it 
as

 p
ar

t o
f a

nn
ua

l c
yc

le
 

of
 a

ud
its

 is
 d

ue
 to

 ta
ke

 p
la

ce
 in

  
Ju

ly
/A

ug
us

t 2
01

4,
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

in
 S

ep
t 2

01
4.

  
A

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 o
ut

co
m

e,
 th

er
e 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

 a
s 

to
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

ac
tio

ns
 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

au
di

t a
ct

iv
ity

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 

su
pe

rv
is

io
n.

   

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

16
. 

 
21

.  

(1
34

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
eg

ul
ar

 c
as

e 
fil

e 
au

di
ts

 
an

d 
re

-a
ud

its
 w

ith
in

 s
oc

ia
l w

or
k 

te
am

s 
ar

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 a
nd

 a
re

 u
se

d 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

ar
ea

s 
of

 s
tr

en
gt

h 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 to
 m

ea
su

re
 th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 a

ct
io

ns
 ta

ke
n 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

.  

Q
A

 a
nd

 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

ha
s 

be
en

 a
pp

ro
ve

d 
an

d 
is

 
be

in
g 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 fo
r 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 S
up

po
rt

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

fr
es

he
d 

on
 

an
 a

nn
ua

l b
as

is
.  

Le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 a
ud

it 
to

 in
fo

rm
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t n

ee
ds

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 th

ro
ug

h 
in

te
gr

at
io

n 
of

 Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

T
ea

m
 

w
ith

 S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

A
ca

de
m

y 
is

 u
nd

er
w

ay
. 

Ju
ly

 2
01

4 
A

ud
it 

an
al

ys
is

 is
 s

ha
re

d 
at

 
op

er
at

io
na

l t
ea

m
 m

ee
tin

gs
. 

Q
A

C
M

’s
 m

ee
t w

ith
 th

e 
so

ci
al

 
w

or
k 

ac
ad

em
y 

to
 s

ha
re

 a
ud

it 
fin

di
ng

s.
 F

or
 e

xa
m

pl
e,

 th
e 

so
ci

al
 w

or
k 

ac
ad

em
y 

is
 

lo
ok

in
g 

at
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

su
pp

or
t 

to
 s

oc
ia

l w
or

ke
rs

 u
nd

er
ta

ki
ng

 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

as
se

ss
m

en
t w

he
re

 
pa

re
nt

s 
ha

ve
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 
le

ar
ni

ng
 n

ee
ds

 r
es

ul
tin

g 
fr

om
 

ch
ild

ho
od

 a
bu

se
. 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
&

 F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

17
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
  

Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
in

cr
ea

se
d.

   
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
 

18
. 

 
 

 
Le

ad
 M

an
ag

er
 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 

T
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 le

ad
 m

an
ag

er
 w

ill
 

ov
er

se
e 

Q
A

 a
nd

 th
e 

S
oc

ia
l W

or
k 

A
ca

de
m

y 
in

te
gr

at
io

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

its
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t f

un
ct

io
n.

   
T

hi
s 

po
st

 
ho

ld
er

 w
ill

 h
av

e 
le

ad
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 fo
r 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
Le

ad
 M

an
ag

er
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 p
os

t 
fr

om
 1

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
H

S
C

B
 Q

A
 G

ro
up

 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 

123



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 6
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
en

su
rin

g 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 a
nd

 r
ev

is
io

n 
of

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

ss
ur

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
an

d 
w

ill
 

tr
ac

k 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
Q

A
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
ag

re
ed

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
.  

S
up

po
rt

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

19
. 

 
22

.  

(4
8,

 5
0,

 
52

, 5
4)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
re

sh
ol

ds
 fo

r 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 u

nd
er

st
oo

d 
an

d 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 a

pp
lie

d 
by

 lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

ity
 s

ta
ff 

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
r 

ag
en

ci
es

, 
so

 th
at

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
fa

m
ili

es
 g

et
 th

e 
rig

ht
 h

el
p 

at
 th

e 
rig

ht
 ti

m
e.

   

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

  

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
ev

is
io

n 
of

 L
ev

el
s 

of
 N

ee
d 

/  
th

re
sh

ol
ds

 g
ui

da
nc

e 

.  
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 u
nd

er
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ac

ro
ss

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 a
nd

 
H

S
C

B
 

H
S

C
B

 P
&

P
 G

ro
up

 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
B

oa
rd

20
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 

La
un

ch
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 n

ew
 

gu
id

an
ce

.  
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 h
as

 
ag

re
ed

 fu
nd

in
g 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 

th
or

ou
gh

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
   

 

H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

21
. 

 
 

 
Q

A
 a

nd
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

s 

R
eg

ul
ar

 th
em

at
ic

 a
ud

its
 w

ill
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

th
e 

em
be

dd
in

g 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
.  

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

22
. 

 
23

. 

(5
5,

 5
6)

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t 

re
vi

ew
in

g 
of

fic
er

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

an
d 

m
an

ag
e 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
p 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

an
d 

m
ea

su
ra

bl
e 

ch
ild

 p
ro

te
ct

io
n 

pl
an

s.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

n 
on

go
in

g 
pa

re
nt

al
 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
.  

T
he

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 w
ill

 
be

 a
na

ly
se

d 
an

d 
us

ed
 to

 in
fo

rm
 s

er
vi

ce
 

de
liv

er
y.

   
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
en

ab
le

 a
n 

on
go

in
g 

ch
ec

k 
ba

ck
 a

s 
to

 th
e 

su
cc

es
s 

of
 

th
e 

pl
an

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

C
P

 P
la

ns
 d

et
ai

le
d 

be
lo

w
.  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

P
ar

en
ta

l I
C

P
C

 a
nd

 R
C

P
C

 
F

ee
db

ac
k 

fo
rm

s 
in

tr
od

uc
ed

 
on

 1
4t

h 
Ju

ly
 2

01
4.

 

H
S

C
B

 L
G

A
 D

ia
gn

os
tic

  

23
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 

In
tr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 ti

m
e 

lim
ite

d 
ag

en
cy

 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 m

ec
ha

ni
sm

.  
 T

hi
s 

w
ill

 p
ro

vi
de

 
cr

iti
ca

l f
ee

db
ac

k 
on

 th
e 

qu
al

ity
 a

nd
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
of

 C
P

 C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 

se
cu

re
 a

 s
tr

on
g 

ev
id

en
ce

 b
as

e 
to

 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

th
e 

sc
al

e 
of

 a
ny

 is
su

es
 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
pi

np
oi

nt
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

ta
l 

ne
ed

s.
   

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

A
ge

nc
y 

F
ee

db
ac

k 
Q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

s 
fo

rm
s 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

 fr
om

 1
4 

Ju
ly

 
20

14
 fo

r 
a 

on
e 

m
on

th
 p

er
io

d.
 

H
S

C
B

 L
G

A
 D

ia
gn

os
tic

  

124



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 7
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

24
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 

Im
pr

ov
e 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f t
he

 fo
rm

ul
at

io
n 

of
 

th
e 

O
ut

lin
e 

C
P

 P
la

n 
by

 b
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 

w
ha

t a
 g

oo
d 

“O
ut

lin
e”

 C
P

 P
la

n 
fr

om
 o

th
er

 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 

 
C

ha
ir’

s 
ro

le
 a

nd
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 
in

 fo
rm

ul
at

in
g 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

an
d 

m
ea

su
re

ab
le

 o
ut

lin
e 

C
P

 
P

la
ns

 in
 IC

P
C

s 
di

sc
us

se
d 

in
 

T
ea

m
 M

ee
tin

g 
of

 2
nd

 J
ul

y.
 

R
ev

is
ed

 O
ut

lin
e 

C
P

 P
la

n 
te

m
pl

at
es

 c
irc

ul
at

ed
 to

 T
ea

m
 

fo
r 

co
m

m
en

t 3
rd

 J
ul

y.
 T

he
se

 
w

ill
 b

e 
tr

ia
le

d 
an

d 
in

fo
rm

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 r
ev

is
ed

 
C

P
 P

ro
ce

ss
 m

od
ul

e 
in

 F
W

i 

H
S

C
B

 L
G

A
 D

ia
gn

os
tic

 

25
. 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 to
 b

et
te

r 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 
fo

rm
ul

at
io

n 
of

 a
 q

ua
lit

y 
O

ut
lin

e 
C

P
 P

la
n 

at
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
ki

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 

26
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 

D
ire

ct
 o

bs
er

va
tio

ns
 o

f c
on

fe
re

nc
e 

by
 

se
rv

ic
e 

m
an

ag
er

s 
an

d 
ke

y 
pa

rt
ne

r 
ag

en
ci

es
 (

N
am

ed
 N

ur
se

) 
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
H

S
C

B
 L

G
A

 D
ia

gn
os

tic
 

27
. 

 
 

 
 

T
he

 H
S

C
B

 d
ia

gn
os

tic
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
LG

A
 to

 
su

pp
or

t t
he

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
su

cc
es

sf
ul

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
ab

ov
e.

   
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

LG
A

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
tin

g 
th

ei
r 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 o

n 
17

-1
9 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

as
ke

d 
to

 
re

ce
iv

e 
th

e 
re

su
lts

 o
f t

he
 

di
ag

no
st

ic
 a

nd
 c

on
si

de
r 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
e 

an
d 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

ns
 

w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 b

e 
ne

ed
ed

.  

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

H
ea

lth
 a

nd
 S

oc
ia

l C
ar

e 
S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

28
. 

 
23

. 

(6
7?

, 8
0)

 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
er

e 
is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
le

ad
er

sh
ip

, p
ra

ct
ic

e,
 q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
In

de
pe

nd
en

t R
ev

ie
w

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

se
rv

ic
e.

   

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 
se

rv
ic

e 
(in

co
rp

or
at

in
g 

co
nf

er
en

ce
 c

ha
irs

 
an

d 
IR

O
s)

 u
nd

er
w

ay
 a

nd
 a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 a

s 
ab

ov
e 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d.

  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
O

fs
te

d 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 s

ha
re

d 
w

ith
 

th
e 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 

T
ea

m
 a

nd
 k

ey
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

sh
ar

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
T

ea
m

 in
 

w
rit

in
g 

27
th

 J
un

e 
in

 w
rit

in
g 

an
d 

di
sc

us
se

d 
in

 T
ea

m
 

M
ee

tin
g 

of
 2

nd
 J

ul
y.

 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
F

am
ily

 
S

up
po

rt
 H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

125



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 8
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

29
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
  

T
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
pl

an
 fo

r 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

th
e 

is
su

es
 a

re
 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n.
  

 
 

 

30
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
  

Im
m

ed
ia

te
 r

ec
ru

itm
en

t t
o 

cu
rr

en
t v

ac
an

cy
 

un
de

rw
ay

.  
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
  

31
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
 

S
ec

on
dm

en
t o

f S
M

 in
to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t e

xp
er

tis
e 

in
 L

A
C

 fr
om

 A
ug

us
t. 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

  
 

32
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
  

Se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

ag
ai

ns
t 

IR
O

 H
an

db
oo

k 
an

d 
C
ar

e 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 t

o 
be

 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 t
o 

es
ta

bl
is

h 
w

he
re

 t
he

 g
ap

s 
ar

e 
an

d 
to

 p
rio

rit
is

e 
th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 n
ee

de
d 

in
 

or
de

r 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t.

A
pr

il 
20

15
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

33
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

 
W

or
k 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
Im

pr
ov

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ro
ce

ss
 s

o 
th

at
 

m
in

ut
es

 a
re

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 a

gr
ee

d 
tim

es
ca

le
s 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

.  
 F

ul
l 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
as

 fr
om

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

14
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

s 

34
. 

 
24

.  

(6
6)

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 a
 

di
sa

bi
lit

y 
kn

ow
n 

to
 c

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
se

rv
ic

es
 

ar
e 

rig
or

ou
sl

y 
as

se
ss

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
ei

r 
ne

ed
s 

ar
e 

m
et

 a
nd

 th
at

 th
e 

lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
is

 fu
lfi

lli
ng

 it
s 

st
at

ut
or

y 
fu

nc
tio

ns
.  

  

Le
ad

 M
an

ag
er

 
fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

A
n 

au
di

t o
f a

ll 
hi

gh
 c

os
t p

la
ce

m
en

ts
 is

 
be

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
th

e 
qu

al
ity

 
of

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 a
nd

 th
at

 n
ee

ds
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
or

re
ct

ly
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

   
T

he
 o

ut
co

m
e 

of
 th

e 
au

di
t w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 p
rio

ris
at

io
n 

as
 to

 
pr

ac
tic

e 
is

su
es

 a
nd

 a
ny

 r
el

ev
an

t t
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
T

hi
s 

O
fs

te
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
n 

w
ill

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

be
 a

n 
ac

tio
n 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
w

id
er

 C
W

D
 s

er
vi

ce
 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t  

C
om

pl
ex

 N
ee

ds
 P

an
el

 

Jo
in

t G
ro

up
 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

35
. 

 
 

 
Le

ad
 M

an
ag

er
 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
 c

om
pr

eh
en

si
ve

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 C

W
D

 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 in

 th
e 

co
nt

ex
t o

f  
th

e 
C

ar
e 

A
ct

 a
nd

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

an
d 

F
am

ili
es

 A
ct

; A
du

lts
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

; h
ea

lth
 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

;  
th

e 
in

no
va

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e,

 p
er

so
na

liz
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l f
or

 a
 d

iff
er

en
t i

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

od
el

. .
  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
15

 
A

 le
ad

 m
an

ag
er

 fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
R

ev
ie

w
 h

as
 

be
en

 a
pp

oi
nt

ed
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

 
po

st
 fr

om
 1

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.  

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
  

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

B
oa

rd
 

C
ab

in
et

 

126



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 9
 o
f 2

4 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

36
. 

 
25

.  

(6
2,

 6
4,

 
65

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 g

o 
m

is
si

ng
 is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

sh
ar

ed
 a

nd
 r

ob
us

tly
 a

na
ly

se
d 

be
tw

ee
n 

pa
rt

ne
r 

ag
en

ci
es

.  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

 

D
ev

el
op

 H
S

C
B

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r 
th

e 
on

go
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f 

co
or

di
na

te
d 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 r
es

po
ns

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 g

o 
m

is
si

ng
.  

 T
he

 C
S

A
R

 s
ub

 
gr

ou
p 

w
ill

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
e 

an
al

ys
is

 o
f m

is
si

ng
 

ch
ild

re
n 

da
ta

 a
nd

 id
en

tif
y 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

th
em

es
, g

ro
up

s 
an

d 
tr

en
ds

 w
hi

ch
 m

ay
 

id
en

tif
y 

ris
k 

ar
ea

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ty
 a

nd
 

re
gi

on
al

ly
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 a

n 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 
re

sp
on

se
.  

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
T

he
 H

S
C

B
 M

is
si

ng
 A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
ig

ne
d 

of
f b

y 
th

e 
B

oa
rd

 a
nd

 is
 in

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

of
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n.

   

T
he

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 th
e 

da
ta

 w
ill

 
fe

ed
 in

to
 th

e 
jo

in
t s

tr
at

eg
ic

 
ne

ed
s 

as
se

ss
m

en
t (

JS
N

A
) 

 

H
S

C
B

 B
us

in
es

s 
P

la
n 

20
14

/1
5 

 

H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 

H
S

C
B

 S
ex

ua
l 

E
xp

lo
ita

tio
n 

an
d 

T
ra

ffi
ck

in
g 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

G
ro

up
 

37
. 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 r

ep
or

tin
g 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 w

ith
in

 
fr

am
ew

or
ki

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
be

st
 id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

be
st

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

 r
es

pe
ct

 o
f m

is
si

ng
 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

en
ab

le
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

re
po

rt
in

g 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

re
tu

rn
 in

te
rv

ie
w

 
ou

tc
om

es
.  

  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

M
is

si
ng

 e
pi

so
de

 in
 F

W
i 

dr
af

te
d 

an
d 

du
e 

to
 b

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
ith

 k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 1

0t
h 

Ju
ly

 w
ith

 
vi

ew
 to

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
du

rin
g 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
4.

 

Q
ui

ck
 R

ef
er

en
ce

 G
ui

de
 

dr
af

te
d 

an
d 

w
ill

 b
e 

la
un

ch
ed

 
in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

ne
w

 F
W

i 
M

od
ul

e.
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 

38
. 

 
26

.  

(6
8)

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

pa
rt

ne
r 

ag
en

ci
es

 a
nd

 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
re

 a
w

ar
e 

of
 th

e 
ne

ed
 

to
 n

ot
ify

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

.  

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

 

T
ra

in
in

g 
of

 fr
on

tli
ne

 s
ta

ff 
ar

ou
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g.
 

R
ef

re
sh

 o
f p

riv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
ra

is
in

g 
st

ra
te

gy
. T

hi
s 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
lo

ca
l 

pr
es

s,
 s

ch
oo

ls
 (

ex
ch

an
ge

 s
tu

de
nt

s)
 a

nd
 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
ce

nt
re

s 
ea

rly
 y

ea
rs

 s
et

tin
gs

 
an

d 
th

e 
pu

bl
ic

 a
t l

ar
ge

.  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
st

an
da

rd
s 

dr
af

te
d 

by
 

Q
A

 a
nd

 C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
w

hi
ch

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

si
gn

ed
 o

ff.
 

M
ee

tin
g 

ha
s 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

w
ith

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
U

ni
t t

o 
up

da
te

 c
ur

re
nt

 p
os

te
rs

 a
nd

 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
. 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

  

S
cr

ut
in

y

39
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

R
ef

re
sh

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 p

os
te

rs
 a

nd
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

le
af

le
ts

 a
nd

 c
on

si
de

r 
w

id
er

 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

s 
to

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

sh
ar

in
g 

an
d 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
sh

ar
in

g.
   

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

40
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 d
at

a 
fr

om
 c

om
pa

ra
to

r 
an

d 
go

od
 p

er
fo

rm
in

g 
au

th
or

iti
es

 a
s 

to
 w

ha
t 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 p

riv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

  

127



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
0 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ou
ld

 b
e 

ex
pe

ct
ed

 in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 a
nd

 
le

ar
n 

fr
om

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
s 

th
ey

 ta
ke

. 

41
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

C
la

rif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 w
ha

t a
 p

riv
at

e 
fo

st
er

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t i

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

st
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r 
ki

ns
hi

p 
an

d 
pr

iv
at

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
. 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
In

te
rn

al
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
G

ro
up

  

42
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

su
ffi

ci
en

t l
ea

de
rs

hi
p 

an
d 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 a

bo
ve

 a
ct

io
ns

, 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

pr
iv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g 
to

 m
ov

e 
in

to
 th

e 
K

in
sh

ip
 a

nd
 S

G
O

 h
ub

 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

M
on

ito
rin

g 
of

 P
riv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g 
ad

de
d 

to
 th

e 
ro

le
s 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 S

G
O

 a
nd

 
K

in
sh

ip
 T

ea
m

 M
an

ag
er

 r
ol

e 
to

 
re

po
r 

to
 C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 
at

 s
ix

 m
on

th
ly

. .
 B

ut
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

of
 r

ef
er

ra
l w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

M
A

S
H

 in
 th

e 
in

te
rim

. 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

m
on

th
ly

 

43
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

U
pd

at
e 

pr
iv

at
e 

fo
st

er
in

g 
w

or
kf

lo
w

 o
n 

fr
am

ew
or

ki
 a

s 
cu

rr
en

tly
 n

ot
 fi

t f
or

 p
ur

po
se

 
to

 e
na

bl
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
of

 s
uc

h 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
.  

  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
ki

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n.
  

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 

44
. 

 
27

.  
(7

0)
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
E

m
er

ge
nc

y 
D

ut
y 

T
ea

m
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
su

pp
or

ts
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 h
el

d 
in

 p
ol

ic
e 

cu
st

od
y 

ou
t o

f 
ho

ur
s 

an
d 

th
at

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 a
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

io
n 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 

pr
ev

en
t y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

be
in

g 
he

ld
 in

 
po

lic
e 

cu
st

od
y 

ov
er

ni
gh

t. 

 H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f E

D
T

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
to

co
ls

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
Le

ad
 C

om
m

is
si

on
er

, H
oS

 
LA

C
 a

nd
 H

oS
 F

ie
ld

w
or

k 
ha

ve
 

re
vi

ew
ed

 o
pe

ra
tio

na
l p

ro
to

co
l. 

 
U

pd
at

ed
 d

ra
ft 

to
 b

e 
di

sc
us

se
d 

w
ith

 E
D

T
 in

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
4.

   
 

O
nc

e 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ag
re

ed
, t

he
n 

ne
w

 fu
nc

tio
na

lit
y 

ne
ed

s 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
w

ith
in

 
fr

am
ew

or
k.

  

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

s 
H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

45
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

R
ev

ie
w

 w
ith

 Y
O

S
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

e 
co

lle
ag

ue
s 

as
 to

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

Y
O

S
 C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g,
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 Q
ua

lit
y 

A
ss

ur
an

ce
 M

an
ag

er
 is

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

is
su

es
  

ar
ou

nd
 o

ve
rn

ig
ht

 d
et

en
tio

n 
of

 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 w

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

E
D

T
s 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
Y

O
S

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

46
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

Id
en

tif
y 

pr
ov

id
er

s 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
14

 
E

xp
lo

rin
g 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
’s

 
ex

is
tin

g 
“S

af
e 

B
as

e”
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

as
 a

 p
ot

en
tia

l m
od

el
 to

 fo
llo

w
, 

or
 a

s 
an

 o
pt

io
n 

th
e 

E
D

T
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

s 

128



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
1 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

sh
ou

ld
 a

lre
ad

y 
ha

ve
 a

cc
es

s 
to

.
47

. 
 

 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

R
ep

or
tin

g 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

di
sc

us
se

d 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 w
ith

 p
ol

ic
e 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

48
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

D
ev

el
op

 c
le

ar
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

w
ith

 p
ol

ic
e 

to
 

tr
ou

bl
e 

sh
oo

t s
uc

h 
is

su
es

 lo
ca

lly
 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
de

fin
iti

on
 o

f ‘
se

cu
re

’. 
  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

49
. 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

D
ev

el
op

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ep

or
t t

o 
m

on
ito

r 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

te
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

in
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y 
of

 u
se

 o
f c

us
to

dy
 

in
ap

pr
op

ria
te

ly
. 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
fr

am
ew

or
ki

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 
Y

O
S

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

oa
rd

 

50
. 

 
28

.  

(7
3)

F
ul

ly
 u

til
is

e 
F

am
ily

 G
ro

up
 

C
on

fe
re

nc
es

 to
 in

fo
rm

 c
ar

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
, 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 w
he

re
 c

ar
e 

pr
oc

ee
di

ng
s 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
co

ns
id

er
ed

.  

H
ea

d 
of

 D
ire

ct
 

W
or

k 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 
F

ie
ld

w
or

k 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 r
es

ou
rc

e 
F

G
C

 s
er

vi
ce

 to
 

en
su

re
 r

ob
us

t r
es

po
ns

e 
to

 r
eq

ui
re

m
en

ts
 

of
 P

ub
lic

 L
aw

 O
ut

lin
e,

 a
nd

 c
as

e 
la

w
 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

.  
  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

51
. 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
on

 F
G

C
 a

ct
iv

ity
 

an
d 

ou
tc

om
es

 d
ev

el
op

ed
.  

  
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
14

 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

de
liv

er
ed

 w
ith

in
 

th
e 

fr
am

ew
or

ki
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n 

52
. 

 
29

.  

(5
1 

, 1
47

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 d
iv

er
si

ty
 is

su
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

et
hn

ic
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

ra
l i

de
nt

ity
 o

f c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

ei
r 

fa
m

ili
es

 a
re

 th
or

ou
gh

ly
 

as
se

ss
ed

 a
nd

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
.  

 

Le
ad

 M
an

ag
er

 
fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

hi
p 

w
id

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 
be

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

ac
tio

ns
 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s.

   
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
 

C
ab

in
et

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

B
oa

rd
 

53
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
  

E
ng

ag
e 

w
ith

 E
qu

al
iti

es
 M

an
ag

er
 to

 
en

su
re

 th
at

 c
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

di
ve

rs
ity

 is
su

es
 a

re
 

fu
lly

 e
m

be
dd

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l’s

 
di

ve
rs

ity
 s

tr
at

eg
y.

  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 

54
. 

 
 

 
Le

ad
 M

an
ag

er
 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

D
ev

el
op

 e
nh

an
ce

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

an
d 

Q
A

 o
f 

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 is
su

es
 to

 in
fo

rm
 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 n
ee

ds
.  

  

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

129



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
2 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

55
. 

 
 

 
Le

ad
 M

an
ag

er
 

fo
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
w

ith
 

D
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

an
d 

P
ra

ct
ic

e 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Id
en

tif
ic

at
io

n 
of

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
ex

am
pl

es
 

w
he

re
 d

iv
er

si
ty

 is
su

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 
th

or
ou

gh
ly

 c
on

si
de

re
d.

   

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
Q

A
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
 

56
. 

30
.  

 
Im

pl
em

en
t a

nd
 m

on
ito

r 
a 

ro
bu

st
 

sy
st

em
 fo

r 
m

ak
in

g 
tim

el
y 

de
ci

si
on

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 d
el

ay
s 

in
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

in
g 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
he

n 
th

ey
 

ne
ed

 to
 b

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f p

ro
ce

ss
es

 fo
r 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
re

so
ur

ce
 p

an
el

, l
eg

al
 p

la
nn

in
g 

an
d 

C
N

S
. 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
  

57
. 

 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

 

A
s 

pa
rt

 o
f r

ev
ie

w
, r

ep
or

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 
to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
to

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
tim

el
in

es
s 

of
 

de
ci

si
on

s 
an

d 
es

ca
la

tio
n 

pr
oc

es
s 

if 
de

la
y 

is
 id

en
tif

ie
d.

 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

W
or

k 
on

 th
e 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

m
od

ul
e 

w
ith

in
 

F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 s
ta

rt
ed

 a
t t

he
 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 A
ug

us
t. 

 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

58
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

C
on

tin
ue

d 
jo

in
t w

or
ki

ng
 b

et
w

ee
n 

E
dg

e 
of

 
C

ar
e 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

 p
an

el
.  

D
ire

ct
 w

or
k 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t t

o 
en

su
re

 d
ed

ic
at

ed
 

ed
ge

 o
f c

ar
e 

re
sp

on
se

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

l 
ac

tio
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 ta

ke
n 

to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
ch

ild
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
fa

m
ily

.  
  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

59
. 

 
31

.  

(7
8)

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 p
la

ns
 fo

r 
pe

rm
an

en
cy

 a
re

 
m

ad
e 

an
d 

cl
ea

rly
 r

ec
or

de
d 

at
 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
se

co
nd

 lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

re
vi

ew
 

in
 li

ne
 w

ith
 n

at
io

na
l g

ui
da

nc
e.

  

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 r
ol

l o
ut

 o
f p

er
m

an
en

cy
 

po
lic

y 
an

d 
its

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n.
   

  
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
14

 
C

ur
re

nt
ly

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s.

   
P

ol
ic

y 
ap

pr
ov

al
:  

C
ab

in
et

/C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

 

60
. 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

  

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 m
ea

su
re

m
en

t r
ep

or
ts

 to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

to
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
14

 
W

or
k 

on
 th

e 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
m

od
ul

e 
w

ith
in

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 s

ta
rt

ed
 a

t t
he

 
be

gi
nn

in
g 

of
 A

ug
us

t. 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 to
 b

e 
re

po
rt

ed
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

br
oa

de
r 

pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
fr

am
ew

or
k 

61
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
  

S
ec

on
dm

en
t o

f S
M

 in
to

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t e

xp
er

tis
e 

in
 L

A
C

 w
ill

 le
ad

 o
n 

se
lf-

as
se

ss
m

en
t a

ga
in

st
 C

ar
e 

P
la

nn
in

g 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 a
nd

 L
A

C
 R

ev
ie

w
 P

ro
ce

ss
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t a

ge
nd

a.
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
 

62
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
R

ev
is

ed
 L

A
C

R
 R

ec
or

ds
 d

ra
fte

d 
an

d 
du

e 
to

 b
e 

tr
ia

le
d 

– 
th

es
e 

gi
ve

 g
re

at
er

 fo
cu

s 
to

 
pe

rm
an

en
ce

 p
la

nn
in

g 
an

d 
be

tte
r 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
D

oc
um

en
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 a

nd
 

ar
e 

be
in

g 
tr

ia
le

d.
  

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

130



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
3 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

an
d 

R
ev

ie
w

  
ev

id
en

ce
 Q

A
 b

y 
IR

O
s 

63
. 

 
32

.  

(8
1)

D
ev

el
op

 s
pe

ci
fic

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

m
et

ho
ds

 to
 in

fo
rm

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 a

bo
ut

 
w

he
th

er
 s

ib
lin

gs
 s

ho
ul

d 
be

 
pe

rm
an

en
tly

 p
la

ce
d 

to
ge

th
er

 o
r 

ap
ar

t. 
R

ec
or

d 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 in
 

de
ta

il 
to

 r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
de

ci
si

on
 b

ei
ng

 m
ad

e.
  

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

R
ef

re
sh

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
do

cu
m

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

sh
ar

e 
be

st
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 a
cr

os
s 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

   
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
G

ui
da

nc
e 

do
cu

m
en

ta
tio

n 
re

ad
y 

fo
r 

di
ss

em
in

at
io

n 
w

ith
in

 
tim

es
ca

le
.  

  

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

64
. 

 
 

 
Q

A
 a

nd
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

E
ns

ur
e 

Q
A

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
 in

co
rp

or
at

e 
an

al
ys

is
 o

f i
m

pa
ct

 o
f u

se
 o

f t
hi

s 
gu

id
an

ce
 

in
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

ou
tc

om
es

 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

F
am

ily
 

S
up

po
rt

 H
ea

ds
 o

f S
er

vi
ce

 

65
. 

 
33

.  

(7
9)

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 r
eg

ul
ar

 a
na

ly
si

s 
an

d 
re

po
rt

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 s
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

es
 a

n 
ac

cu
ra

te
 a

cc
ou

nt
 o

f 
em

er
gi

ng
 th

em
es

.  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 c

on
tr

ac
t t

o 
en

su
re

 a
na

ly
si

s 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ga
th

er
ed

 in
fo

rm
s 

fu
tu

re
 

co
m

m
is

si
on

in
g,

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e 
an

d 
m

os
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
ns

 o
f s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

A
gr

ee
 o

ut
co

m
es

 fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

th
at

 
de

m
on

st
ra

te
 th

e 
di

ffe
re

nc
e 

ad
vo

ca
cy

 h
as

 
m

ad
e 

to
 th

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 th

e 
ch

ild
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

C
on

tr
ac

t i
s 

fo
rm

al
ly

 m
on

ito
re

d 
on

 a
 q

ua
rt

er
ly

 b
as

is
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

ov
id

er
. C

on
tin

uo
us

 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
ab

ou
t o

pe
ra

tio
na

l 
as

pe
ct

s,
 th

em
es

 e
m

er
gi

ng
 a

s 
to

 h
ow

 w
e 

ca
pt

ur
e 

an
d 

us
e 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.  

  

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
  

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

66
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

S
pe

ci
fic

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

ts
 o

f a
dv

oc
ac

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
yo

un
ge

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
C

W
D

 a
s 

pa
rt

 o
f c

on
tr

ac
t r

ef
re

sh
.  

  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t h
as

 b
ee

n 
re

vi
ew

ed
 a

nd
 p

ro
vi

si
on

 fo
r 

yo
un

ge
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

C
W

D
; 

th
is

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
ad

dr
es

se
d 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

ov
id

er
 a

nd
 a

w
ar

en
es

s 
no

w
 n

ee
ds

 to
 h

ap
pe

n 
w

ith
 

in
te

rn
al

 s
ta

ff 
to

 m
ak

e 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

67
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

A
na

ly
si

s 
of

 r
es

ou
rc

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 a
ch

ie
ve

 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 o

f v
oi

ce
 o

f c
hi

ld
 s

tr
at

eg
y 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

S
er

vi
ce

 s
pe

ci
fic

at
io

n 
fo

r 
V

oi
ce

 
of

 th
e 

C
hi

ld
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
 

fu
nc

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 d
ra

fte
d.

   
.  

 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

68
. 

 
34

.  
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
vi

rt
ua

l s
ch

oo
l 

de
ve

lo
ps

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

ts
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 n
ar

ro
w

 th
e 

ga
p 

in
 a

tta
in

m
en

t 
be

tw
ee

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
al

l 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

T
ea

ch
er

 
In

cr
ea

se
 o

ur
 u

nd
er

st
an

di
ng

 o
f t

he
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l n

ee
ds

 o
f t

he
 c

ur
re

nt
 L

A
C

 
co

ho
rt

 to
 id

en
tif

y 
ba

rr
ie

rs
 to

 le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

  
to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

st
re

ng
th

s 
an

d 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
A

na
ly

si
s 

se
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

Li
ai

so
n 

fo
r 

LA
C

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r 
12

th

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

131



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
4 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

ot
he

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
in

 H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

in
 c

or
e 

cu
rr

ic
ul

um
 s

ub
je

ct
s.

 
 

P
an

el
 

69
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
T

ea
ch

er
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 c

or
e 

da
ta

 p
ac

ka
ge

 fo
r 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
Li

ai
so

n 
fo

r 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ll 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

th
e 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 le

ar
ni

ng
 o

f t
he

 in
di

vi
du

al
 c

hi
ld

 
co

m
in

g 
in

 to
 th

e 
ca

re
 s

ys
te

m
 is

 g
at

he
re

d 
an

d 
us

ed
 to

 d
ev

el
op

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
pa

ck
ag

es
 o

f s
up

po
rt

. 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

70
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 c

rit
ic

al
 fr

ie
nd

 to
 a

ct
 a

s 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
ro

bu
st

 s
tr

at
eg

y.
   

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

14
 

T
he

 S
ch

oo
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

A
dv

is
or

 w
ill

 a
ct

 a
s 

a 
cr

iti
ca

l 
fr

ie
nd

.  

R
eg

ul
ar

 s
er

ie
s 

of
 m

ee
tin

gs
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

st
ar

te
d.

 

R
ol

e 
of

 c
rit

ic
al

 fr
ie

nd
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
fo

rm
al

ly
 p

ro
vi

de
 

ag
en

da
 fo

r 
m

ee
tin

gs
. 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

71
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
C

on
du

ct
  r

ev
ie

w
 o

f E
LL

 S
er

vi
ce

 w
or

ki
ng

 
pr

ac
tic

es
 a

nd
 w

or
kl

oa
ds

, i
nc

lu
di

ng
 

ex
pl

or
at

io
n 

of
 e

xt
en

di
ng

 r
em

it 
of

 V
irt

ua
l 

S
ch

oo
l f

ro
m

 0
 –

 2
5.

 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

R
ev

ie
w

 u
nd

er
w

ay
, i

ni
tia

l d
ra

ft 
to

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

 b
y 

30
th

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

72
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
 IC

T
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

to
 a

llo
w

 c
lo

se
r 

tr
ac

ki
ng

 o
f p

ro
gr

es
s 

an
d 

at
te

nd
an

ce
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

al
l e

ng
ag

ed
 to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
da

ta
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

pl
ac

ed
 

ou
t o

f c
ou

nt
y.

 S
et

 u
p 

m
ee

tin
g 

ar
ra

ng
ed

 fo
r 

w
ee

k 
co

m
m

en
ci

ng
 1

4th
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

73
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
t c

ou
nt

y,
 

sc
ho

ol
, g

ro
up

 a
nd

 in
di

vi
du

al
 le

ve
l 

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 fr

om
 s

es
si

on
 o

n 
12

th

S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

74
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
U

se
 o

f E
P

 ti
m

e,
 c

om
m

is
si

on
ed

 w
ith

 P
up

il 
P

re
m

iu
m

 m
on

ey
 to

 h
el

p 
w

ith
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
D

ep
en

de
nt

 o
n 

re
cr

ui
tm

en
t, 

ad
ve

rt
 p

la
ce

d 
w

ith
 c

lo
si

ng
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

132



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
5 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

te
ac

he
r 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
in

g 
an

d 
pl

an
ni

ng
 fo

r 
th

os
e 

LA
C

 w
ith

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
ly

 c
ha

lle
ng

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
20

14
 

da
te

 3
rd

 S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 
T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

75
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
t c

ou
nt

y,
 

sc
ho

ol
, g

ro
up

 a
nd

 in
di

vi
du

al
 le

ve
l 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
In

iti
al

 tr
aw

l o
f s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
re

co
m

m
en

de
d 

by
 te

am
 

pl
an

ne
d 

fo
r 

se
ss

io
n 

on
 1

2th

S
ep

te
m

be
r.

 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

76
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
D

ev
el

op
 d

at
a 

on
 c

om
pa

ra
tiv

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

of
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 b

y 
de

m
on

st
ra

tin
g 

pr
og

re
ss

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

in
 c

ho
ic

e 
of

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 
in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 fo

r 
LA

C
. 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

77
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
D

em
on

st
ra

te
 g

oo
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 fo
r 

al
l a

nd
 

ac
ce

le
ra

te
d 

pr
og

re
ss

 fo
r 

th
e 

m
aj

or
ity

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

15
 

 
Jo

in
t S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

78
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l H
ea

d 
te

ac
he

r 
A

ss
es

s 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 im
pa

ct
 o

f L
et

te
rb

ox
 

C
lu

b 
on

 in
iti

al
 c

oh
or

t 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
14

 
P

ro
je

ct
 to

 b
e 

of
fe

re
d 

to
 

T
ra

in
ee

 E
du

ca
tio

na
l 

P
sy

ch
ol

og
is

t w
he

n 
sh

e 
st

ar
ts

. 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

79
. 

 
35

.  

(8
7,

 8
8,

 
89

) 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

 m
ak

e 
co

ns
is

te
nt

ly
 

go
od

 o
r 

be
tte

r 
pr

og
re

ss
 a

t e
ve

ry
 

st
ag

e 
of

 th
ei

r 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

an
d 

cl
os

e 
th

e 
at

ta
in

m
en

t g
ap

 b
et

w
ee

n 
lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
al

l c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

.  
 

V
irt

ua
l H

ea
d 

te
ac

he
r 

A
na

ly
se

 c
ur

re
nt

 L
A

C
 c

oh
or

t t
o 

id
en

tif
y 

ba
rr

ie
rs

 to
 le

ar
ni

ng
 a

nd
 to

 in
cl

ud
e 

th
e 

st
re

ng
th

s 
an

d 
w

ea
kn

es
se

s 
in

 c
or

e 
cu

rr
ic

ul
um

 s
ub

je
ct

s.
 

 
A

na
ly

si
s 

se
ss

io
n 

w
ith

 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

Li
ai

so
n 

fo
r 

LA
C

 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ne

d 
fo

r 
12

th

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

80
. 

 
 

 
V

irt
ua

l 
H

ea
dt

ea
ch

er
 

A
nn

ua
l r

ep
or

t t
o 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 o

n 
LA

C
 a

tta
in

m
en

t 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
14

 
 

N
ov

em
be

r 
C

or
po

ra
te

 
P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

81
. 

 
 

 
 

D
ev

el
op

 te
rm

ly
 r

ep
or

t f
or

 L
oo

ke
d 

af
te

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

P
la

ce
m

en
t O

pe
ra

tio
n 

G
ro

up
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

133



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
6 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

(L
A

C
P

O
G

) 
to

 s
ho

w
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

ag
ai

n 
ke

y 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 k

ey
 

ca
se

s 
ca

us
in

g 
co

nc
er

n 

20
14

 
T

ea
m

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

82
. 

 
36

.  
E

ns
ur

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

jo
in

t w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 th
e 

po
lic

e 
an

d 
yo

ut
h 

of
fe

nd
in

g 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 
ro

ut
in

el
y 

re
co

rd
 a

nd
 a

na
ly

se
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t l
oo

ke
d 

af
te

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
en

ga
ge

d 
in

 o
ffe

nd
in

g 
be

ha
vi

ou
r.

  

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

A
ud

it 
of

 c
oh

or
t o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 

hi
st

or
y 

of
 o

ffe
nd

in
g 

an
d 

re
of

fe
nd

in
g.

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
 

Y
O

S
 B

oa
rd

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

83
. 

 
 

 
F

ra
m

ew
or

ki
 

T
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f r

ec
or

di
ng

 a
nd

 a
na

ly
si

s 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ro
bu

st
 a

nd
 

re
gu

la
r 

re
po

rt
in

g 
an

d 
re

sp
on

se
 to

 is
su

es
 

is
 in

 p
la

ce
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
nd

 F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 
T

ra
ns

fo
rm

at
io

n 
M

an
ag

er
 to

 
lia

is
e 

w
ith

 th
e 

po
lic

e 
an

d 
Y

O
S

 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
er

e 
ar

e 
ro

bu
st

 
re

po
rt

in
g 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 

pl
ac

e.
   

T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
lin

ke
d 

to
 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 L
A

C
 m

od
ul

e 
w

ith
in

 F
ra

m
ew

or
ki

 w
hi

ch
 

co
m

m
en

ce
d 

in
 A

ug
us

t. 
 

P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 

84
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
 

S
co

pi
ng

 o
f P

re
ve

nt
 a

nd
 d

et
er

 w
or

k 
w

ith
 

LA
C

 y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
11

+ 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
 

Y
O

S
 B

oa
rd

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

85
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f  

N
or

th
um

be
rla

nd
 R

is
k 

M
od

el
. 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
Y

O
S

 B
oa

rd
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

86
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 A

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f I

nt
eg

ra
te

d 
yo

ut
h 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 w
ith

 Y
O

S
/ 1

6+
/ Y

ou
th

 
C

on
tr

ac
t/P

ol
ic

e/
 H

ea
lth

. 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

LA
C

 a
nd

 C
ar

e 
Le

av
er

s 
G

ro
up

 
m

ee
tin

g 
on

11
 J

ul
y 

20
14

 
ch

ai
re

d 
by

 D
C

S
 to

 p
la

n 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
w

or
ki

ng
 m

ov
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d 
an

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s 

ne
ed

ed
 a

cr
os

s 
W

es
t M

er
ci

a.
 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

T
ea

m
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
&

 Y
ou

ng
 

P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

B
oa

rd
 

134



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
7 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

C
ab

in
et

 

87
. 

 
37

.  

(9
3)

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 im
pl

em
en

t w
or

ki
ng

 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 w

ith
 lo

ca
l C

hi
ld

 a
nd

 
A

do
le

sc
en

t M
en

ta
l H

ea
lth

 S
er

vi
ce

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
be

tte
r 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 
tr

ea
tm

en
t f

or
 lo

ok
ed

 a
fte

r 
ch

ild
re

n.
  

A
ss

is
ta

nt
 

D
ire

ct
or

: 
E

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g

R
ef

re
sh

 o
f C

A
M

H
S

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

hi
ch

 w
ill

 
th

en
 fe

ed
 in

to
 w

id
er

 r
ec

om
m

is
si

on
in

g 
of

 
m

en
ta

l h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

  S
tr

at
eg

y 
w

ill
 

co
nt

ai
n 

ac
tio

ns
 fo

r 
12

 m
on

th
s 

to
 im

pr
ov

e 
em

ot
io

na
l h

ea
lth

 a
nd

 w
el

lb
ei

ng
  

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
in

 d
ra

ft 
fo

r 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
in

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 a
nd

 th
en

 to
 b

e 
ta

ke
n 

fo
rw

ar
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
  

C
ab

in
et

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

B
oa

rd
 

88
. 

 
 

 
A

ss
is

ta
nt

 
D

ire
ct

or
: 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d 
C

om
m

is
si

on
in

g

E
ns

ur
e 

C
A

M
H

S
 S

tr
at

eg
y 

in
cl

ud
es

 e
ar

ly
 

ye
ar

s 
co

m
po

ne
nt

  
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
14

 
N

H
S

 E
ng

la
nd

 A
rd

en
 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 a

nd
 

W
or

ce
st

er
sh

ire
 h

as
 e

ns
ur

ed
 

th
at

 e
m

ot
io

na
l w

el
lb

ei
ng

 
al

re
ad

y 
 fo

rm
s 

pa
rt

 o
f t

he
 

co
nt

ra
ct

ua
l r

eq
ui

re
m

en
ts

 o
f 

th
e 

he
al

th
 v

is
iti

ng
 s

er
vi

ce
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

tio
n.

 In
 th

is
 w

ay
 w

or
k 

on
 th

e 
0 

– 
2 

ye
ar

s 
in

iti
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
ie

r 
1 

un
iv

er
sa

l 
of

fe
rin

g 
an

d 
ho

pe
s 

to
 im

pa
ct

 
on

 fu
tu

re
 g

en
er

at
io

ns
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f m
en

ta
l h

ea
lth

 
pr

ob
le

m
s 

 

C
ab

in
et

 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

B
oa

rd
 

89
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n 

E
ns

ur
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
p 

be
tw

ee
n 

C
A

M
H

S
 

S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 th

e 
H

IP
P

S
 a

nd
 

T
IS

S
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 a
re

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
ef

in
ed

.  
 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
 

In
te

ns
iv

e 
pl

ac
em

en
t s

up
po

rt
 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
m

m
is

si
on

ed
 b

as
ed

 
on

 th
er

ap
eu

tic
 m

od
el

.  
 F

irs
t 

LA
C

 c
as

es
 e

xp
ec

te
d 

to
 b

e 
su

pp
or

te
d 

fr
om

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

14
.  

 F
ie

ld
w

or
k 

LA
C

 
se

rv
ic

es
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
ed

 p
ro

vi
de

r 
to

 
de

ve
lo

p 
op

er
at

io
na

l 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

ps
 w

ith
 a

ll 
C

A
M

H
S

 
pr

ov
id

er
s 

in
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

   
 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Y

ou
ng

 
P

eo
pl

e’
s 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 
pr

ov
id

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

 

H
ea

lth
 &

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 

B
oa

rd
 

Jo
in

t C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

G
ro

up
  

90
. 

 
38

. 

(9
4)

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

ch
ild

re
n 

in
 c

ar
e 

co
un

ci
l i

s 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e,

 is
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
of

 th
e 

ra
ng

e 
of

 lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ha
s 

m
em

be
rs

hi
p 

of
 th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
, c

ha
ir 

of
 c

or
po

ra
te

 
pa

re
nt

in
g,

 c
ha

ir 
of

 C
iC

 c
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

ca
re

 
le

av
er

s 
ch

am
pi

on
  t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
M

ee
tin

g 
bo

ok
ed

 w
ith

 C
ab

in
et

 
S

up
po

rt
 M

em
be

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

&
 

Y
ou

ng
 P

eo
pl

e’
s 

an
d 

ca
re

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

135



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
8 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

gr
ou

p.
  

to
  i

nf
or

m
 c

or
po

ra
te

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
st

ra
te

gy
. 

ch
am

pi
on

. 

91
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
A

s 
fr

om
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

14
, y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

w
ill

 h
av

e 
m

em
be

rs
hi

p 
of

  c
or

po
ra

te
 

pa
re

nt
in

g 
pa

ne
ls

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

 

92
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 to
 b

e 
se

nt
 m

in
ut

e 
fr

om
 C

iC
 

fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

an
d 

ac
tio

n 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d.

 
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

14
 

93
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
A

do
pt

 a
nd

 p
ub

lis
h 

th
e 

P
le

dg
e 

fo
r 

Lo
ok

ed
 

af
te

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n,

 a
s 

a 
de

m
on

st
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t o
f t

he
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
t t

o 
ou

r 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n.

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

si
gn

ed
 a

t t
he

 fe
te

 
on

 9
 A

ug
us

t  
20

14
 a

nd
 th

en
 

go
 to

 C
ou

nc
il 

fo
r 

ad
op

tio
n 

on
 

26
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

94
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
D

ev
el

op
 C

iC
C

 w
eb

si
te

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
it 

is
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e 
of

 th
e 

vo
ic

e 
of

 o
ur

 L
A

C
 

an
d 

is
 a

 u
se

fu
l r

es
ou

rc
e 

fo
r 

th
em

 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

M
en

to
rin

g 
an

d 
P

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 h
as

 m
et

 w
ith

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 U

ni
t t

o 
de

ve
lo

p 
w

eb
pa

ge
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
  

95
. 

 
39

.  

(1
25

, 
13

6)
 

E
ns

ur
e 

al
l l

oc
al

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
el

ec
te

d 
m

em
be

rs
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
an

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y 
un

de
rt

ak
e 

th
ei

r 
ro

le
 a

s 
a 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

re
nt

.  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
A

C
 

M
em

be
rs

’ S
em

in
ar

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
/N

ov
em

be
r 

re
 C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g.
   

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
S

em
in

ar
 o

rg
an

is
ed

 fo
r 

15
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

T
ea

m
 

96
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 M
em

be
rs

’ S
em

in
ar

s 
in

 
pl

ac
e 

up
 u

nt
il 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
.  

 N
ew

 
ro

lli
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

to
 b

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

af
te

r 
20

15
 lo

ca
l e

le
ct

io
ns

.  
 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

15
 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

m
en

t T
ea

m
 

97
. 

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 L

A
C

 
S

ur
ve

y 
of

 M
em

be
rs

’ u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f 
th

ei
r 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

ro
le

 to
 b

e 
un

de
rt

ak
en

 a
nd

 r
ep

ea
te

d 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 s

em
in

ar
s 

to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

im
pa

ct
.  

  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 P
ar

en
tin

g 
P

an
el

 

Jo
in

t S
en

io
r 

M
an

ag
er

m
en

t T
ea

m
 

98
. 

 
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

be
r:

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

 

W
or

k 
be

in
g 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 b

y 
C

ab
in

et
 

M
em

be
r 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

W
el

lb
ei

ng
 to

 m
ak

e 
pr

op
os

al
s 

to
 th

e 
G

ro
up

 L
ea

de
rs

 r
e 

m
an

da
to

ry
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
al

l C
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

at
 

th
e 

st
ar

t o
f e

ac
h 

ad
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n 

ye
ar

 to
 

A
ug

us
t 

20
14

 w
ith

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

 
fr

om
 M

ay
 

N
ot

e 
to

 G
ro

up
 L

ea
de

rs
 is

 in
 

dr
af

t f
or

m
 a

nd
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 

A
ug

us
t. 

 

C
ab

in
et

 

136



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 1
9 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

at
te

nd
 s

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

an
d 

co
rp

or
at

e 
pa

re
nt

in
g 

se
m

in
ar

s.
  T

he
 p

ro
po

sa
l w

ill
 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
at

  f
ai

lu
re

 to
 a

tte
nd

 w
ill

 
re

su
lt 

in
 m

em
be

rs
 a

llo
w

an
ce

s 
no

t b
ei

ng
 

pa
id

.  
 

20
15

 

99
. 

 
 

 
C

ab
in

et
 

S
up

po
rt

 
M

em
be

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
ab

in
et

 S
up

po
rt

 M
em

be
r 

is
 li

ai
si

ng
 w

ith
 

va
rio

us
 lo

ca
l b

us
in

es
s 

le
ad

er
s 

ab
ou

t 
ap

pr
en

tic
es

hi
ps

 a
nd

 w
or

k 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

fo
r 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n.

  

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

14
 

 
C

ab
in

et
  

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

10
0.

 
 

40
.  

(1
03

?)
 

R
ef

re
sh

 a
nd

 r
e-

la
un

ch
 th

e 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t s
tr

at
eg

y 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 a

do
pt

er
s 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

w
ith

 
co

m
pl

ex
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 fo
r 

la
rg

er
 s

ib
lin

g 
gr

ou
ps

.  

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t t

o 
a 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
an

d 
re

cr
ui

tm
en

t p
os

t w
ith

in
 th

e 
ad

op
tio

n 
an

d 
fo

st
er

in
g 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ith

 p
ar

tic
ul

ar
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t i

n 
so

ci
al

 m
ed

ia
. 

Ju
ly

 2
01

4 
Jo

b 
de

sc
rip

tio
n 

ha
s 

be
en

 
so

ur
ce

d 
an

d 
is

 b
ei

ng
 

pr
og

re
ss

ed
.  

 R
ol

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
fin

an
ce

d 
by

 A
do

pt
io

n 
R

ef
or

m
 

G
ra

nt
. 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

10
1.

 
 

 
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

T
he

 r
ec

ru
itm

en
t s

tr
at

eg
ie

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

ha
ve

 b
ee

n 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

ar
e 

du
e 

to
 b

e 
si

gn
ed

 o
ff 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r.
  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
C

hi
ld

ca
re

 M
an

ag
er

s 

10
2.

 
 

41
.  

(1
10

, 
11

1)
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

pa
th

w
ay

 p
la

ns
 a

re
 u

p 
to

 d
at

e,
 a

re
 o

f g
oo

d 
qu

al
ity

, a
re

 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 r
ob

us
t a

na
ly

si
s 

of
 n

ee
d,

 
w

ith
 c

le
ar

 a
nd

 a
gr

ee
d 

go
al

s 
an

d 
ar

e 
re

gu
la

rly
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

.

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f P

at
hw

ay
 p

la
n 

w
ith

 y
ou

ng
 

pe
op

le
 a

nd
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

 
Ju

ly
 2

01
4.

 
P

at
hw

ay
 p

la
n 

is
 n

ow
 a

t p
oi

nt
 

of
 s

ig
n 

of
f t

hr
ou

gh
 C

or
iu

s.
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

10
3.

 
 

 
 

Q
A

 &
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

A
ud

it 
ac

tiv
ity

 w
ith

 r
es

pe
ct

 to
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 
an

d 
qu

al
ity

 o
f p

at
hw

ay
 p

la
ns

 w
ill

 b
e 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 Q
A

 fr
am

ew
or

k 
an

d 
an

y 
le

ar
ni

ng
 w

ill
 b

e 
in

co
rp

or
at

ed
.  

  

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 
Q

A
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 

10
4.

 
 

 
 

 
In

 c
on

ju
nc

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

ab
ov

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
a 

su
rv

ey
 o

f y
ou

ng
 p

eo
pl

e 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 to
 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

ei
r 

ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
of

 th
e 

pa
th

w
ay

 p
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s.
   

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

 
Q

A
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 

10
5.

 
 

42
. 

(1
12

) 

 E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

ca
re

 le
av

er
s 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
co

py
 o

f t
he

ir 
he

al
th

 r
ec

or
ds

.  
 

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
f h

ea
lth

 p
as

sp
or

t f
or

 c
ar

e 
le

av
er

s.
  

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
B

es
t p

ra
ct

ic
e 

ex
am

pl
e 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
an

d 
be

in
g 

ad
ap

te
d 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
.  

C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 m

ov
in

g 
fr

om
 fo

st
er

 c
ar

e 
ar

e 
co

nt
in

ui
ng

 to
 u

se
 th

e 
fu

ll 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 C

ar
e 

M
an

ag
er

s 
 

Q
A

 F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

137



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 2
0 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

N
o

.  
O

fs
te

d
 

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

O
fs

te
d

 A
re

a 
fo

r 
Im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

L
ea

d
 

A
ct

io
n

 
B

y 
W

h
en

 
P

ro
g

re
ss

 
M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

va
lu

at
io

n
 

he
al

th
 p

as
sp

or
t, 

ca
re

 le
av

er
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

m
or

e 
co

nd
en

se
d 

bu
t 

w
ill

 in
cl

ud
e 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 

m
ed

ic
at

io
n 

de
ta

ils
 fo

r 
lif

e 
lim

iti
ng

 il
ln

es
se

s.
 

10
6.

 
 

43
.  

(8
2,

 1
17

, 
13

7)
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 a
ll 

lo
ok

ed
 a

fte
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

ca
re

 le
av

er
s 

un
de

rs
ta

nd
 th

ei
r 

rig
ht

s,
 r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
en

tit
le

m
en

ts
 a

nd
 r

ec
ei

ve
 th

e 
gu

id
an

ce
, s

up
po

rt
 a

nd
 r

es
ou

rc
es

 to
 

re
al

is
e 

th
em

.  

H
ea

d 
of

 
Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

R
ef

re
sh

 o
f C

or
po

ra
te

 p
ar

en
tin

g 
st

ra
te

gy
 

to
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

e 
rig

ht
s 

an
d 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

, i
nc

or
po

ra
tin

g 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

al
l c

hi
ld

re
n 

ar
e 

en
ab

le
d 

to
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

ei
r 

rig
ht

s.
   

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
15

 
A

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

  w
ill

 
be

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
vi

ew
 o

f t
he

 L
A

C
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
fr

am
ew

or
ki

 m
od

ul
e 

an
d 

w
ill

 
al

so
 li

nk
 to

 th
e 

V
oi

ce
 o

f t
he

 
C

hi
ld

 G
ro

up
.  

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 P

ar
en

tin
g 

P
an

el
 

10
7.

 
 

44
.  

(1
35

) 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
an

d 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tio
ns

 fr
om

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
, p

ar
en

ts
 a

nd
 

ca
re

rs
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
 u

se
rs

 is
 

sy
st

em
at

ic
al

ly
 c

ol
la

te
d 

an
d 

an
al

ys
ed

 
an

d 
is

 u
se

d 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

 

Q
A

 &
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

so
ci

al
 c

ar
e 

co
m

pl
ai

nt
s 

pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
an

d 
gu

id
an

ce
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
vi

se
d 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
Q

A
 

an
d 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

S
er

vi
ce

 to
 s

tr
en

gt
he

n 
ac

co
un

ta
bi

lit
y,

 k
no

w
le

dg
e,

 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

in
g,

 le
ar

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
di

ss
em

in
at

io
n 

of
 le

ar
ni

ng
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

O
pe

ra
tio

na
l f

ro
m

 2
 J

un
e 

20
14

.  
 

Q
ua

rt
er

ly
 r

ep
or

ts
 to

 
H

ea
ds

 o
f S

er
vi

ce
 

H
al

f y
ea

rly
 r

ep
or

t t
o 

Jo
in

t 
S

M
T

 a
nd

 m
em

be
rs

 
S

ta
tu

to
ry

 A
nn

ua
l 

C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

R
ep

or
t w

ill
 b

e 
pr

od
uc

ed
 fo

r 
ye

ar
 e

nd
 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

an
d 

pr
es

en
te

d 
to

 A
ud

it 
an

d 
G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
C

om
m

itt
ee

, 
H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

10
8.

 
 

 
 

Le
ad

 M
an

ag
er

 
fo

r 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

w
ith

 
D

is
ab

ili
tie

s 
an

d 
P

ra
ct

ic
e 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

N
ew

 in
te

gr
at

ed
 Q

A
 a

nd
 S

W
 a

ca
de

m
y 

se
rv

ic
e 

w
ill

 e
na

bl
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

 fr
om

 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
to

 b
e 

bu
ilt

 in
to

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t p
la

n.
   

 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
5 

Q
A

 a
nd

 S
W

 A
ca

de
m

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 n

ow
 in

te
gr

at
ed

 
as

 fr
om

 1
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 
an

d 
w

ill
 

be
 c

o-
lo

ca
te

d 
as

 fr
om

 1
 

O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

4.
  

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 M

an
ag

er
s 

 

138



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 2
1 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

P
A

R
T

 2
 

H
S

C
B

 O
F

S
T

E
D

 IN
S

P
E

C
T

IO
N

 M
A

Y
 2

01
4 

- 
A

C
T

IO
N

 P
L

A
N

 

K
ey

:  
 

  
H

S
C

B
 is

 th
e 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
 S

af
eg

ua
rd

in
g 

C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

B
oa

rd
 

  
O

fs
te

d 
P

ar
a 

N
um

be
r 

re
fe

rs
 to

 th
e 

A
re

a 
of

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t i

de
nt

ifi
ed

 in
 th

e 
O

fs
te

d 
In

sp
ec

tio
n 

O
ut

co
m

e 
of

 3
0 

Ju
ne

 2
01

4 

  
C

hi
ld

re
n 

of
 H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

’s
 I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

an
d 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

(C
H

IP
P

) 
is

 t
he

 t
ra

ns
fo

rm
at

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n’

s 
w

el
lb

ei
ng

 a
nd

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

pa
rt

ne
rs

 w
hi

ch
 w

ill
 b

e 
th

e 
ve

hi
cl

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

hi
ch

 a
ll 

th
e 

O
fs

te
d 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
w

ill
 b

e 
de

liv
er

ed
. 

  
E

ac
h 

ar
ea

 f
or

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

th
er

ef
or

e 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

w
ith

in
 t

he
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

a 
cl

ea
r 

le
ad

 a
nd

 c
on

si
st

en
t 

ap
pr

oa
ch

 to
 it

s 
de

liv
er

y.
   

O
fs

te
d

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

C
H

IP
P

 R
ef

 
O

fs
te

d
 A

re
a 

fo
r 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
L

ea
d

 
A

ct
io

n
 

B
y

W
h

en
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

1.
 

 
14

9 
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 b
et

w
ee

n 
th

e 
LS

C
B

 
an

d 
th

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t B
oa

rd
 a

re
 

cl
ar

ifi
ed

.  

In
de

pe
nd

e
nt

 C
ha

ir 
of

 
H

S
C

B
 

A
gr

ee
 p

ro
to

co
l w

hi
ch

 s
et

s 
ou

t t
he

 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 a
rr

an
ge

m
en

ts
 b

et
w

ee
n 

H
S

C
B

  a
nd

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
t B

oa
rd

.  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
C

ha
irs

 o
f H

S
C

B
 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 B

oa
rd

 
an

d 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
B

oa
rd

2.
 

 
15

0 
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 L
S

C
B

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 a
re

 u
p 

to
 d

at
e 

an
d 

in
co

rp
or

at
e 

is
su

es
 s

pe
ci

fic
 to

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

. 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

in
de

pe
nd

en
t c

ha
irs

 to
 a

gr
ee

  
su

b 
re

gi
on

al
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 p

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
H

S
C

B
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
S

ub
 

G
ro

up

3.
 

 
 

 
 

 
In

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 T
ri-

x,
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

 w
or

k 
pl

an
 to

 b
e 

ag
re

ed
 o

n 
a 

re
gi

on
al

 b
as

is
 fo

r 
a 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 u

pd
at

e 
of

 
be

sp
ok

e 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 in

 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
 

N
ov

em
b

er
 2

01
4 

 
H

S
C

B
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
S

ub
 

G
ro

up

4.
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

rio
rit

y 
to

 b
e 

gi
ve

n 
to

 c
hi

ld
 s

ex
ua

l p
rio

rit
y 

an
d 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
M

is
si

ng
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
on

 th
e 

ba
si

s 
of

 O
fs

te
d 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

.  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
H

S
C

B
 P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
P

ro
ce

du
re

s 
S

ub
 

G
ro

up

5.
 

 
15

1 
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

LS
C

B
 r

ec
ei

ve
s 

ac
cu

ra
te

 a
nd

 r
el

ev
an

t p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
fr

om
 it

s 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 to

 
en

ab
le

 it
 to

 a
ss

ur
e 

its
el

f o
n 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 o

f s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
w

or
k.

  

C
ha

ir 
of

 
th

e 
Q

A
 

S
ub

 G
ro

up
 

D
ev

el
op

 a
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 c

hi
ld

’s
 jo

ur
ne

y 
sc

or
ec

ar
d.

   
T

hi
s 

w
ill

 c
le

ar
ly

 d
ef

in
e 

w
ha

t 
da

ta
 w

ill
 b

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
, t

he
 fo

rm
at

 a
nd

 th
e 

fr
eq

ue
nc

y.
   

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

T
hr

ee
 m

ee
tin

gs
 h

av
e 

ta
ke

n 
pl

ac
e 

an
d 

a 
dr

af
t s

co
re

ca
rd

 w
hi

ch
 is

 
cl

ea
r 

ab
ou

t s
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 
tr

ia
ng

ul
at

io
n 

is
 b

ei
ng

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

on
 a

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 b
as

is
.  

 

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

6.
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

ro
vi

de
 th

e 
op

po
rt

un
ity

 fo
r 

tr
ia

ng
ul

at
io

n 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 d
at

a 
se

t a
nd

 
fu

rt
he

r 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

on
 a

cc
ur

ac
y 

to
 b

e 

 
 

 

139



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 2
2 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

O
fs

te
d

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

C
H

IP
P

 R
ef

 
O

fs
te

d
 A

re
a 

fo
r 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
L

ea
d

 
A

ct
io

n
 

B
y

W
h

en
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

m
ea

su
re

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
au

di
t a

ct
iv

ity
.  

 

7.
 

 
15

2 
 

E
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

LS
C

B
 

op
er

at
io

na
l g

ro
up

s 
is

 m
an

ag
ea

bl
e 

an
d 

pr
io

rit
is

ed
. 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

T
er

m
s 

of
 r

ef
er

en
ce

 fo
r 

th
e 

st
ee

rin
g 

gr
ou

p 
an

d 
su

b 
gr

ou
ps

 to
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 g

ov
er

na
nc

e 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
an

d 
pr

io
ris

at
io

n.
  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up

8.
 

 
 

 
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up
 

S
tr

en
gt

he
ni

ng
 th

e 
go

ve
rn

an
ce

 r
ol

e 
of

 th
e 

st
ee

rin
g 

gr
ou

p 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

9.
 

 
 

 
 

 
E

st
ab

lis
h 

a 
qu

ar
te

rly
 s

ub
 g

ro
up

 c
ha

irs
 

m
ee

tin
g 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 a

ct
iv

ity
 a

nd
 

pr
io

rit
ie

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

su
b 

gr
ou

p 
ar

e 
in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 b

us
in

es
s 

pl
an

 p
rio

rit
iz

ed
 a

nd
 s

te
er

in
g 

gr
ou

p 
di

re
ct

iv
es

.  
 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

 
H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up

10
.  

 
 

 
 

S
up

po
rt

in
g 

th
e 

ch
ai

rs
 o

f t
he

 s
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

su
b 

gr
ou

ps
 s

et
 a

ge
nd

as
 to

 
en

su
re

 c
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 te
rm

s 
of

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

an
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

 / 
O

fs
te

d 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
rio

rit
ie

s.
   

 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

 
H

S
C

B
 S

te
er

in
g 

G
ro

up

11
.  

15
3 

 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 le

ar
ni

ng
 fr

om
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 c

as
e 

au
di

ts
 is

 a
ct

io
ne

d 
an

d 
th

e 
im

pa
ct

 is
 r

ev
ie

w
ed

 th
ro

ug
h 

re
pe

at
 a

ud
its

. 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
Q

A
 S

ub
 

G
ro

up
  

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 G
ro

up
 is

 r
ev

ie
w

in
g 

its
 

te
rm

s 
of

 r
ef

er
en

ce
, s

co
pe

 o
f 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s,

 it
s 

w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
an

d 
is

 r
ef

re
sh

in
g 

th
e 

H
S

C
B

 q
ua

lit
y 

as
su

ra
nc

e 
fr

am
ew

or
k,

 in
 r

ev
is

ed
 d

at
a 

se
t a

nd
 

sc
or

ec
ar

d 
an

d 
ha

vi
ng

 c
om

pl
et

in
g 

it 
w

ill
 

re
vi

se
d 

th
e 

au
di

t a
ct

iv
ity

 th
at

 n
ee

ds
 to

 
fo

rm
 p

ar
t o

f t
he

 tr
ia

ng
ul

at
io

n 
ac

tiv
ity

.  
  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

A
 d

ra
ft 

da
ta

 s
et

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
fin

al
is

ed
 a

nd
 th

e 
ke

y 
tr

ia
ng

ul
at

io
n 

po
in

ts
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 d
is

cu
ss

ed
.  

  

H
S

C
B

 Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

12
.  

 
 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

Q
A

 S
ub

 
G

ro
up

 

A
t Q

A
 S

ub
, t

he
 le

ar
ni

ng
 to

 g
o 

to
 s

te
er

in
g 

gr
ou

p 
so

 th
at

 S
te

er
in

g 
gr

ou
p 

as
ks

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 s
ub

 g
ro

up
 to

 a
ct

io
n 

th
e 

le
ar

ni
ng

.  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

T
he

 n
ew

 g
ov

er
na

nc
e 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 a
nd

 r
ep

or
tin

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
w

ill
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 

le
ar

ni
ng

 is
 r

ep
or

te
d 

in
to

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 a
nd

 S
G

 h
ol

ds
 th

e 
re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

fo
r 

di
re

ct
in

g 
ne

xt
 

st
ep

s 
an

d 
w

ho
 is

 r
es

po
ns

ib
le

.  
 

C
ha

ir 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
at

 S
pe

ci
fic

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 R
is

k 

13
.  

15
4 

 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 r

ob
us

t s
tr

at
eg

ie
s 

an
d 

in
te

lli
ge

nc
e 

in
 r

el
at

io
n 

to
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s 
ar

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d,

 in
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

at
 

S
pe

ci
fic

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 s
el

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f t

he
 N

at
io

na
l S

E
T

 A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

p 
a 

ne
w

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

T
he

 s
el

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
.  

 W
or

k 
is

 in
 p

ro
gr

es
s 

to
 d

ev
el

op
 a

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
 p

la
n 

an
d 

C
ha

ir 
of

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
at

 S
pe

ci
fic

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 R
is

k 

140



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 2
3 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

O
fs

te
d

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

C
H

IP
P

 R
ef

 
O

fs
te

d
 A

re
a 

fo
r 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
L

ea
d

 
A

ct
io

n
 

B
y

W
h

en
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

m
is

si
ng

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
th

os
e 

at
 r

is
k 

of
 

ch
ild

 s
ex

ua
l e

xp
lo

ita
tio

n.
 

R
is

k
an

d 
D

is
ru

pt
io

n 
P

la
n 

fo
r 

H
er

ef
or

ds
hi

re
. 

di
sr

up
tio

n 
pl

an
.  

14
.  

 
 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n 

at
 

S
pe

ci
fic

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 
R

is
k

E
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

S
E

T
 O

pe
ra

tio
na

l G
ro

up
 to

 
dr

iv
e 

fo
rw

ar
d 

th
e 

S
E

T
 a

ge
nd

a 
in

 
H

er
ef

or
ds

hi
re

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

S
tr

at
eg

ic
 P

la
n.

 

N
ov

em
b

er
 2

01
4 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

at
 S

pe
ci

fic
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 r

is
k 

15
.  

 
 

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

F
ie

ld
w

or
k 

Le
ad

in
g 

an
d 

en
su

rin
g 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

cr
os

s 
th

e 
pa

rt
ne

rs
hi

p 
in

 
co

nn
ec

tio
n 

w
ith

 th
e 

W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

Jo
in

t 
P

ro
to

co
l o

n 
M

is
si

ng
 (

R
un

aw
ay

 a
nd

 
M

is
si

ng
 fr

om
 H

om
e 

or
 C

ar
e 

P
ro

co
to

l).
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

A
 n

um
be

r 
of

 p
an

 W
es

t M
er

ci
a 

 
m

ee
tin

gs
 h

av
e 

be
en

 h
el

d 
an

d 
th

e 
pr

ot
oc

ol
 is

 in
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t w

ith
 a

 
ta

rg
et

 c
om

pl
et

io
n 

da
ta

 o
f O

ct
ob

er
 

20
14

 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

16
.  

 
 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n 

at
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
ris

k 
 

H
S

C
B

's
 M

is
si

ng
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

A
ct

io
n 

P
la

n 
to

 
be

 fu
lly

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
a 

hi
gh

 
qu

al
ity

 jo
in

ed
 u

p 
ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 in
ci

de
nc

es
 

of
 c

hi
ld

re
n 

m
is

si
ng

 fr
om

 c
ar

e 
or

 h
om

e.
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

W
or

k 
on

 th
e 

m
is

si
ng

 a
ct

io
n 

pl
an

 
w

ill
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 th

e 
w

or
k 

pl
an

 fo
r 

th
e 

C
hi

ld
re

n 
at

 S
pe

ci
fic

 A
dd

iti
on

al
 

R
is

k 
su

b 
gr

ou
p 

 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

17
.  

 
 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

ch
ild

re
n 

at
 

sp
ec

ifi
c 

ad
di

tio
na

l 
ris

k 

D
ev

el
op

 H
S

C
B

 m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 fo

r 
th

e 
on

go
in

g 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

ov
er

si
gh

t o
f c

o-
or

di
na

te
d 

m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 r
es

po
ns

es
 fo

r 
ch

ild
re

n 
w

ho
 g

o 
m

is
si

ng
. 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

 

A
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

at
 S

pe
ci

fic
 A

dd
iti

on
al

 
R

is
k 

su
b 

gr
ou

p 
ha

s 
be

en
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
d 

th
e 

te
rm

s 
of

 
re

fe
re

nc
e 

ag
re

ed
.  

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

18
.  

15
5 

 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 m

ul
ti-

ag
en

cy
 

sa
fe

gu
ar

di
ng

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 is
 s

uf
fic

ie
nt

, 
ta

ke
n 

up
 b

y 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 a

nd
 is

 r
ob

us
tly

 
ev

al
ua

te
d.

 

C
ha

ir 
of

 
T

ra
in

in
g 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 

C
ou

rs
e 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
pr

oc
es

se
s,

 in
cl

ud
in

g 
Im

pa
ct

 e
va

lu
at

io
ns

, w
ill

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
an

d 
im

pl
em

en
te

d 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 
im

pr
ov

ed
 q

ua
lit

y 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

to
 H

S
C

B
 

to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f i
ts

 m
ul

ti-
ag

en
cy

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
in

g 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

ffe
r.

 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

T
he

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t s

ub
 g

ro
up

 a
re

 
cu

rr
en

tly
 p

ro
gr

es
si

ng
 th

is
 a

nd
 w

ill
 

re
po

rt
 to

 th
e 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

 in
 O

ct
ob

er
 2

01
4 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

19
.  

 
 

 
C

ha
ir 

of
 

T
ra

in
in

g 
an

d 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

A
 s

ta
nd

ar
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

fo
r 

en
ga

gi
ng

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f H
S

C
B

 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 w

ill
 h

av
e 

be
en

 im
pl

em
en

te
d 

an
d 

us
ed

 to
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 fo

r 
th

e 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

nd
 

th
en

 a
pp

lie
d 

to
 o

th
er

 c
ou

rs
es

 la
te

r 
in

 th
e 

ye
ar

. 

M
ar

ch
20

15
 

T
he

 b
oa

rd
 w

ill
 c

om
m

it 
to

 a
 

pe
rio

di
c 

sy
st

em
at

ic
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
of

 
al

l c
ou

rs
es

 le
d 

by
 th

e 
W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t A

dv
is

or
 (

or
 

eq
ui

va
le

nt
 p

os
t)

 w
ith

 th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

en
ga

gi
ng

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

es
 

H
S

C
B

 S
te

er
in

g 
G

ro
up

20
.  

15
6 

 
E

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
LS

C
B

 b
us

in
es

s 
un

it 
is

 e
ffe

ct
iv

el
y 

ab
le

 to
 s

up
po

rt
 th

e 
H

ea
d 

of
 

S
af

eg
ua

rd
i

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 a

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 B

us
in

es
s 

U
ni

t, 
th

e 
ex

pe
ct

at
io

ns
 u

po
n 

it,
 a

nd
 th

e 
A

ug
us

t 
T

he
 r

ev
ie

w
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

an
d 

th
e 

op
tio

ns
 p

ap
er

s 
ha

s 
be

en
 

H
S

C
B

 S
tr

at
eg

ic
 

141



A
PP

EN
D
IX

 2
 

 Pa
ge

 2
4 
of

 2
4 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
V
2.
11

: 2
 S
ep

te
m
be

r 
20

14
 

 

O
fs

te
d

P
ar

a 
N

o
 

C
H

IP
P

 R
ef

 
O

fs
te

d
 A

re
a 

fo
r 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
en

t 
L

ea
d

 
A

ct
io

n
 

B
y

W
h

en
 

P
ro

g
re

ss
 

M
o

n
it

o
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 

E
va

lu
at

io
n

 

w
or

k 
of

 th
e 

LS
C

B
. 

ng
 a

nd
 

R
ev

ie
w

/H
e

ad
 o

f 
A

du
lts

S
af

eg
ua

rd
i

ng
  

re
so

ur
ce

 a
va

ila
bl

e 
to

 it
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

it 
is

 a
bl

e 
to

 s
up

po
rt

 a
n 

in
cr

ea
si

ng
ly

 e
ffe

ct
iv

e 
B

oa
rd

 
20

14
 

dr
af

te
d 

an
d 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
ith

 th
e 

C
om

m
is

si
on

in
g 

O
ffi

ce
r 

(I
nd

ep
en

de
nt

 C
ha

ir 
of

 th
e 

H
S

C
B

) 
fo

r 
co

m
m

en
t a

nd
 a

ut
ho

ris
at

io
n 

an
d 

ne
xt

 s
te

ps
 (

A
ug

us
t 2

01
4)

 

B
oa

rd

21
.  

 
 

 
In

de
pe

nd
e

nt
 C

ha
ir 

of
 

th
e 

H
S

C
B

 
&

 C
ha

ir 
of

 
H

S
A

B
 

A
gr

ee
 a

nd
 im

pl
em

en
t t

he
 r

es
po

ns
e 

to
 th

e 
re

po
rt

 e
ns

ur
in

g 
th

at
 a

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 

B
us

in
es

s 
U

ni
t i

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

14
 

 
H

S
C

B
 S

tr
at

eg
ic

 
B

oa
rd

 

 

142


	Agenda
	
	3 MINUTES
	4 Local Transport Plan 4
	Appendix 1 LTP3 Strategy and Delivery 2013-2015
	Appendix 2 LTP3 Policy 2013-2015

	5 Outcome of Children's Safeguarding Ofsted Inspection and Action Plan
	Appendix 1 - Ofsted Inspection of Services Report Published 30 June 2014
	Appendix 2 - Ofsted Inspection May 2014 Action Plan_A4


